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Copyright Lawsuit: CROSS-EXAMINATIONS
confirm that the case is not authentic - 2010-09-
04

Date: Saturday, 2010, September 4

Heritage News has obtained the cross-examination

transcripts, and they contain many revelations. First

impression from Heritage News is that the three people t
who allegedly represent the Imam in this case seem to [XLT_J
confirm everything that the defendants have been saying!

The defendant's position comes out even clearer and
stronger! - But you be the judge once the transcripts are

available. THE COMNSTITUTION

OF THE SHIA Isasdl [Smantd

Mr Gray's questions show his lack of knowledge of the MusLive
Imamat, the Ismaili Faith and the Institutions. His
questions instead, undermine the Imam!

Mr Sachedina's answers go against the main principle of

Ismaili Faith and undermine the value of the Word of

every hereditary Imam, a value which has been central to Ismaili Tarigah right from the beginning. Mr
Sachedina's answers also confirm that all evidence in this case originates from him.

Mr Bhaloo has no input to give on the matters of importance in this case, and has appeared only at the
request of Mr Sachedina. He refuses to answer simple questions and contradicts Mr. Sachedina.

Mr Tajdin's answers show that he has maintained a good relationship with Dr. Sachedina and Mr.
Bhaloo, and that he has had many opportunites to approach the Imam, but that he has never crossed
boundaries due to the code of conduct prescribed to Ismailis. He asks many of the same questions that
the worldwide Jamat has about this Lawsuit, and pinpoints contradictions.

Mr Jiwa asks clear questions requiring precise answers that show the holes in the plaintiff's case as
well as whether the witness 1s making up a story. Mr. Jiwa's answers show that he had nothing to do
with the publication of thye Golden Edition KIZ and appears in this Lawsuit due to a confusion by Mr
Sachedina between Mr Jiwa's private mailing list and Mr Tajdin's public website.

Both defendants reaffirmed under oath that they will stop all infringing activities if they have an

authentic instruction from the Imam Himself to do so, no matter the legal recourses available to them.
Stay tuned to this section for Transcripts!
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Copyright Lawsuit: CROSS EXAMINATIONS
Table of Contents - 2010-09-04

Here 1s a detailed table of contents of the cross-examinations for the Motions for Summary Judgement
in the Copyright Lawsuit allegedly filed by the Aga Khan. We tried to include everyone's burning
questions.

Are Farmans to be followed?

Mr Sachedina says that Farmans that we hear in Didars are not actually Farmans and are not to be
followed. He maintains throughout his testimony that only the written edited versions sent by ITREB
are actually Farmans. Later, Mr Sachedina has to admit that Farmans come from the Noor, the Light of
God. Mr Bhaloo says that Talikas containing blessings are not Farmans.

Are Ginans to be followed?
Mr. Sachedina maintains that Ginans are just devotional poetry and are not meant to be followed.

Are Previous Imams' Farmans to be Followed?
Mr Sachedina maintains that he does not follow Farmans of previous Imams.

Has an Official Farman Book Publication Been Approved?

LIF's announcement in January 16, 2010, informed the jamats as follows: "The Jamat will be pleased
to be informed that Mawlana Hazar Imam has already approved that the Jamati institutions should
Jormally publish a volume containing the approved text of his farmans, including those made for the
Golden Jubilee."

Is this announcement accurate? Mr Sachedina cannot pinpoint whether or when the approval for this
official Farman book was given, and does not indicate that any work 1s under way to produce an
official Farman book.

Over 80% of ismailis have NO access to Farmans.

Mr Sachedina helps to establish that despite there being a few thousand Jamatkhanas, the
circumstances of the worldwide ismaili Jamat are such that over 80% of ismailis do not have access to
Jamatkhanas or to Farmans.

Does Imam Think in French and Speak in English?
Mr Sachedina admits twice to saying that the Imam thinks in French and speaks in English.

Health and Age of the Imam - Gray Keeps bringing this up.
Mr Gray tried to establish that the Imam 1s aging and in bad health. It was refuted by everyone.

Did Sachedina and Bhaloo discuss their Affidavits with the Imam?
Bhaloo and Sachedina did not discuss their Affidavits with the Imam.
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Did the Imam ask Sachedina and Bhaloo to be His withesses in this case?
Mr. Sachedina is the one who asked Mr Bhaloo to be a witness. No word on who decided that Mr
Sachedina should be a witness.

Initiation of the Lawsuit

Sachedina says that only 2 people were involved in the issuing of the Statement Of Claim: Sachedina
and Manji. Sachedina has a hard time pinpointing when the Imam gave the go-ahead to proceed with
the Statement of Claim.

Whether Gray has spoken to the Imam
Gray tried to show that he has spoken to the Aga Khan by producing a group photograph including him
and The Aga Khan Taken at the Aga Khan Museum Foundation Ceremony.

Are defendants insisting to meet the Imam?

Defendant Nagib Tajdin is often in close proximity but never addresses the Imam. The defendants are
not insisting to meet the Imam, they are insisting on getting any authentic direct instruction from the
Imam so that they know whether to continue or not.

Meeting the Imam: Defendant's Alternatives
Defendants present some alternatives that the Imam had to make them stop their activities without
needing to meet them.

Meeting the Imam: Gray's Alternatives

Gray knows that the Lawsuit will end if the Imam says in person "Nagib Stop.", yet he tried many
times to find alternatives to producing the Imam. None of his alternatives seem to show that he has
access to the Imam.

Contradiction: April 2010 Announcement - No Consultation?

Brian Gray tries to establish with Nagib that the April Announcement was written in consultation with
all the LIF. Sachedina later contradicts this point of view and establishes that in fact the draft of the
second announcement was not circulated to anyone in the leadership before it was read out in
Jamatkhanas as being from the LIF, Councils, ITREB etc on the same evening that it was written by a
couple of persons including Sachedina.

Contradiction: Did Nagib Tajdin's letter really reach Aiglemont on Jan 20?7

Sachedina, in his affidavit, says that Nagib's letter to the Imam Reached Aiglemont on January 20,
2010. Sachedina's email to Nagib on January 10 said that Aiglemont had no trace of Nagib's letter.
Nagib produced a letter from the Kenya Council, as well as a confirmation from DHL that the letter
actually reached Aiglemont on January 8th.

Contradiction: Drafting of the February 18th letter purportedly by the Imam

Mr Sachedina told Mr Jiwa that the Imam showed Mr Sachedina a draft of the second letter before
signing it. Mr Sachedina told Mr. Tajdin that the Imam was away travelling when he drafted the
second letter.
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Did Sachedina convey to Imam that some of the points in the forged letter needed clarification?
Mr Sachedina did not convey to the Imam that Mr Tajdin had responded to the first letter with a
request for clarifications.

Has Imam spoken to LIF, or is there a huge conspiracy against the defendants?
Gray tried to show that if the defendants are to be believed, then it would mean that there 1s a huge
conspiracy of dozens of corrupt leaders, staff, and that this is unbelievable.

Sachedina's cross-examination showed that the misinformation can be pinpointed to very few
individuals. Even the LIF Chairman, Lakhani, has not been contacted by the Imam about this issue, the
LIF was briefed by Sachedina, and the announcements were written by only a couple of people, not by
the whole ismaili leadership as they seem to imply or as Mr Gray seems to think by looking at his
questions to Tajdin and Jiwa.

This confirms that all evidence in this case originates from Mr Sachedina.
Where the Farman Dissemination Policy of March 2010 Comes From

The Farman Dissemination Policy document of March 2010, submitted to court by the Plaintiff party,
does not come from the Imam or from Aiglemont, it comes from Mohamed Manji.

Can anyone else sign for the Imam?
Mr. Sachedina dispels the rumours that someone else is allowed to sign for the Imam.

Can Imam's Farman supercede the Constitution?
This 1s a simple question, but Mr. Bhaloo, although he has been swearing to protect the constitution for
decades, refused to answer the question on the grounds that he is not a constitutional expert.

Is there a breach of the Ismaili constitution?
Obviously, if there was a clear breach of the ismaili constitution, then this case would have been in the
Arbitration board.

Discussions about the constitution have revolved around the specific clauses about Farmans that were
included in previous constitutions but that have been removed from the newer constitution since 1986.
Older constitutions distinguished between religious publications and Farmans. The clauses about
Farmans were removed by the Imam, but the clauses about the other religious publications remained
ntact.

Sachedina maintains that the constitution has been breached and that in the case of Farmans, only the
Imam can Publish or authorize publication, Not Itreb, not the Council. However, if the current
constitution 1s to be relied on to prove the breach, then article 14.1¢ lets the Ismaili Council authorize
publications (and this is how Mr Gray seems to understand it), and Article 8.4d gives the ITREB's the
responsibility to publish. Neither article reserves the right for the Imam. This leaves us with Farmans
to follow which say that Imam makes Farmans FOR Jamats.

Who Can Print Farmans
It is the Imam's prerogative to decide who can print Farmans, and it can be anyone.
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How long did Defendants know about the Forgery before making it public?

It turns out that in order to protect the trust that Jamati institutions have with the Jamat, the defendants
had not publicized their knowledge of forgery until after the Lawsuit was filed when they no longer
had the choice.

What is Mr Sachedina's actual role at Aiglemont

Mr Sachedina's role a head of the department of jamati institutions is not a constitutional position, and
the department of Jamati institutions cannot give new directions to institutions. Ismaili Institutions do
not report to Mr. Sachedina. He coordinates their work, but ultimately, the institutions are answerable
to the Imam.

What is the relationship between Defendants and Sachedina and Bhaloo?

Both Sachedina and Bhaloo agree that they are not in bad terms with the defendants. In the Case of
Alnaz Jiwa, they don't recall ever interacting with him. In the case of Nagib Tajdin, they claim cordial,
even warm relations with him, admit that he has never acted unrespectfully against either of them, and
that his family was well-respected until the Announcements and the Lawsuit.

Why is Alnaz Jiwa included in the Lawsuit?

It turns out that Alnaz has no role in the publication and a mimimal role in the distribution of the KIZ
Farman book series. The reason he was included in the lawsuit seems to be due to a confusion on Mr
Sachedina's part.

Are Farmans made Available to Non-Ismailis?

ITREB is manned 100% by ismailis who have taken the ismaili oath of office. The IIS 1s manned at all
levels by many non-ismailis who are not bound by the constitution. Why then, are Farmans asked to be
sent to IIS and not ITREB?

Contradiction: Did Sachedina give Nagib's address to Michelle Parkes?
Sachedina started saying that he had nothing to do with Miss Parkes' correspondance with Mr Tajdin.
However, he was not able to stick to that story.

Contradiction: Imam's criticism of Leaders in London
Mr Sachedina maintains that the Imam's comment about Leaders in London during Golden Jubilee was
incomplete. This statement is shown to be false.

Contradiction: Recall all books or just the Golden Edition?
Would the Imam ask Mr Tajdin to undertake an impossible task?

Contradiction: Whoe mentioned Nagib Tajdin's Name?

Sachedina's Affidavit says that the Imam mentioned Nagib Tajdin's activities to Sachedina. His earlier
testimony says he knew nothing of Nagib's actions before he started working at Aiglemont. Now,
Sachedina says that he is the one who mentioned Nagib's name to the Imam.

In 1998 Did sachedina and Bhaloo take the Farman Book Draft to the Imam?
The Draft that Nagib Gave for the Imam in 1998 1s still in Bhaloo's house.
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Is the Imam concerned about the website?
Mr Sachedina states that there is a general concern about the contents of ismaili websites, and a review
1s pending, however, he also says that Mr. Tajdin himself has been part of the solution.

Significance of Mehmani
A mund is quite entitled to speak to his Imam during Mehmani. Imam does listen, interact with and
guide Murids during Mehmanis. Although reluctant, even Mr Bhaloo came around to this conclusion.

Significance of Talika
Talikas and Farmans are not regular speeches, they are treated with the greatest respect and special
ceremonies as Divine words for the Ismaili commumty.
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2010-08-09 CROSS-EXAMINATIONS for
Summary Judgement Motions

4 people were cross-examined on the week of August 9, 2010 for the Summary Judgement Motions in
the context of the Copyright Lawsuit allegedly by the Aga Khan.

First, both defendants Nagib Tajdin and Alnaz Jiwa were examined on Monday August 9th, 2010 by
the Plaintiff's Lawyer Brian Gray.

Then, Shafik Sachedina was examined by both defendants on August 12, 2010 and Aziz Bhaloo was
examined by both defendants on August 13, 2010.

Mr Gray opted to examine the defendants' forensic expert Graham Opsreay the following week.
Main subjects are highlighted below, and full transcripts will be linked in this section.
The Following News Event and News [tem Summarize these Cross-Examinations:

Copyright Lawsuit: CROSS-EXAMINATIONS confirm that the case is not authentic - 2010-09-04

Copyright Lawsuit: CROSS EXAMINATIONS Table of Contents - 2010-09-04
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Are Farmans to be followed?

Mr Sachedina says that Farmans that we hear in Didars are not actually Farmans and are not to be
followed. He maintains throughout his testimony that only the written edited versions sent by ITREB
are actually Farmans. Later, Mr Sachedina has to admit that Farmans come from the Noor, the Light of
God. Mr Bhaloo says that Talikas containing blessings are not Farmans.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #301:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. ... Would you agree with me, sir, and you said this earlier, that the jamats are obligated to follow the
Imam's farmans and the Constitution?

A, Just as farmans that he has authorized for release to the jamat. Not any farmans. Absolutely what he
had given for the jamat, which he has authorized for the jamat, and once he 1s the one who approves
those farmans.

Sachedina #542 - #545:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. ... My question to you was that before Mr. Tajdin started distributing these farmans, there were
many farmans that were not released by ITREB to the jamat khanas -- to local ITREBs to be read;
correct?

A. Because Mowlana Hazar Imam had not authorized the release of those farmans through the process.
Q. So the answer 1s yes to that?

A. Yes. It was not released because he did not authorize the release.

Q. So you said earlier, if I understand correctly, that the farmans become definite after they are
authorized by the Imam?

A. Absolutely. That's my understanding.

Q. And that by His Highness not authorizing, he doesn't want those farmans to be followed; correct?
A. Because they are not farmans. Actually, those farmans have not been authorized or released. That
means they don't become effective, and, therefore, they are no longer farmans. They are not made as
farmans.

Sachedina #511 - #514:
Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.
Q. Now, His Highness, it appears from what you are saying, when he makes his farman, his oral
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farman, he comes to the jamat khana --

A. Extempore.

Q. Extempore.

--- Off-the-record discussion.

Q. And you are saying that after he approves and finalizes, then it becomes definitely farman?

A, Yes.

Q. Are jamats expected to follow the farman that he has already made, or do they wait until he has
authorized the final version?

A. To me, the version that he has authorized become the farmans that are conveyed to the jamat with
his authority. So even in my view, and it 1s my opinion, that even if you had been made aware of a
farman to the jamat, the text that he releases after his review are the authorized farmans. Because they
have gone the review process by the Imam himself, and he has therefore completed this where there
have been -- no, he has reviewed them. If he requires anything, whatever he requires is done, and then
in most cases, as I say, he goes through this process and then gets them released. So those are the only
ones that are the farmans.

Sachedina #622 - #628

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. It's still read in jamat khanas usually 11th of July, the day of the Imamat --

A. Yes. That's the farman of the Imam.

Q. It's a farman which is a recognized farman; right? Can you confirm to me if Noor' means 'the
Light'? And there is a surah in the Koran, a chapter in the Koran, about the Noor?

A, Yes.

Q. Is it the same Light?

A. The Light, yes.

Q. The Light. It's the Light of God --

A, Yes.

Q. -- which gudes materially and spiritually?

A. The Noor of Allah, the Noor of God.

Q. Which guides materially and --

A, Yes.

Q. And this 1s guided through the Imam's love that Noor is guiding us. And since we are all from the
same religion, we all believe in this; right?

A. (Deponent nods head up and down).

Bhaloo #143:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. You would accept that the talika is a written farman?

A. Sometimes the talikas are blessings, not farmans.

Q. Oh, blessings are not farmans?

A. Itold you that talikas are sometimes blessings given by the Imam to the individuals, but not
instructions in farmans.
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Are Ginans to be followed?

Mr. Sachedina maintains that Ginans are just devotional poetry and are not meant to be followed.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #140

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Must abide by, yes. And would you also agree with me that the jamat is also asked to obey and
follow what's preached in the Ginans, g-i-n-a-n-s, so long as they are not contradicted by a current
Imam?

A. Ginans are devotional poetry, and thus as poetry, it 1s not in a way incumbent for anybody to follow
the ginans in the way that you describe. Ginans are, as I say, devotional poetry.

SS#892-895

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Okay. But you agreed that the Usul-e-deen farman, which is very well known in the community,
says that farmans and ginans are the same?

A. As I said to you, this was by the past Imam, the 48th Imam.

Q. Is it valid or not?

A, As I said to you, my interpretation, and it is my personal interpretation, that I follow the guidance
given by the present Imam always.
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Are Previous Imams' Farmans to be Followed?

Mr Sachedina maintains that he does not follow Farmans of previous Imams.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #885 - #889:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Can I ask you to look at the second page of this. Have you heard of a farman that people refer to as
the Usul-e-deen farman --

A, Yes.

Q. In the, not the last paragraph but just before that paragraph, I want to point to this: "My Farmans
themselves are the Ginans!" The Usul-e-deen farman 1s quite widely circulated in our jamat; do you
agree with that?

A, This 1s -- again, [ keep coming back, these are farmans from Sultan Muhammad Shah, and I always
-- as I said to you, it 1s my position very clear, and it's my believe, that every time we look at, first of
all, the farmans of the present Imam, they take precedence over any previous farman. And the Imam of
the Time is the one -- the farmans that are, from our point of view, in our tariga. We look at the present
Imam's farmans.

Q. That's very good. Mr. Sachedina, would you agree that any farman which has not been superseded
1s still valid?

A. By the Imam -- living Imam.

Q. So let's say on July '57 the living Imam became Shah Karim, the present Imam. So the farman made
two weeks ago by the previous Imam are no longer valid; 1s that what you are saying?

A. What I'm saying to you is our -- the farmans of -- Imam 1s Imam, is the present living Imam, and
we, as the jamat Ismaili community, follow always the Imam of the Time. So those farmans are the
ones that guide our life because he is the present Imam and he makes the farman. It is his farmans that
we follow because we have given the bayat to the Imam of the Time.

Q. Thank you for this theological discourse. Now, let me tell you -- isn't it true that the Imam, when he
became Imam, the present Imam said 'follow the farman of my grandfather’' who was the previous
Imam", right? Isn't it true that he said that in his very first farmans?

A, Well, as I say, I cannot respond to that.

Sachedina #892 - #893:
Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.
Q. Okay. But you agreed that the Usul-e-deen farman, which is very well known in the community,
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says that farmans and ginans are the same?

A. As I said to you, this was by the past Imam, the 48th Imam.

Q. Is it valid or not?

A, As I said to you, my interpretation, and it is my personal interpretation, that I follow the guidance

given by the present Imam always.
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Has an Official Farman Book Publication Been
Approved?

LIF's announcement in January 16, 2010, informed the jamats as follows: The Jamat will be pleased to
be informed that Mawlana Hazar Imam has already approved that the Jamati institutions should
Jormally publish a volume containing the approved text of his farmans, including those made for the
Golden Jubilee.'

Is this announcement accurate? Mr Sachedina cannot pinpoint whether or when the approval for this
official Farman book was given, and does not indicate that any work 1s under way to produce an
official Farman book.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #390 - #402:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. 'The jamat would pleased to be informed that Molwana Hazar Imam has already approved that the
Jamati Institution should formally publish a volume containing the approved text of his farmans.' [as
read] Do you know when did he formally approve this?

A. The principal. This is an approval of the principle to publish. That does not mean you can publish
tomorrow. It 1s the principle that he has agreed. The principle to approve, that he has approved the
principle of being able to publish the farmans at his time. He has not made a decision that tomorrow
you will publish this. He has given his -- here, as [ say to you, 'approve the jamat to formally this." So
he has given his agreement to publish. Now the process has got to be gone through.

Q. Okay, so what I'm saying -- my question was: When did he give this approval?

A. This was during the -- this discussion has been on the table with Hazar Imam for a number of years.
Q. No, this --

A, Listen to me, please. I have also.

MR. GRAY: Let him finish his --

THE DEPONENT: I have to be able to give you the context of this. It is my right to give you a context
to this. And, therefore during the Jubilee there were a -- during the Golden Jubilee of the Imam, there
were a number of projects, and one of them was -- there's one to do with the speeches of the Imam, and
this one also is the farmans of the Imam. And these were 1ssues that were discussed by -- with Hazar
Imam, and he has, as I said, given in principle his agreement to do this. The question is going to be the
timing in when this will happen and the process has to -- due process will have to be gone through
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before they are released to the jamat.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. So my question i1s when -- when the final approval was given?

A. About the...?

Q. When you say 'has already approved'?

A. Itold you during the meeting with the leaders -- at the time of the Golden Jubilee, this proposal was

Q. No, it would be nice 1f you would say what month, what year?

A. During the Golden Jubilee when we -- leaders of the jamat periodically meet Hazar Imam, and there
were meetings with Hazar Imam about what will be the outputs that we will do before the Jubilee,
during the Jubilee, and the post-Jubilee. And the farmans would be the compilation also of -- all the
farmans of the Golden Jubilee would be included in this. So this was something that came out of the
Golden Jubilee.

Q. So you cannot point to the month that he gave --

A. This was done in the context of the principle of -- agreement by approval by Hazar Imam to do
certain things. And this was informed to the jamat that that approval has been given by Imam to do
this. But, as I say to you, there's a process to follow, which Hazar Imam will have to be -- his guidance
will have to be sought.

MR. GRAY: Excuse me just for a second.

--- Off-the-record discussion.

--- Recess taken at 11:59 AM.

--- Upon resuming at 12:09 PM.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Now, Mr. Sachedina, your announcement --

A, Yes.

Q. You were talking about this already approved and you explained that. Now, to your knowledge has
His Highness, prior to his Golden Jubilee approval, has he ever approved prior to that for the
publication of the farmans?

A. The principle to publish?

Q. What do you mean 'the principle'?

A. Because the fact is that, you know, there is no publication at the present time. There is no
publication of farmans authorized by any institution actually at the present time which 1s there. So this
will be something that s in the process. It was in the process, principle was agreed with Hazar Imam.
Q. Right.

A. And now it's being looked at. Because I -- so that you should be aware, I had raised this matter with
Hazar Imam of the Time of my meetings with Nagib at that time about this whole issue, that we will
need to make sure that there's a publication available.

Q. Did he give you an approval at that time? Did you ask him for approval at that time?

A. No, he had said that -- we are very, very clear on this matter, that whatever it 1s you prepare, submit,
and then we will make a decision once [ have reviewed the material.

Q. Right. And so he said that in 1998 to you?

A. He said the principle about this 1s something I'm willing to consider and I'm willing to look at. And
that's why I was very satisfied that this is where the direction we will end up at some point in time, but
only after he has given his authority ###.
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Over 80% of ismailis have NO access to
Farmans.

Mr Sachedina helps to establish that despite there being a few thousand Jamatkhanas, the
circumstances of the worldwide ismaili Jamat are such that over 80% of ismailis do not have access to
Jamatkhanas or to Farmans.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #606-#614:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Now, as the head of Jamati Affairs, you have a list of how many jamat khanas there are which are
in contact with the Imamat?

A, Yes.

Q. Approximately how many?

A, Of the number of murids or in the global number of countries?

Q. No. Jamat khanas.

A. Oh, jamat khanas. Well, we have in excess of nearly over 5,000-7,000 jamat khanas.

Q. 7,000. And some are in remote areas where there are small villages and few people?

A, Absolutely.

Q. So on the average, that would cover about 2, 3 million Ismailis?

A, Well, yes, possibly. Even more.

Q. There are jamat khanas where there are a thousand people that can sit, and there are some where
there are a hundred people that can sit; am I right?

A. There are different size of jamat khanas.

Q. Okay. So if we have to be very generous that about 2, 3 million people have access to jamat khanas,
would you agree that not all the people who have access to jamat khanas go to jamat khanas?

A. Access to jamat khanas 1s out of choice of people being able to go because of their lives, whether
they are able to go to the jamat khanas, the proximity of the jamat khanas, the distances people have to
travel to jamat khanas. So there are many factors that determine for any member of the community to
go to jamat khanas. There could be a jamat khana but they can't get to it because of the distance,
whatever it may be. There are many reasons for that.

Q. Okay. Out of 15 million Ismailis, if you have 2 or 3 million at the most who have access -- let's say
they all go to jamat khanas, would you agree that 80 per cent of the people do not have access to jamat
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khanas in our community; they live in regions where there are not yet either a jamat khana or --

A. I'm not able to make that judgment to say to you for sure that is the case. But there is a large
proportion, and you know that the Imam of the Time has said that there are many places in the world
that there are no jamat khanas, which he will at the time -- at the time of the Golden Jubilee it was one
of the goals, was to establish jamat khanas in parts of the world where there has been no access to the
jamat khanas. And that is his goal. And therefore he -- there are many, many places in that region of
the world where there's a large population and they do not have access to jamat khanas.

Q. Okay. Now, would you agree that people who do not have access to jamat khanas do not have
access to farmans?

A. Yes, because -- they would not have access simply that there are no structures, even institutional
structures, in some of these places.

Q. True.

A. There has been no constitutional bodies in many of these countries. In fact, till today I can tell you
most of these countries do not have constitutional bodies.

Q. Yes. In fact, the Imam mentioned in a farman that there are no constitutional bodies in many, many
places where Ismaili --

A. In those parts of the world where there are large jamats, there are in some of these countries what I
call the jamats that we are mentioning, majority of the jamats do not have jamati institutional
structures. You know, I can give you Russia, central Asia, Afghanistan only just started, western China
-- all of these places have a large population, but these are areas of the world where jamat khanas have
not been established because there are no constitutional bodies or just about beginning to be
established. So it's under the constitutional bodies that jamat khanas -- and there are no traditions in
some of these places to have jamat khanas.
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Does Imam Think in French and Speak in
English?
Mr Sachedina admits twice to saying that the Imam thinks in French and speaks in English.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #252- #257:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. And you told Mr. Tajdin that Imam 'thinks in French, speaks in English, and makes mistakes, so we
edit them, we correct them'?

A. That's his words, not mine.

Q. And you never said that?

A. I didn't say about mistakes. What I said was, and [ want to really put it on properly, 1s that Imam
himself had told me that when he makes farmans, he makes extempore farmans. And extempore
farmans, when he makes them, he thinks in French, and the farmans are made in English. And it 1s
absolutely correct in my view that farmans of any -- from my point of view any Imam from that point
of view, the Imam has his right to review those farmans because the spoken word and then text have to
be compared and be satisfied that that is what he wished to be released.

Q. Would you agree with me that that's your opinion?

A, No. It is what the Imam has told me personally.

Q. That he what?

A. That he has made -- it's a long tradition absolutely going back through many, many years.

Q. When you say 'many years,' so Sultan also had the same policy as well?

A. I'm not -- I'm talking about this Imam. I wasn't present with the 48th Imam. I was not working for
him. But I can only tell you that Imam reviews this material himself for the last many, many years
since | have been working, and he releases it only when he is satisfied with it.

Q. Now, do you have any, either a farman -- right? -- or an article in the Constitution that says that the
Imam edits farmans or has to edit farmans or has to approve farmans before they are released for
distribution?

A. There's a very clear constitutional mandate. If you read article -- the only people that are authorized
to do that are constitutional board. If you look at the article, very clearly article 14 of the Constitution,
14.1(c) clearly says that it is only the Imam who -- it's very clear on -- 14.1 article C is absolutely clear.

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 19 of 536



Sachedina #263:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. I'll come back to that in a second. I just want to focus on the question that I asked you. My question,
and I'm going to repeat it again: Is there any article in the Constitution or is there any farman that says
before any farman that has been made by the Imam, before it is distributed to the jamats, has to be
edited and approved by the Imam? That's my question.

A. Not in the way that you describe.

Sachedina #617 - #618:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Okay, that's fine. I'm referring to tab D of -- 3(d) -- now you have to bear with me. It's the first time
that I am doing an examination. And Shafik, honestly, I think in French, I speak in English.

A, Yes.

Q. So sometimes --

A, Thank you very much. I am grateful. That 1s first time on record somebody can say that. I thought I
was the only one saying that.

MR. GRAY: That's okay. I think probably it's the first time Mr. Sachedina has been examined.
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Health and Age of the Imam - Gray Keeps
bringing this up.
Mr Gray tried to establish that the Imam 1s aging and in bad health. It was refuted by everyone.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

N. Tajdin #268:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. I see. Okay. And did you tell this Mr. Ospreay the age of the Aga Khan?

A. No, I did not.

Q. Can you produce for me your instructions to Mr. Ospreay?

A. Tt was a verbal instruction.

Q. You didn't ask him in writing?

A. No.

Q. Did you tell im...you follow what the Aga Khan...his life, don't you?

A. I follow 1t very closely.

Q. Very closely. And are you aware of the fact that he had a skiing accident in 2008?

A. Yes, he has had several of those.

Q. He had several accidents in 20087

A, Yes.

Q. And they were in 2008, weren't they?

A, Yes. In fact, I met, in 2008, or 2009, Dr. Sachedina in Ivory Coast, and he told me that we have
fixed completely properly the shoulder of His Highness, and he is like before.

Q. Right. So, you were aware that the skiing accident hurt his shoulder?

A. Yes, I was aware.

Q. And which shoulder was that?

A. Probably the right shoulder.

Q. Right, and are you also aware that the Aga Khan, His Highness, is right-handed?

A. Yes, I am aware.

Q. Okay. Did you tell Mr. Ospreay that His Highness had had a skiing accident in 20087
A. No, I did not, because he was already back to normal, and that was confirmed to me by Dr.
Sachedina in Abidjan during the Golden Jubilee for His Highness.

Q. Did you tell any of the other experts that you retained about the Aga Khan's age?
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A. No.
Q. Did you tell any of the other experts about the skiing accident in 20087
A. No.

Jiwa #282 - #284

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. [ take it that you also follow events...I take it you also follow events in His Highness' life?

A. I do somewhat, yes. But the accident was publicly known. So even if you are not following, you
knew.

Q. So you knew?

A, Yes.

Q. You knew there was an accident in 20087

A, Yes.

Sachedina #586 - #599,

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. And the Imam travels extensively; right?

A, Yes.

Q. I would think he travels all the time. I think he mentioned somewhere that he lives in a suitcase or
something, or a briefcase. And I remember a very old interview that he sent that he spent so many
hours working in a plane, that's why maybe he made this comment. He's also a sportsman; right? He
does ski?

A, Yes.

Q. He drives his own car?

A. He loves.

Q. He loves. I have seen his movie with Princess Zahra on a horse. So the horse --

A. That 1s his hobby. I don't get involved with any of this.

Q. I just want to make sure that we agree that the Imam is in better shape than you and me. If I can
refer to that Imam, [ was just looking few days ago at the Pamir Mountains and the Imam is climbing
the mountain. It looks very fresh. And I think you are 300 meters behind the Imam trying also to go up
the same mountain. Is that a university that he's building in the Pamirs?

A. Yes, there 1s a University of Central Asia, which is the university in that region, in Kyrgstan,
Tajikistan and Kazakhstan. It's --

Q. It's a three-country --

A. Three countries.

Q. And it's a mountain university?

A. Under the treaty of --

Q. Okay.

A. Under the treaty between the Imam and the three presidents of the three countries.

Q. There 1s no choice but to climb the mountain. Because that's where the campus are; right?

A. In remote areas.

Q. In remote areas.

A. In isolated areas.

Q. Very good. Now, he 1s also a graduate from Harvard, so he's not like the average person --

MR. GRAY:: Please stop here a second. I see the reporter 1s looking for -- off the record.

BY MR. TAJDIN:
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Q. So I guess he probably is using some gadget. | saw you were using a Blackberry. Is the Imam also
using a Blackberry?

A. I'm not aware of that.

Q. You are not aware if the Imam --

A. Blackberry, I don't know about the Blackberry.

Q. [ will not ask his phone number, promise. But he uses some kind of telephone where you can send
messages. | understand he send some messages. So he's quite a modern person in that way?

A. He's an Imam of the Time.

Sachedina #834 - #839

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. ...So that day we met in Abidjan.

Q. Yes. That was during the Golden Jubilee; right? Right?

A, Yes.

Q. I guess this i1s a yes. We talked about the Imam, and you said that his shoulder was completely
restored. You remember that conversation?

A. You asked me how Hazar Imam was, and I said to you he's fine. And you said 1s he all right, and I
said yes, he's fine.

Q. Did we talk of his shoulder?

A. You talked to me, as I say, about his accident.

Q. Yes.

A. You asked me the question and I responded.

Q. And you said he was fixed now?

A. Right shoulder is a shoulder injury, that's why.
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Did Sachedina and Bhaloo discuss their
Affidavits with the Imam?

Bhaloo and Sachedina did not discuss their Affidavits with the Imam.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #28 - #33:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Now, you said you have reviewed Mr. Bhaloo's Affidavit?

A, Yes.

Q. And did you review it when it was drafted right initially, or after it was sworn by him?

A. The Affidavit itself?

Q. Yes.

A. I had seen a situation from before, what he was saying in his own Affidavit, and it was actually the
counsel who actually sent me the final copy ofit.

Q. After it was signed?

A, Yes. Of course I have seen a draft before that, but it actually was signed by -- and I was sent, really,
the copy ofit.

Q. Now, your Affidavit as well as Mr. Bhaloo's Affidavit, the draft version, did you review that with
His Highness?

A, I didn't review it myself. I didn't review it. The counsel had, but I certainly didn't personally give it
to His Highness myself.

Q. And did you discuss with His Highness the contents of your Affidavit or Mr. Bhaloo's Affidavit?
A, Not with him personally.

Sachedina #830 - #833:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Okay. Have you seen Mr. Bhaloo's Affidavit before he signed it?

A. Sorry?

Q. Have you seen Mr. Bhaloo's Affidavit before he signs it?

A. Mr. Bhaloo's Affidavit before he signed this? I saw a version ofit.

Q. Okay. A draft?

A. Yes, there was a draft that was -- he had prepared, but, as I say, he then himself dealt with 1t
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because, as [ say --

Q. That's fine.

A. It's not my responsibility. But he did say that he was just making sure that I find my -- as far as I'm
concerned, my own visit dates and what you have already said is here, now all is in there.

Bhaloeo #6:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. When this Affidavit was drafted, did you discuss what contents to put in, what to mention, with
anybody else?

A. No, I did not.
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Did the Imam ask Sachedina and Bhaloo to be
His witnesses in this case?

Mr. Sachedina is the one who asked Mr Bhaloo to be a witness. No word on who decided that Mr
Sachedina should be a witness.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #25 - #26:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. With respect to this litigation, whose decision was it that you and Mr. Bhaloo should be giving
evidence?

A. The decision for -- whose decision it was?

Q. Yes.

A, I realized that some of the facts require Mr. Bhaloo, who was present at only one of the meetings
that I know of, and then he was also present, I believe, at the -- or he was in the leadership at the time
of one of the other --
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Initiation of the Lawsuit

Sachedina says that only 2 people were involved in the issuing of the Statement Of Claim: Sachedina
and Manji. Sachedina has a hard time pinpointing when the Imam gave the go-ahead to proceed with
the Statement of Claim.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #515 - #519:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. When did His Highness tell you that he has decided to issue this Statement of Claim?

A. When did?

Q. When did he tell you?

A. In fact, he discussed this matter the -- after the letter was sent, the second letter was sent, he

did speak to me and the president, Mohamed Manji that --

Q. Together?

A. No. He spoke to me and I believe he spoke to Mohamed separately, and then he sent us, you know,
from his point of view a message to speak with -- you know, in the sense that there were discussions
that we should also discuss amongst ourselves on this matter.

Q. So who discussed?

A. Mohamed and me were only involved, two people, because His Highness wanted to know whether
what had happened so far, what are the actions that have happened so far, the fact that these farmans
there has been no reaction, that these farmans have not been withdrawn in the sense that these books
have not been withdrawn from circulation, so he was concerned.

Q. By the time that you --

A. And he wanted -- sorry. And he wanted to understand whether he continues in this Imam/murid
relationship, which 1s what he wanted to do. And second letter, he felt after the second letter that he
had done what is expected of the Imam in his way, and he was rather concerned that there was no
action from the other side, from the murids, and he wanted to protect the integrity of his farmans.

Sachedina #523 - #527:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. So do you know -- I mean I'm going to ask you as precise as you can be in terms of date or day?
AL T try.

Q. Is when did he tell you that he has now decided to issue a Statement of Claim?
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A, Ithink and I can probably -- this letter was in February. I think indications were that he was
seriously now, all the avenues were -- he had exhausted the avenues from his perspective, which were
that if an imam writes to a murid and a murid does not respond, or at least then went and accused for
forgery, that was a serious matter for him. And he felt that if that was the case, then this was a matter
of serious concern to him and that to protect the integrity of his works, his moral rights, he wanted to
ensure that this, therefore, would have to go where legal recourse would have to come. Because before
that we had said, both Mohamed and me, that we would try and resolve this as Imam -- between the
Imam and the murid because that was the relationship between the murid and the Imam, that he wanted
in the privileged setting to resolve this matter.

Q. Now, [ was trying to get --

A, Yes.

Q. -- the date?

A. I think probably towards the end of March or April that he was thinking about -- towards end of
March, I think.

Q. That he said he wanted to 1ssue the Claim?

A, Well, that's the time he said, well, look, I think, you know, he would have to deal with it from a
legal perspective.

Sachedina #766 - #767:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Mr. Sachedina, the first announcement which we have already talked about was already talking of
legal steps?

A. I --at least not from my --

Q. That was --

A. The first announcement, as far as I'm concerned, doesn't talk about any legal steps at all, at

least in the --

Sachedina #771

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Okay, I'm just referring to the last sentence where it talks of copyright laws.

MR. GRAY: It says --

THE DEPONENT: Yes, but this practice constitutes a breach of the Ismaili Constitution as well as
copyright laws, and appropriate steps have been taken to ensure that the unauthorized circulation of
copies of these unauthorized publication ceases.
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Whether Gray has spoken to the Imam

Gray tried to show that he has spoken to the Aga Khan by producing a group photograph including him
and The Aga Khan Taken at the Aga Khan Museum Foundation Ceremony.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

N. Tajdin #481

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. I am showing you a picture, a photograph.

A, Yes?

Q. Do you recognize anybody in that photograph?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Who do you recognize there?

A. The Aga Khan.

Q. That 1s the Aga Khan?

A. Yes, 1t 1s the...

Q. Who is that next to...do you recognize me there, next to the Aga Khan?
A, Yes.

Q. Does that look like me?

A, Yes.

Q. Brian Gray?

A, Yes.

Q. Do you recognize anybody else in the photograph?
A. I think...1s that not the architect Maki?

Q. That 1s the architect, yes.

A. And I think from the back, I see Mohamed Manji.

Q. You see Mohamed Manji behind the Aga there?

A, Yes.

Q. He 1s the president of the Ismaili Council for Canada?
A, Yes.

Q. And you see the person at the bottom?

A. This 1s the foundation ceremony of the Jamatkhana Museum, right?
Q. Yes.

A, Yes.
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Q. And you see the other person at the left there; do you know who that 1s?

A. Who is the other person on the left?

Q. The Aga Khan's right, to the left of the photograph.

A. Aga Khan's right.

Q. To the left, next to the architect.

A, who... There is a lady. I am not sure

Q. Yes, I can tell you that is Bev Oda, the Minister of International Cooperation?

A. Yes, yes.

Q. Do you recognize her now?

A. Yes, [ recognize her.

Q. Okay. So, I am standing next to the Aga Khan...

A, Yes.

Q. ...at the foundation ceremony; am I not?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay.

A. There are so many pictures of so many people like that. I collect them.

Q. You collect them?

A, If you should not mind, I would like to get a copy.

Q. You can have a copy. I will give you a copy right now.

A, Thank you.

Q. There you go, here is a copy. Now, how do you explain that, if I have not spoken with the Aga
Khan, or have access to him? people...

A, Mr. Gray, I can produce you so many

Q. Sorry?

A. I can produce so many people who are in photographs with the Aga Khan who have not spoken to
him.

Q. I see.

A, It doesn't mean anything. Come on.

Q. It means nothing?

A. On that occasion, so many pictures were taken, probably a couple of thousand.

Q. Okay.

A. So many people wanted to have a photograph with the Aga Khan.

Q. So, along with the ten million people that won't convince you, a photograph is not going to
convince you?

A. A photograph where you stand near the Aga Khan, I could have been standing there. So what?
MR. GRAY: Okay. Can we mark that as the next exhibit? Number 12. It is a photograph of Brian
Gray, the Aga Khan, Bev Oda and an unnamed architect.

Q. Maki?

A, Yes.

Q. Yes, Mr. Maki, at the foundation ceremony of the Aga Khan...

A. Museum, Jamatkhana.

Q. ...Museum in Toronto.

A. He is the architect of the museum.

Q. Okay. It was taken around May...at the time of the ceremony in May of 20107

A. Yes, end of May.
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Q. End of May?
A, Yes.

Jiwa #126:
Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. You saw the photograph of me standing next to the Aga Khan? Did you see that photograph?
A. I have seen the photograph.

Q. You think I did not speak to the Aga Khan?
A. You know what? I will not answer that question. You give your evidence if you want to. Put in an

affidavit and we can cross-examine you. Right now you have not given any evidence. You are just
counsel.
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Are defendants insisting to meet the Imam?

Defendant Nagib Tajdin is often in close proximity but never addresses the Imam. The defendants are
not insisting to meet the Imam, they are insisting on getting any authentic direct instruction from the
Imam so that they know whether to continue or not.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

N. Tajdin #419 - #428:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. So, it is a privilege to have an audience with the Aga Khan, isn't it?

A, It 1s a privilege for anyone, but this is not the purpose. I am not looking for an audience for an
audience. I have written, in the beginning of January, I need an audience to get instruction.

Q. Have you ever had an audience with the Aga Khan?

A. No. Yes. [ have gone to Mehmani.

Q You went to Mehmani?

A, Yes, it was a long time ago.

Q. When was that?

A. 1978.

Q. And at that Mehmani in 1978, did you present the fruit and nuts to him?

A, I think there were more than fruit and nuts. There was a rosary, and there were a few other things.
Q. Right, right, okay. So, you had a Mehmam?

A. T had a Mehmani.

Q. How long did that Mehmam last in 19787

A. A few seconds.

Q. A few seconds, okay. So, other than that, you haven't had any audience with His Highness?
A. T have never tried to...

Q. No.

A. ..up to January 4th.

Q. Yes, now you have been trying since January 4 to have an audience with him?

A, Yes.

N. Tajdin #516:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.
Q. Did you try to bring your books to show to the Aga Khan while he was in Toronto?
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A. No. I went to the hotel, but not to try to give him the book.

Q. Did you go to the hotel, and the Royal York, where he was, to try and give him the books?

A. No.

Q. Did you try to meet him at the hotel?

A. T haven't tried to meet him. I was standing there with other Ismailis to see him.

Q. You were in the hotel?

A. And if he would have called me, [ would have gone.

Q. But you were in the hotel lobby?

A. I was in the hotel lobby, and I was in the hotel lobby the previous time when he came, the previous
of the previous time also.

Q. Did you follow him around the world, trying to see him?

A. I go around the world because I have a website. I take pictures. I take photos. Sometimes he is there
for a day, two days. Sometimes we are very close. I could talk to him, but I don't do these things. We
have a code of conduct that tells that we cannot approach the Imam unless he accepts.

Q. All right. You follow him around, but you don't speak to him in the...

A. Never. Never.

Sachedina #630-#631:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. On paragraph 20, you say: 'Mr. Tajdin responded that he would accept this to be His Highness's
wish only if he received instructions directly from His Highness.' Is this correct?

A. That's what you told me.

Q. I agree [ told you that. I just want to make sure that it's not changed?

A, Yes. Directly -- from my language, directly is the Imam. Imam of the Time, if he tells you, then you
will take instructions from him.

Q. Okay, that's fine.

A. And that's the way you have described to me.
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Meeting the Imam: Defendant's Alternatives

Defendants present some alternatives that the Imam had to make them stop their activities without
needing to meet them.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Jiwa #122 - #124:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. Well, 1s 1t your evidence that you won't accept...the Aga Khan has not consented that the Aga Khan
has not authorized this lawsuit unless you speak with him in person? Is that your evidence?

A. My evidence...you know what? don't need to speak to him in person. I don't need to speak with him
in person. He has, despite the evidence to the contrary, he has very simple ways of dealing with these
1ssues. And that leads me to believe that, you know, he 1s not behind this litigation.

Q. But you don't need to speak to him in person.

A. T don't need to...

Q. And so you would accept something in writing?

A, Writing at this moment 1s becoming difficult to accept. But I have told you that he has got quite a
few...at least two other alternatives to stop this stuff or stop the publication of Farmans and he has
chosen not to do

s0. That leads me to believe that he is not behind this.

Sachedina #433 - #439:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. But the concern 1s, as I understand, it seems to be that whether they are official or unofficial, he
doesn't want them to be outside of jamat khanas distributed either by email, by photocopies, by books?
A. That's something he doesn't wish.

Q. He doesn't you say?

A, Except from the described process.

Q. And yet since 1997 at least, perhaps earlier, as you said, but at least since 1997, he frequently told
you that he's concerned about this, would you agree with me that he had an excellent opportunity when
he went around the world to make sure that the jamats doesn't engage in this activity. He never did;
correct?

A. That's the Imam's decision --

Q. Yes. [ understand.
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A. -- what the process is. It's up to him.

Q. I'm not asking you why he didn't do.

A, Yes.

Q. Of course you're right, its his prerogative. What I'm telling you is despite that he went around the
world, he never mentioned any farman anywhere to say don't engage in this activity. You are aware,
aren't you, that he has, for instance, said, 'l don't want you dealing drugs, I don't want you smoking
drugs, I don't want you to grow drugs, I don't want you to transport' -- he said that in jamat khana?

A. But those are in the context of a farman.

Q. [ understand. But he said that. So he's able to say in the farman and stop this; would you agree with
me?

A. If he wished to do that. That is the prerogative of the Imam to do what he wants to do and say what
he wants to say, if he wished to say, whether in his people whether that's something he wants to say to
the jamat in public. But this is an institutional i1ssue.

Sachedina#448 - #450:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa. (until reporter appeals)

Q. And 1t says, the second sentence: 'In order that there is absolute clarity that the legal steps have been
undertaken is the sad last resort." Right? Would you agree with me that this is not a 'sad last resort'?

A. It was from Imam's perspective a 'sad last resort’ because he tried in many ways for this not to go to
this level.

Q. I just told you that if the Imam has been concerned, if he has been concerned about these activities,
and according to you since at least 1997, he has a number of occasions -- for instance, 1998, July, he
amended the Constitution and he could have made it abundantly clear that nobody but the Imam can do
this. Number 2, and I just explained to you that he could have made the farmans as he went around
during Golden Jubilee because this has been a concern for a long time, as you've been saying. So
would you agree with me that the sad last resort is not true?

A, Let me tell you and maybe --

Q. Yes or no?

A Ttisa--

--- The reporter appeals.

MR. GRAY: Let him answer the --

THE DEPONENT: I have a right to explain. 'Sad last resort' because for the last ten years, since after --
from 1998, after my visit with Nagib, and, in fact, the last publications of Nagib, nothing, as far as I'm
aware, there was no publication. This issue only arose because of this publication that was produced.
MR. GRAY: The Golden --

THE DEPONENT: So there was Golden. This is the book that has come out. This is the book in
question --
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Meeting the Imam: Gray's Alternatives

Gray knows that the Lawsuit will end if the Imam says in person 'Nagib Stop., yet he tried many times
to find alternatives to producing the Imam. None of his alternatives seem to show that he has access to
the Imam.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

N. Tajdin #134 - #140:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. So, if it 1s actually from the Aga Khan, you accept that that, in fact, ends the lawsuat. If it really 1s
from the Aga Khan, you no longer have consent to do what you are doing?

A, If the Aga Khan confirmed directly in person that he has written this letter, there is no lawsuit.

Q. Right. You will stop...you confirm, and it 1s your view that the Aga Khan has the absolute and
unfettered right to withdraw any consent he may have given?

A. The Aga Khan can withdraw any consent to anyone at any time.

Q. Right. And even if he had given any consent previously, or anything he may have said previously...
A, Well, from the time he gives an instruction, it has to be followed.

Q. Right.

A. This 1s the tenet of our faith.

Q. So, if he has withdrawn his consent now, that is the end of the matter?

A. If he tells me, face to face, 'Nagib, stop', that is the end of the matter.

Q. Right. It doesn't matter what happened in 1992 or 1998, or any time?

A, It doesn't matter. If today, he tells me face to face, Nagib, stop', I will stop.

Q. But if the letter is genuine, and he has told you in writing to stop, you would also stop?

A, If the letter 1s genuine, and he tells me, "This is a letter which I have composed and signed', I will
accept.

N. Tajdin #236 - #239:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. So, a matter of this importance, when you are asserting forgery, you are not going to produce for
me to review, or for my expert to review, the original of either this letter, Exhibit 5, or the original of
Exhibit 3?

A. No. I will not, because your client is...1f it is the Aga Khan, he can tell me, T have signed it and the
matter 1s closed’. We do not need expertise.

Q. well, you might...

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 36 of 536



A. You don't need a counter-expert. I am really surprised. Why do you need to see the original of the
forged letter? You ask the Aga Khan. He is your client.

Q. I have asked the Aga Khan.

A, So, let him tell me that the letter is not forged, and [ will accept it.

Q. He has told you in writing, the letter is not forged.

A, Well, this...

Q. And you don't accept that. You might expect that he might be a little annoyed that you have accused
all of his various...

A. Mr. Brian, by saying that this letter is forged, I am protecting the Aga Khan. Come on, he cannot be
angry at me. He should be happy at me that at least, I am trying to protect his interests. In this whole
file, I am the only one trying to protect his interests. Come on.

N. Tajdin #248.

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. Right. So, is it not the case that he can...the Aga Khan, His Highness, can give you instructions in
writing? You accept that he has to be able to give instructions in writing, doesn't he not?

A. I would accept his writing if they are not forged.

Q. Right. Okay. But there are 15 million Ismailis?

A, Yes.

Q. He cannot possibly meet all of them, can he?

A. There 1s only one lawsuit against a Murid of the Imam in 1400 years. Surely, he can meet five
minutes that person and say, 'T have signed', but he is not doing it because he has not signed those
letters.

Q. But he cannot meet all 15 million Ismailis. He has to operate by sending things by writing?

A, Yes.

Q. Do you agree with that?

A. This kind of...

Q. He generally has to operate by sending information in writing?

A. Yes. And this problem has never occurred before. It is once in a lifetime, once in 1400 years.

N. Tajdin #267:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. I see. So, because the first one was forged, everything else you received from the Aga Khan's office
must be forged?

A. No. Everything that says that the first one has been written by the Aga Khan is forged.

N. Tajdin #398 - #404:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. But you agree with me already that if he gives you a clear indication in writing, which you
understand or believe to be from the Aga Khan, you will stop doing it?

A, At this point, anything in writing will be questioned.

Q. You will question anything in writing?

A. Yes, because there are so many forgeries in this file that I will not accept a letter.

Q. You won't accept a single thing that comes from the Aga Khan in writing?

A. Not in contradiction to what the instruction he has given.

Q. So, no matter what it says in writing, you won't accept it? No matter how many times he writes to
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you? No matter how many people...

A, If the Aga Khan writes to me, it has to be proven that he is the one, because up to now, in this file,
there 1s not even one that I can see which is in the Aga Khan's style, his real signature. The content is
always questionable, and I understand, you are not familiar with the Aga Khan's way, but I have been
studying it for 30 years. The Ismaili knows, this kind of letter are never written by the Aga Khan.

Q. If T got 50 people who swore that they saw the Aga Khan sign the thing telling you to stop, you
wouldn't accept that?

A, If the Aga Khan tells me, yes, [ will stop.

Q. No, [ am telling you, if you got in writing, from 50 different people, that they had seen the Aga
Khan sign a document saying that he did not consent, you wouldn't accept that?

A. Mr. Gray, you can bring me a million people. Because the Aga Khan has given the instruction to
me, he is the only one who can tell me these instructions are no longer valid. No other

people can tell me that.

Q. No person, but...yes, I understand that, but what I am suggesting to you is, if the Aga Khan tells you
in writing not to do it, you won't accept it, even if a million people confirm that

that is the Aga Khan's writing?

A. Even if ten million people, because that is not the point. It is beside the point.

N. Tajdin #415 - #418:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. So, you don't want to examine Mr. Gleason to see if there was somebody who looked like the Aga
Khan appeared? You don't want to ask him...

A. There 1s no need for that. [ was not there.

Q. You are not going to show him a photo of the Aga Khan, and say, "Was the Aga Khan there? [s this
the person you saw?'

A. I would not do that, because this would be meaningless. If the Aga Khan has made this lawsuit, let
him come and say for one minute, Nagib, stop’, and I will stop. There is no need for this Gleason and
notary, letters, and he would not even need someone to forge his signature if he was behind this.

Q. What if the Aga Khan doesn't want to see you, because you have asserted forgery? Has that ever
occurred to you that he might not want to see someone who 1s asserting forgery against all of his
employees, and against his secretariat, and against the secretariat of Prince Amyn? Has that not
occurred to you that he might not want to see you for that reason?

A. Mr. Gray, | think he would be very happy to see me, because [ am trying to protect his interests, not
mine. And there is no accusation against the Aga Khan. [ have never insulted him.

Q. And what about the precedent of giving an interview or an audience with somebody who 1s
asserting criminal activities on behalf of his own staff? What about that precedent? Do you think that is
a good precedent for him?

A, Well, I would not comment to you. You know, in North America, there are enough cases of
corporation where people on the top have been betraying the shareholders, so let's not go into this,
please.

N. Tajdin #450 - #451:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. ...and that somehow, now, having received the book, and the lawsuit having occurred, and the
announcement by the International Leaders Forum having occurred twice, and two letters having been
sent to you purportedly from the Aga Khan, and purporting to have been forged, and you have now
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asserted widely that they are forged, it has been widely circulated, and you are telling me that the Aga
Khan, His Highness, would not step forward to stop this, if, in fact, he had not authorized it?

A. I would tell you exactly the same thing, if he was behind this case. For sure, he would step in to stop
this case. He would tell me, 'Nagib, stop. I don't want you to print, and I will say there is no need for a
lawsuit'.

Q. So...

A, Twill stop...

N. Tajdin #470 - #476:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. So, you have put this settlement offer on the record in your other motion, haven't you?

A. Mr. Gray, a follower doesn't do settlement with his Imam.

Q. Right.

A, It can't happen.

Q. So, when I offered to have you have a meeting with the Imam after you agreed to settle the matter,
the case?

A. You wanted me to sign some

Q. Right.

A. .. which were against my faith.

Q. That 1s why the meeting didn't take place, because you didn't agree to that, right?

A. That 1s your point of view.

Q. Right?

A. T don't believe in that.

Q. Yes, you don't believe, because you think I don't represent the Aga Khan?

A. I don't believe that the Imam will refuse a two-minute meeting which can avoid to him a lawsuit.

Jiwa #125:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. But if we got another affidavit from another person that had seen the Aga Khan, would that
convince you?

A. Listen, you can do what you want to do. I won't tell you how to conduct your litigation, sir. You
don't tell me how to conduct my defence or what evidence I put in or who to cross-examine. I have told
youmy position. You have given your evidence as you have.

Jiwa #129 - 132:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. And you questioned Mr. Gleason. He has given evidence, hasn't he?

A. Mr. Gray, | have been a keen follower of His Highness Prince Karim Aga Khan and...not only him,
Sultan Mohammed Shah right back to...right to the prophets. I have read a lot of history. And for me to
make judgments...I mean, if you tell me that, you know, if another affidavit comes in, for me to make
judgment, I know my Imam how he works, how he operates. Right now, to me, all of this stuff seems
odd. They are inconsistent with the constitution. They are inconsistent with the Farmans that he has
made. They are inconsistent with our oral tradition of 1,400 years. So I have a hard time believing and
accepting.

Q. [ understand you have a hard time believing. I think we understand that.

A, Yes.
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Q. But, nevertheless, you would accept...you understand that affidavits are often accepted by lawyers
everywhere all over the world?

A. And I think you are aware that false affidavits are being filed here and there. It does happen.

Q. 1.

A. Excuse me. Courts also routinely get defrauded by people.

Q. And you are suggesting that is what I am doing.

A. No, I am not suggesting. I am saying I am not satisfied.

Jiwa #138:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Can you give me some indication of a motivation why Mr. Gleason would lie?

A. Lawyers get duped by clients every now and then. I think you can look at cases. You can look up
reports. If you just look up the Law Society's fraud website, you will be able to see in Ontario about
30, 40 lawyers have been defrauded, essentially based on false ID. Law Society has changed its rules
for even doing real estate transactions based on fraud that has been perpetrated. I don't believe that
those lawyers are commuitting fraud. They are victims of fraud.

Jiwa #308 - #315:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. There 1s one more question [ wanted to ask you. Is it your position that His Highness has the
absolute and unfettered right to withdraw his consent to the publication of these materials at any time?
A. Yes, he does.

Q. And so if he, in fact, has withdrawn his consent now or at any time since the lawsuit started, that is
the end of the matter, regardless of what might have happened in 19927

A. Yes. You know what? If His Highness personally desires to stop everything, it just stops. He 1s the
boss.

Q. Right. Whether he gives that to you generally in writing or whether it is in person...

A. Generally, no, as I said earlier...

Q. You don't want to accept it in writing but...

A. No. I would accept in writing. The problem that I have right now is this issue of whether...for me, I
have a grave concern that he has been misled. It has happened in the past. To you it might sound, 'Oh,
well, this is..." but it has happened in the past. So, [ would...I am hesitant to accept it in writing. Your e-
mail said that if you don't accept it, he wants to pursue with the litigation. So, he has repeatedly told us
that if we have any concerns, we can discuss with him. He has told us this. He says, T am here to guide
my Jamats'. He says, 'Ninety percent of my time should be spent for the Jamats', so we are entitled
to...he is like our father. He i1s not a CEO of a corporation. He 1s like our father and we are entitled
to..af I put it another way. We are entitled to beg him to allow his Farmans to be distributed to the
Jamats because he wants the Jamats to be guided. So I am entitled to make a plea to him as a Pir. He is
our current Pir as well as actually I think it might even be in the constitution that he is the current Pir,
so I am entitled to take our pleas to him and, you know, he

1s our spiritual advisor. It is just like Jesus is to Christians.

Q. Right, I understand.

A. So at this moment and this state in time, this litigation 1s completely contradictory to what he has
been telling us all along. This is why I appreciate that you are counsel and I appreciate your comments
on that, but [ have grave concerns. And so as much as you say I have unfettered...I mean, if he tells me
to jump out of this window I won't think think about it. And I hope I can maintain that faith; right? So
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if he tells us and if I am satisfied this 1s him, I will do it.

Q. And even if it 1s in writing, if he tells you that it is not to be done, you will do it? Whether in
writing or in person; as long as you are satisfied...

A. That it 1s from him.

Q. Right.

A. Absolutely. There is no question about it.

Q. And that vitiates, if you will, or cancels or annuls any prior consents that may have been given in
1992 or at any other time?

A. Mr. Gray, it would make no difference whether there is consent or not. He says no, the matter s
OVer.
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Contradiction: April 2010 Announcement - No
Consultation?

Brian Gray tries to establish with Nagib that the April Announcement was written in consultation with
all the LIF. Sachedina later contradicts this point of view and establishes that in fact the draft of the
second announcement was not circulated to anyone in the leadership before it was read out in
Jamatkhanas as being from the LIF, Councils, ITREB etc on the same evening that it was written by a
couple of persons including Sachedina.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

N. Tajdin #364:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. Can you identify that as an announcement made by the Ismaili Leaders' International Forum to the
Jamatkhannas?

A, Yes.

Q. And so this was on or about April 15, 2010, read to all of the prayer halls at Jamatkhannas?

A. Yes, around that date. I think it

was read the previous day in Canada, the next day in

Nairobi.

Q. So, again, the whole international...the Leaders' International Forum, that is what the LIF 1s, right?
The Leaders' International Forum?

A, Yes.

Q. Those are the leaders of the Ismaili...can I call it religion, Ismaili religion?

A, Yes.

Q. Ismaili religion. They are the leaders of the Ismaili religion, and the National Council. All of them
have issued this announcement, in the Jamatkhannas worldwide?

A. I would say it 1s not all of them. When a corporation gets an announcement out, it is not everybody
who 1s involved. Maybe one person has drawn this, and sends it to be read.

Q. Okay, one person...

A. How can [ know?

Q. But circulated 1t around to the institutions, to go...

A, Yes.

Q. ...through the procedure, right?
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A. Yes, circulated all over the place.

Q. Before it was read, it would have been circulated around to the institutional leaders to review.

A. T am not sure. How can [ know? I am not part of them, so I don't know what is the procedure there.
Q. Is it conceivable to you that His Highness would not have been aware of the reading of this
announcement?

A. Yes, it is conceivable. There are announcements every Friday, every important days...

Q. Does the announcement...

A. .. there are so many of them.

Sachedina #727 - #745:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Okay. How was these four countries affected chosen? In 39 you say: 'As this represented a grave
and unprecedented step, His Highness authorized the LIF to issue a second announcement.! Was this
done in writing?

A. No. He called me.

Q. He called you?

A, Yes.

Q. So you prepared the announcement?

A. Sorry?

Q. You prepared the announcement?

A. No. He called me. He himself had done a lot of work on the announcement, and he was giving me
mstructions to say that these are the four countries he wants. Because originally -- normally,
announcements of the LIF go global, but in this particular case, it was His Highness's wishes that to
keep this announcement in only those four countries.

Q. So you said His Highness had worked quite a lot on this second announcement. Has he shown you a
memo or some notes or something which became the base of that second announcement?

A. I'm not privy to Hazar Imam's own work that he does with his staff.

Q. Okay. So announcement, Hazar Imam told you his notes over the phone?

A. No. He himself read out the components to it. It says this is what he wants to say. Because all of
these quotations were he -- he wanted those quotations put into the announcement.

Q. So you took some notes during that phone conversation?

A. No, because [ was in a car and he was telling me on the phone and [ was driving from wherever it
was to the airport. So I was being told by -- he was reading it out to me.

Q. So you did not take any note of --

A. No. And he then says that Sherbanoo or somebody will send me the -- whatever the final draft will
be.

Q. That's fine. So did Sherbanoo send you the draft?

A. I would presume there must be a draft somewhere, but [ haven't got -- I can't tell you that I have
definitely got --

Q. Mr. Sachedina, can we have it as an undertaking to provide --

A, It's privileged. As I said to you, what Imam sends me is privileged communication.

Q. It's draft of something which was read -- (inaudible)

A. But I don't know --

Q. Do you agree to 1t? It's a draft --

MR. GRAY: We don't agree to produce it. We'll take it under advisement though. You want the draft
of the announcement of April --
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--- UNDER ADVISEMENT

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Yes, [ would like to see --

MR. GRAY: April the 15th, I think it is.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. The draft which Mr. Sherbanoo sent to Mr. Sachedina?

A. No. The draft of the final text that Hazar Imam authorized --

Q. So it came from Sherbanoo --

A. Sherbanoo's office, who said this is the text which Hazar Imam has authorized.

Q. Do you remember approximately at what date?

A. It was the day -- the day the announcement happened.

Q. So the same day it was read?

A. I think it was either the same day or the evening. Because I think I was on my way -- it's my
recollection, and I want to make it recorded it was my best recollection, and [ was in -- and I was going
-- and I was travelling to London, and it was on the road that I got this message, and that 1s when this
thing was. And he then says 'T am now authorizing you to release this announcement through the LIF.
Talk to Azim, talk to everybody, this 1s the position.'

Q. Okay. So that announcement was released by the LIF, not by the Council or their institution?

A. No. It came -- as I said to you, it was released through --

Q. By the LIF?

A.LIF.
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Contradiction: Did Nagib's letter really reach
Aiglemont on Jan 20?

Sachedina, in his affidavit, says that Nagib's letter to the Imam Reached Aiglemont on January 20,
2010. Sachedina's email to Nagib on January 10 said that Aiglemont had no trace of Nagib's letter.
Nagib produced a letter from the Kenya Council, as well as a confirmation from DHL that the letter
actually reached Aiglemont on January 8th.
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Sachedina #820 - #821:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. So D-1 would be a letter purported to be from His Highness Prince Aga Khan, Council for Kenya,
dated 5th of July.

MR. GRAY: It appears to be, yes, on its face.

EXHIBIT D-1: Copy of letter dated July 5, 2010, from Nausherwan Parekh, His Highness Prince Aga
Khan, Council for Kenya, to Mr. Nagib Tajdin, Nairobi.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Informing that parcel was sent to Mowlana Hazar Imam on 8th January by courier DHL, and there
1s a confirmation of the DHL.

MR. GRAY: My understanding is with DHL -- with that number, you would be able to determine
when it was delivered to his address.

MR. TAIDIN: Yes. Yes. The DHL delivery sheet, you can see the last entry. It is the same number, the
same number as in the Council letter. Last -- second page, last line. And from what I read, they
delivered the three parcels to Aiglemont. One was 2-and-a-half kilo from Nairobi to Sherbanoo
Moledina.

Sachedina #826:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. And DHL is saying that this number of wayhbill, which 1s 2-and-a-half kilo, was delivered on 8th of
January. We just want to cross-check that this is the information which is in Aiglemont, that this is the
date it arrived?

MR. GRAY: We'll take it under advisement.
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Sachedina #900 - #916:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Okay. Now, the way it works, you know when you reply to an email, the first email goes below. So
the first email is 7 January here, and you are saying. 'Dear Naguib, could you please advise me of the
date when you sent the submission to Hazar Imam as his office have no knowledge of this.' Right? You
remember that email?

A. On the 7th of January?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes. I checked out and there was no --

Q. And you were right because, as you see, DHL is saying that they came on 8th only.

A, Well, I'm sorry, I didn't -- on that day I --

Q. You are right, it was not there.

MR. GRAY:: Just accept that he's saying you're right.

MR. TAIDIN: You always say yes when someone says you are right.

HE DEPONENT: No, but I just wanted to make sure. It's the 7th; right? This is the 7th of January.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Then on 10th, on 10th, you were looking for it and you had not find it; right? So you sent me
another email saying, 'l have no response from you. Please respond or call me asap.' [as read] True?
A, Yes.

Q. So on 10th the envelope was there --

A. T didn't check.

Q. -- you were looking for it but you did not find it?

A. Not for the envelope. Please understand, I'm not looking. The mail manager says that we have not --
Q. There 1s nothing?

A, Well, I mean this is because -- His Highness said to me you have said that the letter is coming. I
have not seen the letter.

Q. Did you check with the Kenya Council if I had given them a letter to send to Aiglemont?

A. That they confirm.

Q. So you told His Highness that my letter is coming?

A, It's on its way but I haven't seen it.

Q. You haven't seen it?

A, It's in the system.

Q. So that day I replied to you the same day, "The sealed envelope has gone through proper channel a
week ago Monday'?

A, Absolutely.

Q. So at that time you knew, on 10th, that the letter was coming, His Highness knew that the letter was
coming, you knew that I had given it to the Kenya Council, the Kenya Council had confirmed to you
that it's coming; right?

A. Correct.

Q. And before 1t came, there was already an announcement in jamat khanas, first one?

A. But that was no connection with the letter.

Q. Okay.

A. To me, the letter coming and Hazar Imam's announcement have no relation --

Q. Okay. So Hazar Imam didn't want to know what was in my letter before making the announcement?
A. The announcement issue just came simply because we wanted to make sure that this issue --
because he knew about the publication.
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Contradiction: Drafting of the February 18th
letter purportedly by the Imam

Mr Sachedina told Mr Jiwa that the Imam showed Mr Sachedina a draft of the second letter before
signing it. Mr Sachedina told Mr. Tajdin that the Imam was away travelling when he drafted the
second letter.
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Sachedina #505 - #509:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. When did you first see this letter?

A, After it was -- [ was given a copy of this letter after it was sent to you, to Nagib. But I had seen a
draft.

Q. Of the letter?

A, Yes.

Q. And did he send it to you for your in--

A. No. He just wanted me to look at the draft and he was going to sign this. And that's precisely -- the
date 1s 18th of February.

Q. And then you reviewed the draft before he sent it out?

A. I saw the draft.

Q. Before he signed and sent it over?

A. Yes, I saw the draft.

Sachedina #697 - #702:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Do you remember if he was travelling at that time?

A. T believe so.

Q. Okay. So that letter he wrote on 18th was not written from Paris then. From where --
A. Which letter are we talking about; the first or the second letter?

Q. The second.

A. T believe he was not at base at that time.

Q. He was not. Do you know which secretary typed that letter?

A. T understand there's a correspondence from Ann-Valerie.
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Q. Did she type that letter?
A, Well, she was a secretary [ believe accompanying His Highness, to the best of my knowledge. I

believe that she was a secretary travelling with His Highness at the time.
Q. Okay. Is 1t -- okay. We'll leave 1t at this.
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Did Sachedina convey to Imam that some of the
points in the forged letter needed clarification?

Mr Sachedina did not convey to the Imam that Mr Tajdin had responded to the first letter with a
request for clarifications.
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Sachedina #570 - #573:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Right. Nagib Tajdin had said to you that -- in his letter that he needed clarification?
A, Yes.

Q. Right? And my question is a narrow question; all right? Did you ever raise the topic with His
Highness or did he raise it with you? Did you both discuss what kind of --

A. Twasn't involved. That was between -- I think that was between --

Q. My question is not involved. Did he discuss with you or not on that --

A. No. No.

Q. Did you discuss anything? Did you ask him on that point?

A. No.
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Has Imam spoken to LIF, or is there a huge
conspiracy against the defendants?

Gray tried to show that if the defendants are to be believed, then it would mean that there 1s a huge
conspiracy of dozens of corrupt leaders, staff, and that this is unbelievable.

Sachedina's cross-examination showed that the misinformation can be pinpointed to very few
individuals. Even the LIF Chairman, Lakhani, has not been contacted by the Imam about this issue, the
LIF was briefed by Sachedina, and the announcements were written by only a couple of people, not by
the whole ismaili leadership as they seem to imply or as Mr Gray seems to think by looking at his
questions to Tajdin and Jiwa.

This confirms that all evidence in this case originates from Mr Sachedina.
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N. Tajdin #333:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. And this announcement was made on behalf of all of the Ismaili Leaders' International Forum?
A, It says for Ismaili Leaders' International Forum, Council for Canada and Tarigah and Religious
Education Board for Canada.

Q. Right.

A. That 1s an awful lot of people. institutions; do you see that in the second paragraph?

A, Yes.

Q. Right?

A. In fact, our constitution has separated all these institutions, so it is always surprising to see
something like that, that this is an announcement by more than one institution.

Q. So, the whole of all of the institutions?

A. You know it cannot happen...

Q. They all ganged up against you?

A. So many people...obviously, they have not been consulted.

Q. They have ganged up against you, all them?

A. No, this i1s an announcement which been sent probably by Dr. Sachedina, 'Please read that, in
Jamatkhannas'. As simple as that.

Q. He has the authority, on his own, to send an announcement to all the Jamatkhannas, to the whole
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world, on his own?

A, If Dr. Sachedina sends an announcement, nobody will question him.

Q. He has the complete authority to send an announcement to the whole of the Jamatkhannas in the
whole world on his own. Is that your evidence?

A. He has portrayed to the institution that he 1s the boss.

Q. I didn't ask you that. I said, does he have the authority, on his own, to send to all of the
Jamatkhannas in the world an announcement, on his own, without consulting anyone else?

A. He doesn't, but he does.

Q. He does not have that authority?

A. But he does do it, and people follow him. It is not...I am not the only one to fear him. Everybody
fear him. He is quite a strong person who has a lot of influence.

Q. And who appoints the...Shafik Sachedina?

A. The Aga Khan appoints him.

Q. Can the Aga Khan fire him at will?

A. T believe he will.

Jiwa #140 - 141,

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. Are you aware how these announcements become approved for circulation in the JamatKhanas?
A. No.

Q. You are not. Do you know how many leaders have to review them before they are circulated to the

JamatKhanas in any country or worldwide?
A.No, [ don't.

Sachedina #444:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. My question was who drafted it?

A. I've told you the process. It is done by the LIF Secretariat with the chairman of the LIF, myself, and
the president of the council where the jurisdiction is of the countries involved were consulted.

Sachedina #561 - #562:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. I refer to your paragraph 22. You say: 'At this time, the community leaders agreed with His
Highness's guidance that the Ismaili community worldwide should be informed that Mr. Tajdin's
Farman Book was an unauthorized publication that should not be supported.! Now, when you say
'community leaders,’ who do you mean by 'community leaders' here?

A. I explained to you that this announcement was with the -- there was the chairman of the --

Q. Just those? Nobody else?

A. -- community leaders because it's the apex of the body, the head of the body, the chairman, and the
head of the Jamati Institution, the president of the councils of countries involved where this issue was
from a jamati perspective, they knew he was from Canada and Kenya, Nagib was.

Sachedina #710 - #726

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. There are a couple of things. Now, it says that His Highness communicated with Mr. Mohamed
Manji. Would you know if it was verbal or with a memo or an email?
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A. I'was told -- I'm given to understand by Mohamed that he spoke to Mohamed.

Q. Okay. So the Imam calls --

A. President.

Q. -- Council presidents --

A, Yes.

Q. -- and important people; right?

A. He does call.

Q. When it 1s something important, not every day, every moment?

A. No.

Q. And --

A, It's up to the Imam to decide when and for what purpose.

Q. I agree. Now, 38, it says that you informed the LIF. Is it not true that chairman of the LIF is
appointed directly by the Imam?

A. Absolutely he's appointed by the Imam.

Q. And the Imam can talk to him directly?

A. Yes. He has absolutely --

Q. Does he do that sometimes, talking directly to the --

A. Yes. He speaks to the LIF chairman.

Q. And the chairman is Mr. Lakham?

A. Dr. Azim Lakham.

Q. Dr. Azim Lakhani. Where does he live?

A. He lives in the UK.

Q. In the UK. In London?

A. In London.

Q. Okay, that's fine. But the Imam did not call Mr. Lakhani; you informed Mr. Lakhani? When you
say you informed the LIF, in number 38, do you mean in the meeting; right?

A. I informed the chairman.

Q. And he called a meeting?

A, First the chairman, and then I asked the chairman, because Hazar Imam spoke to me on the phone,
called me and said that, T want this conveyed to the members of the LIF

Q. And he did not --

A, The first I spoke to chairman --

Q. Mr. Sachedina, he did not call the chairman of the LIF?

A. Because he wanted to discuss other matters with me, and while he was speaking with me, he -- it
was he who called me.

Q. It was not important enough for him to confirm directly to Mr. Lakhani that --

A. That was the Imam's prerogative, to decide who he speaks, for what purpose.
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Where the Farman Dissemination Policy of
March 2010 Comes From

The Farman Dissemination Policy document of March 2010, submitted to court by the Plaintiff party,
does not come from the Imam or from Aiglemont, it comes from Mohamed Manji.
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Sachedina #3006 - #309:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. I'm going to ask you to refer to your Affidavit's Exhibit B in your Affidavit. Now, this says, 'ITREB
Canada Farman Dissemination Process.! And you've given this as part of your evidence. And where did
you get this from?

A. This 1s a document that has been the process that they follow in Canada, and I asked them just to
make sure -- that the Imam wanted to see what the process was. So that's what they put down, 1s a
process which has been what is in place in Canada.

Q. And so who gave this to you?

A. It came from the National Council president.

Q. From Canadian president?

A. Yes. Because it was through the ITREB Canada to give to the president and it has come. Because it
was a process that we just wanted to make sure that what is the process followed, and that's what they
have given, that this is the process they followed.

Q. All right.

A. And it was given to me, and I also submitted this to Hazar Imam.
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Can anyone else sign for the Imam?

Mr. Sachedina dispels the rumours that someone else is allowed to sign for the Imam.
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Sachedina # 503

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Do you know if anybody other than Hazar Imam signed this?

A. No way can anybody sign a letter that's purporting to be from the Imam of the Time.

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 54 of 536



Can Imam's Farman supercede the
Constitution?

This 1s a simple question, but Mr. Bhaloo, although he has been swearing to protect the constitution for
decades, refused to answer the question on the grounds that he is not a constitutional expert.
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Sachedina #141 - #149:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. And would you also agree with me, sir, that a farman of the Imam remains valid and binding until
it's superceded either by that Imam or a later Imam?

A. By any pronouncement by the Imam.

Q. Yes.

A. By even a letter to somebody or a talika or farman. He can actually any time in the way, the words
of the Imam in a way, the present Imam, anything in the Constitution says his words would actually
precede -- it's beyond the Constitution from that point of view.

Q. You said 'letter' by the Imam. That's known as a talika, t-a-1-1-k-a?

A, A talika 1s usually sent -- talika is sent to the jamat.

Q. And they're read in jamat khanas?

A, Yes.

Q. So my previous question was that all Ismailis are obligated to follow the farmans of the Imam. The
latest farman supersedes the previous farman?

A, Well, the farmans can be valid according to time and context of the present Imam's farmans. They
were given in a particular time, in a particular context, in particular circumstances.

Q. Yes.

A. So they remain valid for that particular jamat, and unless Imam says to them that these are my new
farmans to you, then they supersede and he would say that they supersede the --

Q. And he also said that individuals can also be guided by the Imam?

A, Yes.

Q. Right? And if that individual 1s guided by the Imam, then that is binding on him irrespective of
what he might have said in a general farman?

A. That 1s given to a particular individual in particular circumstances for that particular purpose. It is
not applicable to everybody. It's applicable to that one individual who has sought.
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Q. Who has sought?
A. Guidance.

Bhaloo #30:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. And would you agree with me that after the date of the Constitution, His Highness can make a
farman, and if there 1s an inconsistency with this farman and the Constitution, the farman prevails?
A. I'm not sure about that.

Bhaloo #127- #128:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Can you read that to me, loud voice please?

A. 1.6: 'The Constitution, and in the event of conflict the Constitution...

Q. From the title. And read it slowly so she can type.

A. Okay. 'These Rules and Regulations shall be read with '(a) the Constitution, and in the event of
conflict the Constitution shall prevail, and '(b) any Farman made after the date hereof, and in event of
conflict the said Farman shall prevail, and a later Farman shall prevail over an earlier.'

Bhaloo #133:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Okay. You have read the Constitution. We have just read article 1.6. In your understanding, does it
say that a farman which is made after the Constitution will supersede any article of the Constitution if
there 1s a conflict?

A. T am not sure about that. I'm not an constitutional expert.
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Is there a breach of the Ismaili constitution?

Obviously, if there was a clear breach of the ismaili constitution, then this case would have been in the
Arbitration board.

Discussions about the constitution have revolved around the specific clauses about Farmans that were
included in previous constitutions but that have been removed from the newer constitution since 1986.
Older constitutions distinguished between religious publications and Farmans. The clauses about
Farmans were removed by the Imam, but the clauses about the other religious publications remained
ntact.

Sachedina maintains that the constitution has been breached and that in the case of Farmans, only the
Imam can Publish or authorize publication, Not Itreb, not the Council. However, if the current
constitution 1s to be relied on to prove the breach, then article 14.1¢ lets the Ismaili Council authorize
publications (and this is how Mr Gray seems to understand it), and Article 8.4d gives the ITREB's the
responsibility to publish. Neither article reserves the right for the Imam. This leaves us with Farmans
to follow which say that Imam makes Farmans FOR Jamats.
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N. Tajdin #580 - #584:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. And I am referring you to Article 14.1(c)?

A, Yes?

Q. And (c) says: '...Without the permission in writing of the National Council obtained through the
regional council...' Have you ever requested the permission of the National Council under that article?
A. T didn't have to.

Q. I didn't ask you that. I just asked you, did you ever request the permission in writing of the National
Council?

A. No, because I had consent from the Imam.

Q. Okay. And I take it you never asked...just to be specific, you didn't ask the permission in writing of
the National Council to print or publish or circulate any material that is on behalf of, in the name of, or
relating to Mawlana Hazar Imam, the plaintiff?

A. T don't believe it talks of Hazar Imam.

Q. I didn't ask you that, either. I asked you if you ever asked for the permission in writing...

A. No.
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Jiwa #45 - #48:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. Okay. I am showing you a copy of Exhibit 13, which I understand you have a copy still there from
this morning.

A, Yes.

Q. And can you identify that as the Constitution of the Shia Imami Ismaili Muslims?

A. This 1s part of the constitution. Our constitution consists of two parts; the constitution and the rules
and regulations for each country.

Q. Right.

A. The 1986 constitution that was distributed in Canada had within that document the constitution as
well as rules and regulations. This is just the constitution. The rules and regulations are still embodied
in the 1986 constitution.

Q. Okay. And can you produce the rules and regulations for me?

A. T can, yes.

Jiwa #56 - #62:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. And in respect particularly to article 14.1(c), have you ever asked for permission in writing of the
National Council obtained through

the regional councils to print or publish or circulate any material?

A. I don't need the council's permission.

Q. I didn't ask you that, Mr. Jiwa. I asked you if you ever...

A. No, because you are...

Q. Please answer the question.

A. You are referring to 14.1(c), so if you are going to refer to 14.1(c) then I am going to say I don't
need their permission.

Q. Well...

A. So if you want to ask me without referring to the 14.1(c¢), then you can ask me without referring to
that and I have already answered you earlier that I did not.

Q. Right, so...

A. If you are going to ask me pertaining to this, then I don't need consent...

Q. That isn't the question I asked you. I asked youif..

A, You are referring me to 14.1.

Q. I asked you if you ever asked for permission in writing of the National Council obtained through
the regional council to print or publish or circulate any material: Yes or no?

A. You already asked me earlier, and I said no.

Sachedina #261 - #269:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. I'm going to go back to that. I said to you: Is there any farman or any article in the Constitution that
says that farmans cannot be released for distribution to the jamats before the Imam has edited and
approved them? That's my question.

A, It 1s not in the Constitution, but that's a process established by the present Imam.

Q. So what I'm saying to you --

A. Imam is above the Constitution, I explained to you. He transcends the Constitution in a sense that
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even 1f the Constitution 1s there, Imam has a right to do what he wishes to do. He has the authority to
change or to decide or to alter or to do whatever he wishes to do.

Q. I'll come back to that in a second. I just want to focus on the question that I asked you. My question,
and I'm going to repeat it again: Is there any article in the Constitution or is there any farman that says
before any farman that has been made by the Imam, before it is distributed to the jamats, has to be
edited and approved by the Imam? That's my question.

A. Not in the way that you describe.

Q. Now, you said earlier -- as you were just answering this issue, I see your lawyer is pointing you to
something?

A. The same --

MR. GRAY: Article 14.1(c).

THE DEPONENT: That's the one that I read. Because you're talking about the issue of editing and the
1ssue about farmans, and this to me is the article. That's why I quoted you that article.

Q. Sir, the article that you are quoting me, the 14.1 that your lawyer also is pointing you to see, show
me where does it say that it's the Imam who 1s going to edit and approve before they are released. On
the

contrary, it seems to suggest that National Council can do that decision. You are saying all along that
the Imam approves and edits farmans?

A. National Council has no authority to edit farmans.

Q. But you're pointing to this --

A. No, it's not. I'm talking about, very clearly, the provisions in this Constitution that gives unfettered
right to the Imam.

Q. Okay. 14.1(¢c), where does it say the Imam has to approve or it gives him the unfettered right,
14.1(c)?

A. No, but it's Imam you're talking about that there is -- anybody who prints, publishes or circulates
any material.

Q. But this is not my question. I mean --

A. The questions you are asking is Imam edits, is it in the Constitution, and I'm saying to you not the
way as you've described it in the Constitution. I'm saying there are provisions but not the way about
editing

or the way that you describe, it's not that.

Q. Now, I'm suggesting to you that what you are saying is simply your opinion and perhaps Mr.
Keshavjee's opinion and perhaps other leaders' opinion. But I say to you that the Constitution nor any
farman says that a farman that's been made by the Imam may not be distributed to the jamat before it's
edited and authorized by the Imam?

MR. GRAY: You've already indicated these are questions of opinion. The Constitution is here. The
interpretation of the Constitution I'm sure you will argue before a judge. We'll read the words of the
Constitution, and so far as it's relevant, we'll deal with it as a matter of interpretation.

THE DEPONENT: I take my instructions from His Highness, and that's what His Highness has
conveyed to me.

Sachedina #370 - 388:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Now --

A. For the present time, this Imam has authorized the ITREBs to be the body, relevant body for
publications or, rather, distributions of all the religious matter, according to the constitution.
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Q. There 1s nothing in the Constitution that says ITREB has been given this power?

A, It 1s there. If you come back to that ITREB, as I say to you, if you look at the -- all the materials
relevant to the Islam and the Ismaili tariga, that if you look at --

Q. Which clause?

A. 8.4(d). And that is the role. If you look at tariqa and Religious Education Board, if you look at that,
it says, '...undertake the publication of books and material on relevant aspects of Islam and the Ismaili
Tariqah;'

Q. And he talks of books and materials; right?

A. Yes. On Ismaili tariga, farmans are part of the tariga material.

Q. All right. But it doesn't specify farmans, does it?

A. It's included. It's inclusive.

Q. So why --

A, Ismaili tariga has material, and the tariqa board is responsible, and farmans are part of the Ismaili
tariqa, and the doctrine of the Ismailis, sir.

Q. Isn't that contradictory to everything you've been saying to date?

A. What?

Q. You are completely contradictory. You are contradicting yourself, sir, aren't you?

A. What -- the farmans --

Q. You --

A. Release of the farmans, this is the body that actually releases the farmans for the jamat. The process
we're talking about, earlier on you said ITREBs, and [ said ITREB, yes.

Q. Fine. So if you look at 8.4(b) and if that is your jurisdiction to say ITREB has jurisdiction over
farmans, then why do you need Hazar Imam's approval?

MR. GRAY: Look at the beginning of 8.4.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Where does it say --

A, It 1s always done under the behest of the Imam.

Q. Excuse me, sir, where does it say that approval for approval for publication of farmans --

A, If youread 8.4, it says: 'Each Tarigah and Religious Education Board shall under the direction and
guidance of Mawlana Hazar Imam.' Not without his directions or guidance. And I want to point out to
you it will therefore under Imam's direction undertake the publication of books and materials of
relevance to Islam and Ismaili tariga. The distribution process is part of the responsibility of the tariqa
board once given authorization by the Imam of the Time. Does that not make sense to you?

Q. No, it doesn't, because it 1s one thing to say under the direction and guidance of Mowlana Hazar
Imam, and it's another thing to say you need his prior approval. If you look at the Rules and
Regulations, if you

look at the Rules and Regulations, function 24, those are the powers that have been granted to each
local tariga board.

A. But that's local tariga board. You're talking about the national tariga boards. Because the farmans, I
kept on telling you, they come to the national boards, not the local boards.

Q. Right.

A. It's the national board that directs them.

Q. All right. Now -- and this is what you are saying is a breach of the Ismaili Constitution?

A. The article -- in my view, both article 14.1(c) and article 8.4(d) are -- very much work together.

Q. Right. And those are your authority --

A. And I've told you --
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Q. Yes?

A, -- there's the Constitution. You have -- the letter from the Imam of the Time telling him not to do
that. You have the second letter from the Imam to tell you not to do that. You have an affirmation that
says not to do that. And then you also have very clearly the Statement of Claim which was filed by the
Mr. Plaintiff, the Imam of the Time saying I don't want you to do that.

Q. Sir --

A. So there are four documents telling you not to do that. Five documents now.

Q. Those documents you know are being disputed by us. But we'll come to that. We'll come to that.
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Who Can Print Farmans

It is the Imam's prerogative to decide who can print Farmans, and it can be anyone.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #848 - #849:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Would you say it's the prerogative of the Imam to decide who to tell to print the farman?

A. The ultimate authority when it comes to printing the farmans, publishing the farmans, Hazar Imam
will direct. Any institution within his power, constitutional bodies, IIS -- anybody, he will decide who
be able to do the printing.

Q. Does he have the right to give it to any other person?

A. Absolutely his complete prerogative.
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How long did Defendants know about the
Forgery before making it public?

It turns out that in order to protect the trust that Jamati institutions have with the Jamat, the defendants
had not publicized their knowledge of forgery until after the Lawsuit was filed when they no longer
had the choice.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

N. Tajdin #152 - 158:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. ... You received the letter that 1s now Exhibit 3, as you said, by e-mail?
A, Yes.

Q. Right.

A, First by e-mail, then I insisted to receive the original...

Q. Right.

A. ..and I received it after quite a

long time, maybe three weeks.

Q. Right. And you said...

A. And I had to insist many, many times

to get the original.

Q. And you received the original when?

A. Sometime in February, mid-February.

Q. February 137

A. That 1s likely.

Q. But in the meantime, you sent the photocopy, didn't you, or the electronic copy you had received,
you sent it to two experts for examination?

A. Yes, I did.

N. Tajdin #179:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. Based on that, you are accusing Ms. Parkes of criminal behaviour, are you not?

A. Actually, 1t is not only because of the expertise. The content of the report...you know, for an Ismaili
who will read this letter, it 1s very evident that His Highness has not written this letter, but the expertise
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was needed for people who are not Ismaili, who cannot, from reading the letter, know that this 1s not
written by the Imam.

Q. I asked you a simple question. Based on the...at this point, you received only a photocopy of the
letter...

A, Yes.

N. Tajdin #187 - #251:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. Okay. But will you agree with me that...okay, let's deal with the next one. And you circulated this
allegation of forgery, did you not, to other people?

A. Isent..yes, I sent to a couple of people.

Q. Who did you send it to?

A. I will not give you names.

Q. Okay.

A, If you want reason, I will give you reason why. Do you need a reason why...

Q. Sure. Why are you not giving me the names of the people you sent it to?

A, In this file, whenever there i1s a name which goes out, for example, Karim Alibhay, he gets harassed
the whole day and night, he gets phone calls, threats, so [ am not going to give any names.

Q. All right.

A. It would not be fair for the people, right?

Q. Right. But in any event, you circulated it to people who you knew were going to circulate it to other
people?

A. No.

Q. You circulated...

A. No, when [ circulated, it was under

the understanding that this was to be contained.

Q. But...

A. Even when I received the letter from...one of the original, from the president of the Aga Khan
council in Nairobi, I had a small discussion with him, and he told me he didn't want me to talk to
anyone about it, and I said, 'No, it has to be contained, because people will lose faith in the leadership
if they know these things are happening'.

Q. So, then, you...

A. And it was not...

Q. How many people did you send the...

A. A couple of them.

Q. A couple of them? Two people, you sent the notice...

A. Two or three.

Q. ...you told them...two or three?

A, Yes.

Q. At that point?

A, Yes.

Q. Subsequently, you said you told other...

A, Well, after the lawsuit, it was apparent that everything would come to the Light, so...

Q. Even before the lawsuit, you sent it to other people, didn't you?

A. No.

Q. Even before the lawsuit, it was widely known on the Ismaili Heritage website, wasn't it?
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A, Before the lawsuit, no, absolutely not. There was nothing on that subject on ismaili.net before the
lawsuit.

Jiwa #206 - #253:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. Yes. So, when did Mr. Tajdin tell you about the forgeries of the letters, the alleged forgeries of the
letter of January 24 or February 18?

A. I don't recall the exact date, but it was in...when he received the first letter. It may have been the
very day or the next few days is when he told me that he had received a letter.

Q. And at that point he told you it was a forgery?

A. I don't think at that point he told me, but I was actually in disbelief when he told me that he has
received a letter.

Q. You didn't believe that His Highness would have sent a letter telling you not to do it?

A. Yes. I was in disbelief and I said, "You know what? I don't believe it". The funny thing is he didn't
send me a copy of the letter.

Q. Who 1s 'he'?

A, Mr. Tajdin did not give me a copy. He just told me that on the phone. and...

Q. So, you were in a state of disbelief

A. [ was, yes. [ was.

Q. But did Mr. Tajdin tell you at that time that the letter was a forgery?

A. You know what? I don't think he told me the very first day. I think he told me maybe a few days
later.

Q. A few days later.

A, A few days later.

Q. Before he had sent it to an expert. He just knew 1t was a forgery?

A. Yes, before he sent it.

Q. And...

A. I suggested, I said, you know...actually, Nagib told me his mother told him that from the letters that
she has, this is not Imam's signature at all. So I told Nagib, I said, 'Look, when we have a situation like
that, we send it to an expert'. So I found the two names and I said, 'Let's send it for them'.

Q. And so you helped him send the two...the letters to an expert?

A, I didn't help him send. He sent it straight, because even after we received the reports, I did not see
the letter.

Q. You didn't see the letter. But you saw the reports?

A. I saw the reports.

Q. And did you give the experts any instructions as to what to do?

A. No, I did not communicate with the experts, except for one I paid for. I paid for one of the experts.
Q. Which expert?

A. I would have to look it up. One of the two.

Q. One of the two, Carlson or Petinatti. I'm sorry, Carlson or...

A. Because, you know, Nagib's...

Q. It was not Ospreay, though?

A. Ospreay...the first two experts... one of the two I paid. One of the two I paid. Nagib's credit card
was not going through. She was trying to ring it through and it wouldn't be accepted, so Nagib told me
if I can pay. So then I paid from here.

Q. So...
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A. T don't know. One of the two.

Q. Petinatti or Carlson?

A, Yes.

Q. Right. Okay. And how many other people did Mr. Tajdin tell about the forgeries?

A. In terms of experts?

Q. No, no, just in terms of people. He told you about the forgery; right?

A. I don't know. You know, the person that I buy the books from, I discuss with him.

Q. So he knew about the forgery?

A, Yes.

Q. This 1s the distributor of the books?

A, This 1s the distributor, yes.

Q. Or the alleged forgery.

A. The alleged forgery, right.

Q. And who else did Mr. Nagib tell? A. You know, I really don't know. I mean, Mr. Tajdin and I,
although I have known him for almost some 20 years, but we have never been, sort of, friends. We
have never visited...I have never visited his home or he my home. We essentially met at some seminars
that...at first I met him when he organized a seminar on our Khojki.. it is known as a Khojki script.
Q. Okay.

A. So, we have never been in a sense friends that I associated with. I mean, my interest from Nagib
was just to get the Farmans from him.

Q. So, who else did you tell about the forgeries, then?

A. At the time 1t happened?

Q. Yes.

A, At the time it happened, I didn't discuss it with anybody.

Q. February, 2010.

A. I don't recall telling others.

Q. And when is the first time you told someone else about the forgery?

A, After the litigation started.

Q. After the litigation.

A, Yes.

Q. After what day?

A, April.

Q. April...

A, Whatever. It was in April. I first told my mom.

Q. Sorry?

A, I first told my mother.

Q. You first told your mother.

A. Of course.

Q. That is sweet.

A. She was at my home...so I did tell her.

Q. But that was after the litigation...

A, Yes.

Q. ...was started.

A, Yes.

Q. Do you remember when you told her about the forgeries?

A. To whom?
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Q. When did you tell your mom?

A. I told my mom after the litigation started.

Q. Well, the litigation started in April.

A. Yes. I don't remember the date, but it was in April. I know after the litigation started.

Q. Was it before you filed your Statement of Defence...

A, Yes.

Q. ...alleging the forgeries?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay.

A, After that, [ was telling everybody, including my sister. My whole family was in shock, of course.
Q. This was after you filed or when you filed the Statement of Defence?

A. Yes. Because before filing the Statement of Defence, the issue of even the prohibition and stuff was
technically not public. And finally it was Mr. Tajdin who sort of...I don't even know all the
distributors. I just know...

Q. The distributors all knew, and presumably they were telling people buying the books that.. there
were people...

A. At that time?

Q. Well, let's put it this way...

A. Before the litigation or after the litigation? There 1s a big difference between the two. Before the
litigation...I am talking about before the litigation at the moment.

Q. Yes. Right.

A, Before the litigation, the only person who knew was Mr. Tajdin. Then he told me. And then there 1s
this one distributor that I buy books from. I discussed with him about this.
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What is Mr Sachedina's actual role at
Aiglemont

Mr Sachedina's role a head of the department of jamati institutions is not a constitutional position, and
the department of Jamati institutions cannot give new directions to institutions. Ismaili Institutions do
not report to Mr. Sachedina. He coordinates their work, but ultimately, the institutions are answerable
to the Imam.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #206:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Now, would you agree with me that your appointment as the Head of the Department of Jamati

Institutions and Head of the Department of Diplomatic Affairs at Aiglemont and a Member of Aga
Khan Development Network and a Member of the Board of Governors have not been read in jamat
khanas by way of talika as other institution appointments?

A, Correct. Because these are all held at the behest of the Imam at the time of his pleasure.

Sachedina #220 - #228:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. So when you say 'coordinating,’ what do you coordinate?

A. The budgets of the institutions.

Q. Right.

A. The plans we coordinate.

Q. Right.

A. Their activities in terms of what is to be done within the guidance given the Imam of the Time,
these institutions are operating within those guidance that he has given.

Q. Do they report to you?

A. Who?

Q. Those institutions?

A. They report -- all of them are appointed by Mowlana Hazar Imam. So first and foremost, all of them
are accountable to the Imam of the Time as institutional leaders. Because their appointment is not by
me; it 1s by the Imam of the Time. I am coordinating their activities.

Q. So you cannot direct them what to do?
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A. Unless given by the Imam. And I also would be able to look at the directions that the Imam has
given that may need to be followed through as guidance for these institutions. So I coordinate that
between the Imam and this institution in terms of the functioning of that institution.

Q. So, for example, ITREB Ontario, you say you are also coordinating them?

A, No. Ontario -- first of all, the point of reference 1s the national ITREB, according to the
Constitution. So the national bodies are the ones that we coordinate at the imamat level.

Q. Right.

A. There are regional bodies and there are local bodies. Those are not coordinated in the sense that
they are national jurisdiction.

Q. So when you use the word 'coordination,’ if I say that your responsibility was just passing messages
back and forth the documents that come back to the Imam from the various institutions, you just
organize them and send it over to the Imam if necessary?

A. No. If the institutions have a number of issues, their first point of reference in terms of their
activities in terms of their what I call 'functional work.' that 1s the administrative work, the work that
they are doing, the point of reference 1s the Department of Jamati Institutions at Aiglemont through the
ITREB coordinator who coordinates, first of all, all the tariqa board activities.

Sachedina #578 - #579:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Mr. Sachedina, as head of the Department of Jamati Institutions, the position that you hold, it's not a
position that's recognized by our Ismaili Constitution; it's just appointed by His Highness?

A, It's a position that has been at the behest of the Imam.

Q. Yes, but it's not under the Constitution; it's by his Secretariat?

A. Yes. The Constitutional -- or the position under the Constitution is only the LIF, and I only sit on
the LIF on behalf of His Highness as a member of the LIF.
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What is the relationship between Defendants
and Plaintiff's witnesses?

Both Sachedina and Bhaloo agree that they are not in bad terms with the defendants. In the Case of
Alnaz Jiwa, they don't recall ever interacting with him. In the case of Nagib Tajdin, they claim cordial,
even warm relations with him, admit that he has never acted unrespectfully against either of them, and
that his family was well-respected until the Announcements and the Lawsuit.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

N. Tajdin #561:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. ...Mr. Sachedina has no power to consent to the publication of Farmans?

A. Tagree.

Q. You agree with that, okay. But you also agree with me that Mr. Sachedina does speak to His
Highness from time to time?

A. T am sure he does.

Q. And he does convey messages from His Highness to you? For instance, he conveyed messages
about blessings for your family, right?

A. Yes, he did.

Sachedina #328:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. In fact, in the plane ride you were going to and coming back from Syria in 2001, you know there
were two other individuals with Mr. Tajdin?

A, T'll tell you now I have no recollection of who these individuals are or what they do. I have to tell
you that. Because I did not look at them from that view. Because my relationship with Nagib has
always been maintained on a real cooperative and in a manner of not adversarial at all.

MR. GRAY: Until now.

Sachedina #580 - #585:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

MR. TAJDIN: Okay. Shafik, I have a problem because we have been close and I have been calling you
'Shafik," and I think I will be calling you "Mr. Sachedina' so at least there is a consistency. But just for
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court, not between us. I hope you don't mind. It's not meant to be disrespect or distance between us.
CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Shafik, you know me since quite a few years now, and we bump into each other at many, many
places. I think in Syria, in Cairo, recently in Zanzibar at the opening of the Forodhami Park. Even
Nairobi you came for the nation's 50 years?

Q. That was the opening that His Highness also came. And you see me sometimes taking pictures,
videos. And would you say that I always remain at a respectable distance of the Imam?

A, Absolutely.

Q. I have never tried to overstep. And would you accept that probably this is because we have a code
of conduct, that unless the Imam allows, we would not approach within his privacy area or his short
distance or -- you agree to that?

A. Yes, you travel all over the world. I know that, and obviously you travel wherever His Highness
goes.

Q. Exactly.

A. And you are around and I know that you show yourself there.

Q. And I never tried to overstep and go and talk and bother him with anything? And that code of
conduct also says that unless the Imam allows, we should not talk to him or even give a gift. Even to
give a gift, we have to get permission. If Imam note or make a sign that we are allowed, then we
approach and we always -- even during deedars it's always in submission; right?

--- Off-the-record discussion.

Sachedina #635 - #637

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Okay. Mr. Sachedina, you know my family since a long time also. It's not a family which 1s
disputing all the time with the leadership; right? And you know our relation, we are always respectful
and [ have never raised my voice; right? Is it right?

A, We've always had a civil discussion.

Q. Right. And we have always been taking tea together when we bump into each other in many
countries; right? Right? Yes, I --

A, Yes, well, we have not all the time, but when I am there and you have offered me sometime, I've
always had a cup of tea with you.

Q. Okay. And vice-versa?

A, Absolutely.

Bhaloo #114 - #121:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Mr. Bhaloo, you know me at least since 20 years, I think?

A. (Deponent nods head up and down).

Q. We have always had very amicable relations?

A. We still have.

Q. And we still. And when you were president, vice-president, [ was living in your jurisdiction in
Canada. And would you agree that we have never had a fight?

A. I generally don't like to fight.

Q. And I also don't like to fight. So there is no -- and there has never been any fight between us. I've
never raised the tone with you. I have always been respectable; you agree to that?

A. (Deponent nods head up and down).
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Q. And you would say the same thing of my family?

THE DEPONENT: All right. I know your family.

Q. You know my family and we are all civilized people; right?

A, Right.

Q. I think we also have some family relation from the mother's side or something; right?

A. Generations ago maybe, yes.

Q. Generations to generations. Okay. Would you agree that may family is well respected in the jamat -
- let me rephrase that -- was well respected in the jamat before this announcement and this lawsuit and
-- was it very respected? Yes? No?

A, Yes.
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Why is Alnaz Jiwa included in the Lawsuit?

It turns out that Alnaz has no role in the publication and a mimimal role in the distribution of the KIZ
Farman book series. The reason he was included in the lawsuit seems to be due to a confusion on Mr
Sachedina's part.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Jiwa #145 - #178:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. Now, turning to Exhibit C in your...Mr. Tajdin's original affidavit, this is the Golden Edition that
you were involved in?

A, Yes.

Q. And have you been involved in the printing of this book?

A. No, I have not.

Q. Have you been involved in the distribution of the book?

A, Yes.

Q. How many of these books were printed?

A. T don't know.

Q. How many have you distributed?

A. T think I have distributed about 80.

Q. Eighty?

A, Yes.

Q. And you distributed these, I take it, by your LISTSERV?

A. No.

Q. You didn't distribute this by the LISTSERV?

A. No. The copies that I sold...one mailed to Chicago. I received a personal e-mail from a person that I
have communicated with in the past.

Q. Okay.

A. The rest are all personal within the GT A.

Q. Personal in the GTA, so you...friends or relatives or people you know?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And what about your LISTSERV, ILM...you have a LISTSERV, ILM?
A. Yes, I do.

Q.ILM...
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A, ILM-net, yes. It is out of University of Manitoba.

Q. And 1s that something that is a website or it is just something you send out a broadcast e-mail?

A, It 1s just a broadcast e-mail.

Q. And you distribute the books through that?

A. Not this Golden Edition.

Q. Not the Golden Edition?

A. No.

Q. And some of the earlier books that Mr. Tajdin has, you distributed through your LISTSERV?

A. I have never distributed any through the...other than this one book, I never distributed
anything...well, I sent a few to my family in Kenya, but other than that, I have not distributed any over
the mail.

Q. Okay.

A. All the books that I distributed are strictly personal. Like, personal meetings, one-to- one. I often
deliver them myself.

Q. And the selling price for the book?

A. This Golden Edition is $50.

Q. And the printing price, the cost to you?

A. The cost to me is $50.

Q. The cost to you is §507

A. Yes. Canadian.

Q. You don't know what the printing price 1s?

A. T don't know.

Q. And when did you start doing this?

A, I think I got the first batch just before Christmas. Because it was during the Christmas holidays that
[ visited family and I...yes, I have given them out.

Q. And are you still doing 1t?

A. T have been too busy lately, so I have not done any lately.

Q. So you have stopped, then?

A. T haven't stopped, but, as I told you, mostly I sell them to personal contacts.

Q. When is the last one you distributed, then, or sold?

A, Ithink I gave two copies to my brother. He came to pick it up from me. It is about a month. Maybe
three, four, five weeks ago.

Q. Three or four or five weeks ago.

A, Yes.

QQ- And before that, the two copies to your brother; before that, when was the last one you sold or
distributed or gave away?

A, Before that, after listening to this, one of my client's family picked up, I think, four books from me.
Q. And when was that?

A. T am not sure, but I think this 1s around the time Haz Imam was here. Around May.

Q. Around the end of May?

A, Yes. Mostly this time I have been selling only to people that I have known and in contact with. So, I
normally even when my clients come in I don't normally tell them to buy this. But if they hear from
somebody else, they might come and ask me.

Q. And how about the audio bookmark? Did you have any involvement in the production of that?

A. No. I have nothing to do with production.

Q. Nothing to do with the production.
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A, Yes.

Q. And any involvement in the collection of the audio speeches?

A. No.

Q. Why does the book not identify a publisher; do you know?

A. You know, Nagib told me once...this was way before. I actually asked him this, I said, "You know
what? There should be some contact on there', because quite often people would tell me they don't
know...when I sent to my cousin, my first cousin in Kenya, and so they ask for it but I say I normally
don't ship them. I don't even I have time. So I told him, I said, 'You should put at least one number or
something’, and he says, 'Look, we are doing this...so we don't...' my understanding is Nagib 1s also
selling to people that he know, that he knows at this time. So, it has never been, sort of, an issue that
we are going to be mass distribution sort of.

Q. Right.

A. So that was my understanding. You know, it 1s just being sold...and my understanding also 1s the
reason that he put it into book form 1s he normally was giving photocopies of it and that was taking too
much time and energy and they were being, sort of, not placed properly at people's homes. Loose
copies.

Jiwa #187 - #205:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. Do you pay Mr. Tajdin for the books?

A. I don't pay to Mr. Tajdin. I pick them up from a local distributor here.

Q. Who 1s the local distributor?

A. T won't name him now.

Q. You won't name him now. And where do you...

A. Mr. Sachedina knows them.

Q. And who do you pay?

A. To him.

Q. If Mr. Sachedina knows them, why wouldn't you tell me?

A. Because most of the stuff that is going on in the affidavits is becoming public on the websites.
There 1s a new website that has opened recently. So, people do get harassed. Even I get harassed. So
that is the reason.

Q. I see. Well, you...

A. T haven't paid him yet. I owe him for the 50 books...for the 96, I believe, I picked up. I haven't even
collected the monies, because most of them are my family and friends.

Q. I see. So, 96 books, you haven't collected the money. And of the 96, you have distributed 80...

A. About 80 I have distributed.

Q. So you probably have 16 left then?

A. About 16 or so, yes.  mean, [ haven't counted but it is in that range. I have collected some money,
but not all.

Q. So your evidence is you have not sold the books over the web?

A. No.

Q. So, when I show you this...let's see. Excuse me. I am going to show you Exhibit 14. That 1s not you
selling the book on the web; that is Ismaili.net ?

A. Well, this 1s Ismaili.net .

Q. Right, so you have not...

A. T have no connection with Ismaili.net .
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Q. And you haven't sold them through the ILM-net?

A. Through ILM-net I put this brochure on as advertising, but frankly I don't have enough time and I
primarily have been giving it only to family and friends.

Q. So you have put that brochure on the ILM-net?

A. [LM-net, yes.

Q. The ILM-net, you have put that brochure on?

A, Yes.

Q. So you have advertised the book on the 'net?

A. Yes, I have. No, not on the 'net. You can't call it the web. ILM-net is...

Q. Through electronic e-mail distribution, let me put it that way.

A. Let me put it this way: ILM-net is a group of, if [ can say, friends or Ismailis that [ admit. So you
cannot become a member, even if you are an Ismaili, just like this. So it is like me sitting at home with
my friends. So it 1s a restricted ILM-net.

Q. Restricted Internet circulation; would that be fair?

A, Yes. | only admit them if I do; otherwise I don't admit them. So nobody can join in automatically.
Q. Are you involved at all in Ismaili.net?

A. No, I am not.

Q. You are not an editor of it?

A. I have nothing to do with it. don't even have time if [ wanted to.

Sachedina #638 - #639:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. ..Now, here I read in number 28. This 1s something which I have always had this question in my
mind, that you seem to think that Mr. Jiwa operates a website. And I was surprised to read that. Were
you thinking that he's co-operating my website or was it another website?

A. I think -- T didn't know about this. You told me that.

Q. [ told you that Mr. Jiwa 1s operating a website?

A, Yes. Yes. No, you said to me in your email when you were trying to remove the book from the
website --

Sachedina #642:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Mr. Sachedina, I never wrote that Mr. Jiwa. Can you bring this --
A. Yes. Am [ allowed to --

Sachedina #647-650:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Okay. I'm talking about the fact that you're mentioning Mr. Jiwa's website. Which website --

A, It's your website. I'm talking about your website.

Q. No, but what you are writing here, 'operated by Mr. Tajdin and Alnaz'?

A, Yes, because -- [ am trying to explain to you, Nagib Tajdin, that the letter -- the email you sent me -
- first you said to me the book has been removed from the website.

Q. Yes.

A. Your website. And then you said to me -- then I complained to you that the book is still being
advertised and there 1s still a thread there on the website because it's still being advertised. So you said
to me, 'Shafik, don't worry,' and 'T have spoken to Alnaz Jiwa, who will ensure that this will be taken
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care of.'

Q. Okay, can we have in the undertaking that I need a copy of the email?
MR. GRAY: We'll get you a copy of that email.

--- UNDERTAKING

Sachedina #653 - #663:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Did you not tell me to tell Alnaz not to write these things he was writing about, the farman book
and the Constitution and all those things?

A.I--sorry. Nagib, I am not aware of that conversation --

Q. You don't remember?

A. -- because I don't know Alnaz Jiwa at all. It's the first time today formally that I've actually met
Alnaz Jiwa.

Q. Okay. Can we agree then, can we agree, would you agree -- 1s this the way to ask the question?
Would you agree that if in this undertaking you bring the email and it doesn't say that I will ask Mr.
Jiwa to remove from his website, there has never been a question of Mr. Jiwa having a website and this
conversation which you are saying?

A. I didn't know whether he -- [ thought he was connected with the website because if he could do
what you gave him instructions from the website, I presumed he's involved with the website. That's the
only connection I have.

Q. Is this why his name was put on the lawsuit?

A. He has -- he was part of this, he was involved with this, and I --

Q. Part of the publication?

A, I think that all the people who were involved in the sense that they were known, were people who
are engaged with this website. And because Alnaz I think also had posted on the website a thing that he
said that I have -- you know, after the announcement was made, he had a very long email saying that --
Q. Okay. So you are referring to his email list?

A, Yes.

Q. What's posted on his email list, not on his website?

A, Well, to me, 1t's electronic and -- all of this, from my point of view, is a methodology of --

Q. Mr. Sachedina, then on the lawsuit 1t says the same thing. But the Imam, who is a graduate from
Harvard, he knows the difference between an email list and a website. But it says that Mr. Jiwa 1s
operating a website; 1sn't it true?

A. I don't think I've said to you this website, because it's your website in which he has been associated.
So he obviously has connection with the website. So to me he 1s involved with the website.

Q. So if this email that you will produce as an undertaking doesn't say this, you will accept that it's not
there; right?

A. As I said to you, I don't have the words here.

MR. GRAY: If the email doesn't say it, then it doesn't say it. We'll accept that.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Yes. Because for the moment I am hearing that [ have written that Mr. Jiwa had a website?

A. No. No. I didn't say that Mr. Jiwa -- as I said, you said in your email that when I complained to you
that the book 1s still being advertised and there is still a thread there, you said to me -- you sent me an
email to say that T have asked Alnaz Jiwa, who will actually deal with this matter and make sure that
there 1s no reference to this."! So immediately I realized that and you and Alnaz are involved with this
website.
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Q. Okay. So let's have the email which will prove conclusively that it 1s not right, and we can all --
MR. GRAY: Or that it is right, as the case may be.

MR. TAIDIN: Yes. And if it is right, I will make my apologies to Mr. Sachedina. And I hope also --
MR. GRAY: We'll look forward to that.

MR. TAJDIN: And vice-versa, | hope; right?

MR. GRAY: Well, it's --

MR. TAJDIN: I guess this means no.

THE DEPONENT: Well, it's my best recollection. I wish I hadn't got -- but I haven't got the papers
here, so.
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Are Farmans made Available to Non-Ismailis?

ITREB is manned 100% by ismailis who have taken the ismaili oath of office. The IIS 1s manned at all
levels by many non-ismailis who are not bound by the constitution. Why then, are Farmans asked to be
sent to IIS and not ITREB?

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #14 -#19:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Now, you said earlier that you did review some materials. Can you elaborate on that? What
materials did you review? I heard you say something about the Institute as well, you reviewed some
documents?

A. Yes, | have read through the Constitution, which was at the Institute as well. There's copies there. |
have looked at all the materials vis-a-vis the farmans as well. Because from my point of view, the
documents are also kept at the IIS as well, the final text that we also have there.

Q. So all the final text of farmans are kept at IIS?

A. No. At the Imamat level, at the Institute level, so -- and at the Department of Jamati Institution.
Q. So at the Institute, the final copy of the farmans are not kept?

A, We have a copy.

Q. At the Institute?

A. True, because --

--- The reporter appeals.

Q. And, I'm sorry, I'm actually lost. Is there a copy at the Institute or there's no copy at the Institute?
A. No. Farmans, as I said, once they have been approved and authorized by Hazar Imam -- Hazar
Imam, which 1s His Highness.

MR. GRAY: H-a-z-a-r, new word, [-m-a-m.

THE DEPONENT: Once they are released by the Imam, we always have a copy at the Secretariat, at
the Imam's office. We also have one at the Institute in our -- for archival purposes.

Q. You said one you have it at the Secretariat as well?

A. The 'Secretariat,’ that means the Secretariat of His Highness, and the Department of Jamati
Institutions.

Sachedina #208 - #214:
Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.
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Q. But there are many non-Ismaili members appointed to the Institute?

A. Yes, only as part of the board of governors But the Imam -- the chairman is the Imam of the Time.
Q. [ understand. The jamati institutions that we spoke with earlier that announcements are made in
talika, those are all hundred per cent Ismaili appointees?

A, Correct. The jamati appointments are constitutional bodies.

Q. And in the Institute there are non-Ismaili who are appointed there, aren't there?

A. Yes, all the directors on the board of governors.

Q. And the employees, there are no non-Ismailis there?

A. There are people. But what I'm saying is this is an institution, and the centrality of its work a tariqa,
but also other, Shia Islam and Islamic in general.

Q. But what I'm trying to say, and perhaps if you could just listen, is ITREB 1is hundred per cent
Ismaili men?

A.ITREB is a constitutional body.

Q. Right. And hundred per cent Ismaili men; yes?

A. Correct.

Q. Institute 1s not hundred per cent Ismaili men. There's a difference between the two, isn't there?

A, But I explained to you the Institute has a board of governors and they have a staff with maybe
Ismailis and non-Ismailis, but the Imam is the chair of the Institute.

Q. And those members who are appointed to the Institute don't take this oath of office that we spoke of
earlier?

A. No. They are directors.

Q. Even the members who are appointed to Institute, those employees, they did not take an oath of
office?

A, No. This 1s an institution for learning.

Sachedina #928:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. And you are -- are you governor of the IIS?
A. T am a governor of the Institute.
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Contradiction: Did Sachedina give Nagib's
address to Michelle Parkes?

Sachedina started saying that he had nothing to do with Miss Parkes' correspondance with Mr Tajdin.
However, he was not able to stick to that story.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #943 - #947:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. This is last question. Last question. The first letter dated 24th January was sent to me on 11th of
February from Aiglemont. Did you give -- was 1t you who gave my address to Ms. Parkes, sent it to the
DHL --

A. Sorry, to the DHL address?

Q. Yes.

A. No, I had nothing to do.

Q. Okay.

A, It was Ms. Parkes. Ms. Parkes dealt with you directly on this matter.

Q. But Mrs. --

A. I was only informed subsequently.

Q. Okay. So if Mrs. Parkes has never received the address from me, would it mean she has received it
from you?

A. She would have asked if [ have the address. Because I have the addresses of lots of people, and if
she asked me would I have, because they all know that I have been in contact with you and we are in
contact with each other, we have been in contact. So it's only natural that she would look to somebody
so who 1s in contact with you.
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Contradiction: Imam's criticism of Leaders in
London

Mr Sachedina maintains that the Imam's comment about Leaders in London during Golden Jubilee was
incomplete. This statement is shown to be false.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

N. Tajdin # 210.

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. Okay. We will get back to that, then. Now, have you ever accused the leadership before of forging?
A, Of forging? Never.

N. Tajdin #213:

Cross-Examination by Mr Gray.

Q. You have accused the leadership of misrepresenting His Highness' instructions before, haven't you?
A. Sometimes, it has, and in fact, His Highness has confirmed in London recently that sometimes 1t
tells his leader, and they don't tell his followers. So, the message is not always passed.

Q. What are you referring to?

A. T am referring to a Farmans met by His Highness in London during Golden Jubilee.

Q. And what does that Farmans say?

A, It says, the leader asked me, [ tell them but I don't know if they tell you, or something like that. It is
not an exact quote.

Sachedina #426:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. But I'm going to give you an example, that in Golden Jubilee in London, he said in the jamat khana
in the presence of thousands of -- or the whole jamat that his leaders do not convey his message to the
jamats, he 1s not sure of that. You agree with that; right? You were there.

A. I was there, but as [ said to you, that it was not completed, the sentence wasn't completed, his chain
of thoughts were not completed.

Sachedina #850 - #861:
Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.
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Q. ...Now, you mention the sentence that the Imam was going to stay in London during Golden Jubilee
about the leaders was cut off?

A. No. I said he didn't -- he didn't finish his sentence and there was an interruption. That's all I can
remember.

Q. Okay.

A. Because he himself told me afterwards, so that's how [ remember.

Q. Can we take that as under -- how do you call it? Undertaking to have his -- I don't want the tape of
the farman. I just want that one minute. From the moment he says that the jamat may be wondering
why I'm making this farman up to the time people started clapping. That's one minute. Can I have that
one minute?

MR. GRAY: Well, if you want to explain something.

THE DEPONENT: Let me tell you, the farmans are privileged communications between the murid and
the Imam.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. So [ understand that as to be no?

A. I would say to you that this, whatever it is, 1s in the public domain, and to put any text, my humble
view is that --

Q. Mr. Sachedina, partly I would agree with you, because as everybody knows, you have not put the
book in the court and I have not done that also, nor has Alnaz done that. So we have all agreed it 1s
remain between Ismailis. We don't dispute that. You have stated that the sentence was cut off. This is
why we need that tape, that one minute. Unless you agree that the sentence was not cut off and there is
a two-second blank, there is no sound, and then people start applauding to the statement, I would like
to have that tape from you. One minute. I don't need the whole farman. That one sentence --

A. On record.

Q. On record plus --

MR. GRAY: On the record here?

THE DEPONENT: Can I share that with you outside this record?

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. You know, I'm not a lawyer. Honestly, | have a copy of the tape. So because you have put on record
that the sentence was not completed, and having the copy of the tape, I know the sentence was
complete. We need to prove it. I don't want it to become a fight between us.

A. No.

Q. But you are saying what I'm saying the opposite. If you produce that one minute, it will prove
conclusively that the sentence was completed, there was a two-second gap, and everybody started
applauding. Everybody was happy about the statement from the Imam, that the leaders are not
necessarily conveying his message?

MR. GRAY: You'd have to put it in evidence now.

MR. TAJIDIN: Because you have stated the contrary, that the sentence was not fimished. If there is no
dispute on that -- and I'm not asking the whole tape.

MR. GRAY: You're giving evidence yourself now. I mean this is --

MR. TAIDIN: Well, because we are talking of --

MR. GRAY: If you wanted to put it in evidence, you could have done so.

MR. TAJIDIN: Okay. Mr. Brian, let's take it as an undertaking --

MR. GRAY: No, we will not.

MR. TAIDIN: We need that one minute to prove if, yes or no, you are right.

THE DEPONENT: I'm sorry, but I'm really not getting this at all as to what is the rationale behind this
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question. Because I told you that we have -- what Imam has authorized for the release of that farman,
Imam has authorized. Which is out to the jamat.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Mr. Sachedina --

A. By the Imam.

Q. -- the question was -- you would allow me to say it again because you replied to me in that way,
that the sentence was not completed about what the Imam said on the leaders --

A, No. I said his chain of thought was not completed. You heard me. He was not able to --

Q. So now, Mr. Sachedina, we need that one-minute recording, not more.

MR. GRAY: No.

--- REFUSAL

BY MR. TAJDIN.

Q. Just that recording. You can give me the last word of the recording up to the moment people start
clapping?

MR. GRAY: No.

--- REFUSAL

MR. TAIDIN: Well, we need to prove conclusively that the sentence was completed and there was a
silence after that.

MR. GRAY: You have a copy ofit. I guess if you felt you should --

MR. TAJDIN: But, you know, I'm asking the question. I'm not replying here. I can't produce it; right? I
cannot go home and bring the tape.

MR. GRAY: If you felt you needed to put it into evidence, you should have done so. As you yourself
said, we are not anxious to put farmans in --

MR. TAJIDIN: Yes, but with all respect due, I was not aware that there will be in this examination a
statement which 1s not representing what the tape 1s showing.

MR. GRAY: Well --

MR. TAJIDIN: If [ was aware, obviously I would have brought it into --

MR. GRAY: My current position is no, but I will consider it. I'll reconsider it.

--- UNDER ADVISEMENT

MR. TAJDIN: Thank you. Thank you for considering.
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Contradiction: Recall all books or just the
Golden Edition?

Would the Imam ask Mr Tajdin to undertake an impossible task?

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #453 - #459:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Now, if you go to the first page, the last sentence -- last paragraph, rather, he says in there: 'l believe
that this has been explained to you by the institutions on a number of occasions. I, therefore, expect
you and the other murids who are working with you immediately to take all necessary measures to
recall and to withdraw from your circulation your recent publication.' [as read] Now, would you agree
with me that in this letter he's asking Mr. Tajdin to recall? What do you understand by 'recall'?

A. Whatever he has been able to distribute to whoever, he should get them back, if possible.

Q. Do you agree with me that Mr. Tajdin has no legal recourse to withdraw or ask anybody to return
the books?

MR. GRAY: Don't answer that.

--- REFUSAL

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Would you agree with me that this sentence imposes on Mr. Tajdin to do something that it is not
possible to do; would you agree with me?

MR. GRAY: Are you asking him a legal question, is it possible to do it or not?

MR. JIWA: No. I'm saying that His Highness is asking here, his letter, telling Mr. Tajdin to recall.
BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Let me give you an example. By this letter if Mr. Tajdin has given me hundred books, tells me,
'send it back to me' and I refuse to do so, what can Mr. Tajdin do?

MR. GRAY: Don't answer that question. You're asking him about a legal question and --

--- REFUSAL

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Would you agree that he has no legal recourse to come to me?

A. I would not be able to respond on legal matters.

Q. So would you agree with me that what His Highness has written here 1s practically impossible to
achieve?
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MR. GRAY: Again, don't answer that question.

THE DEPONENT: Same answer again.

--- REFUSAL

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Would you also agree with me that his only concern now with this publication, because all he's
asking to withdraw is your recent publication; he's no longer concerned about his previous
publications; would you agree with me?

A. This publication covers farmans from the previous publication.
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Contradiction: Who mentioned Nagib Tajdin's
Name?

Sachedina's Affidavit says that the Imam mentioned Nagib Tajdin's activities to Sachedina. His earlier
testimony says he knew nothing of Nagib's actions before he started working at Aiglemont. Now,
Sachedina says that he is the one who mentioned Nagib's name to the Imam.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #465:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. And in those discussions, did His Highness ever tell you who is behind the publications?

A. He asked the question. He has asked the question, and I have told him Nagib because I know of
Nagib as the publisher.

Sachedina #468 - #471:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. So His Highness did not tell you that it's Mr. Tajdin. He said 'there are some murids who are doing
this and [ want you' --

A. I did tell him that the one that I know who is at the centre of this was Nagib.

Q. You told him?

A, Yes.

Q. So at that time you told His Highness that you know it's Nagib?

A, Yes.

Q. And did His Highness say that there are other individuals as well?

A. No, I said to His Highness I know of Nagib's publications, and I did say to him that when I will go
next to Canada, this 1ssue, I will take it up with Nagib.

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 87 of 536



In 1998 Did sachedina and Bhaloo take the
Farman Book Draft to the Imam?

The Draft that Nagib Gave for the Imam in 1998 1s still in Bhaloo's house.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Bhaloo #136:

Cross-Examination by Mr Tajdin.

Q. Okay. How many of the farman books I have printed you have at your home either in Nairobi or in
Toronto?

A. I have one book which is not printed. You gave it to me at the meeting. It is a white book. It's a draft
farman. That's the one I have.

Q. It was a white book?

A. Yes. It had a white cover on it, and it said 'draft.'

Q. Okay. Can you take an undertaking -- undertaking of producing it?

MR. GRAY: I'll take that under advisement. I'm not going to undertake to do it, but [ will consider it.
MR. TAJDIN: Okay. Can you produce --

MR. GRAY: As you know, this is a cross-examination.

MR. TAJDIN: -- a colour photograph of that draft book?

MR. GRAY: Okay, that's an alternative. We'll consider that, too. As this is a cross-examination, there's
no duty to produce anything, but we will consider it. So you would like, as an alternative to producing
the whole book, you would like a photograph of --

BY MR. TAJDIN: Q. I don't need the book because obviously I know what it is, but I just had a
question because it was said it's a white cover, and I don't remember giving you any white-cover book.
So just a colour photo will do.

MR. GRAY: So you would like a colour photograph of the cover of this document, this draft book?
MR. TAJIDIN: Yes. [ would like to see if it 1s white or 1t 1s burgundy. Just a colour photo.
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Is the Imam concerned about the website?

Mr Sachedina states that there is a general concern about the contents of ismaili websites, and a review
1s pending, however, he also says that Mr. Nagib himself had been part of the solution.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #477 - #493:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. Now, again, if you go to the second page, it says 'I'm aware' -- the last paragraph: T'm aware that
you perceive your efforts including the website that you have established and operate.’ [as read] Now,
I'm not so clear. Are you saying or His Highness saying that the website is also inappropriate?

A. Well, he 1s aware also of the website.

Q. No, that's not my question.

A. Yes. Inappropriate.

Q. My question is: In your discussions with His Highness --

A, Yes?

Q. -- did he tell you that website is also a problem?

A. Well, he says that there are a number of websites which cause him concern.

Q. So he's concerned about the websites as well?

A. Yes, but this is publication which is his works. The websites do not publish farmans on the thing.
The 1ssue I'm talking to you is very simple. This is talking about his works.

Q. My question is --

A. Websites are not his work.

Q. I understand. I understand. I just want to be clear with this. His Highness is concerned with the
websites as well, and there are a number of websites, not only Mr. Tajdin?

A, Yes.

Q. And he's expressed that concern to you?

A, Yes, and we are looking into this matter. We have started working through the process with the
website people to see how we can work with some of these. And, in fact, Nagib himself was part of the
solution in some cases, and his advice was sought on some of the matters, to see how we can solve this
problem.

Q. Right. But right now my question is that he disapproves of the various websites as well; correct?
A. Yes. From this letter to you.

Q. Not from the letter. You said earlier he has told you about that as well?
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A, Yes.

Q. Yes?

A, I've said to you the websites are also a concern to him.

Q. To him?

A, Yes.

Q. And he has told that to you, right?

A. Yes. But here we're talking about how this particular issue relates to the publication of the farmans
that we have got, which you have just -- the matters which are ahead of us in the litigation. We're not
talking about the website in the litigation. We're talking about copyright issues of the publications and
not the websites.

Q. Now, there are a number of individuals with websites; correct?

MR. GRAY: Are you telling us?

MR. JIWA: I'm asking him.

THE DEPONENT: There are people who have websites, yes, a number of websites.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Other than Mr. Tajdin?

A, Absolutely.

Q. And His Highness is concerned about all of them?

A, Well, no. It's a question of what is -- the review of these websites he wants to be carried out so that
we know what is in each of these websites. He's concerned about the websites --

Q. So he's asking a review?

A. Of course. Of all of these websites.
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Significance of Mehmani

A mund is quite entitled to speak to his Imam during Mehmani. Imam does listen, interact with and
guide Murids during Mehmanis. Although reluctant, even Mr Bhaloo came around to this conclusion.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Sachedina #179 - #183:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. All right. And would you agree with me that the purpose here is for the Imam to interact with that
murid when he presents the mehmani?

A. If he wishes to do so.

Q. And often he will do so himself?

A, It 1s up to the Imam.

Q. No, we know it's up to the Imam. But often he does interact with the murid himself even without
being asked?

A. Yes, it does happen.

Q. It does happen, right. And there is no restriction on that murid from talking to his Imam?

A. The murid 1s quite entitled to speak to his Imam if he wishes to do.

Q. And some do?

A. Some do, some don't.

Sachedina #195 - #199:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. However, if anybody wished to talk to the Imam, he can talk to the Imam?

A, It's the right of the munids, right.

Q. And to your knowledge, because you have been extensively involved in the jamat, and you were in
1994, which was a lot larger jamat than the Montreal jamat, to your knowledge, when that murid asked
the Imam a question, the very purpose for the mehmani is for the Imam to respond and guide that
murid?

A. Yes. The Imam, it's at his mercy and pleasure.

Q. And that's the purpose he does these mehmanis --

A, Yes.

Q. -- 1s to guide? Would you also agree with me that this mehmani is personal and not published?
Like, you know, the whole jamat who 1s sitting there, they don't hear what's happening between the
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Imam and the murid.

A. Yes, it is done in the context of closeness with the murid and the murshid. But there are people
standing nearby who are also observing, and the jamat observes what's happening. So there are always
people who know but they can't listen.

Q. They can't. Because they are just observing?

A. (Deponent nods head up and down).

Bhaloo #67:

Cross-Examination by Mr Jiwa.

Q. ... My question was: Is the murid who presents the mehmani prohibited from asking the question
orally to the Imam without giving any memorandum in writing?

A, It's not a generally-done thing.

Bhaloo #96 - #98:

Q. And do you recall during that '78 visit, His Highness a number of times said he wants to listen to
specially the mehmanis that are represented so the jamat to remain calm?

A. Yes, I remember.

Q. He said that on a number of occasions?

A. Yes.

Q. And then he specified that he wishes to listen to what his murids tell him, and he wants quiet in the
jamat so he can listen; he said that a number of times?

A. Yes.
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Significance of Talika

Talikas and Farmans are not regular speeches, they are treated with the greatest respect and special
ceremonies as Divine words for the Ismaili commumty.

[Note: Extracts of Federal Court Transcripts of Cross-Examinations held August 2010 for Summary
Judgement Motions in the Aga Khan Copyright Lawsuit

Sections starting with N. Tajdin #... Means Nagib Tajdin is the one answering questions in the next
section

Sections starting with Jiwa #... Means Alnaz Jiwa is the one answering questions in the next section
Sections starting with Sachedina #... Means Shafik Sachedina is the one answering questions in the
next section

Sections starting with Bhaloo #... Means Aziz Bhaloo is the one answering questions in the next section

/

Bhaloo #142 - #167:

Cross-examination by N. Tajdin

Q. Okay. Mr. Bhaloo, not as a leader, not as a constitutional expert, just as an Ismaili, would you say
that a talika and a farman is about the same thing; a talika is a written farman?

A. They're both given by the Imam, yes.

Q. You would accept that the talika is a written farman?

A. Sometimes the talikas are blessings, not farmans.

Q. Oh, blessings are not farmans?

A. Itold you that talikas are sometimes blessings given by the Imam to the individuals, but not
instructions in farmans.

Q. What about -- let's talk of -- tell me just -- you don't have to reply, just what age are you?

A. Old enough.

Q. Old enough. So in the '60s were you in East Africa?

A. In the 1960s?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes, I was.

Q. Do you remember that period?

A, Parts of it, yes.

Q. Was it Nairobi or Kisumu or someplace around Kenya?

A. Both.

Q. Do you remember at that time when a talika was to be read, it was announced, and Ismailis kotters
[ph.] in the street with drums and a person going around saying there is talika tonight?

A. Yes, I believe so.

Q. And the flag was put --

A. I do not think it was the '60s, though. It was the '50s.

Q. It was the '50s. Sorry. I did not think you would remember up to that time. I think you look so
young. But, okay, so 50's. And the flag would go up on the jamat khana, and people seeing the flag up
would know that there's a talika?
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A. Correct.

Q. Now, we both live in Nairobi, so even today when there is a talika, the flag goes up to the jamat
khana. Have you noticed that?

A. No, I have not.

Q. You have not noticed?

A. No, I have not.

Q. I would just suggest that it's a good thing to notice.

A, Thank you.

Q. So a talika, when it 1s read, I just want to go through some of the ceremonies that accompany the
talika to show how important it 1s. Is it true that when a talika is to be read, there is a special ceremony
for holy water?

A, Yes.

Q. Is it true that when a person is called to read the talika, usually it's a person of standing, someone
very respected?

A, Mr. Gray, these are -- these are really questions dealing with religious matters and --

MR. GRAY: You have to speak up for the --

THE DEPONENT: These are really questions of religious matters, and I don't know whether it's
pertinent to the case.

MR. GRAY: It is not pertinent to the case. It's totally irrelevant, in my submission, but I was letting
Mr. Tajdin have as much leeway as I thought reasonable. It is really way beyond anything relevant to
this case, and so in the interest of --

MR. TAJDIN: Okay, we are trying to define --

MR. GRAY: You're paying for your transcript and so you're paying for my copy of the transcript, so --
MR. TAIDIN: Mr. Gray --

MR. GRAY: Let me finish. You're paying for transcript and I'm paying -- and you're paying for my
copy of the transcript. So if you want to go on like this, spending money and time on irrelevant
matters, I'm going to let you do that as long as the witness feels comfortable. But when you're
exploring these questions of holy water in Nairobi and the talika flag, I think we are getting awfully far
afield from the issues in this case. So if you could try. And I really would like to give you as much
leeway --

MR. TAJDIN: Mr. Brian --

MR. GRAY: Let me finish.

MR. TAJDIN: This i1s going just -- like, how long are you going to talk? Because we want to put it
brief. You have said what you have to say. So can I continue asking my questions?

MR. GRAY: You interrupted me, but fine, go ahead.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Okay. Mr. Bhaloo, the book on which you have written an affidavit contains talika and farmans;
right?

A, Clarify that?

Q. There 1s this Affidavit -- you are saying in your Affidavit that you are making this Affidavit in
support of the Plaintiff's motion for summary judgment and for no other purpose? The last line. Do you
know the subject matter of this lawsuit?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Okay. Would you agree that it's on a book which contains talika and farmans?

A, Yes. It contains farmans, yes.

Q. Does it contain talikas also?
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A. I have not read the Golden Edition book, so I would no know. This is the first time I'm looking at it.
MR. GRAY: The witness is referring to a book sitting on the table here in the examination room.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. You have written an affidavit in support of the motion. Have you read the motion? Did you read the
motion?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. So you know it's about farmans and talika book?

A, It 1s for summary judgment.

Q. It doesn't matter what summary judgment on what subject?

A. Yes, it does.

Q. Okay. Is it on a book which was printed with farmans and talikas?

A. I remember the farman. I don't know about the talikas.

MR. GRAY: If it helps, we'll admit that the book contains farmans and talikas. If that helps you, we'll
admit that.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Yes. And I will not go through the 15 or 12 ceremonies which accompany the reading of a talika. I
will just ask you one general question: When a talika is read, there are a lot of religious ceremonies
surrounding the reading of the talika; yes or no?

A, Mr. Tajdin, these are matters for those who have been imitiated into the faith, and they are not
matters for public discussion, and I will not get into that.

Q. Okay. Mr. Bhaloo, I'm not sure what to ask because it looks like you are very much on the
defensive and whatever I would ask would not bring me any kind of reply.
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V VICTORY VERBATIM

N. Tajdin - 3

NAGIB TAJDIN, swornl

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. GRAY:

1. Q. Mr. Tajdin, you have been sworn?

You have to answer yes OF NO.
A. Yeg.

2. Q. Just for the record, Mr. Jiwa and
Mr. Tajdin, I note that you are both present here
today, and as you are both witnesses, I have asked
each of you to leave the room while the othex is
being examined. I take it you refuse to do that?

MR. JIWA: Yes. I am a party, so I am
entitled to stay.

3. MR. GRAY: okay. I have agreed to
continue under objection, and I will ask
the court to conclude that there is a risk
that your evidence may have been tailored
because of discussions that are taking
place between the two of you. I just
wanted that objection noted for the record.

And also, I would like to do a
couple of housekeeping things. Can we
agree that we have two separate motions for
summary judgment; one by each of you?

MR. JIWA: Yes.

4. MR. GRAY: And two separate responding

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SBUITE 00, TQARONTO, ANTARIO, MK THG
WWW.VICTORYVEREBATIM.COM 1416) 360-611 ? INFO{EVICTORYVERBATIM.COM
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N. Tajdin - 4

motion records?
MR. JIWA: Yes.

5. MR. GRAY: And that the responding
motion records, and the motion records
are...as far as the evidence is concerned,
are identical? Both of your motion records
and responding motion records are

identical, as far as the evidence is

concerned?
MR. JIWA: Yeg, evidence is concerned,
yes.

6. MR. GRAY: You have different written

submissions, but the evidence is the same,

exactly.
MR. JIWA: Right .
7. MR. GRAY: S0, insofar as...and can we

also agree that the responding motion
records of both of you incorporates the
affidavit material from the original motion

record, plus the responding material?

MR. JIWA: Yes.
THE DEPONENT: Yes.
8. MR. GRAY: So, in effect, if I have the

responding motion material of one of either

Mr. Tajdin or Mr. Jiwa, I have all of the

ERNET & YOUNE TOWER, 222 BAY 8TREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, DNTARID, MK 1 HE&
WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.COM {ars) 360-6117 INFO@VICTORYVEREBATIM.COM
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VICTORY VERBATIM

N. Tajdin - 5

evidence that is in this matter at the

BY ME. :

11.

12.

13.

ERMNST &% YOLING TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 908, TARENTO, ONTARIO, MSK 1Ha
WWW.VIETORYVERBATIM.COM (4186 3e0-8117 INFO@VICTORYVERBATIM.CM

moment?
MR, JIWA: Yes,
MR. GRAY: Do you agree with that?
MR. JIWA: Yes,
THE DEPONENT: Yes.
MR. GRAY: ckay -
GRAY
Q. So, for the purposes of this

examination, and for yours, as well, I am just going
to use Mr. Tajdin's motion record, the responding
moticn record. Is that okay?

Al Yes.

Q. That has all of your evidence in the
summary judgment proceedings, both as the motion you
have brought for summary judgment and the responding
motion, that you responded to my motion for summary
judgment. Okay?

MR. JIWA: Yes, that is correct.

MR. GRAY: and can we also agree that my

material, my motion record that serves as

the affidavit evidence in my moticn for
summary judgment, the plaintiff's motion

for summary judgment, is the same as the
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N. Tajdin - 6

responding material, and so that if I have
the plaintiff's motion record, I have all
of the affidavit evidence currently in
these proceedings?
MR. JIWA: Yes.

14. MR. GRAY: Okay. 8o, I am geing te use

just those two books to avoid confusion.

MR. JIWA: Yes.
15. MR. GRAY: Just so0 you understand.
MR. JIWA: Sorry, did you just say you

are using the plaintiff's motion record,
right?

16. MR. GRAY: I am using the plaintiff's
motion record, and the responding motion
record that you have attached to it.

MR. JIWA: Ckay.

BY MR. GRAY:

17. Q. Now, Mr. Tajdin, Mr. Jiwa, being a
lawyer, has responded to that, but do you agree with

that, what he has just said?

A. Yes, I agree.
18. Q You do?
A, Yes.
19. Q Now, finally, can we agree that the

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, BUITE 900, TORSNTES, ONTARIO, M5K 1 H&
WWW.VIETORYVERBATIM.COM (416 3606117 INFO@VICTORYVERBATIM.COM
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20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

N. Tajdin - 7

cross-examinations today are in respect of the

plaintiff's motion for summary judgment, and in

respect of responding to your motions for summary

judgment.

MR. JIWA: Both of them.

MR. GRAY: flsed for both...in both
matters.

MR. JIWA: Agreed.

MR. GRAY: Yes?

MR. JIWA: Yes.

MR. GRAY: And just for the record, I

have indicated to you, we are going to file
another affidavit, or seek leave to file

that, and I sent that to you...

MR. JIWA: Yes,

MR. GRAY: ...last night.

MR. JIWA: Yes, I saw that.

MR. GRAY: And I am going to give you

now a hard copy of that. It is unsworn.

We are going to get the expert to swear

it...
MR. JIWA: That is fine, yes.
MR. GRAY: ...okay? And here are the

exhibits. I have got two copies; one for

each of you.

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, ®=UITE 900, TORONTO, ANTARIO, M5K 1HS
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N. Tajdin - 8

MR. JIWA: You will give it to us after

you get it sworn?

25. MR. GRAY: Sorry?

MR. JIWA: You will give it to us after
you get it gworn?

27. MR. GRAY: I will give it to you again
after it is sworn.

MR. JIWA: That ig fine.

28. MR. GRAY: As there may be a few minor
c¢hanges., ..

MR. JIWA: Yes.

29. MR. GRAY: ...but Mr. Lindblom indicated
this was what he was prepared to swear to,
pefore he went on vacation. So, I am
confident it will be more or less in that
form.

BY MR. GRAY:

30. Q. Now, one other housekeeping matter.

Can we agree the plaintiff has many names? Can we
sort that out now? The plaintiff's name on the
gtatement of Claim is his Highness Prince Karim Aga
Xhan, correct?

A. This is what is on the Statement of

Claim, vyes.

ERNEYT & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TGRONTGO, GNTARIO, MSK THG&
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Q. Right. It says on the Statement of
Claim. I understand you are asserting that I don't
represent the real plaintiff. We will get to that,
but for the purposes of the record, the plaintiff's
name is His Highness Prince Karim...

A Yes.

Q. can we also agree, though, that his

other name is sometimes just the Aga Xhan?

A Yes.

Q. Sometimes, Imam?

A. Yes.

Q. Can we agree with that?

A. We can agree with that, with a small

restriction. When you say the imam, we are talking
of the Aga Khan as Imam.

Q. Aga Khan as Imam, okay. But that is
still the same person, the plaintiff?

A, It is the same persomn.

Q. Right. And when you say "the imam"

Zzaman, we are talking about the same person, the

plaintif£?
A, Yes.
Q. That means the imam of the time, the

current Aga Khan?

A, Exactly. Zaman means time.

ERNST & YOGUMG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SUITE 00, TORGNTO, GNTARIG, M5K 1 H&
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45,
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Q. a2nd when we talk about Mawlana Imam,

we are talking about the same person?

A. Yes.

Q. Right? The plaintiff.

A. Yes.

Q. And we say "Mawlana Hazar Imam”", we

are also talking about the same perscn...

A. Yes.

Q. ...the plaintiff, right? And when
we say Noor Mawlana Shah Karim Al Hussaini, we are
also talking akout the same person, the plaintiff,
the current Aga Khan?

A, We are talking of the perscn as

Imam, because the word "Noor" ig there.

Q. Sorry?
A Because the word "Noor" is there...
Q. Right.
A ...we are talking about the person

as Imam,

Q. As Imam, but it is still the same
human being, the same physical person, the Aga Khan,
the plaintiff?

A. Well, let's not enter into these
theological discussions.

Q. Okay. But it is the same person?

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 105 of 536

TORONTO, ONTARIO, MSK 1HBG



ba

17

1&

1%

29

V VICTORY VERBATIM

N. Tajdin - 11

a, Yes.

46. Q. Okay. And so, finally, if I
referred to him as His Highness, will you understand
that I mean all these people?

A. I will understand that.

47, Q. Okay. I am just going to use His

Highness to refer to the plaintiff and all the

various other names...

A. Okay.

48. Q. ...that he has. Is that okay?
A, That is okay.

49, Q. All right, thank you. Now, I am

showing you a letter, which is also an exhibit, I

believe, to Mr. Shafik's affidavit, dated January

4...
A. Yes.
50. Q. ...2010. Do you recognize this
letter?
A, Yes, it is a letter I have written

to the Imam.
51. MR. GRAY: Okay. Can we mark this as

Exhibit 17

--- EXHIBIT NO. 1: Letter dated January 4, 2010 from

Nagib Tajdin to Aga Khan with

ERNST & YOLING TOWER, 222 DAY BTREET, SUITE 980, TORAQNTO, OMNTARIO, MSK THE
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attachment

52. MR. GRAY: And what we will do is...off

the record for a second.

--- DISCUSSION OFF THE RECORD

BY MR. GRAY:

53. Q. So, Exhibit 1, then, as I
understand, Mr. Tajdin, is a letter dated January 4,
2010, which you have written to His Highness?
a. Yes.
54 . Q. Okay. It had attached to it the
attachment that is currently on the letter that 1

have shown you, Exhibit 17

A Yes.
55. Q That attachment was prepared by you?
&, Yes.
56. Q and that described your Farmans
projects; is that right?
A, Yes,
57. Q. It described your Farmans project

since you started the Farmans project?
A. It described since I started

printing it, not since I started it.

ERNST & YOUNDB TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, BUITE 900, TGRAONTO, GNTARIO, M5K 1THE&
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Q. Okay. But it ig an accurate

degcription of your...

A. Yes, it is.

Q. ...printing of the Farmans projects?
A. Yes, it is.

Q. And was this the first letter you

had written to His Highness concerning the Farmans
projects?

A, For the Farmans, ves.

Q. This is the first letter you had
written to him concerning the Farmans projects?

A. Yes.

Q. And by the Farmans projects, I mean
any of your various publishing projects?

A. That was the first for publishing.

Q. The first letter that you wrote to

the Imam abcut the...

A, Yes.

Q ...the publishing projects?

A. Yes.

Q all right.

A The other letters I have written was

not about the same subject.
Q. Right, okay. Your family has

received letters from His Highness from time to
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70.

71.

72.

73.

N. Tajdin - 14

time, haven't they?

A. Yes, it has.

Q. Yes. So, did you write a letter to
the Ismaili leadership concerning the Farmans
projects?

Al No.

Q. So, other than this letter, this is
the first letter you have communicated either to the
Imam or the Ismaili leadership concerning your
publishing of Farmans?

A. It is the first letter.

Q. Now, how did you send this letter of
Janmuary 4°?

A, I gave it to the Aga Khan council in
Kenya, in Nairobi.

And who was that?

Who is that?

Yes.

The person to whom I gave it?

Yes.

poooPo0 P 0

Well, I don't remember the name, but
I will give you a confirmation within a few days.

Q. Did you give it to him in...that is
okay. I don't...

A, They gave me a letter of

ERMNST & YOWUNG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SUITE 900, TRRONTO, ONTARIO, M5K 1HS
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76,

77.

78.

79.
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confirmaticn that they have received from me for
transmigsion.

Q. Okay. 8o, you delivered it to the
president of the Ismaili Council for Kenya in
person?

A No. No, no. I sent it through
Noorali Ebrahim, Ebrahim Electronics, and it is just
a few blocks from the council, and I would park
there. S0, we were talking, and I said, "I have to
go, and send this". They said, "No, let us send
from here, and we will call them to confirm". So,
we called the office, and they received it. The
letter, I ask for a confirmation in writing.

Q. Right. So, you sent the letter to
the president via this other person, who
hand-delivered it to the president of the Council?

A. To the secretariat.

To the secretariat, with the book?
With the boock.

and the audioctape?

Which audictape?

The audio bookmark.

The bookmark, vyes.

o 0O 20 P 0

Yes. So, with the book and the

bookmark. ..
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86.
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A. and the letter, in one parcel.

Q. Right, okay. And they confirmed
that they had received it?

A. They have confirmed that they have
received it.

Q. Right. &nd did you ever ask them if

they had transmitted it...

A. Yes.

Q. ...to France, to Aiglemont?

A, Yes, they said they have
transmitted.

Q. They said they have transmitted it

to His Highness in France?

A Exactly. They sent the transmitter
to the secretariat in Aiglemont...

Q. Ckay.

a. ...and this is the same thing they
told me previously when I sent out the letters.

Q. So, do you think His Highness
received the book that was attached with the letter?

A. I don't think so.

Q. and how did that happen? Somebody
at Aiglemont hijacked the bock?

A. The fact is that you know, Aiglemont

is not a small office, like we are here. It ig a

ERMNST & YOUNE TOWER, 222 BAY S8TREET, SUITE 500, TORONTO, ANTARIO, MSK 1 HE
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91.

92.

93.

94,

N. Tajdin - 17

huge domain, and there iz a secretariat, and
everybody receive mail at the secretariat. The
secretariat is controlled by Dr. Sachedina.

Q. Dr. Sachedina, does he live in
France?

A. He may be going from Paris to Londen
several times a week or one time a week. I am not

sure how his arrangement...

Q. He lives in England, doesn't he?

A. His official address may be in
England...

Q. He lives in England...

A, ...but he told me, he teold me that

most of his time is spent in Paris, Aiglemont.

Q. Aiglemont is the...
a. That is the dcmain.
Q. It is the Aga Khan's residence,

isn't it?

A. Yes.

0. It is his chateau, where he lives?

4. Yes=.

Q. And that is where you directed the
bock?

A, Yes.

Q. So, somewhere in the chateau, the

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY =TREET, SUITE 910, TARONTO, ONTARIO, MSK 1HE&
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1 bock has been hijacked?

%]

A. You can put it as you want. It may
3 not have arrived to the Aga Khan. Whatever facts 1
4 have points to this.

95, C. Someone in the secretariat absconded

n

6 with the bock?

7 A. Well, somecne...you know, it is very
3 easy. I am not going to enter into details.

9 96. Q. Okay, fine. So, now, you did

1c receive a response to this letter of January 4th,

11 didn't you?

12 A. Are you referring to...

13 97. Q. I am showing it to you right now. I

15 A. Yes, the first forged letter, I

1¢ received that.

17 a8, Q. You received this letter, okay, and
13 you have the original of this letter with you?

Lo A. Yes, I have.

¢ 99, Q. Can you produce it for me right now?
21 A No, I don't have it here.

22 100. Q. You don't have it with you? You

23 didn't bring it with you?

4 A, No.

25 101. Q. and I have asked you to produce it,

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 DAY STREET, SuUlTE 900, TORDNTH, ONTARIO; MEK 1HG
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haven't I°7?

A When?
102. Q. I asked you by e-mail several weeks
. ago.
A, All of the originals?
103. Q. Yes.
A. Yes, I replied to you.

104, Q. You replied that you wouldn't give
them to me, because you think I am going to destroy
them?

A. No, I never said you are going to
destroy them. Can you please read me that passage?

105. Q. Let's deal with this just
temporarily. I am showing you a letter you sent to
the administrator of the Federal Court, July 27,
20107

A. Yes.

106. Q. Do you recognize that letter?
A, Yes.

107. MR. GRAY: Can we mark that, then, as
the next exhibit, 27

--- EXHIBIT NO. 2: Letter from Nagib Tajdin to The

Administrator of Federal Court of

Canada, dated July 27, 2010

ERNET & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARIG, MEK THE
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BY MR. GRAY:
108. Q. can I direct you to the second page
of the letter?
A, Yes.
109, Q. I direct your attention to the
sentence:
n...As far as giving the originals of the
forged letters received by the defendant, 1
have no doubt that these proofs of criminal
activities will find a way to self-destruct

as socn as the documents are out of our

hands..."
A. Yes.

110. Q. Correct? Did you write that?
A, Yes, I wrote that.

111. Q. And how will the documents

self-destruct?

A. I don't know. One thing I know is
that these letters are the only proof I have of
forgeries, and the original, I will not part with
them for that reason.

112. Q. 80, you believe that 1f they were in
my hands, they are going to self-destruct?

A, I am not sure. You have a bilg

office. I am not sure who comes in, who goes oul.

ERMNBT & YOUNE TROWER, 222 BAY STREET, BUITE 900, TORONTD, DNTARID, MBK 1RHG
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Things happen, right?

113.

0. Nevertheless, you were saying that

if they get into my hands, they will

gelf-destruct...

114.

A, I am sorry, I have...
Q. ...they will disappear?
A, You have just told me that I have

said that you will destruct them, when this is not

what I have written, and I think the letter is

gelf-explanatory.

115.

Q. all right. I think it is, too. So,

let's deal, now, with the response of January 24,

which I handed you earlier?

116.

A, Yes.
MR. GRAY: Can we mark that as Exhibit
3? This is also produced as an exhibit in

somebody else's affidavit.

--- EXHIBIT NO. 2: Letter dated January 24, 2010 from

BY MR. GRAY:

117.

118,

Aga Khan to Nagib Tajdin

Now, you did receive this letter?
A. Yes.

Q. and how did you receive it?

ERNST & YOUNG TAWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SUITE 900, THRONTO, DNTARIC, MSK T1H&
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By e-mail.

2 119. From who?

L S

Michelle Parkes.

[

4 120. Q. Michelle Parkes at His Highness'
5 secretariat?

A. At his agent's secretariat.

o

7 121. Q. And did the letter have...is this
2 the form in which you received it?

A, Yes, the e-mail had an attachment,

w

10 which is this one.
11 122. Q. Right. And was there anything else

12 attached to the letter?

14 123. Q. and did the letter come from France,
18 from Aiglemont?

‘5 A, It came from an e-mail address at

17 Aiglemont.org.

13 124. Q. Okay, right. Now, would you agree
19 with me that this letter says that the Aga Khan dces
20 not consent to the publication of your Farmans?

21 A, Yes.

22 125. Q. Okay. And you will agree with me

22 that it says, in fact, if the letter is genuine, it
24 says that you should not be publishing the Golden

25 Edition?

ERNST & YRUNG TOWER, 222 DAY 8TREET, |UlTE 900, TORONTR, ONTARIO, M3K 1HG
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131.
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A. Yes, and it is completely in
contradiction with the instruction we got from the
Aga Khan.

Q. We will deal with that later, but
you agree with me that if this letter is genuine, it
revokes any consent that the Aga Khan may have given
you to publish these documents, these books?

A. I would agree that it revokes for

the future.

Q. Revokes for the future?
A. M"hmm.
Q. All right. Would you not agree that

it alsc revokes in terms of current distribution?
You must stop anything you have done right now?

A. Well, I would assume that if the
letter ig from the Aga Khan, he would know that the
book is already published. It cannot be
unpublished.

Q. But it asks you to stop the

distribution of the book, does it not?

A. This letter, yes.
Q. It asks you to do that, does it not?
A. Yes, it could ask anything, since

the signature has been forged. It doesn't matter.

Q. We will get to that. I want to just

ERNST & YOIUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MEK tHE&
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establish what the issue...
AL Yes.
Q. ...the real issue 1is between us?
Because if the letter is accurate, it asks you to
stop publishing the book. Doesn't it say that at
the bottom:
",..Recalls from circulation your recent
publication..."
Which indicates that the person who wrote the letter
understands that the thing has been published, and
the accompanied MP3 player device:
1,..And cease your printing and
distribution. I would also like you to
deliver all remaining stocks of these
material to the Institute of Ismaili
studies in London..."
Is that correct?
A. Yes.
Q. So, it is very clear that the person
who wrote the letter understands that you published

the books, wants them to be stopped from being

published, and to return the unused stocks to the

Inetitute of Ismaili Studies. Isn't that clear?
A, That is not clear, that the persen

who wrote that letter suggested these things.

ERNET & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTH, ONTARIO, MBK 1 H&
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1 134. Q. So, if it is actually from the Aga

2 Khan, you accept that that, in fact, ends the

2 lawsuit. If it really i¢ from the Aga Khan, you no
4 longer have consent to do what you are doing?

5 A. If the Aga Khan confirmed directly

6 in person that he has written this letter, there is
7 no lawsuit.

B 135, Q. Right. You will stop...you confirm,

and it is your view that the Aga Khan has the

pil

10 absolute and unfettered right to withdraw any

11 consent he may have given?

12 A. The Aga Khan can withdraw any

13 consent to anyone at any time.

14 136. Q. Right. And even if he had given amny
15 consent previously, or anything he may have said

15 previously...

17 A. Well, from the time he gives an

13 instruction, it has to be followed.

13 137. Q. Right.

20 A. This is the tenet of our faith.

2z 138. Q. So, if he has withdrawn his consent
22 now, that is the end of the matter?

23 A. If he tells me, face to face,

24 "Nagib, stop", that is the end of the matter.

25 139, Q. Right. It doesn’'t matter what

ERNST & YOLNR TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MSK THG
WWW.VIDTORYVERBATIM.COM 1416 280-8117 INFOGVICTORYVERBATIM.COM
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happened in 1992 or 1998, or any time?

A, It doesn't matter. If today, he
tells me face to face, "Nagib, stop", I will stop.

Q. But if the letter is genuine, and he
has told you in writing to stop, you would also
stop?

A. If the letter is genuine, and he
tells me, "This is a letter which I have composed

and signed", I will accept.

Q. Right, okay. Your wife's name is
Franny?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And did she not.give a CopY

of your book, the book in issue, The Golden Edition,
to His Highness' son?

A. Yes, she did.

Q. She gave a copy of it to Prince

Hussain, right?

A, Yes.

Q. Hussain?

A. I am not sure., Check on the
website.

Q. Yes, okay, right. So, she gave that

to him in Kenya?

a. Yes, she did.

ERNET & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TRRONTO, ONTARIO, MSK 1HG
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146, Q. and she took a picture of the
occasicn, didn't she?

a. Yes, she did.

147. Q. And Prince Hussain said he would
give the book to His Highness?

A, Yes.
148. Q. That is true, too, right?
A. That is true.

149. Q. And are you saying that the book
didn't get t£o His Highness?

A. That book probably get to His
Highnesgs.

150. Q. So, that book did get te His
Highness?

A, Yes, I am not disputing that His
Highness has a copy of the book.

151. Q. Okay. Sa, you say His Highness does

have a copy of The Golden Edition now, the book?
A, Yes.

152. Q. Okay. Now, you got a second letter,
did you not, in...sorry, you responded...sorry, hold
on a second. You received the letter that is now
Exhibit 3, as you said, by e-mail?

A Yes.

153. Q. Right.

ERNST & YOLING TAWER, 222 BAY STREET, EUITE 900, TARDONTA, AONTARIO, MSK 1HE&
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First by e-mail, then I insisted to

receive the original...

Q.
a.

Right.

...and I received it after quite a

long time, maybe three weeks.

Q.

A.

Right. And you said...

And T had to insist many, many times

to get the original.

Q.

Lo T &

photocopy,

And you received the original when?
Sometime in February, mid-February.
February 137

That is likely.

But in the meantime, you sent the

didn't you, or the electronic copy you

had received, you sent it to two experts for

examination?

A.

Q.

Yes, I did.

And what they had was an electronic

phiotocopy received by e-mail?

original?

A,

o o» o W

Yes.
They did not have the original?
No.

And to this day, they don't have the

Who, the first two experts?
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162. Q. The first two experts?
A. No.
163, Q. They have never received the

criginal of this letter?
a. No.

164. Q. And yet based on the original, the
photocopy of the letter, you accused...let me just
show you your letter of...you responded, then, after
you received the expert reports, in a letter, I
believe, dated around about February the 15th? Is

that right?

A. To Michelle Parkes? Which one is
that?
165. Q. I am showing you a copy of your
response.
A, That is the one.
166. MR. GRAY: Okay. 8o, if we can mark
that as Exhibit 4.
- EXHIBIT NO., 4: E-mail dated February 15, 2010 from

Nagib Tajdin to Michelle Parkes

BY MR. GRAY:
167. Q. I understand it to be an e-mail

dated February 15, 2010, from you to Michelle

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY SETREET, SUITE 904, TORONTH, ONTARIO, MSK 1H&
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Parkes...

A, Yes.

Q. ...saying that the confirmation
letter...suggesting that she read the attached
letter and materials, and then there is a letter
starting "Chere Madame", undated?

A. Yes.

Q. aind that was dated and sent arocund
February 15, with the e-mail?

A. Yes.

Q. And attached with that e-mail, you
sent some of the expert reports, did you?

A. Yeg, I did.

Q. You sent the reports of the
Graziella Pettinati?

Graziella.
Graziella?

Yes.

Pettinati?
Pettinati, yes.

And also the report of...

» O ¥ 0 P O ¥

or one of the expert report.
Q. Okay.

A. Because there was at least one
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attached to it.

Q. The other one, Wendy Carlson?

A. Yes.

Q. You said one or both of those
reports?

A. Yes.

Q. So, at this point, you had received

gimply a photocopy of the letter, the experts had
reviewed only a phetocopy of the letter?

A. Yes.

Q. Based on that, you are accusing Ms.
Parkes of criminal behaviocur, are you not?

A, Actually, it is not only because of
the expertise. The content of the report...you
know, for an Ismaili who will read this letter, it
is very evident that His Highness has not written
this letter, but the expertise was needed for people
who are not Ismaili, who'cannot, from reading the
letter, know that this is not written by the Imam.

Q. I asked you a simple question.
Based on the...at this pcint, you received only a
photocopy of the letter...

a. Yes.

Q. ...and you are accusing Ms. Parkes

of criminal forgery? Sent hexr copies of the

ERNET & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, BUITE 200, TBGRONTO, ONTARIC, M&GK THG
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criminal code.

A. Let's read the letter because it is
in French. Can you tell me where you say "criminal
forgexry"?

182. Q. If you gsay:

"...I do not know i1f yocu are going to

review the Article 452 of the Penal Code,

French penal code..."

A, Yes.

183. Q. ¥, ..but if that is the case, I am
ready to explain it to you..."
S0, you are suggesting to her that this is a
criminal matter, this forgery?

A. Yes, I have informed her that a
forgery is criminal, and this is the truth in French
law.

184, Q. Ckay.

a. I don't know the law here, if it
says the same thing. I hope so.
185. Q. Right. And you are saying...did you
understand that Ms. Michelle Parkes is a 28-year

employee of the secretariat at Aiglemont?

a. She might ke.
186. Q. Right.
A, It is irrelevant, as far as the

ERNST & YOUNSG TOWER, 222 BAY RTREET, SUITE 900, TORONTGO, ONTARIQ, MEK 1HS&
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forgery is concerned.

Q. Okay. But will you agree with me
that...okay, let's deal with the next one. 2nd you
circulated this allegation of forgery, did you not,

to other people?

A. I gent...yes, I sent to a couple of
people.

0. Who did you send it to?

A. I will not give you names.

Q. Okay.

A, If you want reason, I will give you

reason why. Do you need a reason why...

Q. Sure. Why are you not giving me the
names of the people you sent it to?

A, In this file, whenever there is a
name which goes out, for example, Karim Alibhay, he
gets harassed the whole day and night, he gets phone

calls, threats, sc I am not going to give any names.

Q. All right.

A, It would not be fair for the people,
right?

Q. Right. But in any event, you

circulated it to people who you knew were going to
circulate it to other peocple?

A, No.
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Q. You circulated...

A. No, when I circulated, it was under
the understanding that this was to be contained.

Q. But...

A. Even when I received the letter
from...one cof the original, from the president of
the Aga Khan council in Naircobi, I had a small
discusgsion with him, and he told me he didn't want
me to talk to anyone about it, and I said, "No, it
has to be contained, bkecause people will lose faith

in the leadership if they know these things are

happening".
Q. So, then, you...
A. And it was not...
Q. How many people did you send the...
A, A couple of them.
Q. A couple of them? Two pecple, you

sent the notice...

Two or three.

...you told them...two or three?
Yes,

At that point?

Yes.

© ¥ 0 ¥ O P

Subsequently, you said you told

other. ..

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTH, ONTARIO, MSK 1HG
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A. Well, after the lawsuit, it was
apparent that everything would come to the light,
SO...

Q. Even before the lawsuit, you sent it
to other people, didn't you?

A. No.

Q. Even before the lawsuit, it was
widely known on the Ismaili Heritage website, wasn't
it?

A. Before the lawsuit, no, absolutely
not. There was nothing on that subject on
ismaili.net before the lawsuit.

Q. Can you produce for me, because it
seems tc me that the historical records of the
ismaili.net website have been blocked. Can you
preduce for me the records of the
ismaili.heritage.net website?

A, What do you mean by blocked?

Q. You cannot see the historical
material, what was there in the beginning of 2010.
So...

A. Whatever was there is still there.
Nothing has been remcoved.

Q. So, you are telling me I camn say on

the ismaili.net website what was there in 20107
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A. You can see what was there in 1995.
It is still there. Do you want me te file the data
to which...

Q. I would like you to print out for
me, then, kecause we can't get it, what is on the
ismaili.net website, was there in February and

March...January, February and March of 2010.

A. I don't have that informaticn.
Q. You don't have...
A. At the most, I can ask somecne

to...the information is on the website. It is
there; it has not been removead.

Q. Then. ..

A. To find the date of a particular
file, I can ask the technician. Maybe they can find
the date the file was put on the net.

Q. Okay. Well...

A. If you give me which file, give me
the URL, I will tell you that I have searched for
it. If I find the date, I will tell vyou, this is

the date it was put on the net.

Q. Okay. We will get back to that,
then. Now, have you ever accused the leadership
before of forging?

A. Cf forging? Never.
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i 211, Q. Have you accused them of

2 misrepresenting His Highness' intentions?

3 A, Misrepresenting happens all the

" time, with everybedy. It is not only leadership. I
5 héve also told for cther purpose, in business, in

6 other things that I misrepresentation...

7 212. Q. You meaning...

s A. ...1it is not something which is

w

directed, accusing scomeone. I think it is a word

1c which is very hard.

11 213, Q. You have accused the leadership of

12 misrepresenting His Highness' instructions before,

13 haven't you?

-4 a. Sometimes, it has, and in fact, His
15 Highness has confirmed in London recently that

16 sometimes it tells his leader, and they don't tell
17 his followers. 8o, the message is not always

12 rassed,

13 214. Q. What are you referring to?

20 A. I am referring to a Farmans met by
21 His Highness in London during Golden Jubilee.

22 215. Q. And what does that Farmans say?

23 4. It says, the leader asked me, I tell
24 them but I don't know if they tell you, or something
25 like that. It is not an exact quote.

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 227 BAY BTREET, BUITE 00, TBERAONTRA, ONTARIO, MSK 1HS&
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I 1 216. Q. Right. Now, in response to your
z allegatiocnas of forgery, you received the second
I 3 letter, didn't you?
I s A. I received the second letter on the
5 18th. ..
I € 217. Q February 187
9 A February. ..
| g 218. Q 20107
I o A. Yes.
1¢ 219. MR. GRAY: T am producing that letter to
I 11 you. Mark that as Exhibit 5.
12 THE DEPONENT: Yes.
i.
I 4 --- EXHIBIT NO. §: Letter dated February 18, 2010 from
.5 Aga Khan to Nagib Tajdin
1.
17 BY MR. GRAY:
I 18 220. Q. Now, how did you receive this
I 19 letter?
29 A. I received it by e-mail, and while
I 21 the other letter was sent by Michelle Parkes with
22 follow-up e-mails, this one came from some other
I 23 secretary. I am not sure if it was Moreaux or
l 24 something; we can find out.
25 221. Q. It was Moreaux. And you agree with
1
I ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, EUITE 9200, TARONTAQ, ONTARIO, M3K THS
WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.COM (418} 3a0-a117 INFD@VIETDRWEREATIM.EL‘IM
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me it is Anne-Valerie Moreaux.

A Yes.

Q So, a different secretary in the...
A. Yes.

0 ...Alglemont sent you this one?

A Yes. Isn't that interesting?

Q. Isn't that interesting? She must be

in the conspiracy, too, right?

A No.
Q. Along with Michelle Parkes.
A. No, I think Michelle Parkes did not

want to go and send ancother forged letter, and she
probably refused.

Q. I see. So, therefore, they got
ancother persen to send a forged letter?

A. Yes.

Q. Who also participated...and that
person, you presume, was ignorant of the ecarlier
controversy?

A, I have seen how secretariat work.
You give a letter, and you say, "Please fax to this
person, e-mail to this person". Isn't that how it
works?

Q. Well, the letter was purportedly

signed by the Aga Khan, wasn't it?
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A, Yes, purportedly signed by the Aga
Khan.

Q. So, now we have another person
participating in the cover-up?

A. It is not for me to judge how much a
perscon will or will not.

Q. So, you received this letter by
e-mail, you said?

A. Yes.

Q. Right. Can you produce the original
of this letter?

A The original e-mail?

Q. The original letter of...did you
receive an original of the February 18 letter?

A. I received that, yes. I was asked
where to send, and I send, "Send it through the
president of the Council in Kenya". So, I have

received the original through the...

Q. So, you did receive the original of
Exhibit...

a. Yes.

Q. .57

A. Yes.

Q. Can you produce that letter?

A. It is the same answer as for the

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 920, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MSK TH&
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other letter.

Q. So, a matter of this importance,
when you are asserting forgery, you are not going to
produce for me to review, or for my expert to
review, the original of either this letter, Exhibit
5, or the original of Exhibit 37

A. No. I will not, because your client
is...if it is the Aga Khan, he can tell me, "I have
signed it and the matter is closed". We do
not need expertise.

Q. well, you might...

A. You don't need a counter-expert. I
am really surprised. Why do you need to see the
original of the forged letter? You ask the Aga
Khan. He is your client.

Q. I have asked the Aga Khan.

A. 8o, let him tell me that the letter
is not forged, and I will accept it.

Q. He has told you in writing, the
letter is not forged.

A. Well, this...

Q. And you don't accept that. You
might expect that he might be a little annoyed that
you have accused all of his various...

A, Mr. Brian, by saying that this

ERNST & YOUNGA TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 300, TORONTO, BNTARIO, M5K THS
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letter is forged, I am protecting the Aga Khan.
Come on, he cannot be angry at me. He should be
happy at me that at least, I am trying to protect
his interests. In this whole file, I am the only
one trying to protect his interests. Come on.

Q. You think that by questioning the

whole of the administration of the Aga Khan, you are

protecting his interests.
A. I am not...
Q. By suggesting that he cannot send a
letter to instruct his Murid...you are a Murid, are
you not? A follower?
A. Mr. Gray, your question, are you

saying Murid, is this the word you are trying to

say?
Q. I am trying to say Murid, vyes.
A. Yes.
0. Sorry, I mispronocunced it.
A. No, it is ckay. Those are foreign

words, and I am sure we will have to make a list
for...
Q. Yes, I was hoping the reporter
may...but you are not a follower of the Aga Khan?
A. I am a follower.

Q. Right.
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a. I am an unconditiconal follower of

the Aga Khan.

Q. You have clearly stated that.
a. Yes.
Q. Right. So, is it not the case that

he can...the Aga Khan, His Highness, can give you
instructions in writing? You accept that he has to
be able to give instructions in writing, doesn't he
not?

A. I would accept his writing if they
are not forged.

Q. Right. Okay. But thexe are 15

million Ismailis?

A, Yes,

Q. He cannot possibly meet all of them,
can he?

A. There is only one lawsuit against a

Murid of the Imam in 1400 years. Surely, he can
meet five minutes that person and say, "I have
signed", but he is not doing it because he has not
signed those letters.

Q. But he cannot meet all 15 million
Ismailis. He has to operate by sending things by
writing?

A, Yes.
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0. Do you agree with that?
A. This kind of...
Q. He generally has to operate by

sending information in writing?

A. Yes. And this problem has never
cccurred before. It is once in a lifetime, once in
1400 years.

Q. Okay. Did you submit this second

letter, Exhibit 5, for examination for forgery?

a. Yes, I did.
Q. And when did you do that?
A. That was more recently. That was

more recently. In fact, in June, I came here when
the Aga Khan was here. Was that beginning of June?
End of May, beginning of June.

Q. Right. So, between January 24, when
you received the letter, or let's say the beginning
of February, when you were accusing the somecne of
forgery, right? You say Shafik or...

A. Yes,

Q. ...if it is a forgery, Shafik
Sachedina, you are accusing Shafik Sachedina of
forgery. You are accusing me of not representing
the real Aga Khan. During this period of time until

June, you had not had anyone examine the letter of

ERNST & YOUNG TROWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORDONTO, ONTARIQ, MSK 1 H&
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February 187
A. Did I accuse Sachedina of forging

the signature?

Q. Who are you accusing of forging the
signature?
A. I have not accused anycne. I have

gsaid, he has sent me a forged signature.

Q. I see. Who did it, then?

A. It is not to me to find out. This
is now a police matter. Let them find ocut when the
time is there.

Q. You said you had the letter of

February 18th, 2010 examined for forgery; is that

right?
A. Yes.
Q. And when was that?
A. That was the end of May or beginning

of June this vear.
Q. Ckay. I am showing you a report,
dated July 13, 20107
A. Yes.
MR. GRAY: Mark that as the next
exhibit, 6. Exhibit 6 is repcrt under
cover of a letter, July 13, 2010.

THE DEPONENT: July 13.
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--- EXHIBIT NO. 6: Report of G.R. Ospreay, under cover

letter dated July 13, 2010

BY MR. GRAY:

264 . Q. It is a report of G.R. Ospreay. So,
is that the report you are referring to?

A. Yes.

265. Q. So, this is the first and only
report you have made of the letter of Febkruary 18?2

A. Yes.

266. Q. You asked any other reports about
this letter?

A. No, I didn't need, because I knew
the first one was forged, so any letter gayving that
the first one is not forged is questionable,

267. Q. I see. 8o, because the first one
was forged, everything else you received from the
Aga Khan's office must be forged?

A No. Everything that says that the
first one has been written by the Aga Khan is
forged.

268. Q. I see. Okay. And did you tell this
Mr. Ospreay the age of the Aga Khan?
Aa. No, I did not.

269. Q. Can you produce for me your

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARIC, MGK 1H&
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instructions toc Mr. Ospreay?

A.
Q.
A.

Q.

It was a verbal instruction.
You didn't ask him in writing?
No.

Did you tell him...you follow what

the Aga Khan...his 1life, don't you?

A.

Q.

I follow it wvery closely.

Very closely. And are you aware of

the fact that he had a skiing accident in 20087

A.

oo P 0O

Yes, he hasg had several of those,.

He had several accidents in 20087
Yeg.

And they were in 2008, weren't they?

Yes. In fact, I met, in 2008, or

2009, Dr. Sachedina in Ivory Coast, and he told me

that we have fixed completely properly the shoulder

of His Highness, and he is like before.

Q.
skiing accident

A,

Q.

A,

Q.

Right. 8o, you were aware that the
hurt his shoulder?

Yes, I was aware.

And which shoulder was that?
Probably the right shoulder.

Right, and are you also aware that

the Aga Khan, His Highness, is right-handed?

A.

WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.COM
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Q. Okay. Did you tell Mr. Ospreay that
His Highness had had a skiing accident in 20087

A. No, I did not, because he wag
already back to normal, and that was confirmed tc me
by Dr. Sachedina in Abidjan during the Golden
Jubilee for His Highness.

Q. Did yecu tell any of the other
experts that you retained about the Aga Khan's age?

A, No.

Q. Did you tell any of the other

experts about the skiing accident in 20087

A, No.

Q. Now, you wrote to Prince Amyn?
i Yes.

Q. On March 17, 2010, did you not?
A. Yes.

Q. 1 am showing you another letter.
A. Yes.

Q. Can you ildentify that?

A. Yes.

MR. GRAY: Let's mark that as the next
exhibit...

THE DEPONENT: Yes.

MR. GRAY: Exhibit 7.
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Letter from Nagib Tajdin to Prince
Amyn dated March 17, 2010 and e-mail
dated April 2, 2010 from Genevieve

Charnet to Nagib Tajdin

So, Exhibit 7, then, is a letter
2010, that you sent to Prince amyn?
Yes.

And how did you send this letter?

I sent it by courier, thinking that

was separate from the secretariat of
Right. And so you sent it by

To Alglemont.

To Aiglemont? Okay. And you

received a response, did you not?

I received an unsigned e-mail from

some other pecple's e-mails. Not from Prince Amyn.

Right.
2nd this is what is attached here.

The response is attached to Exhibit

Yes.

BY MR. GRAY:
287. Q.
dated March 17,
A
288. Q.
A,
his secretariat
the Aga Khan.
289. 0.
courier to where?
A.
290. Q.
A,
291. Q.
A.
292. Q.
77
A.
293.

ERMST & YOUNDE TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TRORONTO, ONTARIO, MSK 1 HS
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Exhibit 7 is identified as a letter dated March 17,
2010, by Mr. Tajdin to Prince BAmyn, and an e-mail
responsge dated April 2nd, 2010, from Genevieve
Charnet to Nagib Tajdin. And you received that
e-mall; did you not?

A, I received that e-mail, right.

294, Q. And that apparently came from
Genevieve Charnet of the secretariat of Prince Amyn
Aga Khan?

A. Apparently, vyes.

295. Q. And she must be involved, too, in
the conspiracy?

a. I would not call that Genevieve
Charnet is involved. You know a secretary may be
transmitting a message from the boss, and if the
bosa ig doing something, the secretary might not
know it.

296, Q. So, Prince Amyn told the secretary
to write a letter, but she didn't get the
instructions from Prince Amyn?

A. No.

287, Q. You are saying she didn't get it
from Prince Amyn?

a. No, she didn't.

288. Q. She must have gotten it from someone

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARID, MEK 1H&
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301.

302,

303.
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else?

A. She didn't, bkecause Prince Amyn did
not have my e-mail address. That is the first
thing. The second, the letter was written in
French. The reply is in English.

Q. But he could have gotten the e-mail
address from someone else, couldn't he?

A Yes. I mean, if you search the
Internet, you will find my e-mail address. I doubt
he did that.

Q. But you think that the secretary to
Prince Amyn wrote a letter purporting to be from
Prince Amyn, without instructions frem Prince Amyn?

A You can see it is a copy-paste. Do

you want me to take you through this letter and...

Q. Do you have the original of the
letter?

A. This is an e-mail.

Q. Right. Is there anything different

in the copy you received from this copy?

A. There is nothing different, and this
ig what is interesting.

Q. That ig fine, then I am happy with
what you have produced, if there is nothing

different. 1Is it right to say that if this letter

ERNST & YOUNDG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TARONTG, ONTARIO, M5K 1HS
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is correct, it alsc confirms the earlier

instructions cof January 24 and February 187

A. This letter is not correct,
because. ..

Q. If the letter...

A, ...1it is not a reply to my letter.

You have put my letter here.

Q. I have asked...

a. And in that letter, I am not asking
the reply in writing, or by e-mail. I am asking a
meeting from him when he comes to Nairobi.

Q. Right, but nevertheless, if the
letter is correct, it confirms the earlier
instructions of January 24 and February 18 to stop
the publicaticn. It confirms that His Highness does
not consent to the publication, does it not? If the
letter is correct?

A. You know, in French, we say, "Avec
des si on mettrait Paris en bouteille". With "if"
you can do a lot of things, yes. If it is correct.

Q. Right, because it says from Prince
AmyT1 that:

",,.Hig Highness has confirmed to me,

without equivocation, that he wrote these

letters to you himself, signed them
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personally, and asked Mrs. Parkes to send
you a scanned copy by e-mail, and the

original by courier service..."

A. Yes, there is no signature of Prince
Amyn.

Q. Furthermore, he confirms...sorry?

A. There is no signature of Prince

Amyn. It is not coming from his e-mail address. It
is not written the way I wrote my name.
Q. Whose e-mall address...it came from

the secretariat's e-mail address, did it not?

A, Yes, 1t comes...

Q. Right.

A ...everything comes from the
secretariat...

Q. Right.

A. ...and the boss of the secretariat

ig the same guy.

Q. And that is normal for the
gsecretariat to send things like that? You don't
see.

A. The secretariat sends things, vyes.

Q. The President of the United States
does not normally send e-mails to people, does he?

He hasg his assistants do it?
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A. Well, I would object to that
question. I don't know how the president works.

Q. Okay, fine. Fair enough. But now
we have ancother person participating in sending
letters to you, saying that the matter should be
stopped. It was Genevieve Charnet?

A. It all comes from the secretariat,
the same source.

Q. And then in January, there was an
announcement tc the Jamat. I am showing you a copy
of an announcement, and we will mark this as...first

of all, do you recognize that?

A, Yes, I have read this announcement.

Q. This is an exhibit to your
affidavit?

A. Yes.

Q. You have blocked off, or somebody

has blocked off the...

A. Actually, no, it was a highlighter,
but instead of yellow, someone used a blue one, and
when the photocopy was done, it looked like it is

blocked, but it is not...you can find the

information.
Q. Do you remember what it said there?
A, The date, it was just the date...
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319. Q. I think it just said the date.
A. Yes, and it was read on that date.
320. 0. I think we can assume that what 1is

migeing there is the date, and as I understand it,

it ig January 1é, 201C7?
A. Yes.

321. MR. GRAY: Qkay. So, can we mark thisg,

then, as the next exhibit, 8? 2and this
Exhibit 8 is an announcement by the Ismaili
Leaders' International Forum to the Council
for Canada that was dated January 16, 2010.

THE DEPCNENT: Yes.

--- EXHIBRIT NO. 8: Announcement by the Ismaili Leaders'

International Forum, the Council for
Canada and the Taricah and Religious
Education Board for Canada to be

read in all Jamatkhannas

BY MR. GRAY:

322. Q. Do you recognize that?
A Yes.
323. Q. Aand was that announcement actually

read out?

A. It was read out in Nairobi, where I

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY ETREET, SUITE 500, TORONTO: ONTARIO, MEK 1H6
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324,

325,

326,

327,

328.

329.
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was.

Q. Right. And it was read out...is it
yvour understanding that it was read out in Nairobi,
Kenya and Canada?

A. It was. I believe it was read out
in all the countries, but I cannot know that.

Q. Right. 8o, who are the Ismaili
Leaders' International Forum?

. That is a body of mostly president
of council of varicus countries, the Aga Khan

council in various countries.

Q. Right. And how many of them are
there?

A. I wouldn't know. Probably two
dozen.

Q. Two dozen. So, 247

A, I wouldn't really know the exact
number.

Q. But it is something, as far as you

know, around 247

A. That is probably it, two dozen.

Q. So, would you agree with me that the
Ismaili Leaders' International Focrum believes that
the publication of the Farmans by you is not

authorized?

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, BUITE 900, TORONTDO, ONTARIA, MSK 1 HS&
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A. I don't believe there was a meeting
of the Leaders' International Forum to ask the
opinion of all these leaders sitting there.

Q. I didn't ask you that. I asked you
if it is your belief that the International Leaders'
Forum had understood that this matter, that these
publications were unauthorized?

A. You will have to ask them.

Q. They published an anncuncement in
all the Jamatkhannas...now, can I call them...what
should I call them that would ke helpful for the
reporter? Shall I call them Jamatkhannas?

A. Yes.

Q. S50, the announcement was made to all
of the Jamatkhannas, right? These are the
essentially meeting halls, prayer halls where the
Ismailis assemble?

A. Yes.

Q. And this announcement was made on
behalf of all of the Ismaili Leaders' International
Forum?

A. It says for Ismaili Leaders'
International Forum, Council for Canada and Tarioah
and Religioug Education Board for Canada.

Q. Right.

ERNST & YOI LUNGE TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARIO, M3K 1HG
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A. That is an awful lot of people.
Q. Right, there is an awful lot of
people there, and on behalf of the national

institutions; do you see that in the second

paragraph?
A. Yes.
Q. Right?
A. In fact, our constitution has

separated all these institutions, so it is always
surprising to see something like that, that this is

an announcement by more than one institution.

Q. So, the whole of all of the
institutions?

Al You know it cannot happen...

Q. They all ganged up against you?

A. So many people...obviously, they

have not been consulted.

Q. They have ganged up against you, all
of them?

A, No, this is an announcement which
has been sent prcbably by Dr. Sachedina, "Please
read that, in Jamatkhannas". As simple as that.

Q. He has the authority, on his own, to
send an announcement to all the Jamatkhannas, to the

whole world, on his own?

ERNST & YOLNG TOAWER, 222 BAY BTREET, EUITE 900, TORONTQ, ONTARID, MS5K 1THE
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A. If Dr. Sachedina sends an
anncuncement, nobody will question him.

Q. He has the complete authority to
send an announcement to the whole of the
Jamatkhannas in the whole world on his own. Is that
your evidence?

A, He has portrayed to the institution
that he is the boss.

Q. I didn't ask you that. I said, dces
he have the authority, on his own, to send te all of
the Jamatkhannas in the world an announcement, on

his own, without consulting anyone else?

A, He doesn't, but he dces.
Q. He does not have that authority?
A. But he does do it, and people follow

him. It is not...I am not the only one to fear him.
Everybody fear him. He is quite a strong person who

has a lot of influence.

Q. And who appoints the...8hafik
Sachedina®?

A The Aga Khan appoints him.

Q. Can the Aga Khan fire him at will?

A I believe he will.

Q. Yes. The Aga Khan can fire him...he

serves, if I can use the expression, at the pleasure
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of the Aga Khan, His Highness, does he not?

A, Like all the Ismailis.

Q. Like all the Ismailis, they serve at
the pleasure of His Highness?

A. M'hmm,

Q. His Highness appoints them. His

Highness can remove them whenever he wants?

A. True.

Q. Every one of the institutiomal
leaders. ..

A, True.

Q. ...the presidents of the national
councils. ..

A, True.

Q. ...8hafik Sachedina...

A, Yes.

Q. ...they gerve at the pleasure of His
Highness?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, just for clarification, and for

the record, in Exhibit 8, the first paragraph says:
", ..You may be aware that a veclume under
the name of "Kalam-e Imam-e Zamam',
purporting to contain the texts of the

Farmans and Talikas..."

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SUITE $00, TORONTG, ONTARIC, MSK 1HS
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This is which exhibit?

Sorry, the Exhibit 8, the

Ckay.

We are still on the announcement

Okay.

...January 1léth.
which paragraph?
The first paragraph.
Okay.

I will read it again:

...Jamat may be aware that a vclume under

the name of 'Kalam-e Imam-¢& Zamam',

purporting to contain the texts of the

Farmans and Talikas of our beloved Mawlana

Hazar Imam, is presently being advertised

for sale by way of the Internet and other

media..."

Now, is there any doubt that that is referring to

A.
354. Q.
anncouncement?
A,
385. Q.
of...
A,
356. Q.
A.
357. Q.
A.
358. Q.
"
your book?
A,
Imam-e Zamam",
35%9. Q.

A,

It is referring to the "Kalam-e

the. ..

Right, the so-called Golden Edition?

Yes.

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY ETREET, 8UITE 900, TQRONTS, QNTARIO, M5K 1 H&
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360. Q. The Golden Edition is the same
thing?
A, Yes,
361. Q. The book that you have published?
A. That is the Golden Edition.
362. Q. Right, okay. Now, I understand that
following this, a second announcement was made to
the Jamatkhannas. I am showing you a copy of what I
understand to be that announcement, dated April
15...
Al Exhibit 987?
363. MR. GRAY: It would be Exhibit 9.
--- EXHIBIT NO. 9: Second announcement of the Ismaili

Leaders' International Forum, dated

April 15, 2010

BY MR. GRAY:

364. Q. Can you identify that as an
announcement made by the Ismaili Leaders'
International Forum to the Jamatkhannas?

A. Yes.

365, Q. and so this was on or about April

15, 2010, read to all of the prayer halls at

Jamatkhannas?

ERNET & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TARONTAO, GNTARIO, MSK 1 HE&
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A. Yeg, around that date. I think it
wag read the previous day in Canada, the next day in
Nairobi.

0. Sco, again, the whole
international...the Leaders' International Forum,
that is what the LIF is, right? The Leaders’
International Forum?

A, Yes.

Q. Those are the leaders cf the
Ismaili...can I call it religion, Ismaili religion?

A, Yes.

Q. Ismaili religion. They are the
leaders of the Ismaili religion, and the Naticnal
Council. BAll of them have issued this announcement,
in the Jamatkhannas worldwide?

A. I would say it is not all of them.
When a corporation gets an announcement ocut, it is
not everybody who is involved. Maybe one person has

drawn this, and sends it to be read.

Q. Okay, one person...
A. How can I know?
Q. But circulated it around to the

ingtitutions, to go...
A, Yes.

Q. ...through the procedure, right?
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A. Yes, circulated all over the place.

Q. Before it was read, it would have
been circulated around te the institutional leaders
to review.

. I am not sure. How can I know? I
am not part of them, so I don't know what 1s the
procedure there.

Q. I= it conceivable to you that His
Highness would not have been aware of the reading of
this announcement?

A. Yes, it is conceivable. There are

announcements every Friday, every important days...

Q. Does the announcement...
A, ...there are so many of them.
Q. Does the announcement not refer to

the letter? Let me just read to you...lock down on
page 1 of Exhibit 9, do you see a quotation there at
the bcttom?

A. Yes.

Q. Is that not a quotation from the
letter of January 247

A. Yes, there are quotations from these
forged letters.

Q. Right. So, there is a quotation

there from the so-called forged letter, the letter

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, CINTARIG, MEK 1HM&
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of January 24th?

A, Yes.

Q. And further down, there is another
quote from the letter of February 187

A, Yes.

Q. Right. And there is a statement
further down that the Imam added the words in his
own hand at the end of the quotation?

A. Yes, which I questicned.

Q. Right. I understand you questicned
it. But the fact is the communication is being sent
to the whole Ismaili Jamatkhannas, queting from
those letters, and suggesting that those letters are
authentic; is that correct?

A. It is correct.

Q. So, someone has manipulated the
whole Ismaili institution to circulate erroneous
letters?

A, You can see how much damage this
letter can do to me, and that was the purpose, and
the purpose was fulfilled.

Q. Aand that was done by the authority
of one person?

A. It can be done by the authority...

Q. One perscn, right?
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A. Yes, because the organization is
like a pyramid.
Q. And you expect us to believe that

the Aga Khan, His Highness, did not know about these

announcements?

A. The Aga Khan did not authorize these
announcements.

Q. I didn't ask you that. Does the Aga

Khan know about these announcements?

A, He may have known sometime down the
line. I don't know. How can I know? This is a
hypothetical question. How can I know...

Q. But he may have known about these
announcements. You will accept that?

A. He may have. He may nct have. How
can I know? We have to ask him. He is the only cne
who can say.

Q. Now, you will agree with me again
that i1f this announcement, Exhibit 9, is genuine,
that it also reiterates, again, that you do not have
the consent of His Highness to publish the books

that you are publishing?

A. An anncuncement cannot bind me.
Q. Okay.
A. A letter, yes. If the letters are
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authentic, they can...but announcementsg there are
all the time.

Q. The announcement confirms the
letters that alsc indicate that His Highness has

withdrawn his consent?

A, It depends how you read the
announcement .

Q. The announcement is gquoting from the
letters?

A. This is what I am saying. If the

letters are authentic, then the letters are binding

to me.
Q. Right.
A But not an announcement.
Q. They just confirmed these letters.

That is my submission. I am showing you an
affirmation, sworn April 12th, 2010 (sic). Do you
recognize that?
A. Yes.
MR. GRAY: Mark this as the next
exhibit, 10, sworn May 12, 2010, whenever I
say that...so, Exhibit 10 is an affirmation
sworn, at least on its face sworn by His
Highness Aga Khan on April 12th, 2010

{sic) .
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EXHIBIT NO. 10: Affirmation sworn by His Highness

Aga Khan dated May 12, 2010

BY MR. GRAY:
3194. Q. You will agree with me about that?
A, Thisg is what it looks like.

395, Q. Yes. And this is something that you
received from me?

A. Yes, I received an e-mail from you
with this particular...

396. Q. Now, will you agree with me that if
this is an accurate affirmation, it clearly
expresses the wish of His Highness that your
publication cease?

A. If the Aga Khan tells me he has
gsigned this paper, I will cease the publication.

357. Q. But if it is accurate, whether or
not he tells you he signed it, if it is accurate,
then that ends the matter, right? He has indicated
clearly here that he hasn't consented?

A. If he tells me face to face, yes, I
will accept.

398. Q. But you agree with me already that

CRNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SUITE SO0, TORONTAQ, ONTARIO, MSK tHE&
WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.COM (416} 380A-6117 INFO@VICTORYVERBATIM.EOM

if he gives you a clear indication imn writing, which

you understand or believe to ke from the Aga Khan,
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vou will stop doing it?

A. At this point, anything in writing
will be questioned.

Q. You will question anything in
writing?

A. Yes, because there are so many
forgeries in this file that I will not accept a
letter.

Q. You won't accept a single thing that
comes from the Aga Khan in writing?

A. Not in contradiction teo what the
instruction he has given.

Q. So, no matter what it says in
writing, you won't accept it? No matter how many
times he writes to you? No matter how many
pecple. ..

a. If the Aga Khan writes to me, it has
to be proven that he is the one, because up to now,
in thig file, there is not even one that I can see
which is in the Aga Khan's style, his real
signature. The content is always questionable, and
I understand, you are not familiar with the Aga
Khan's way, but I have been studying it for 30
years. The Ismaili knows, this kind of letter are

never written by the Aga Khan.
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Q. If T got 50 pecple who swore that
they saw the Aga Khan sign the thing telling you to
stop, you wouldn't accept that?

A, If the Aga Khan tells me, vyes, I
will stop.

Q. No, I am telling you, if you got in
writing, from 50 different people, that they had
seen the Aga Khan sign a document saying that he did
not consent, you wouldn't accept that?

A. Mr. Gray, you can bring me a million
people. Because the Aga Khan has given the
instruction to me, he is the only one who can tell
me these instructions are no longer valid. No other
people can tell me that.

Q. No perscn, but...yes, I understand
that, but what I am suggesting to you is, if the Aga
Khan tells you in writing not to do it, you won't
accept it, even if a million people confirm that
that is the Aga Xhan's writing?

a, Even if ten million people, because
that is not the point. It is beside the point.

Q. And yet you have not...do you see
the...you understand that this was sworn in front cf
a notary in Massachusetts, Jennifer Colman?

A. I don't know. I don't think so.
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Q. You don't think so? You see the

affidavit of Jennifer Colman filed in these

proceedings?
A. Yes.
Q. And you are not cross-examining her.

You are not asking to cross-examine her?

A. No, because this letter, the content
cannot be from the Aga Xhan.

Q. So, you refuse to believe that it is
from the Aga Khan, even if a notary public has
appeared?

A, Even if there was no expert, to me,
it is so evident that this is not from the Aga Khan.

Q. So, you haven't asked him. 2And what

about Mr. Gleascon? Are you aware of Mr. Gleason?

A, I am aware of him.

Q. Did you lock him up on the Internet?
A, I didn't, because I 4did not need to.
Q. You didn't lock him up? You are not

aware of his credentials?

A I am sure he is a very credible
person, and he could have sworn the Aga Khan instead
of some notary.

Q. Okay. So, he is a credible person,

and he could have...but he was there, wasn't he? He

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SLITE 200, TORONTG, ONTARIO, MSK THG&
WWW.VICTORYVERBPATIM.COM (416} 360-6117 INFO@VIGTORYVERBATIM.COM
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says he was there in his affidavit.

A, He says he was there, but today, you
know, with the identity theft, so many things can
happen.

Q. Right, but you are not choosing to
cross-examine him to find out whether he...

A. There is no need. What is important
is the signature is not from the Aga Khan. Why
would I ever bother wasting my time?

Q. Well...

A And the content is nct from the Aga
Khan. He doesn't write like that. Come on.

Q. So, you don't want to examine Mr.
Gleason tc see if there was somebody who locked like
the Aga Khan appeared? You don't want to ask him...

3. There is no need for that. I was
not there.

Q. You are not going to show him a
picture of the Aga Khan, and say, "Was the Aga Khan
there? Is this the perscn you saw?"

A, 1 would not do that, because this
would be meaningless. If the Aga Khan has made this
lawsuit, let him come and say for one minute,

"Nagib, stop", and I will stop. There is no need

for this Gleason and notary, letters, and he would
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not even need someone to forge his signature if he
was behind this.

Q. What if the Aga Khan dcoesn’'t want to
see you, because you have asserted forgery? Has
that ever occurred to you that he might not want to
see gomeone who is asserting forgery against all of
his employees, and against his secretariat, and
against the secretariat of Prince Amyn? Hag that
not occurred to you that he might not want to see
you for that reason?

A. Mr. Gray, I think he would ke wvery
happy to see me, because I am trying to protect his
interests, not mine. And there is no accusation
against the Aga Khan. I have never insulted him.

Q. And what about the precedent of
giving an interview or an audience with somebody who
is asserting criminal activities on behalf of his
own staff? What about that precedent? Do you think
that is a good precedent for him?

A. Well, I would not comment to you.
You know, in North America, there are enough cases
of corporation where people on the top have been
betraying the shareholders, so let's not go into
this, please.

Q. So, it is a privilege to have an
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audience with the Aga Khan, isn't it?

A. It ig a privilege for anyone, but
this is not the purpose. I am not looking for an
audience for an audience. I have written, in the
beginning of January, I need an audience to get
instruction.

Q. Have you ever had an audience with

the Aga Khan?

A. No. Yes. I have gone to Mehmani.
Q. You went to Mehmani?

A, Yes, it was a long time ago.

Q. When was that?

A. 1978,

Q. And at that Mehmani in 1978, did you

present the fruit and nuts to him?
A. I think there were more than fruit
and nuts. There was a rosary, and there were a few

other things.

Q. Right, right, okay. So, you had a
Mehmani?
A, I had a Mehmani.
How long did that Mehmani last in
19787
A. A few seconds.
Q. A few seconds, okay. So, other than

ERNST & YOLUNEB TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, BUITE 900, TORONTD, GNTARIO, MSK THE
WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.COM (414} 380-6117 INFO@VICTORYVERBATIM.EOM
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that, you haven't had any audience with His
Highness?

I have never tried to...

A

Q. No.

A. ...up to January 4th.

Q. Yes, now you have been trying since
January 4 to have an audience with him?

A. Yes.

Q. Yes. 8o, you didn't check out Mr.
Gleason's credentials? You said he wasa credible?

A, I don't know. I have not checked
it. I teld you I have not checked it.

Q. And you don't think it is worthwhile
to ask him whether the person he met locked like the
Aga Khan, to show him a picture of the Aga Khan, to
understand the circumstances...

3. What purpose can it serve when do I
know that this content and the zignature is not from
the Aga Khan?

Q. Yes, I guess that is true. If 10
million people won't ceonvince you, then...

A, Let's not...

Q. ...what is one mere lawyer
convincing you?

A, I object to this questiocn.
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Q. So, finally, you were...perhaps not
quite in chronolegical corder, you were sued or

purportedly sued by His Highness?

Al Yes.

Q The Aga Khan, is that right?

A, Yes, I like your smile, yes.

Q Yes. I am showing you a copy of the

Statement of Claim. We don't need to mark that as
an exhibit. You were sued by a Statement of Claim
in the Federal Court T-514-10, dated April &, 201072

A. Yes.

Q. And that Statement cf Claim purports
to be from His Highness?

A. Yes, it does.

Q. And if it is not from His Highness,
I have essentially committed a fraud on the court,
haven't I?

a. I don't know. I am net a lawyer; I
am sorry.

Q. I have produced evidence to you,
that you don't believe that I represent His
Highness, Aga Khan. If, in fact, I am not
representing His Highness, I am committing a fraud
on the court, aren't I?

A. I am not geing to reply te this.
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Q. But you agree with me that if,
indeed, the Statement of Claim does come from His
Highness, that it also says you are not authorized
to publish the materials that you have published?

A, If the Statement of Claim comes from
the Aga Khan, as you say, it is sc degrading to the
Aga Khan that these...it doesn't really take hold in
my brain.

Q. well. ..

A, This is completely against the tenet
of faith of Ismailism. It is completely against
the...anyway, I don't want to...

Q. But you were sgaying that it is
degrading to the Aga Khan. That is something, I
believe, that to me, sounds awfully defamatory, but
nevertheless, that is your words. Nevertheless, if
the Statement of Claim comes from the Aga Khan, it
also tells you that you are not authorized, and do
net have his consent to publish these books?

A. If the Aga Khan tells me, I will
accept.

Q. 8o, in effect, really, there are a
lot of people involved who either are duped or
confused or in a conspiracy, are there not? Shafik

Sachedina, obviously he is the main cne in your
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mind. Michelle Parkes Anne-Valerie Moreaux,
Genevieve...

A. I will not reply to this questiocn,
because this is not what I am saying.

Q. But these people...

A. You have made a statement that there
are so many people involved in this, and I am saying
thig is not what I have said.

Q. But the International Leaders Forum
have published an announcement, and all the national
institutiocns. ..

A. I told you, the International
Leaders Forum when there is an announcement, it just
takes one person.

Q. And Prince Hussain's secretariat,
Prince Hussain himself...

A. Prince Amymn.

Q. ...Prince Amyn and Prince Hussain,

or his staff.

A. Why Prince Hussain?

Q. Because. ..

A. You have to explain to me the
question.

Q. Well, Prince Hussain gave the book

to the Aga Khan...
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1 A. Yes.

2 449. Q. ...and you are telling me that the
3 Aga Khan did get the book...

a A. Yes.

5 450. Q. ...and that somehow, now, having

6 received the book, and the lawsuit having occurred,
9 and the announcement by the International Leaders

8 Forum having occurred twice, and two letters having

¢ been gent to you purportedly from the Aga Khan, and
10 purporting to have been forged, and you have now

11 asserted widely that they are forged, it has been

12 widely circulated, and you are telling me that the
13 Aga Khan, His Highness, would not step forward to

14 stop this, if, in fact, he had not authorized it?

15 A. I would tell you exactly the same

16 thing, if he was behind this case. For sure, he

17 would step in to stop this case. He would tell me,
18 "Nagib, stop. I don't want you to print, and T will
13 say there is no need for a lawsuit".

20 451. Q. So...

20 A I will stop...

22 452. Q- ...notwithstanding all the

23 circulation, and you know the Aga Khan has your book
24 now, you believe that...

25 A. I am sure he is very happy.

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORAQNTO, ONTARID, MSK 1 H&
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Q. He is so happy that he is sitting
back, and allowing this whcle thing to continue,
which he knows about, you say he knows about...

A, Yes.

Q. He is letting the whole thing
continue, because he just enjoys watching this whole
proceeding occur, and he really doesn't want you to
stop selling the books?

A. Mr. Gray, when two of your child are
disputing among themselves, you don't enjoy looking
at them. Sometimes, you wait before intervening.
You have to understand this relation we have with
the Imam, else you cannot understand this lawsuit,
these announcements. This is really fundamental.
If you don't understand the relation between me and
my Imam, it will be very difficult for you to even
ask questions.

Q. It is common for the Imam toc give
advice in writing to his followers, is it not?

A, It happens, vyes.

Q. It happens. He often gives advice
in writing to his followers?

A. Yes, he does.

Q. Right, and his followers write to

him, and have, in fact, a right to write to him and
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ask for advice?
A, Yes.
Q. Aand if, in fact, the Imam could not

deal with matters in writing, the whole system would

collapse?
A, I agree.
Q. You agree?
A Yes.,
Q. Ckay. Now, there came a time when

His Highness did visit Toronto recently, right?

A. He did, vyes.

Q. And he came to Ottawa, and then he
came to Toronto?

2. Yes.

Q. And met with the Prime Minister, and
you requested to see him, right?

A. Yes. I wrote to you.

Q. You wrote to me, and you requested
to see him, and I agreed, and you put that in
evidence that I agreed you could see him, if you
agreed to consent to the ending of thig lawsuit; is

that right?

A. This is right; you had
preconditions.
Q. Right, okay.

ERNST & YOUNE TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 9400, TORONTD, ONTARIO, M5K 1HG
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A. Which were completely against what
the Imam's instructions were to me.
465. Q. Well, can I show you a copy of an

e-mail I sent to you on May 24th (sic)?

a. I have received this e-mail.

466, Q You received this e-mail?
A. Yes.

467 . Q Do you recognize that?
A, Yes.

468. MR. GRAY: So, we will mark that as the
next exhibit. We are going to mark it on
the back. 11.

--- EXHIBIT NO. 11: E-mail from Brian Gray to Nagib

Tajdin dated May 14, 2010
469. MR. GRAY: Technically, it is a

settlement offer I made, but you have put
it in your evidence in your other motion.
Off the recoxrd for a second.

- DISCUSSION OFF THE RECORD

BY ME. GRAY:

470. Q. So, you have put this settlement

EANST & YOUNG TOWER, 22% BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARIO, M3K 1 HS
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offer on the record in your other motion, haven't
you?
A. Mr. Gray, a follower doesn't do

settlement with his Imam.

Q. Right.
A. It can't happen.
Q. So, when I offered to have you have

a meeting with the Imam after you agreed to settle

the matter, the case?

A. You wanted me to sign some
precondition. ..

Q. Right.

A. ...which were against my faith.

Q. That is why the meeting didn't take

place, because you didn't agree to that, right?

A. That is your point of view.

Q. Right?

A. I don't believe in that.

Q. Yes, you don't believe, because you

think I don't represent the Aga Khan?

A. I don't believe that the Imam will
refuse a two-minute meeting which can avoid te him a
lawsuit.

Q. But you have indicated in your

response that I don't represent the Aga Khan, and I
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didn't have access to the Aga Khan; is that right?

A. I will not reply

Q. That is what you

to that.

have said in

your...shall I find the materials where you say

that?

A. Gray, whatever 1

have written is

there. If you will read me the passage, I will tell

you, yes.

We will find that at the break.

A. That is fine.
Q. And it will show

gaid that I den't have access to

you that you have

the Aga Khan.

A. Yes, I hope with the context.

Q. I am showing you a picture, a
photegraph.

A, Yes?

Q. Do you recognize anybody in that
photograph?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Who do you recognize there?

A The Aga Khan.

Q. That is the Aga Khan?

A Yes, it is the...

o] Who ie that next to...do you

recognize me there, next to the Aga Khan?

ERNGT & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, BUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MSK TH&
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489.

490.

451.

492.

493,

494 .

pooo® o P

Q.
photograph?

A.
Maki?

Q.

A.

Mchamed Manji.

Q.
Khan there?

A.

.
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Yes.

Does that look like me?
Yes.

Brian Gray?

Yes.

Do you recognize anybody else in the

I think...is that not the architect

That is the architect, yes.

And I think from the bhack, I see

You see Mohamed Manji behind the Aga

Yes.

He is the president of the Ismaili

Council for Canada?

A.
Q.
bottom?

A

Yes.

and you see the person at the

This is the foundation ceremony of

the Jamatkhana Museum, right?

Q.
A.

Q.

Yes.
Yes.

and you see the other person at the

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 PAY B8TREEY, SUITE 500, TORONTO, ONTARIG, M2K 1H&
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left there; do you know who that is?
y- Who is the other person on the left?
Q. The Aga Khan's right, to the left of

the photograph.

A, Aga Xhan's right.
Q. To the left, next to the architect.
A, There is a lady. I am not sure
who. ..
Q. Yeg, I can tell you that is Bev 0Oda,

the Minister of International Cooperation?

A. Yes, yes.

Q. Do you recognize her now?

A. Yeg, I recognize her.

Q. Ckay. So, I am standing next to the
Aga Khan. ..

A, Yes.

Q, ...at the foundation ceremony; am I
not?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay.

A There are so many pictures of so

many people like that. I collect them.
Q. You collect them?

A. If you should not mind, I would like

to get a copy.

ERMNET & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TOROMNTO, ONTARICO, MSK 1 HE&
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Q. You can have a copy. I will give
you a copy right now.

A, Thank you.

Q. There you go, here is a copy. Now,
how do you explain that, if I have not spoken with

the Aga Khan, or have access to him?

2. Mr. Gray, I can produce you so many
pecple...

Q. Sorry?

A, I can produce so many people who are

in photographs with the Aga Khan who have not spoken
to him.

I see.

It doesn't mean anything. Come on.

It means nothing?

»oo0 rE 0

on that occasion, so many pictures
were taken, probably a couple of thousand.

Q. Okay.

A, So many people wanted to have a
photograph with the Aga Khan.

Q. So, along with the ten million
people that won't convince you, a photograph is not
going to convince you?

A, A photograph where you stand near

the Aga Khan, I could have been standing there. So

ERNST & YOUNRE TDWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, GNTARIO, MSK 1Ha&
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what?
MR. GRAY: Qkay. Can we mark that as
the next exhibit? HNuwmber 12. It is a
photograph of Brian Gray, the Aga Khan, Bev
Oda and an umnamed architect.

THE DEEPONENT: Maki.

EXHIBIT NO. 12: Photograph of Brian Gray, the Aga

Khan, Bev 0Oda, Mr. Maki at the

Foundatiocn ceremcny of the Aga Khan

BY MR. GRAY:

511.

512,

513.

514.

515.

Museum
Q. Maki?
A. Yes.
Q. Yes, Mr. Maki, at the foundation

ceremony of the Aga Khan...

A Museum, Jamatkhana.

Q. ...Museum in Toreonto.

A. He is the architect cof the museum.
Q. Okay. It was taken around May...at

the time of the ceremony in May of 20107

A. Yes, end of May.
Q. End of May?
A. Yes.

ERNST & YOUNGA TOWER, 222 BAY ETREET, BUITE 902, TARONTO, ONTARIO, MEK 1THG
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I 1 516. Q. Did you try te bring your books to

2 show to the Aga Khan while he was in Toronto?
I 3 A. No.
I 4 517. Q. Did you go to the hotel, and the

5 Royal York, where he was, to try and give him the
I 6 bocks?

7 A. No. I went to the hotel, but not to
I B try to give him the bock.
I 5 518. Q. Did you try to meet him at the

1o hotel?
I 11 A, I haven't tried to meet him. I was

1z standing there with other Ismailis to see him.
l 12 51%. Q. You were in the hotel?
I 14 . And if he would have called me, I

15 would have gone.
I 16 520. Q. But you were in the hotel lobby?

17 A. I was in the hotel lobby, and I was
I 18 in the hotel lobby the previous time when he came,
l 13 the previous of the previous time also.

20 521. Q. Did you follow him around the world,
l 21 trying to see him?

22 A, I go around the world because I have
I 23 a website. I take pictures. I take photos.

24 Sometimes he 1s there for a day, two days.
I 25 Sometimes we are very close. I could talk to him,
1

ERNST & YQUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SLITE 90, TARONTO, ONTARIO, M5K 1H&
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but I don't do these things. We have a code of
conduct that tells that we cannot approach the Imam

unless he accepts.

522. Q. A1l right. You follow him around,
but you don't speak to him in the...
A. Never. Never.

523. MR. GRAY: Off the record.
.- DISCUSSION OFF THE RECORD

BY MR. GRAY:

524, Q. So, let's go back to 1992, now, this

famous Mehmani occasion?
A. Yes.

525. Q. So, I take it that you printed the
book, and received your first volume of it on August
the 14th, 199%2; is that right?

A. Yes.

526. Q. and did you seek guidance in writing

from His Highness, before having the books printed?
A, No, there was no time for that.

527. Q. Okay. And did you seek guidance in
writing from His Highness' advisor before it had
been printed?

A. No. Why would I ask from the

ERNET & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, 8UITE 200, TRRONTE, ONTARIO, MSK THE
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advisors?

Q. T am just asking you the gquestion.
Just answer it, please. In fact, the day before you
received one volume of your books, and you gave it

te this Mr. Karim Alibhay?

A. No, I received several cartons.
Q. Right, but it was of one volume.
A, It was cne volume, yes.

Q. Okay. Second volume had not been

printed yet?

A. Yes.

Q. So, you gave cne copy of it to Mr.
Alibhay?

A. Yes.

Q. And did you tell any of His

Highness' advisors, or anyone at the leadership,
that you were going to be presenting at the Mehmani?

A Not at all.

Q. No. So, you didn't tell anyone; you
just put it...you gave it to Mr. Alibhay, and he
sort of snuck it in there?

A. What do you mean "snuck it”"?

Q. Well, you didn't tell anybody. You
just gave it to him, and...

A. A Mehmani is a perscnal thing. We

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MBK 1H&
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don't have to tell anyone.

Q. It is personal to Mr. Alibhay?

A. Mr. Alibhay was part of the group
which prepared...

Q. and it is pexsonal to him. If it is
personal to him, then what does it have to do with
you?

A, well, it has to de in the sense that
when Mehmani's people take for other people, the
question of other people, their friend, their
family, they take other people's letter, book,
everything.

0. So, in that sense, it wasn't

perscnal? From your point of view, it was...

A, From my point of view, it was
personal.,

0. It was personal to Mr. Alibhay?

A. It was perscnal to me also, because

he went for me...he went there to ask gquestions on
my behalf. So, it was pexsonal to me.

Q. Did he mention you when he was at
the Mehmani?

A. It was not needed, because the
content of the book was the main thing. It was for

Imam, and he was part of the group which prepared

ERNST & YOUNO TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 940, TORONTD, ONTARIO, MEX 1THS
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that boock.

Q. I gee. So, he didn't mention vyou,
but he brought the book himself there?

A Yes.

Q. And he put the book...I take it this
plate of fruit and nuts is given by the leadership
to each individual person who is going to
participate in the Mehmani?

A, Yes, most of the time, this is how
it occurs.

Right.

A. Sometimes, people bring their own
thing.

Right, but in general, the pecple...

A. In general, they get it there, and
then they would put, for example, their wedding ring
there, or some rosary or other things on top.

Q. Right, okay. And so, he brought
this thing without telling anybody, except you, 1
suppose?

A. Yes.

Q. and he put the book on the plate of
fruit and nuts, and presented it at the...

A. Yes.

Q. ...ceremony? Did His Highness take

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE SO0, TORDNTO, ONTARIO, MSK 1HS
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the boock away to examine it?

A, No.

0. In fact, right now, he doesn't have
the book, because Mr. Alibhay has it as a treasured
possession?

A. I can tell you he has copies of
those books.

Q. Well, I didn't ask you that. I
asked you, right now...

A, No, that one is with Mr. Alibhay.

Q. The bock was put on the fruit and
nut plate, presented to His Highness...

A, You are right; it is with Mr.
Alibhay.

Q. He put his hand on the book, the
book went away...

A, Yes.

Q. ...with Mr. Alibhay; that was the

events, right?

A, And this is how it is supposed to
be.

Q. Right, ckay. You didn't open the
book?

A. The title said, for Imam, volume 1.

Yes, he just put his hand on it.

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 2Z2 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORUNTA, DNTARIO, MSK THGE
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I 1 A. After locking at it, yes.
2 554 . Q. So, after the Mehmani, did you write
. 3 to His Highmess confirming what you were doing,
I 2 pursuant to his..
5 A. No, it would hawve been an insult.
I 5 555. Q. It would have been an insult? Okay.
7 S50
I 8 A. Once you have an instructiom, you
I ¢ follow.
10 556. Q. So, you didn't write to him and tell
I 1 him what you were doing? No?
12 A, It was not needed.
l 13 557. Q. Okay. You didn’'t send him
I 14 personally a copy of the books and say, "Pursuant to
15 the blessing that Mr. Alibhay got in the Mehmani, T
I 1% am publishing these bocks, and here is a copy"?
17 A. There was no need for it.
I 13 558. Q. Okay.
I 13 A, Once the Imam has said, you
20 continue, we will continue up to the end.
I 2t 553, Q. Qkay. But you didn't de it, as a
22 matter of fact?
I 23 A. What, tc write to the Imam? No,
I 24 send him a book.
25 560. Q. Okay. Now, you agree with me that
1
l ERNET & YOUNMNE TOWER, 222 BAaY STREET, S8UITE 900, TARONTAO, ONTARIO, MSK 1HS&
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1 Mr. Sachedina has no power to consent to the

2 publication of Farmans?

3 A. I agree.

4 561. Q. You agree with that, ckay. But you
5 also agree with me that Mr. Sachedina does speak to
6 His Highness from time to time?

7 A, I am sure he does.

8 562. Q. and he does convey messages from His

Highness to you? For instance, he conveyed messages

w

12 about blessings for your family, right?

11 A, Yes, he did.

2 563, Q. So, he does speak to His Highness?
13 A, I am not denying it.

14 564. Q. and fairly often, probably?

15 A. Probably.

16 BE5. Q. I am showing you a copy of what I
17 understand to be the current constitutional that
12 Shia Imami...

19 A. Imami Ismaili.

20 566. Q. Imami Ismaili Muslims?

21 _ A. Yes.

2z 5&7. Q. Is that...can you look at that for a
23 minute, and confirm that that is...

24 A. Which year is this one? I don't
25 know. 1998. Qkay, yes?

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 WAY RTREET, SUITE 900, TORONTQ, CNTARIO, MEK 1THS
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Q Is that the current one?

A. Yes.

Q This is the current constitution?

A Yes.

MR. GRAY: Yes? Can we mark that as the

next exhibit? 13. 8o, Exhibit 12 is a

copy of the Constitution of the Shia Imami

Ismaili Muslims.

BY MR. GRAY:

571.

572.

573.

574,

575.

ERNST & YOUNDG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SUtTE 900, TARONTO, ONTARIO, MBK THE&
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the first cover?

A.

Q.

© » 0 p O P

13

EXHIBIT NO. :

Copy of Comstitution of Shia Imami

Ismaili Muslimse (Current Edition)}

Now, it was amended, I take it,

In Lisbon.

Sorry?

In Lisbon, Portugal.
In Lisbon in 19987
Yes.

That is what it is showing right on

Yes, 1t does.

But it was substantially amended and

primarily in the form that it exists now, after the

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 192 of 536



n

~1

w

12

11

1z

15

1

17

is

13

20

21

22

23

25

V VICTORY VERBATIM

576.

577.

578,

579.

580.

581.

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 90R, TARDNTO, ONTARID, M5K 1HG
WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.COM (41 &) 360-G&117 INFO@VIETORYVERBATIM.COM

N. Tajdin - 98

amendment of 1986 in Geneva?

A. There was a small amendment. I am
not sure which one. Even the 1938 amendment was
just the editing of the...institution.

Q. Right, the 1998 amendment is a small
amendment adding that...the part at the beginning.

A, From 1986 to 1998, there were not

many major changes.

Q. would you take a look at Article 147
A Yes.

Q. Has Article 14 changed since 19867
A No.

Q So, that is...the Article 14 is the

way it has been since 19867

a. Yes.

Q. Aand I am referring you to Article
14.1(c)?

A. Yes?

Q. And (c) says:

", . .Without the permission in writing of
the National Council cobtained through the
regional council..."
Have you ever requested the permission of the
National Council under that article?

A, I didn't have to.
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Q. I didn't ask you that. I just asked
you, did you ever request the permission in writing
of the National Council?

A. No, because I had consent from the
Tmam.

Q. Okay. &and I take it you never
asked...just to be specific, you didn't ask the
permission in writing of the National Council to
print or publish or circulate any material that is
on behalf of, in the name of, or relating to Mawlana
Hazar Imam, the plaintiff?

A, I don't believe it talks of Hazar
Imam.

Q. I didn't ask you that, either. I

asked you if you ever asked for the permission in

writing...
A. No.
Q. ...to print or publish any material?
A. No, I don't recall.
Q. Ckay. Can we turn, now, to the book

in question? And this is the so-called Golden
Edition?

A, Yes.

Q. The cover page is Exhibit A to your

first affidavit?
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A, Yes.

Q. Sorry, I will take it back. The
Golden Edition. Sorry, it is Exhibit C to your
first affidavit?

A, M'hmm.

Q. This is the book that is the subject

of the current lawsuit?

A. It is.

Q. And when was this book first
printed?

A, On 13 December 2009.

Q. Okay. And where was it printed?

A. In Canada.

Q. Where in Canada?

A, I will not tell you for now.

Q. You will not tell me, okay. Do you

know what province it was printed in? You won't

tell me that, either?

A, Not now. Maybe later.
Q. why is that? Are you ashamed of it?
A. Not at all. ©Not at all. But I have

seen so much haragsment to all the people related to
this book that I will refrain from giving any names.
Q. Okay. So, how many of these books

were printed?

August 2010 Cross-examinations Pag'e 195 of 536

/R

/R



m

~1

wa

10

1l

12

15

14

15

16

17

12

12

20

22

V VIETORY VERBATIM

596.

597.

598.

599.

600.

60l.

602.

603,

N. Tajdin - 101

A I think it is irrelevant. /R

Q. You think it is irrelevant?

A. Yes.

Q. So, you are not going to tell me?

A. Net niow.

Q. Okay.

A. I will think about it.

Q. I see., Okay. BAnd where were they
distributed?

A, They were distributed primarily in
Canada.

Q. Okay. And how were they
distributed?

A. Either through people I know.

Usually, we were getting some requests by e-mail,
and I was directing to the pecple whe I had some
stock with them.

Q. Was it advertised on the Internet?

A. It was advertised, vyes. It was a
pamphlet of one page with a photo of the book.

Q. I am showing you what I believe to

copy from the ismaili.net website?

A, Yes.
Q. Do you recognize that?
A. Yes, that is the one.

ERNST & YOUND TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, BUITE 900, TARDNTG, INTARIO, MSK 1THS
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604. MR. GRAY: Right. Can we mark that as

the next exhibit, 147

--- EXHIBIT NO. 14: Printout from ismaili.net
advertisement for The Golden Edition
of "Kalam-e Imam-e Zaman"

BY MR. GRAY:

605, Q. This is an advertisement for The

Golden Edition of the "Kalam-e Imam-e Zaman", right?

A Yes.
606. Q. And it is advertised on the
Internet?
A. Yes.
607. . For sale?
A. Well, it is a posting. You can see

it is a posting, right?
608. Q. And you distributed this to people

you know?

A. Yes.
609. Q. Or who requested it by e-mail?
A. I distributed it to people I know,

and those were requested by e-mail...
610. Q. Right.
A. ...most of them, I knew them, and

those I did not, I asked the distributor, the people

ERNET & YOUNG TOWER, 22% BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TARONTH, ONTARIO, MBK THG
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who had some bocks, if they knew them to check them

out...

Q. Okay.

A. ...and give them if they were
Ismailis.

Q. So, the people who printed them

would be in a position to know whether they were
Ismailis or not?
4. The people who printed them did not

send them.

Q. Ckay. Who sent them?

a, I sent themnm.

Q. You sent them?

A. Yes.,

Q. What about Mr. Jiwa? Did he send
them?

A, Well, I sent some to Mr. Jiwa. Not

many. And he told me he was distributing to other

Ismailis.

Q. All right. Wwhat was the selling
price?

A. Fifty dollars.

Q. What was the printing price?

A. Are you talking of cost?

Q. Yes.
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It ig not relevant. /R
Sorry?

It is not relevant.

Not relevant, okay.

Not at this point.

© ¥ o p oo

You are refusing te answer?

A, Yes, at this point, we deon't have to
discuss this.

Q. All right. Now, the audio bookmark,

where did that come from?

A. That came from overseas,
Q. It came from overseas. Where
overseas?
A, That, I will not tell you for now. /R
Q. Okay. And who recorded the
speeches?
a. Who recorded? I don't know. They

are circulating in the Ismaili community. There are
gsome of 1957, when I was just born. There are some
of. ..

Q. Where did you get them from?

A. These recordings circulate all the
time with all the Ismailis. There is nothing
gpecial in that.

Q. Sort of an underground. ..
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a. It is not an underground. All the
Ismailis will give Farmans to all the Ismailis.
This is why I told you in the beginning: Unless you
understand the relation between the Imam and the
followers, it is difficult.

Q. So, why does the book not identify a
publisher? You agree with me the boock doesn’'t

identify a publisher?

A. Yes, I agree with you.
Q. Okay. Why does it not identify it?
A, Because this is the way it should be

with Farmans books. Farmans are Farmans of the
Imam. It would be presumptucus for wme to write my
name on a book like that. It would be like I am
trying to tell people, "You see this Farmans book?
I have done it. I have compiled it". You have to
be humble in service.

Q. But not the editor; I am not talking
about the editor. I am talking about the publisher.
It doesn't identify who published the book, does it?

A. No, it doesn't, and it is...

Q. Do you understand what I mean by
"published", the persons circulating the book?

A. I am not sure if publisher means

circulating. I have published. That means I have
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633.

634.

635,

636.
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connected with the printer. I have made sure this

is the way the book...

Q. And you distributed copies?

A. And I have distributed ccpies.

Q. and normally, bocks identify the
publisher?

A. In Farmans books, rarely. Farmans

bocks, rarely.

Q. The only Farmans books there are are
the bocks that you have done?

A, No, I disagree. There are other
Farmans boocks in circulation. There have always
been, in many languages...

Q. You are talking about the ones from
19527

A. Not at all. I am talking of books
published last year or the year before, five years
ago, ten years agce. So many bocks are in
circulation.

Q. Would vyou...there is nc evidence of

any of that?

A, Yes, there is.
Q. Well...
A, Yes, there is. Would you like me to

find some for you?
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637. Q. No, we will consult with our client.
A. Okay.
638. Q. What about the money that you

received; what did you do with it? How much money

did you receive?

A. I will not tell you that.
639. Q. 2nd what happened to the money?
a. T will not tell you anything about
this aspect. It is not part of the motion.
€40. Q. I see. You have pleaded that you
gave the money away. You are not going to tell me
what you did with it?
A. No. It is not relevant to the
motion.
641, Q. You are not going to produce, I
guess, an accounting of any money you received?
a. Not at this point. It is not
needed.
€42. Q. And how about the receipt of any
funds from the distribution; you are not going to
tell me that, either?
A. That is not something I will tell
you now.
643. Q. I am showing you a copy of a Whois
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recognize that?

A. Yes, that is a website I have
registered.
644 . Q. Qkay. 8o, this is a record of who

is respconsible for the website, ismaili.net?
A. This is the record of who registered
the name.
645. MR. GRAY: Let's mark that as the next
exhibit, which will be 15.

THE DEPONENT: Fifteen.

-—- EXHIBIT NQ. 15: Copy of ismaili.net Whois Record

BY MR. GRAY:

646. Q. And so, is that you...that is you
who registered ismaili.net?
A. Yes, I did.
647. 0. And you are still responsible as
the administrative contact for that website?
A. Yeg, I am still the administrative
contact.
648 . Q. and you are actually the editor and
publisher of the website, are you not?
A. Yes, I am.

649. Q. All right.
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A. Well, I am one of the...

Q. You are still the editor of the
website?

. Yes.

Q. Right?

A, Yes.

Q. And the things that are published on

the website, you review and edit?

A. Not always, there are other peoples.
Now there are so many members, and they have
permission.

Q. You permit them to be placed on the
website as the editor?

A, Yes. You know, for 15 years, this
hag been going on, and rarely, it happens that
people put their things which are unwanted, which I
remove sometimes.

Q. Looking at the expert reports that
you have produced, the evidence of Ms. Pettinati...I
think it is Pettinati, right? Ms. Carlson and Mr.
Ospreay?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you asked any of these people
to examine whether the January 24 letter and the

February 18 letter and the May 12 letter or
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affirmation were written by the same person?

A, That is not a question I have asked.
Q. You have not asked them?
A. No. It was not important.

Important was, did the Aga Khan write them or not?

Q. Right. And you haven't checked to
see 1f they were all written by the same person?

A. No, I don't know if they are written
all by the same person. I would believe go, but I
don't have any proof for now.

Q. You provided instructions te Ms.

Pettinati, which included measurements, acccerding to

her?
A, Yes.
Q. Can you produce those?
A. I have an e-mail with Pettinati,

which I can bring you. I have in a letter here, in
Toronto. So, I will print it for you.

Q. Okay. 8o, will you produce the
instructions you gave to Ms. Pettinati, concerning

the measurements you made?

A, The e-mail about the measurement?
Q Yes.

A I will forward you the e-mail.

Q Okay. &and did you give her other
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instructions about the repocrt?

A. What do you mean by that?

Q. Did you give her instructions as to
what you wanted her to do, when she was preparing
her report?

A, Not at all.

Q. You didn't. You gave her
measurements, but no instructions?

A. No. In fact, what happened is that
I gsent her the letter, and I sent her some authentic
signatures, and she said, "I have to make sure", I
think, something like that, "of the relative
measurement of the height of the letter", or
something like that. That is an e-mail I...I will
send you the e-mail, and it will be clear for you.

Q. Yeg, and I would like all of the
e-mails that you sent to her concerning your
instructions to prepare the report. Okay?

A. Yes.

Q. And the game with respect to Wendy
Carlson, any e-mail instructions you have given to
her, and the same with respect to Mr. Ospreay, any
materials or e-mail...

4, No, Mr. Ospreay, I haven't sent him

by e-mail. I met him, and I gave him...
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Q. well, whatever you have, just so the
record is clear.

A. I don't have an e-mail with Mr.
Ospreay.

Q. All right. And Ms. Carlson, who is
in Texas, I presume, you have e-mailed hex?

A. Yes,

0. I would like to see those
instructions. And you already refused to produce
the things you gave them, and I am asking you again
to produce those.

A. I will give you the photocopies.

Q. I don't want the photocopies. I
have already got the photocopies. Okay. You are
going to give me the...

A, I can't give you the original,
becaugse most of the originals have been returned to
the people they belong to. I have to get them; it
is a long process.

Q. So, you don't even have the
originals now anymore?

A. Well, I can get them, but I don't
want to give you. These are very precious things.
You know, to get them once is a difficult thing. To

get them twice is even more difficult, and to get
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them three times from the same persons...

672. MR. GRAY: I will take the photocopies
of the complete document, if that is all
you are going to give me, but I am still
requesting the originals. Can I take a

break? I may be finished.
--- A BRIEF RECESS

NAGIB TAJDIN, resumed

CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. GRAY:

673. Q. Se, I just have one more question,
because you referred to the squabble that the Aga
Khan was witnessing between his children; do you
remember that?

A, Yeg, I remember.

674, Q. Do I understand, then, that it is
your information that the Aga Khan is aware of the
lawsuit?

A. I don't have any information
directly from him.

675. Q. You think he is aware of the
lawsuit?

A. I think he should, by this time, be

aware of the lawsuit.
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676. Q. Yes, right. BAnd you saw the picture
of me standing next to the Aga Khan?
A. Yes, I saw it.
677. Q. Aand you don't think I discussed the
lawsuit with him? I am his lawyer.
A. Well, I will not reply to that.
678. MR. GRAY: Ckay. Subject to the
questions you have agreed to answer, and
our pursuit of any refusals, we have no

further questions.
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REPORTER'S NOTE:

Please be advised that any undertakings, objections, under advisements
and refusals are provided as a service to all counsel, for their guidance
only, and do not purport to be legally binding or necessarily accurate and
are not binding upon Victory Verbatim Reporting Services Inc.

1 hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and accurate transcription of
the above noted proceedings held before me on the 9TH DAY OF
AUGUST, 2010 and taken to the best of my skill, ability and
understanding.

Certified Correct:

Anthony Ng
Verbatim Reporter
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A, Jiwa - 3

ALNAZ JIWA, sworn

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. GRAY:

1.

Q. Mr. Jiwa, would you just state your
name for the record?

A. Alnaz Jiwa. J-I-W-A, first name
Alnaz, A-L-N-A-2.

Q. And you have sworn twe affidavits in
this proceeding on June 16th, 2010 and July 1é6th
20102

A. Yes, I have.

Q. And you were here this morning while
Mr. Tajdin was being cross-examined?

A. Yes.

Q. and you heard the...in fact, I think
you participated in my discussion about the evidence
and the material that has been filed on both your
motion for summary judgment and Mr. Tajdin's motion
for summary judgment and the plaintiff's motion for
summary judgment?

A. Yes.

Q. Anid you agree with that, the way we
will use the evidence?

A, Yes, I do.

Q. All right. And also, you heard the

discussion about the names of the plaintiff, His
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12.
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2. Jiwa - 4

Highness Prince Karim Aga Khan?

AL Yes, I did.

Q. And you agree also with that, that
the names that Mr. Tajdin and I referred to are the
names representing the plaintiff?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, Mr. Jiwa, have you ever written
to His Highness asking for permission to publish the
Farmans?

A. No, I have not.

Q. Have you ever written to any of the
leadership asking for permission to publish Farmans?

A. No, I have not.

Q. So, are you relying on any consent
that you have received, other than the consent

referred to by Mr. Tajdin?

A, I am relying on implied consent.

Q. You are relying on the consent from
19827

A, That as well, yes. And an implied
consent.

Q. Where ig that implied?

D, Tmplied consent is the fact that,

according to the Imam's Farmans, he expects us to

disseminate knowledge and he has said repeatedly
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

A. Jiwa - 5
that the Farmans he makes is made for the Jamats.

Q. So, I take it from vyour word
"implied” that you have no explicit consent?

A. Personally, no, I don't.

Q. And there is no explicit consent
contained in the materials?

A. Which materials?

Q. Well, in the so-called the Farmans
or in the Farmans or anything else. There is not
explicit consent?

a. The Imam has said it. I have quoted
in my affidavit that he has quoted from my Jamats.

Q. So, a general...you believe 1t 1s a
general consent to circulate information?

A. Yes.

Q. That is what you are relying on?

A. Yes. Even when he comes to give us

audience, he tells us at the end, "Take my blessings

to your families, to your Jamats".

Q. That is what vou are relying on?
A. and the blessings are the Farmans.
Q. So, that is the basgis you are

relying on the...
A. That is one of the basis, yes.

Q. Well, are there any other basis?
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You said you didn't ask for consent and you never
received explicit consent. And now you have told me

about the implied consent. Is there any other

basis?
A. In texrms of the distributien?
Q. Yes.
A. Well, our Ginans, we have got a

third category other than Farmans. We have got what
is known as Ginans. And Ginans are all the
guidances that have been given to us by our Pirs.

Q. By your who?

A, By Pirs. And Pirs also tell us that
we have to cbey the Farmans. We have to also
disseminate knowledge. We have to encourage all of
the Ismailis to follow the Farmans.

Q. Who has written the Pirs?

A, They are Pirs. Like our Imam, His
Highness, he is an Imam as well as a Pir. &o he is
holding two positions. He is holding the position
of a Pir...

Q. So, this is the Imam who has issued
the Pirs?

A, dorry, Imam right now holds the
position of a Pir as well as an Imam. So he has got

two positions that he is holding.
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A, Jiwa - 7

Q. Right.

A. Up to the time of Sultan Mohammed
dhah there used to be a geparate Pir and a separate
Imam. And now from the time of Sultan Mohaumed
Shah's time the Pir and the Imam have merged into
one persor.

Q. Okay.

A. 8o, Pirs are also entities that we
are expected to follow.

Q. Right. I don't really want a
history. Just answer this question: Are you relying
on a written document giving you consent?

A. The Ginans are written.

Q. Can you produce that document, the
written document you say gives you consent?

A, There are over a million verses of
Ginans.

Q. A million verses. Can you produce
ten of those ones that indicate a consent to publish
the books that you are publishing?

A. No, it is not saying to publish
books. It is saying the Farmans that are given by
the Imams are for the Jamats and vyou...like, we are
told that we must encourage other fellow Ismailis.

In fact, Sultan Mohammed Shah has also teld us
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30.

31.

32.

33.

34,

35.

A. Jiwa - 8

convert Ismailis into true Ismailis and so they
expect us to, sort of, be a missicnary. Each
Ismaili is expected to tell everybody else to follow
the Farmans.

Q. But the Pirs do not give explicit
permission to publish the books. You just said
that.

A. You know what. ..

Q. Yes or no: Do they give explicit
permission to publish the books...

A. They tell us to disseminate the
Farmans. And thus we are really not publishing, but
disseminating Farmans.

Q. They give you permission to print

and distribute copies...

A. No.

Q. ...of the Farmans?

A. No. They tell us to disseminate
Farmans.

Q. So they den't say that?

A. Don't say what?

Q. They do not give you permission to

print and distribute copies?
A. They did not tell us how to

distribute. They tell us to distribute.

EANST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 200, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MSK THS
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A, Jiwa - 9

Q. Okay, well, if you have any explicit
consent or permission to publish any of these books,
T would like you to produce it.

A. I didn't say that they told us to
publish books. I said...and I want you to pay
attention teo what I am saying, because you keep on
repeating to publishing bocks. I am not saying
anywhere that the issue ig publishing bocks. What T
am saying is we are expected to
distribute/disseminate knowledge and part of the
knowledge is the Imams' and the Pirs' knowledge that
has been given to us, to disseminate that. Now,
they have never told us how to disseminate.

You know, in the past, people memorize the
Farmans, the Koran as well as the Ginans by heart.
Today, with our modern life, it is hard for us to
memorize them. There were millions of people wha
actually remember every verse, every word of the
Koran and they recite it. Nowadays, we don't do
that. So, Pirs have not said how to disseminate.
They told us to disseminate.

Q. Okay. Well, in the absence of you
producing anything, I am going to assume it doesn't
exist. I have asked you to produce it and I will

ask you again to produce it. If you don't have it,

ERNST & YOUNE TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 00, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MSK 1 H&
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A. Jiwa - 10

I will assume it deesn't exist.

A, The question you are asking is
whether they said to publish books.

Q. I want you to produce the specific
information you are relying on.

A. I am not relying on...I told you,
and you keep on repeating back. Your question to me
is if there is anything that says publish books.
Indeed, in those times books were not even
available.

Q. Serry, just answer my question. I
have asked you to produce the specific paper you are
relying on. Either produce it or don't produce it,
but that is all I want.

A. All right.

Q. Now, if Mr. Tajdin tells you to
stop, I take it you will stop. If Mr. Tajdin is
satisfied that the publication should cease, Yyou
will stop as well?

A, I am obligated to follow my faith as
T see fit and as I understand from the Farmans and
the Ginans and the Koran that is given to us.

Tajdin is a piece of the puzzle. He is not the
puzzle. He cannot direct me what to do, what not to

do.
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: 41. Q. So, if Mr. Tajdin receives

2 instructiona from the Imam to stop, but vou don't,

[N}

you won't stop?

3 A, If Mr. Tajdin stopped, the problem

5 that would happen is I wculd not have access to the
5 Farmans to distribute. My access point primarily...
7 42. Q. Your access is entirely through Mr.

8 Tajdin?

E A. I would say 99 percent is Mr.

1c Tajdin. I have got other people who supply Farmans

1 to me as well. But I am more confident in Mr.

1z Tajdin's transcription and accuracy, SO...

13 43, Q. So, as a practical matter, 1f Mr.
14 Tajdin is told to stop by the Imam and by His

13 Highness and does stop. ..

15 A, My source would be dry.

27 44, Q. ...then your source of supply of

18 Imams dries up?

18 A. For Farmans would be dried up, ves.
20 45, Q. Okay. I am showing you a copy of
21 Exhibit 13, which I understand you have a copy still
22 there from this morning.

23 A, Yes.

24 46. Q. and can you identify that as the

25 Constitution of the Shia Imami Ismaili Muslims?

ERNST & YOUNE TOWER, 222 BAY ETREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARIO, M5K 1HSB
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A. Jiwa - 12

A. This is part of the constitution.
Our constitution consists of two parts; the
constitution and the rules and regulations for each
country.

47. Q. Right.

3. The 1986 constitution that was
distributed in Canada had within that document the
constitution as well as rules and regulations. This
is just the constituticn. The rules and regulations
are still embodied in the 1986 constitution.

48. Q. Okay. And can you produce the rules

and regulations for me?

A. I can, yes.
49. MR. GRAY: Let's go off the record for a
second.

---  DISCUSSION OFF THE RECORD

BY MR, GRAY:

50. 0. You consent to...you are satisfied
to continue to identify this as Exhibit 13 to Mr.
Tajdin's cross-examination?

A. Yes.
51. Q. Agside from the rules and

requlations, which are, I presume, made under the

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 200, TORONTO, DNTARIO, M5K 1HSE
WWW.VICTORYYERBDATIM.COM {a16) 360-8117 INFO@VIGTORYVERBATIM.COM
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A. Jiwa - 13

. constitution?

A. Yes.

L8]

1

52. Q. And they are presumably regquired to
4 be consistent with the constitution?
5 A. Yes. Prior to 1986, each country

has separate constitution or is sometimes is...but

il

7 at this time, the constitution has become cne, but
8 rules and requlations are for each country based on
9 their own rules.

1¢ 53. Q. And they have to be...just like

11 regulations made under statutes, they have to be

1z consigtent with the constitution.

14 54 . Q. and can you confirm, then, you have
15 also heard the discussion this morning the 1986

15 constitution is...and this constitution here,

17 Exhibit 13, is the current form of the constitution?
-8 A. I believe this 1s the current one,
19 ves.

0 55. Q. and in regards to Article 14, that
21 has remained unchanged since 19867

22 . Yes.

23 56. Q. and in respect particularly to

24 article 14.1(c), have you ever asked for permissicn

25 in writing of the National Council obtained through

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ANTARIO, MSK TH&
WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.COM t416) 3&60-8117 INFOEVICTORYVERBATIM.COM

I 13 A Yes. Yes.
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57.
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59.

60.
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62.

A. Jiwa - 14

the regional councils to print or publish or

¢irculate any waterial?

A. I don't need the council's
permission.
Q. I didn't ask you that, Mr. Jiwa. I

asked you if you ever...

A. No, because you are...
Q. Please answer the question.
A, You are referring to 14.1(c), so if

you are going to refer to 14.1(c) then I am going to
say I don't need their permission.

Q. Well. ..

A So if you want to ask me without
referring to the 14.1l(c), then you can ask me
without referring to that and I have already
answered you earlier that I did not.

Q. Right, so...

A. If you are going to ask me
pertaining to this, then I den't need consent...

Q. That isn't the question I asked you.
I asked you if...

a. You are referring me to 14.1.

Q. I asked you if you ever asked for
permission in writing of the Natiomal Council

obtained through the regional council to print or

FRMNET & YOLUNG TOWER, 222 8AY BETREET, SUITE 200, TORONTE, ONTARIO, MSK 1HE
WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.COM (418) 260-a117 INFOE@VICTORYYERBATIM.COM
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63.
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65.
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67.

68.

A. Jiwa - 15

publish or circulate any material: Yes or no?

A, You already asked me earlier, and I
said no.

Q. And so the answer is no?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, you heard the cross-examination

of Mr. Tajdin this morning; right? You were here,

A, Yesg.

Q. Do you have any doubt in your mind
that His Highness knows about this lawsuit?

L. Well, vyou know, I suspect that he
does know of it now. I suspect that, yes. But

whether I know, I cannct say that.

Q. You think he does know about it now?
A, I think he does know.
Q. and is it your position that His

Highness has not authorized this lawsuit?

A, My position is that he has not
authorized. In the alternative, if he has
authorized, he has authorized because he has been
misled.

Q. Well, okay, that is a different
matter. He may have been migled, in your view, but
he has authorized the lawsuit?

A. I don't know. He could have. I

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 00, TORONTO, ONTARICO, MSK 1THE
WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.OOM 418) 360-6117 INFO@VICTORYVERBATIM.COM
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L. Jiwa - 16

have no knowledge of that. I am denying at the

moment that he has authorized this.

Q. Sorry?

A, I am denying...

Q. You are denying at the moment?

A. Yes, that he has authorized this.
Q. You are aware that there is a

procedure in the Superior Court for a person, a

lawyer, to identify his retainer?

A, Yes.

Q. You are aware <f that?

A. Yes.

Q. And you haven't done that, have you?

You haven't asked me to identify my retainer?

A. No, I haven't.

Q. Right. BAnd you are aware that...you
are a lawyer. How long have you been a lawyer in

Ontaric now?

A, Thirteen years now.

Q. Thirteen?

A. Yes.

Q. And it is a serious matter to

misrepresent to the court you represent someboedy you
don't represent, isn't it?

A. It ig a serious matter, yes. Of
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A, Jiwa - 17

course.

77. Q. It would be, essentially, a fraud on
the court for me to actually represent that I have
instructions from a plaintiff to start an action on
behalf of a plaintiff when I don't have them, isn't
it?

A. T would assume it would be, ves.

78. Q. ves. And, in fact, the whole court
system would ground to a halt if one couldn't rely
on lawyers, as officers of the court, to
specifically...to represent to the court accurately

and truthfully?

A, True.
79, Q. and I am an officer of the court, am
I not?
A. True.
80. Q. As you are as well.
A Yes.
81. Q. and yet you still assert that, in
fact, the plaintiff hasn't authorized this lawsuit.
A. I am asserting two grounds. One is
that he has not auvthorized. ©Or if he has done, he
has done it on misgiving evidence.
82. Q. He has been misinformed by Shafik?

A, Yes.

ERNST & YOUNEG TOWER, 222 BAY ETREET, SUITE 900, TORONTH, ONTARIG, MEK 1HG
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A. Jiwa - 18

Q. Sachedina.

A. I would assume Shafik...

Q. Or someone else?

A. ...is the primary. I suspect Shafik

could be Mohamed Manji...

Q. That is the real crux of it, isn't
jt? You both think that the...His Highness has been
misinformed and ia getting false information. Isn't
that your real concern?

A, Yes, it is. And I know that he does
get wmisinformed and misled by people.

Q. But not that he hasn't authorized
the lawsuit?

A, You know, everything that points to
right now seems to be contrary to the 1,400 years of
cur history. Other Imams in the past have been
misled, they have been killed as well by
people...his own wives have killed him, his own
family have usurped his power. So it is not
something that has never happened before. It has
happened in the past. I know perscnally that we
have been misled into saying that Imam has said this
when he has not said this.

Q. S0 he is sitting in an ivory tower

surrounded by people who are insulating him from the

ERNET & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 200, TORONTE, ONTARIO, MSK 1HGE
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A, Jiwa - 19

truth; is that what you are suggesting?

A, No.
88, Q. No?
A, That, as well, I know of at least

one incident where a major event toock place in our
community, although he was informed of it he kept
quiet. Tt was a very serious matter, but ke kept
quiet. Soc it deoesn't mean that simply because he
keeps quiet, it doesn't say that things don't...he
doesn't get misled. Even if he knows of it, he
often...

89. MR. GRAY: Off the record.

--- DISCUSSION OFF THE RECORD

BY MR. GRAY:
90, Q. T am showing you what was Exhibit 10
to Mr. Tajdin's cross-examination. I am giving you

the original. You remember that? The affirmation.

A. Yes, I do.
91. Q. You have seen that before?
A. Yes, I have.
92. Q. Right. You can keep it for the

moment. And do you see that Aga Khan apparently

appeared...sorry, this is not what I wanted to show

ERANBT & YOUNG TOWER,; 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORMONTD, ONTARIO, MSK 1HG&
WWW.VICTRRYVERBATIM.COM I418) 3&60-6117 INFO@VICTARYVERBATIM.COM
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A. Jiwa - 20

you. You are aware of this affirmation?
A Yes.

93. Q. You are aware that Ms. Colman swore
it. And you are aware that Mr. Gleason was there at
the time?

A. Yes, I have seen his affidavit.

94, Q. You have seen his affidavit. His
affidavit is...his affidavit is contained at tab 5
of the Plaintiff's Motion Record.

A. Tab 4.

85. Q. The affidavit is contained at tab 5
of the Motion Record of the Plaintiff for summary
judgment.

A. Yes.

96. MR. GRAY: And maybe just for this
record, we can produce that and mark it as
an exhibit. we will mark it as Exhibit 1,
I suppose, to your cross-examination.

THE DEPONENT: Okay .

--- EXHIBIT NO. 1: Affidavit of Documents of Daniel J.

Gleason sworn June 1, 2010

BY MR. GRAY:

97. Q. Now, do you have that affidavit in

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTR, ONTARIO, MSK 1HG
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A, Jiwa - 21

front of you?

A, Yes.

Q. Do you see that Mr. Gleason, who 1s
a lawyer in the firm of Nutter McClennen, says that
he met the Aga Khan in the Mandarin Oriental in
Boston?

A, I have read his affidavit.

Q. oOkay. B2nd do you see at paragraph 4
he says the Aga Khan says he...he assured Mr.
Gleason that he had read it and he understood 1its

contents and was prepared to sign?

A. That is what he says, yes.

Q. Do you think he is lying?

a. Lying about what?

Q. Do you think he is lying about what

he just said there, that he saw the Aga Khan, His
Highness...that the Aga Khan had said to him that he
had read the affidavit, he understood its contents

and was prepared to sign?

A. Actually, I don't read it that way.
Q. You don't read it that way?
A. I don't read it that way. His

affidavit is there, so...

Q. You don't read it that way? He

says:
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108.
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A, Jiwa - 22

n . ,We next presented the three coplies of
the affirmation to His Highness, who
assured us, after he had read it, that he

understoed its contents and was prepared Lo

sign..."

a. His affidavit says what he did.
Q. 8o you think he is lying?

A. Well, he could be mistakern.

Q. He is mistaken. He is mistaken

that...what is he mistaken abeout, that His
Highness. ..

A. This is his affidavit. That is your
evidence. He give you evidence. I don't need to
confirm your evidence.

Q. I know you deon't. I am just asking
you to explain it.

A, I am opposing his evidence. We have
given a responding affidavit to this, sc...he way be
lying, he may be mistaken.

Q. You are suggesting he is surrounded
by people who are giving him misinformation.

A, Yes.

Q. Right? So, it says here that he
was...he read the affidavit, understood its contents

and was prepared to sign. And do you see paragraph
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A. Jiwa - 223

v . .Other than His Highness' personal

assistant, who did not participate in the

meeting itself, no one else was present..."
Dc you see that?

A. Yes. You know what? He says what
he says. I don't need to accept what he says.

Q. You have to accept that Mr.
Sachedina. ..

A, Listen, I Have told you that he
could be mistaken.

Q. and in what way is he mistaken?

A. I don't need to answer that. He
could be mistaken. You have got his affidavit. You
are relying on his affidavit. You make your
argqument as you want.

Q. I know, but I am interested in your
understanding. You said he is mistaken and I would
like to know how he is mistaken. Is he mistaken

because the person that he saw was not the Aga Khan?

A That could be, yes.

Q. Scmebody in an Aga Khan mask or
something?

A, No.

Q. Wasg he somebody imperscnating the

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 200, TORONTD, ONTARIO, MSK 1HS&
WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.EOM {t418&) 360-6117 INFO@VIETORYVERBATIM.COM
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114.

115.
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A, Jiwa - 24

Aga Khan?

A. It could be somebody with a fa-se
passport.

Q. Somebody with a false passport?

A. It is possible, ves.

Q. You think that is vossible?

A. It is possible, of course.

Q. Wouldn't it be reasonable...

A, You know what, sir? I think yocu are

well aware that there is a lot of identity fraud
that goes on. There are a lot of people, even in my
own office...I don't know if you are aware of this
or not, but December, 2007, I, along with another 14
or 15 lawyers, were subject of...victims of fraud in
our office. We were given false IDs and the Law
Society since then has been sending reports or
warnings to all lawyers across Ontario. It is alsc
happening in B.C. And after that, there have been
three more fraud attacks on lawyers with false IDs.
So these things do happen.

Q. Wouldn't it be reasonable to ask Mr.
Gleason what he saw? Wouldn't it be reasonable to
ask him about the passport?

A. Listen, Counsel, you conduct your

litigation the way you want. We will conduct the

ERNST & YOUNGE TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, DNTARIQ, M5K THE&
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118.

119.

120.
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A, Jiwa - 25

way we want; all right? You have decided you will
not cross-examine him. You have given us your
evidence. We have given our evidence and we will go
and make an argument. You can make an argument. I
don't need to confirm this affidavit.

Q. No, but I understand you were just
saying he was mistaken and I want to know in what
respect you think he is mistaken.

A. I already told you it could be
identity fraud.

Q. A fake person that appeared.

A. You said "mask". I didn't say that.
That is up to you to say. 8o you can make your
submigssions as you want.

Q. But as a lawyer, you are familiar
with affidavits and sworn statements?

A. So you don't need to tell me that.

Q. You are familiar with affidavits and
sworn statements?

A. Of course I am. I told you I am a
13 year lawyer. I know what affidavits are, I know
what affirmation is. But I have given you my
answer. You can make those submissions in argument
to the court as you want. I have already answered

my questions.
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A, Jiwa - 26

1 122. Q. Well, is it your evidence that you

won't accept...the Aga Khan has not consented that

(%]

[}

the Aga Khan has not authorized this lawsuit unless

a you gpeak with him in person? Is that your

5 evidence?

5 A, My evidence...you know what? T

7 don't need to speak to him in person. I don't need

8 to speak with him in person. He has, despite the
3 evidence to the contrary, he has very simple ways of
‘0 dealing with these issues. And that leads me to

.- believe that, you know, he is not behind this

12 litigation.

13 123. Q. But you don't need to speak to him
14 in person.

1% A. I don't need to...

16 124. Q. and so you would accept something in
13 writing?

18 A. Writing at this moment is becoming
19 difficult to accept. But I have told you that he

20 has got quite a few...at least two other

21 alternatives to stop this stuff or stop the

22 publication of Farmans and he has chosen not to do
23 sc. That leads me to believe that he is not behind
24 this.

25 125, Q. But if we got another affidavit from
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126,

127.

128.

129,

A. Jiwa - 27

another person that had seen the Aga Khan, would
that convince you?

A. Listen, you can do what you want to
do. I won't tell you how to conduct your
litigation, sir. You don't tell me how to conduct
my defence or what evidence I put in or who to
cross-examine. I have told you my position. You
have given your evidence as you have.

Q. You saw the photograph of me

standing next to the Aga Khan? Did you see that

photograph?

A. I have seen the photograph.

Q. You think I did not speak tc the Aga
Khan?

a. You know what? I will not answer

that question. You give your evidence if you want
to. Put in an affidavit and we can cross-examine
you. Right now you have not given any evidence.
You are just counsel.

Q. The whele...if I gave evidence, then
you would question that of another lawyer, wouldn't
you? A lawyer has given evidence. Mr. Gleason has
given evidence.

A. Ligten, the announcements...

Q. Aand you questioned Mr. Gleason. He

ERMET & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TDRI::NTI:I, ANTARIO, MSK 1HE&
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130.

131.

132,

A. Jiwa - 28

has given evidence, hasn't he?

A. Mr. Gray, I have been a keen
follower of His Highness Prince Karim Aga Khan
and...not only him, Sultan Mochammed Shah right back
to...right to the prophets. I have read a lot of
history. B&And for me to make judgments...I mean, if
you tell me that, you know, if another affidavit
comes in, for me to make judgment, I know my Imam
how he works, how he operates. Right now, to me,
all of this stuff seems odd. They are inconsistent
with the constitution. They are inconsistent with
the Farmans that he has made. They are inconsistent
with our coral tradition of 1,400 years. So I have a
hard time believing and accepting.

Q- I understand you have a hard time
believing. I think we understand that.

A. Yes,

Q. But, nevertheless, you would
accept...you understand that affidavits are often
accepted by lawyers everywhere all over the world?

A. and I think you are aware that false
affidavits are being filed here and there. It does
happen.

Q. I..

A, Excuse me. Courts also routinely
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A, Jiwa - 29

get defrauded by pecple.
133. Q. and you are suggesting that is what
I am doing.
A, No, I am not suggesting. I am

saying I am not satisfied.

134. Q. Now, did you leook up Mr. Gleason's
biography?
A. I did, yes.
135. Q. You looked him up on the Internet?
A. Yes, I did.
136. Q. I am showing you a copy of his

Internet biography. Is that the biography that you

have seen?

A. Yes, I have.

137. MR. GRAY: We will mark that as the next
exhibit.

--- EXHIBIT NO. 2: Biography of Daniel J. Gleason

BY MR. GRAY:

138. Q. Can you give me some indication of a

motivation why Mr. Gleason would lie?
A. Lawyers get duped by clients every
now and then. I think you can look at cases. You

can lock up reports. If you just look up the Law
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139.

140.

141.

142.
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A. Jiwa - 30

Society's fraud website, you will be able to see in
Ontaric about 30, 40 lawyers have been defrauded,
essentially based on false ID. Law Society has
changed its rules for even doing real estate
transactions based on fraud that has been
perpetrated. I don't believe that those lawyers are
committing fraud. They are victims of fraud.

Q. I am showing you the two
announcements that we referred to this morning that
were made to the JamatKhanas: Exhibit 8 to the
cross-examination of Mr. Tajdin this morning and
Exhibit 2.

A. Ckay.

Q. Are you aware how these

announcements become approved for circulation in the

JamatXhanas?
A No.
Q. You are not. Do you know how many

leaders have to review them before they are

circulated to the JamatKhanas in any country or

worldwide?
A. No, I don't.
Q. and have you personally received

thegse anncuncements in the Canadian JamatKhanas?

A. I may have heard it.
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143, Q. Have you heard them read in the
JamatKhanas in Canada: One on January 16, which is
Exhibit 8, and the other one on April 157

A, The one on January 1léth, I believe I
was in JamatKhanas when I heard that. The April one
I was not in JamatKhanas but I subsequently learned
of that.

144. Q. But you subsequently learned it was
read at the JamatKhanas?

A. Yes.

145. Q. Now, turning to Exhibit C in
your...Mr. Tajdin's original affidavit, this is the
Golden Edition that you were involved in?

a. Yes.

146, Q. and have you been involved in the
printing of this book?

A, No, I have not.

147. Q. Have you been involved in the
distribution of the book?

A, Yes.

148. Q. How many of these bocks were
printed?

A. I don't know.

149. Q. How many have you distributed?

A, I think I have distributed about 80.

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TQRONTH, ONTARIO, MSK THE&
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A. Jiwa - 32

Q. Eighty?
A, Yes.
Q. And you distributed these, I take

it, by your LISTSERV?

A. No.

Q. You didn't distribute this by the
LISTSERV?

A. No. The copies that I sold...one I

mailed to Chicago. I received a persocnal e-mail

from a person that I have communicated with in the

past.

Q. QOkay.

A. The rest are all personal within the
GTA.

Q. Perscnal in the GTA, s0

you. . .friends or relatives or people you know?
A, Yes.
Q. Okay. And what about your LISTSERV,

ILM...you have a LISTSERV, ILM?

A, Yes, I do.
Q. ILM. ..
A. ILM-net, yes. It is out of

University of Manitobka.
Q. and is that something that is a

website or it is just something you send out a
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158.

159.

160.

16l.

162.

163.

164,
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A, Jiwa - 33

broadcast e-mail?

A. It is just a broadcast e-mail.

Q. And you distribute the books through
that?

A. Not this Golden Edition.

Q. Not the Golden Edition?

A. No.

Q. and some of the earlier books that

Mr. Tajdin has, you distributed through your
LISTSERV?

A. I have never distributed any through
the...other than this one bock, I never distributed
anything...well, I sent a few to wmy family in Kenya,
but other than that, I have not distributed any over
the mail.

Q. QOkay.

A. All the books that I distributed are
gtrictly persomal. Like, personal meetings, one-to-

one. I often deliver them myself.

Q. And the selling price for the book?

A, This Golden Edition is $§50.

Q. and the printing price, the cost to
you?

A. The cost to me is $50.

Q. The cost to you is $50°7?
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165.

166,

167.

le8.

169,

170.

171.

A. Jiwa - 34

A. Yes. Canadian.

Q. You don't know what the printing
price is?

A I don't know.

And when did you start doing this?

A. I think I got the first batch just
before Christmas. Because it was during the
Christmas holidays that I visited family and
I...yes, I have given them out.

Q. And are you still doing it?

a, I have been too busy lately, so I
have not done any lately.

Q. So you have stopped, then?

A, I haven't stopped, but, as I told
you, mostly I sell them to personal contacts.

Q. When is the last one you
distributed, then, or sold?

A I think I gave two copies to my
brother. He came to pick it up from me. It is

about a month. Maybe three, four, five weeks ago.

Q. Three or four or five weeks ago.
A, Yes.
Q. And before that, the two copies to

your krother; before that, when was the last one you

sold or distributed or gave away?
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172.

173.

174.

175.

176.

177.
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A. Jiwa - 35

A. Before that, after listening to
this, one of my client's family picked up, I think,
four koocks from me.

Q. And when was that?

A, I am not sure, but I think this is
around the time Haz Imam was here. Arcund May.

Q. Around the end of May?

A Yes. Mostly this time I have been
selling only to people that I have known and in
contact with. So, I normally even when my clients
come in I don't normally tell them to buy this. But
if they hear from somebody else, they might come and
ask me.

Q. And how about the audio bookmark?

Did you have any involvement in the production of

that?
A. No. I have nothing to do with
production.
Q. Nothing to do with the production.
A, Yes.
Q. And any involvement in the

collection of the audic speeches?
A. No.
Q. Why does the book not identify a

publisher; do you know?
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178.

178,

A. Jiwa - 36

A, You know, Nagib told me once...this
was way before. I actually asked him this, I said,
"You know what? There should be some contact on
there", because quite often people would tell me
they don't know...when I sent to my cousin, my first
cousin in Kenya, and sc they ask for it but I say I
normally don't ship them. I don't even I have time.
8o I told him, I said, "You should put at least cne
number or something", and he says, "Look, we are
doing thig...soc we don't..." my understanding is
Nagib is alase selling to people that he know, that
he knows at this time. So, i1t has never been, sort
of, an issue that we are going to be mass
distribution sort of.

0. Right.

A, So that was my understanding. You
know, it is just being sold...and my understanding
also is the reason that he put it into book form is
he normally was giving photocopies of it and that
was taking too much time and energy and they were
being, sort of, not placed properly at people's
homes. Loose copiles.

Q. And is that why you didn't put the
Imam's...there is an Imamat crest, isn't there?

A, Yes.
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180.

181.

182,

183.

184.

A, Jiwa - 37

Q. Right?
A. Yes.
Q. That is authorized...something that

comes from the Imam himgelf, the crest. To show you
an example of that, it is on, for instance, Exhibit
1. No, sorry, Exhibit 3.

A. Yes.

Q. Exhibit 3. There is an example on
Exhibit 3 of his Imamat's crest?

A Yes.

Q. That indicates it is authorized by
the Imam?

A. I don't know if...you know, my
knowledge is that...when I was in Kenya, a lot of
people used to use the crest even in the
advertisements. And if I am not mistaken, the
congulate once made an announcement we are not to
use this anywhere.

Q. It is in the constitution now you
can't use that crest unless authorized by the Imam;
right?

A I don't recall, but it may be.
Because I know that nobody can use that. Even if
the Imam authorizes, it is strictly used by the Imam

as his...on his planes and on his correspondence.
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A, Jiwa - 38

Q. On hig correspondence.

A, So, even in the books that are
authorized and sold in the JamatKhanas by Tarigah
Board, they don't put a crest on.

Q. So even assuming that you have the
1592 permission, you wouldn't put the crest on it?

A. No, even ITREB, they publish books
on behalf of the institution; they doen't put a crest
oIt .

Q. Do you pay Mr. Tajdin for the books?

A. I don't pay to Mr. Tajdin. I pick

them up from a local distributor here.

Q. Who is the local distributor?
A. I won't name him now. /R
Q. You won't name him now. And where

doc you...

25 Mr. Sachedina knows them.

Q. And who do you pay?

A. To him.

Q If Mr. Sachedina knows them, why
wouldn't you tell me?

A. Because most of the stuff that is
going on in the affidavits is becoming public on the

webgites. There is a new webgite that has opened

recently. So, people doc get harassed. Even I get
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192.

193.

194.

195,

196,

197.

A. Jiwa - 39

harassed. So that is the reason.

Q. I see. Well, you...

A, I haven't paid him yet. I owe him
for the S0 books...for the 96, I believe, 1 picked
up. I haven't even collected the monies, because
most of them are my family and friends.

Q. I see. 8o, 96 books, you haven't
collected the money. And of the 96, you have

digtributed 80...

A. About 80 I have distributed.
Q. So you probably have 16 left then?
A, 2About 16 or so, yes. I mean, I

haven't counted but it is in that range. I have
collected some money, but not all.

Q. 8o your evidence is you have not
sold the books over the web?

A, No.

Q. So, when I show you this...let's
see. Excuse me. I am going to show you Exhibit 14.
That is not you selling the bock con the web; that is

Ismaili.net?

A. Well, this is Ismaili.net.
Q. Right, so you have not...
A. I have no connection with

Iasmaili.net.

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTC, ONTARID, MSK 1tHES
WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.COM (41&) 3&80-5117 INFO@VICGTORYVERBATIM.COM

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 253 of 536



I V VICTORY VERBATIM
I A. Jiwa - 40
I 1 198. Q. And you haven't sold them through
2 the ILM-net?
I 3 A. Through ILM-net I put this pressure
I 2 ori as advertising, but frankly I don't have enough
5 time and I primarily have been giving it only to
I 5 family and friends.
7 199. Q. So you have put that brochure on the
l 8 ILM-net?
I 9 A. ILM-net, yes.
1¢ 200, Q. The ILM-net, you have put that
I 11 brochure on?
12 A. Yes.
l 13 201. Q. 8o you have advertised the book on
l 14 the 'net?
15 A. Yes, I have. No, not on the 'net.
I 16 You can't call it the web. ILM-net is...
17 202. Q. Through electronic e-mail
I 18 distribution, let me put it that way.
l 19 A. Let me put it this way: ILM-net is a
23 group of, if I can say, friends or Ismailis that I
l 21 admit. So you cannot become a member, even if you
22 are an Ismaili, just like this. So it is like me
I 23 sitting at home with my friends. So it ig a
I 24 restricted ILM-net.
z5 203, Q. Restricted Internet circulation;
i
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204.

205.

206.

207.

208.

A. Jiwa - 21

would that be fair?

A. Yes. I only admit them if I do;
otherwise I don't admit them. So nobody can join in
automatically.

Q. Are you involved at all in

Ismaili.net?

A, No, I am not.
0. You are not an editor of it?
A, I have nothing to do with it. I

don't even have time if I wanted to.

Q. Yes. So, when did Mr. Tajdin tell
you about the forgeries of the letters, the alleged
forgeries of the letter of January 24 or February
187

A. I don't recall the exact date, but
it was in...when he received the first letter. It
may have been the very day or the next few days is

when he told me that he had received a letter.

Q. and at that point he told you it was
a forgery?
A, I don't think at that point he told

me, but I was actually in disbelief when he tcold me
that he has received a letter.
Q. You didn't believe that His Highness

would have sent a letter telling you mot to do it?
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209.

210.

211.

212,

213.

214.
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A. Jiwa - 42

A. Yes. I was in disbelief and I said,
tvou know what? I don't believe it". The funny
thing is he didn't send me a copy of the letter.

Q. Whe ig "hen"?

A. Mr. Tajdin did not give me a copy.

He just told me that on the phone.

Q. Sc, you were in a state of disbelief
and. ..

A. I was, yes. I was.

Q. But did Mr. Tajdin tell you at that

time that the letter was a forgery?
A. You know what? I don't think he
told me the very first day. I think he teold me

maybe a few days later.

Q. A few days later.
A. A few days later.
Q. Before he had sent it to an expert.

He just knew it was a forgery?

A, Yes, before he sent it.
Q. aAandg.
aA. I suggested, I said, you

know. ..actually, Nagib told me his mother told him
that from the letters that she has, this is not
Imam's signature at all. So 1 told Nagib, I said,

“Look, when we have a situation like that, we send
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215,

21s.

217.

218.

219.

220.
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it to an expert®. So I found the two names and I
said, "Let's send it for them".

Q. And so you helped him send the
two...the letters to an expert?

A, I didn't help him gend. He sent it
straight, because even after we received the
reports, I did not see the letter.

Q. You didn't see the letter. But you
saw the reportsg?

A, I saw the reports.

Q. And did you give the experts any
instructions as to what to do?

A, No, I did not communicate with the
experts, except for one I paid for. I paid for one

of the experts.

Q. Which expert?

A I would have to look it up. One of
the two.

Q. One of the tweo, Carlson or

Petinmatti. I'm sorry, Carlson or...
A. Because, you know, Nagib's...
It was not Ospreay, though?
A Ospreay...the first two experts...
one of the two I paid. One of the two I paid.

Nagib's credit card was not going through. She was
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A, Jiwa - 44

trying to ring it through and it wouldn't be
accepted, so Nagib told me if I can pay. So then I

paid from here.

Q. So...

A I don't know. One cf the two.

Q. Petinatti or Carlson?

A, Yes.

Q. Right. ©Okay. And how many other

people did Mr. Tajdin tell about the forgeries?

A, In terms of experts?

Q. No, no, just in terms of pecple. He
told you about the forgery; right?

A I don't know. ¥You know, the person

that I buy the books from, I discuss with him.

Q. So he knew about the forgery?

A. Yes,

Q. This is the distributor of the
books?

a. This is the distributor, yes.

Q. Or the alleged forgery.

A. The alleged forgery, right.

Q. and who else did Mr. Nagib tell?

A. You know, I really don't know. I

mean, Mr. Tajdin and I, although I have known him

for almost some 20 years, but we have never been,

ERNSAT & YOUMNG TOWER, RZ22Z BAY STREET, SUITE 500, TORUGUNTG, ANTARIO, MSK 1HS
WWW.VICTORYVER®MATIM.COM (415 3608117 INFO@VICTORYVERBATIM.COM

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 258 of 536



L

oy

Rl

i1

)

20

25

V VICTORY VERBATIM

228,

230.

231.

232.

233,

234.
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236,

A, Jiwa - 45

sort of, friends. We have never visited...I have
never visited his home or he my home. We
essentially met at some seminars that...at first I
met him when he organized a seminar on our
Khojki...it is known as a Khojki script.

Q. Okay.

A. S0, we have never been in a sense
friends that I associated with. I mean, my interest
from Nagib was just to get the Farmans from him.

Q. 8o, who else did you tell about the

forgeries, then?

A. At the time it happened?
Q. Yes.
A, At the time it happened, I didn't

discuss it with anybody.

Q. ¥February, 2010.
A. I don't recall telling others.
Q. And when is the first time you told

someone else about the forgery?

A. After the litigation started.
Q After the litigatiomn.

A Yes.

Q. After what day?

A April.

Q April...

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SUITE 500, TAORONTG, ONTARIO, MSK 1H&
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237.

238.

239.

240.

241.

242,

243.

244.

245.
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A. Jiwa - 46

Whatever. It was in April. I first

Sorry?

I first told my mother.
You first told your mother.
of course.

That is sweet.

She was at my home...so I did tell

But that was after the litigatiom...
Yes.

...was started.

Yes.

Do you remember when you told her

about the forgeries?

A.

A.
started.

Q.
April.

a.

it was in April.

started,

WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.COM
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A, Jiwa - 47

Statement of Defence...

A. Yes.

Q. ...alleging the forgeries?
A. Yes.

Q. Okay.

A.

After that, I was telling everybody,
including my sister. My whole family was in shock,
cf course.

Q. This was after you filed or when you
filed the Statement of Defence?

A. Yes., Because before filing the
Statement of Defence, the issue of even the
prohibition and stuff was technically not public.
and finally it was Mr. Tajdin who sort of...I don't
even know all the distributors. I just know...

Q. The distributors all knew, and
presumably they were telling people buying the books

that...there were pecple...

A. At that time?
Q. Well, let's put it this way...
A, Before the litigation or after the

litigation? There is a big difference between the
two. Before the litigation...I am talking about
before the litigation at the moment.

Q. Yes. Right.

ERNST & YOUNGE TOWER, 222 BAY ETREET, BUITE 900, TORDNTHA, BNTARIO, MEK THE&
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252.

A. Jiwa - 48

A. Before the litigation, the only
person who knew was Mr. Tajdin. Then he told me.
and then there is this one distributor that I buy
books from. I discussed with him about this.

Q. The International Leaders Forum
igssued a caution, I will put it that way, on January
16th; right?

A, Yes,

Q. Not to buy these bocks because they
weren't authorized.

A. But at that time...I want you to
remember one thing. Especially with me, I don't
know about Mr. Tajdin, but especially with me...and
I believe it is the same with all the distributors.
although we have 15,000,000 members in the
community, not everybody cares about this stuff.
They don't. I would probably say maybe...l wouldn't
be wrong if I said 90 percent of the Jamats don't
care. They are not what you would say...l can use
the word true believers. 2aAnd I told you about
gultan Mohammed Shah having made express...I impose
a duty on you to convert Ismailis into true
Temailis. He said this to us. And initially when I
was studying about this, they expect that some of

those who believe in it try to spread the knowledge
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255,

256.
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and say, "Look, you are to believe in it and abide
by the Farmans", as an...l will give you an example.
My niece goes to university. She tells me 93
percent of students drink alcchol.

Q. Okay, I am sorry to cut you off. It
is really not responsive to my question.

a. So I am just giving you a story.
The books are being sold primarily to those people
who are interested and those who have been buying
over the past 15 years. 8o even this Golden
Edition, you would not buy it. I don't mean you,
but most people won't buy it. It is only those
people who have been buying for the past 16 years.
So even with me, the issue is only the people that I
am selling to I have been selling all over the time.

Q. That is why you have only sold 80 of
them.

A, Yes, so most of these people I am

selling are in this small range.

Q. Can I go back to my question?
A. Yes.
Q. There was an announcement to the

Jamate in January lé6éth, 2010.
A. Yesz.

Q. In that announcement, you would

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, SUITE 960, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MSK THE
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259,
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2. Jiwa - 50

agree with me that the instituticnal leaders,
however you want to put it, cautioned people against
buying this book; right?

A, Yes.

Q. They warned that it wasn't
authorized and that it should not be bought; right?

A, Yes,

Q. So, am I right in assuming that
people, then, who might have wanted to buy the book
might have questioned you about it as to why it is

not authorized?

A No. This is not the first
announcement.

Q. Ckay.

A. This is not the first announcement.

They made announcements, I think, over the past 10,

15 years.

Q. Saying these bocoks aren't
authorized?

A. Not only books. Mr. Tajdin says in

1992 he is giving out books. But then once a book
is printed, there are Farmans that come out. So
there are many people who distribute Farmans. There
are literally people who just photocopy hundreds of

copies and then distribute it at JamatkKhanas.
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263.
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A. Jiwa - &1

Q. Photocopies of them.
A. Photocopies or nowadays because of

Internet...so, council has been making announcements

forever.
Q. And people just ignore them.
A They just ignore them.
Q. They ignore them. And so therefore

nobody asked you to explain why the book wasn't
authorized? Not a single person?

A. No. First of all, remember one
thing. People don't know who is selling them.

Q. Okay .

A. Like, people don't know who is
selling them. So.

Q. They don't know because you have
vour names hidden and it is a Golden Wiz or
wliatever.

A, Even before that, people don't know.
Primarily it is sold through personal contacts only.

Q. Right.

A, Actually, what happened is when the

announcement was made, it created this knowledge

that people didn't have. "Qh, there are books
available?"
Q. Right. So then you were happy?
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A. No. No. People didn't know that I
am one of the sellers, so...until then the fraud was
never there. Your initial question was whether we
are telling people about fraud. Until then the
isgsue of fraud was not there. We started talking
about fraud openly after the litigation started.

Q. Right.,

A, Now I tell anybody who tells us I
believe it is fraudulent.

Q. Now you tell everybody that it is a
forgery.

A. Yea, because after the litigaticon
started, even strangers keep cn calling me.

Q. and you keep telling them it is a
forgery.

A, I tell them, "I don't believe the
Imam has signed this stuff".

Q. and that Brian Gray himself has not
authorized that?

A, Listen, I have never said Brian Gray
is...I say I don't believe the Imam is behind this
and, you know, we will have to discover if he is.

Q. Ckay. So, I think we have explored
this already. You had no involvement with

instructing any of the experts?

ERNST & YOUND TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, BUITE 900, TQARONTQO, ONTARID, MEK 1HE6
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A. Not the first two.
Q. Right.
A, But I had with Graham. Nagib and T

met him together.

Q. You met him togethexr?
A. Yes.
Q. and did you give him instructions as

to what to do?

A. We told him we wanted to verify if
this signature is blessed by the Aga Khan.

Q. Did you receive any reports from him

other than the oneg that...

A, Yes, we did.
Q. You received additional reports?
A. No, we got an interim report in the

beginning. And at that time, he wanted the original
of the...of the affirmation, I believe it was. He
wanted the original affirmation and then initially
you were not giving us. So I told him, "When we get
it, we will show it to you". So then when we
received the affirmation, then I give it to him,
then he updated his report.

Q. So, can I see the interim report?

A, Perhaps you can ask him when you

cross-examine him.
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A. Jiwa - 54

Q. Well, he won't give it to me unless

you consent to it, I presume. I am asking you.

A. I am going to take it under
advisement.
Q. I take it that you also follow

events...I take it you alsc follow events in His
Highness' life?

A, I do somewhat, yes. But the
accident was publicly known. 8o even if you are not

following, you knew.

Q. So you knew?

a. Yes.

Q. You knew there was an accident in
20087

A, Yes.

Q. and you knew there was an accident

which injured his right shoulder?
A, Yes.
His writing hand.
Yes.
Or arm, SOIXry.
Yes.
And did you tell Mr. Osprey that?

I think I did.

o p oo p O PO

You think you did?
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A, Jiwa - &5

A. I think I did. I told him that he

had had an injury.

Q. Well, we will ask him that.

A, Yes.

Q. He didn't put that in his repoert,
did he?

A. I don't think so, but I think I did

mention to him.
Q. You mentioned it but he didn't put

it in his report?

A, Maybe not. I am not...

Q. How old is His Highness?

A. I think he is about 75, if I am not
mistaken.

Q. Something like that.

A. Something like that, yes. I don't

follow as keenly as I should.

Q. And did you tell Mr. Ospreay that
His Highness was that age, or at least in his
seventies?

A. I don't recall if we mentioned that
or if I mentioned that. I don't recall that.

Q. Now, were you inveolved at all in the
Mehmani in 18927

A. No.

ERNST & YOUNDG TOWER, 222 BAY BTREET, BUITE 900, TRRONTS, ONTARIO, MSK THE&
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A. Jiwa - 56

Q. Were you involved in any of the
discussions in 1998 with Mr. Sachedina and Mr.
Tajdin?

A, No.

Q. I take it you have once been to a

Mehmani, have you not?

A, Yes. Actually, a number of times.

Q. You have been more than once?

A. Yes.

Q. 80 you are luckier than Mr. Tajdin.

A. Yes.

Q. It is a special occasion, I take it?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Very special?

A. It is, yes,.

Q. It is a privilege to attend a
Mehmani?

A, Of course.

Q. And generally it is a privilege to

meet the Imam, His Highness?
A. No, not publicly. But in a Mehmani.
Q. Not in a group, but privately...if
you meet with him privately...
A, In a Mehmani. He has said to us

that, "when I am outside in the public, don't run
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A. Jiwa - 57

after me, don't come and meet me, because it is not
the same as coming to see me in Mehmani”.
306. Q. But in meeting with him privately in
a personal audience, would it...
A. It is special, of course. It is
meant for that.
307. MR. GRAY: Yes. Okay. Off the recoxd

for a second.

--- A BRIEF RECESS

ALNAZ JIWA, resumed

CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR, GRAY:

308. Q. There is one more qquestion I wanted
to ask you. Is it your position that His Highness
has the absolute and unfettered right to withdraw
hig consent to the publication of these materials at
any time?

A. Yes, he does.

309. Q. and so if he, in fact, has withdrawn
his consent now or at any time since the lawsuit
started, that is the end of the matter, regardless
of what might have happened in 19927

A. Yes. You know what? If His

Highness personally desires to stop everything, it
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A. Jiwa - 58

just stops. He is the boss.

Q. Right. Whether he gives that to you
generally in writing or whether it is in persomn...

A. Generally, no, as I said earlier...

Q. You don't want to accept it in
writing but...

A. No. I would accept in writing. The
problem that I have right now is this issue of
whether...for me, I have a grave concern that he has
been misled. It has happened in the past. To you
it might sound, "Ch, well, this is..." but it has
happened in the past. So, I would...I am hesitant
to accept it in writing. Your e-mail said that if
vou don't accept it, he wants to pursue with the
litigation. So, he has repeatedly told us that if
we have any concerns, we can discuss with him. He
has told us this. He says, "I am here to guide my
Jamats". He says, "Ninety percent of my time should
be spent for the Jamats", so we are entitled to...he
iz like our father. He is not a CEC of a
corporation. He is like our father and we are
entitled to...if I put it another way.

We are entitled to beg him to allow his
Farmans to be distributed to the Jamats because he

wants the Jamats to be guided. So I am entitled to
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313.
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make a plea to him as a Pir. He is our current Pir
as well as actually I think it might even be in the
constitution that he is the current Pir, so I am
entitled to take our pleas to him and, you know, he
is our spiritual advisor. It is just like Jesus is
to Christians.

Q. Right, I understand.

A, So at this moment and this state in
time, this litigation is completely contradictory to
what he has been telling us all aleng. This is why
I appreciate that you are counsel and I appreciate
your comments on that, but I have grave concerns.
And so as much as you say I have unfettered...I
mean, if he tells me to jump out of this window I
won't think think about it. And I hope I can
maintain that faith; right? So if he tells us and
if I am satisfied this is him, I will do it.

Q. and even if it is in writing, if he
tells you that it is not to be done, you will do it?

Whether in writing or in person; as long as you are

satisfied...

A. That it is from him.

Q. Right.

A, Absoclutely. There is no guestion
about it.
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A, Jiwa - 60

315. Q. And that vitiates, if you will, or
cancels or annuls any prior consents that may have
been given in 1992 or at any other time?

A, Mr. Gray, it would make no
difference whether there ig consent or not. He says
no, the matter is over.

316. MR. GRAY: Right. ©Okay. Thank you. I
have no further questions. Subject to the
undertakings and questions that you have
agreed to answer later and any refusals I
might follow up on, I have no further

questions.
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INDEX QF EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT PAGE
NUMBER DESCRIPTION NUMEER
1 affidavit of Documents of Daniel J.
Gleascon sworn June 1, 2010 20
2 Bicgraphy of Daniel J. Gleason 29
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INDEX OF UNDERTAKINGS

REFERENCE PAGE QUESTION
NUMBER NUMBER NUMEBER
1 12 48
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INDEX OF UNDER ADVISEMENTS

REFERENCE PAGE QUESTION
NUMBEE NUMBER NUMBER
1 54 281
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INDEX QF REFUSALS

REFERENCE PAGE QUESTION
NUMBER NUMBER NUMBER
1 3B 188
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REPORTER'S NOTE:

Please be advised that any undertakings, objections, under advisements
and refusals are provided as a service to all counsel, for their guidance
only, and do not purport to be legally binding or necessarily accurate and
are not binding upon Victory Verbatim Reporting Services Inc.

[ hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and accurate transcription of
the above noted proceedings held before me on the 9TH DAY OF
AUGUST, 2010 and taken to the best of my skill, ability and
understanding.

Certified Correct:

Anthony Ng
Verbatim Reporter
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA

——— UPON COMMEWCING AT 10:02 AM.

SHAFIE SACHEDINA: Sworn.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY IMR. JIWA:

Q. Mr. Sachedina, wvou have been sworn this
morning?

2nd can yvou please state vyvour name for the
record, please? Spell vour name?

2. Shafik, S-h-a-f-i-k, last name Sachedina
S-a-c-h-e-d-i-n-a.

Q. And, Mr. Sachedina, where do vyvou reside?

2. The United Kingdom.

MR. GRAY: Could I stop wvou, Counsel, Just for
one gecond. Mr. Sachedina has a cougle of minor
corrections he'd like to make to his Affidavit hefore we
start the proceedings.

MR. JIWA: Sure.

MR. GRAY: Before wyou really get into vyour
gquestions.

ME. JIWZ: Oh, sure, he can do so.

MR. GRAY: Tes.

THE DEECNENT: Just to ke akle to correct, one is
on my kackground. There iz a position that I hold in the
Leaders International Forum that is not there -- I hawve
to declare that -- which has been since 1991.

MR. GRAY: I think he's talking akout paragraph 1

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 5

in his Affidavit.

THE DEPCWENT: That's in my background. 2nd T
have made a point of reference there that I'm a member of
the Board of Governors of the Institute of Ismaili
Studies in London.

BY MR. JIWA:

[N Yes?

A, It says 1991, but officially I was appointed
in 1995.

@. 1%%5. So wyou are a member of LIF?

2. Member.

Q. Now, I understand that in vyvour duties, as you
have just referred to, vou spend quite a kit of time in
Aiglemont as well?

A, Yes.

2. And would vou ke akle to say approximately
what time frame vyou spend in Aiglemont.

2. Az required by my work. Sometimes I go there
on a day basis, sometimes I go twice a week, sSometimes T
don't go at all for two weeks or so. But I go there as
and when recuired and as ——- primarily also that when T
have gpecific meetings at Aiglemont, they like me to go
there.

Q. So yvou don't have a residence in France?

2. No, I don't have any residency in France.

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA &

Q. Now, in order to attend today, did vou meet
with His Highness to prepare yvourself for the gquestioning
that vou will be doing today?

A. HNo.

Q. And did vou meet with anvbody or discuss with
anyvkbody with respect to the gquestions or answers that
vou'll ke giving today?

2. The people that I normally work with?

Q. No. Did wyou discuss the questions —-- the
answers that vou'll be giving today with anybody else?

MR. GRAY: He did discuss the questions with me,
his counsel.

THE DEECNENT: The counsel is there, and I also
have to prepare my own work, read through that, look at
the documents, look at the documents everywhere else at
the Institute at Aiglemont to check that out. So I had
to make sure that I have, azs best to my knowledge, the
facts, ves.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. And did vyou discuss with Mr. Bhaloo with
respect to what vou will be answering today?

2. Bhaloo, I have met. I have met with him a
couple of times, and I wanted to make sure that we also
-— we have -- as you know, he is the AKDN resident

representative.

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 7

Q. Right.

L. So we met also on our work, but also he said
he would also be cross—examined, so I met with him as
well.

Q. But did yvou discuss with him what vou would
ke answering today?

2. No. He knows my Affidavit -- his Affidavit
is there and my Affidavit iz there. He has studied my
Affidavit, I have studied his Affidavit, but it is purely
and simply e to him.

Q. Now, vou sald earlier that vou did review
some materials. Can you elaborate on that? What
materials did you review? I heard vyou say something
albout the Institute as well, vou reviewed some
documents?

2. Yes, I have read through the Constitution,
which was at the Institute as well. There's copiles
there. I have looked at all the materials vis-a-vis the
farmans as well. Because from my point of wview, the
documents are also kept at the ITIS azs well, the final
text that we also have there.

@. S0 all the final text of farmans are kept at
ITIs*?

. No. &t the Imamat level, at the Institute

level, so -- and at the Department of Jamati Institution.

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA g

—-—— Off-the-record discussion.

BY MR. JIWA:

2. S0 at the Institute, the final copy of the
farmans are not kept?

A, We have a copy.

0. At the Institute?

. True, because —-

——— The reporter appeals.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. And, I'm sorry, I'm actually lost. Is there
a copy at the Institute or there's no copy at the
Institute?

2. No. Farmanzs, as I said, once they have been
approved and authorized by Hazar Imam -- Hazar Imam,
which is His Highness.

MR. GRAY: H-a-z-a-r, new word, I-m-a-m.

THE DEPCWENT: ©Once they are released by the
Tmam, we always have a copy at the Secretariat, at the
Tmam's office. We also have one at the Institute in our
—-— for archiwval purposes.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. You salid one you have it at the Secretariat
as well?

2. The "Secretariat," that means the Secretariat

of His Highness, and the Department of Jamati

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 9

Institutions.

Q. And so you reviewed the farmans kbefore coming
here as well, or in preparation for this litigation?

2. No, I not necessarily went through all the
farmans, no.

Q. Because you salid that yvou reviewed the
farmans?

L. TYes, the text of some of the farmans, but not
all of the farmans.

Q. And vou said you also reviewed the
Constitution. When did vou review the Constitution?

2. Well, I've been reading this Constitution for
a long time. I have been involved in the sense of the
last when the Constitution was reviewed, I was present at
the time when it was signed, and I have also --

Q. When you say "last time,” that's in 195%87

2. That's the one that happened, vyes.

0. And that's the last amended Constitution?

A. Correct.

Q. With respect to this litigation, whose

decigsion was it that vou and Mr. Bhaloo should ke giving

evidence?
2. The decision for -- whose decision it was?
[N Yes.
2. I realized that some of the facts regquire

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 10

Mr. Bhaloo, who was present at only one of the meetings
that I know of, and then he was also present, I believe,
at the —-- or he was in the leadership at the time of one
of the other —-

Q. Right.

A, So it was important that he actually was at
least aware of this.

Q. Now, you sald you have reviewed Mr. Bhaloo'sz
Affidavit?

A, Yes.

Q. And did vou review it when it was drafted
right initially, or after it was sworn by him?

2. The Affidavit itself?

[N Yes.

2. T had seen a gsituation from kbefore, what he
was saying in his own Affidavit, and it was actually the
counsel who actually sent me the final copy of it.

Q. After it was signed?

2. Yes. Of course I have seen a draft before
that, but it actually was signed by —-- and I was sent,
really, the copy of it.

Q. Now, your Affidavit as well as Mr. Bhaloo's
Affidavit, the draft wversion, 4did vyou review that with
His Highness?

2., I didn't review it myself. I didn't review

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 11

it. The counsel had, but I certainly didn't personally
give 1t to His Highness myself.

Q. And did you discuss with His Highness the
contents of yvour Affidavit or Mr. Bhaloo's Affidavit?

2. Not with him personally.

2. Did His Highness tell vou that a Notice of
Examination was served on his counsel?

2. His Highness tell me?

[N Yes.

2. The Notice of Examination?
0. Yes, to examine him?

2. The Notice of Examination —--

MR. GRAY: The MNotice of Examination for
Discovery?

THE DEFCWENT: Tes.

MR. GRAY: He's asking did His Highness tell wyou
albout the Notice of Examination for Discovery.

THE DEFCWENT: Not to me.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Not to vyvou. 2And did he tell wyou whether he
would be attending or not attending at all at any time?

2. No, I didn't speak with him. The counsel
spoke with His Highness.

Q. S0 when yvou say "counsel™ --

. Counsel in the sense that there was —-- His

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 12

Highness -- we've got a legal department at the ITmamat
level.
2. Do vyvou know who would be —-

ME. GRAY: He means counsel, c-o-u-n-s—-e-1, not

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. OCkavy.

A, Sorry.

Q. And do vyou know which counsel or who at the
legal department iz responsikble for these matters?

2. The head of the department.

0. What's his name?

2. His name is Mr. Henry Carnegie.

Q. Can vyvou spell the last name?

2. Carnegie, C-a-r-n-e-g-i-e.

MR. GRAY: C-a-r-n-e-g-i-e. Carnegie like Andrew
Carnegie.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Now, to your understanding, this litigation
is related to this Golden Edition farman book?

A, Yes.

Q. And do I take it that His Highness is not
concerned about the previous farman kooks that have been
rrinted by -- or puklished and distrikbuted by

Mr. Tajdin?

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 13

2. Very much so. In fact, he was concerned and
he had made it known to me. 2nd I actually, azs I say, if
vou look at my Affidavit, I have mentioned that he was
concerned.

46 Q. And my cuestion is that in this litigation
we're only dealing with the Golden Edition?

L. TYes, but the Golden Edition also covers the
three previous farmans as well because it contains, I
kbelieve, a compilation of the first three books.

47 Q. When did wvou first find out akout the first
three books?

2. I found out about the first three books when
I waz ——- I first came to Aiglemont, which was when T
started my term at my office. It wazs —-- the coordinator
mentioned akout this. I mean I hadn't seen them, but I

had heard alkout this bkook.

48 2. And that would ke after wyou started
working?
. 96, '97.
49 Q. S0 before "96, '9%97 wyou had no idea about —-

2. I had not seen any of these kbooks.
50 Q. And do you remenker that in 1%%4 one of vyour
school mates, Hossein, he had some books during the
Padhramni at London deedar?

MR. GRAY: You'd better spell all those words.

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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THE DEPCWENT: ©Okay. Padhramni is

P-a-d-h-r-a-m-n-i, padhramni. And deedar is d-e-e-d-a-r.

BY MR. JIWA:

0. Hossein had some farman kooks with him at
1994 Padhramni when vou were the president at that time,
do you recall?

Z. I have no recollection of what he had with
him. T know the person because I know the name of this
gentleman.

2. Did he not advise wyou that his books were
taken away by some of the --

2. Not personally. He might have contacted
somekbody there in the organization, but not me
rersonally.

Q. Now, when vou say that His Highness iz

concerned, I just want some clarification. Is it concern

that they hawve been put into a kbook format, the farmans,

or iz he Just concerned that the farmans are not to be

distributed?
A Both.
0. Both?

L. First of all, the issue of the farman kook,
because there iz a compilation, it's a pubklished kook.
Q. Right.

2. And the second issue, there's unauthorized

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 15

farmans circulating.

Q. So if instead of was a book it was just
rhotocopied and distributed, there would still be a
concern; is that what you're saying?

2. Yes, because they are unauthorized farmans.

@. So it's not technically necessarily the kbooks
that vou are concerned; it's the content is farmans?

2. Because farmans which he himself has not
reviewed, and it is his work and he would want to review
anything kbefore it's released.

Q. Right. With respect to the farmans, His
Highness kbecame Imam when he was about 20 years old. So
anything he said before he was 20 vears old, before he
became the Imam, would not ke considered farmans;
correct?

2. Of the present Hazar Imam.

[N Yes.

2. There would have keen an Imam, the 48th.

0. 8o whatever he said kbefore he became the Imam
would not ke considered as farmans?

MR. GRAY: I'm not sure what the relewvance of
this is, kbut I'll let him answer the question.

THE DEPCWENT: Farman —-- for me farmans are
always farmans of the Imam. But the farmans of Hazar

Tmam, we are talking about the present Imam.

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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BY MR. JIWA:

2. S0 before he became the Imam, what he says
are not farmans; correct?

2. Because he was not holding the office of the
Tmam.

Q. So it's only once an individual becomes an
Tmam that what he says kbecomes farmans?

2. Farmanzs are from the Imam, usually.

0. And Hazar Imam has said that it's his Noor
that gives the farmans; correct?

2. Well, I would say that it is the Imam, who is

their manifest Imam, who actually makes the farman. When

he has the authority, under his authority, these farmans
are made.

Q. And his authority comes from the Noor, when
he gets the Noor of Imam?

2. He became the Imam on the 11th of July in
1957, and that is when he had the authority, from that
tLime, to interpret the faith for the community, koth in
worldly matters and spiritual matters.

Q. And the authority is coming from Imam by
being a Imanm?

2. The office that he holds, the authority is

vested in the manifest Imam. From the time of the

prophet Tmam 211 and now with the 4%th hereditary Imamnm.

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 17

Wow the 4%th hereditary Imam, His Highness Prince Karim
2Aga Khan, which is the name of the Plaintiff.

MR. GRAY: Noor is N-o-o-r.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. HNow, most of the Ismailis in the western
countries such as Europe, Canada, America, they relocated
somewhere en masse after Idi Amin threw Ismailis out from
Uganda in 1971, is when the most of the Ismailis started
relocating to Canada, the States?

2., Only yvou're talking about the western world.
Because they are not most of the Ismailis. The Ismailis
are a big community of 15 million people all over the
world, and there are crisgses in different parts of the
world. East Africa was a case in point.

Q. And it was after the crisis that people
started relocating to the western countries?

A, Yes.

Q. Before, there were some peoples in England
but wery, wvery small in number?

2. Yes, there have always been people around,
all parts of the world. There's Ismailis in almost all
rarts of the world.

Q. Now, you mentioned that you read the
Constitution, and you salid you were involwed in this

latest amendment. Were vou involved in the preparation

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 18

of the Constitution back in 19%8&7

2. MNo, I was not. There was a Constitution with
the committee that was estaklished by the Imam of the
Time.

0. At that time. 2And the Imam said that he
spent almost three-and-a-half years reviewing the
previous constitutions?

A, Yes.

Q. Have vyou seen any of the previous
constitutions, any of the previous —-

2. I had seen some coplies of it, ves, and they

are availakble in our archives.

Q. Did vou review any of those?
A. HNo.
2. I want to show vou one such copy. I just

want to see i1f you can recognize this.

MR. GRAY: Ch, my goodness. This is antique.

THE DEFCWENT: Tes.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Do wyou recall seeing that kbefore?

MR. GRAY: Do you recognize it?

THE DEECNENT: Yes, I have seen this in the sense
that this was at the Association, the Ismaili
Azsociation. But it's the Constitution of the Ismaili

Agsociation for the continent of Africa. This is the

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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40th. Before -- this is the Sultan Mahomed's time, not
the time of the present Imamn.

Sultan Mahomed Shah. This is 1%48. That was at
the time of the 48th Tmam. He was the 48th Tmamn.

BY MR. JIWA:

75 Q. And did vyou see a copy of this?

I would like to make this into Exhikit &A. It's a
copy of the Constitution of Ismailia, I-s-m-a-i-l-i-a,
Asgsociation for the continent of Africa, 1948.

MR. GRAY: Can we have a copy of that?

MR. JIWA: Tes.

EXHIBIT NO. A: Copy of Constitution of Ismailia
Agsociation for the Continent of Africa, 1948.

MR. GRAY: Can I see the original, please?

MR. JIWA: Sure.

MR. GRAY: I see that it's not a complete copy.

MR. JIwWa: OCkay. There's a gujrati version in
the back which I have not copied.

MR. GRAY: You've given me an English version of
the document but not the gujrati.

MR. JIWA: Gujrati, g-u-j-r-a-t-i. Gujrati.

MR. GRAY: OCkay.

BY MR. JIWA:

76 Q. Now, Mr. Sachedina, did vyou review any of the

constitutions prior to 1%86 with respect to the

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305
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AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 20

pubklication or distribution of farmans?

. ks far as I'm concerned, there was the
previous Constitution. But I was actually only more in
the recent times. Because I was in the U.EKE., and when I
came over, that Constitution that I have known of or was
aware of is the one that iz ordained by this Imam.

Q. My question iz did vyou review amny of the
previous constitutions?

A, No.

0. Such as the one —— if, in fact, I can show

vou this here. If vou go to page 77

A, Yes.

Q. On the top it says Hazar Imam's farmans and
puklications?

A, Yes.

@. "It shall ke the duty of the association to

record, collect -- and collect farmans of Mowlana

Hazar Imam throughout the continent of Africa and
to ke in charge of all the religious literature,

" [ag read]

books, puklications and school books.

MR. GRAY: Let me stop for a second. Mowlana
M-o-w-l-a-n-a, Hazar, H-a-z-a-r, Imam.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Would vou agree with me that the previous

constitutions all had similar articles concerning the
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puklication of farmans?

2. This one particularly had, and I presume the
ones that might have -- subsecquently would hawve followed
from there, vyes.

Q. Now, prior to 1%86 when the new Constitution
was implemented, would vou agree with me that most
countries had their own Constitution?

A. Correct.

Q. And Canada was also going by a
Constitution?

A, Yes.

Q. And Canada, Europe and America were governed
v the same Constitution?

A, Yes.

P. And all of those were superseded by the 1%8¢
Constitution.

And vour counsel gave us a copy of the
Constitution, which vou said vou made a copy of?

L. TYes, I have that.

Q. Now, that copy that vou gave, which was
Exhilkit 12 of Mr. Tajdin's examination --

MR. GRAY: Yes, we have a copy of it here. We
hawve "it" here. We have Exhibit 13 here.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. And that's the one that vou are referring to;
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right?

A, Yes.

0. Now, that Constitution does not contain Rules
and Regulations; it's simply just the Constitution
itself?

MR. GRAY: The copy that we marked as Exhikit 13
does not contain Rules and Regulations, and yvou've agreed
to provide them to us.

MR. JIWA: Yes.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. I want to also show vou -- I'm not going to
make the whole exhilkit kbut I krought the Rules and
Pegulations for you.

MR. GRAY: You're showing us an original of the
Constitution of the Shia, S-h-i-a, Imami Ismaili Muslims.

And vou say this original also has the Rules and
Pegulations?

MR. JIWA: Yes. I have made a copy of this, the
Pules and Regulations.

MR. GRAY: OCkay, but this copy of the original
yvou jJust showed me i3 an exact copy, iz it not, of
Exhibkit 137

ME. JIWA: This is -—— 12, I bkelieve, is the same.
2nd the Rules and Regulations are not in that

Constitution, the Exhikit 13 that vou gave me.
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MR. GRAY: OCkay.

MR. JIWA: So I've just handed vou a copy of the
Pules and Regulations.

MR. GRAY: Fine.

THE DEPCWENT: The part of the Constitution --
the Constitution, there is a main document, and there is
the Rules and Regulations that govern for each country.

BY MR. JIWA:

90 0. 8o the Constitution is one for the whole
communi ty worldwide?

A. Correct.

51 Q. And each country has their own Rules and
Pegulations, and each country iz given the Rules and
Pegulations to govern themselves within that
Jurisdiction?

2. Depending on the type of structure of -- the
structure that they have in each country, vyes.

MR. JIWA: Can we make Exhikit B The Rules and
Pegulations of the Shia Tmami Ismaili Muslims in Canada.

MR. GRAY: Are wyou akble to recognize this?

THE DEPCWENT: I need to get the original copy.
Then obviously we get the --

MR. GRAY: We'll accept that as an exhibkit
subject to verification.

EXHIBIT NO. B: The Rules and Regulations of the
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Shia Imami Ismaili Muslims in Canada.
-—— Off-the-record discussion.
BY MR. JIWA:

92 Q. Now, would vou agree with me that this
Constitution and the Rules and Regulations do not contain
similar articles az the ones that were in the previous
1986 Constitution?

2. BAbsolutely. This ITmam decided that he wanted
a new Constitution covering the context of the community
as it was at the time. And it has changed drastically
from the previous Constitution in composition and nature

and scale and scope.

93 Q. Now, to yvour knowledge and from vyvour
knowledge —-- vyou are president of the United Kingdom --
A, Yes.
94 Q. —— Jamat?
A, Yes.

MR. GRAY: Well, sorry, he was not president of
the United Kingdom.
THE DEFCHNENT: The Jamat. The Council.
BY MR. JIWA:
95 @. I mean the Jamat, the Council of the Jamat?
2. I was the president of the Council for the
United Kingdom, his Highness's Council for the United

Fingdom. Jamat, J-a-m-a-t, equals community.
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-—— Off-the-record discussion.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. And vou're the president between 1991 and
199672

A. Correct.

Q. Now, during vyvour tenure, do you recall if any
farman kbooks were published by either the Council or the
ITREER tarika koard? T-a-r-i-k-a, tarika board.

2. Tariga 15 spelled with a "Q."

Q. With a "Q." Sorry.

2. Was I aware of the -- sorry. Can you repeat
the gquestion? Because it's —-

Q. Do vyou recall if any farman kbooks were
printed during vour tenure as president of the Council of
U.KE. —— either by the Council or by the tariga koard?

A. Published? Not that I'm aware of.

Q. Now, vou mentioned that you were the
president kbetween 1991 and 1%%6, and vyvour appointment was
made v way of a talika, t-a-1-i-k-a, that were read in
Jamat khanas?

A, Yes.

2. And would vou agree with me that most
appointments of presidents of tariga boards, mukhis,
m-u-k-h-i-z, they're all made primarily on July 11lth

of —
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2. On epochal days. ©On days which are epochal.
That is, there's a calendar in the Ismaili calendar
community, there are days of the kirthday of the Imam or
the day he became the Imam, or Navroz, which iz the new
year. So —-

Q. On those sort of days when that happens.

A, Yes, usually.

2. And for all of the local appointees, they are
read in their jamat khanas, the talika are read in the
Jamat khanas with respect to all the appointments made in
that jJurisdiction?

2. The main talika is read everywhere.

Q. The main talika. But the -- let's say the
United Kingdom appointments are not read in Canada?

2. That's for the jurisdiction.

Q. Right.

2. The jurisdiction is where those appointments
that are actually made by His Highness are read out in
the jamat khanas.

0. And the terms of office for the Council
menbers are three years?

2. Yes. Normally the first -- term of three
vears.

Q. If I go kack to your paragraph 1 of vour

Affidavit, now vou give various positions that vou hold,
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and you added to that that vyvou are a member of LIF since
1991, 2And since 1%91, is this when vyou kbecame the
rresident of the Council for U.EK.?

A. Correct.

Q. And how many menbers are there in LIF?

L. Well, at the moment -- at the time or --
Q. Today.

2. -- at the present time?

[N Yes.

2., Well, it's keen 24, approximately.

Q. And of this 24, how many are presidents of
their respective national council?

2. With the exception of three people -- or
three to four people, most of them hold the office of the
rpresidency of their respective national council.

Q. Right.

2. And T have not put all the numbers but I
can —-

Q. Approximate numbers, that's fine. But three
or four are not presidents of the --

2. Which are not holding the office of the
president.

Q. And do they have meetings regularly or as
they are called?

2. The Leaders International Forum, as per the
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Constitution, can only hold meetings with the approval of
the Imam.

Q. When was the last meeting of the LIF?

2. The last meeting was at the time when T --
this was —— I'1ll just tell wyou exactly when the last
meeting took place, which is here.

MR. GRAY: It's in your Affidavit.

THE DEPCWENT: Yes, it's in my Affidavit. ©On the
9th to the 11th of 2pril.

MR. GRAY: 2010.

THE DEFCWENT: 2010.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. And where are these meetings held?

2. They are held at different venues throughout
the world, but this last meeting took place at the
Ismaili Centre, London.

Q. And these meetings whenever they are held,
theyv're held formally?

2. Depends upon what the agenda is. As I said,
I explained to you that the older meetings of the LIF,
first of all, whenever they are held are, first of all,
cleared and approved by Hazar Imam. So the meetings take
rlace with the chair and all the members concerned.

P. And before the meeting iz held, iz an agenda

0f the meeting circulated to the members?
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2. Depending upon what the agenda iz. Sometimes
it's —— 1if it has do with a full-session meeting, then
there's an agenda. If there are leaders of the Jjamat

meeting together in a country and they want to meet
together bkecause they happen to attend an event, then on
the kehest of Hazar Imam they could actually have an
informal meeting taking place.

S50 meetings do take place, but if they are formal
meetings -- and there are meetings only, az I say,
approved, even the informal sessions are usually approved
v the Imam.

Q. And once the meeting iz concluded, are
minutes of the meeting made?

2. They're sent directly usually if there's --
first of all, minutes are prepared by the secretariat.

Q. Prepared of every meeting?

2. Most of the meetings, ves, I would think,
although almost all of the meetings have minutes.

o, Now —-—

2. Only the informal ones I talked akout where
there are events when there may not ke a formal seszion,
but, again, the minutes for all formal sSessions are
rrepared.

Q. Now, would vou agree with me that -- we

referred to earlier akout appointments being read in
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Jamat khanas. These appointments are related to all the
Jamatil institutions such as ITREE Council arkitration
board as an example —- mukhis, kamadias.

2. A1l the constitutional kodies.

0. All the constitutional bodies. FKamadias is
k-a-m-a-d-i-a-s.

-—— Off-the-record discussion.

BY MR. JIWA:

0. And institutions such as the Ismaili
Institute, the AKDN, they are not technically Jjamati
institutions in the sense that the appointments have
already been passed?

2. No, they are not.

Q. Now, when these appointments are made -- the
institution appointments, they take an oath of office?

2. The nature of the --

MR. GRAY: I'm not sure what vou said myself.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. When these appointments are made, each member
takes an oath of office?

A, Yes.

Q. And vou took one as well when yvou became the
rresident of the Council for U.EK.?

2. At the time, vyes.

Q. And do you remenker what the ocath is?
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A, Yes. It was given to -- it is also part

P. I just want to see if vyou remember what it is
without reading it.

2. I haven't got the words here, but vyes, it 1is
basically I swear allegiance to Mowlana Hazar Imam that T
will fulfill my duties to the best of my abkilities and
keep the interests and protect the interests of the Tmamn,
and words —— I mean I don't have the ocath of office here,
but that's —-

MR. GRAY: It's in the Constitution.

BY MR. JIWA:

P. It's Rules and Regulations, which is in
Exhikit B.

-—— Off-the-record discussion.

BY MR. JIWA:

2. I believe it should ke the last page or
second-last page. It's in the Rules and Regulations.

2. It iz this one here. I'1ll try to find out.
It says —-- shall I read it out?

P. Just read the one, two, three, the preamble
is not necessary.

2. "Further, I make solemn oath in the name of

211lah and say

"(1l} that I shall protect and defend the Ismaili
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Constitution and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder;

"(2} that T shall perform with absolute honesty,
integrity, devotion and diligence and to the best
of my akility, all the duties and okligations
entrusted to me; and

"(2} that I shall not disclose any confidential
matters or proceedings pertaining to my said
office.™

0. And this is the oath that all members take as

they get appointed?

not?

Savs:

AL Yes.

MR. GRAY: But the preamkble iz relevant, iz it

ME. JIWA: You can read it, sure.

THE DEPCWENT: The preankle of the oath of office

"Bismi-Llahi-R-Rahmani-R-Rahim

"I, (name} having in accordance with the
Constitution of the Shia Imami Ismaili Muslims

' or

been appointed (post, namely President...’
whatever it iz, the name of the kody "do hereby
solemnly and sincerely reiterate my absolute

faith in, and spiritual allegiance and devotion

to Mawlana Hazar Imam Shah Karim al Hussaini His
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Highness Prince Aga Khan."

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. And do vyou agree with me that each member iz
okligated by his oath to defend and protect the
Constitution?

A, Yes.

Q. Would vou agree with me that the Constitution
is a wvery important document in our jamat?

A, Yes.

2. And the Tmam has made farmans with respect to
abiding by the Constitution in letter and in spirit?

A, Yes.

2. And would vou agree with me that Ismasilis are
okligated by the order of the Tmam to follow his
farmans?

2. By the Imam? Yes, follow his farman.

0. He wants us to follow his farmans?

A, Yes.

0. He wants us to follow his Constitution?

2. The Constitution is there for the governance
of the community, and people must akide by the
Constitution.

Q. Must abide by, wves. 2And would vou also agree
with me that the jamat iz also asked to okey and follow

what's preached in the Ginans, g-i-n-a-n-3, so long as
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they are not contradicted by a current Imam?

2. Ginans are devotional poetry, and thus as
rpoetry, it 15 not in a way incumbent for anvkody to
follow the ginans in the way that vou describe. Ginans
are, as I say, devotional poetry.

2. And would vou also agree with me, sir, that a
farman of the Imam remains valid and binding until it's
superceded either by that Imam or a later Imam?

2. By any pronouncement by the Imam.

[N Yes.

2A. By even a letter to somekbody or a talika or
farman. He can actually any time in the way, the words
of the ITmam in a way, the present Imam, anything in the
Congtitution says his words would actually precede —-
it's beyond the Constitution from that point of view.

Q. You said "letter" by the Imam. That's known

as a talika, t-a-1l-i-k-a?

A, A talika is usually sent -- talika is sent to
the Jjamat.

Q. And they're read in Jamat khanas?

A, Yes.

Q. S0 my previous question was that all Ismailis

are okligated to follow the farmans of the Imam. The
latest farman supersedes the previous farman?

2. Well, the farmans can be valid according to
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time and context of the present Imam's farmans. They
were given in a particular time, in a particular context,
in particular circumstances.

[N Yes.

2. So they remain valid for that particular
Jamat, and unless Imam says Lo them that these are my new
farmans to vyou, then they supersede and he would say that
they supersede the —-

0. And he also said that individuals can also be
guided by the Imam?

A, Yes.

Q. Right? &aAnd if that individual iz guided by
the Imam, then that iz kbinding on him irrespective of
what he might have said in a general farman?

2. That iz given to a particular individual in
particular circumstances for that particular purpose. It
is not applicakle to everybody. It's applicable to that
one individual who has sought.

Q. Who has sought?

A. Guidance.

Q. Without seeking guidance he also guides;
noy

2. But that guidance is generic to everybody.

0. No, I mean to an individual?

2. But the individual guidance is applied —- if
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Tmam gives individual guidance to the person, it's
specific to that individual's circumstances, to the
individual case. That guidance is not applicakle to

everybody.

2. I understand. My question really iz not that

it's applicakle to evervbody, but my gquestion is this:
For that indiwvidual -- let me just give yvou an example.

211 Ismailis are supposed to say the duas —-
d-u-a-s; correct?

A, Yes.

Q. This is a general farman.

If the Imam says to one individual, "You don't

have to say duas,"

for him, despite what evervykody
follows, he does not have to now follow the general
farman of saying duas; correct?

2., Well, I would find -- as I say, I have not
Seen any examples of the Imam saying vou don't say duas.
But whatever it iz, if vou are saving in a hypothetical
cage which I don't know of anywhere that the Imam iz

saying this kbut vou if vou say that, then he would hawve

to follow farman of the Imam.

Q. Now, this action is pertaining to this Golden

Edition and the farmans of the Imam, now, would yvou agree

with me that the Copyright Act could not prevent Mr.

Tajdin, as an example, from puklishing Hassan Ali Shah or
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Mowlana Ali Shah's farmans?

2., Well, I'm not an expert in copyright.
Counsel 1is.

MR. GRAY: That's a legal question.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Over 60 yvears —-- the Imam passed away 50, 60
vears ago, and the Copyright Act could not prevent those
farmans from keing distributed?

MR. GRAY: Well, that's what vou are saving.
That's a legal cuestion and we'll have to have a judge
decide that.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. The Copyright Act, Counsel, provides that
when a person has died, after a certain period of time —-
which vou are an expert on —- Copyright Act does not
apply any more; isn't that right?

MR. GRAY: Well, I'm not here to answer questions
and we'll let a judge sort out the law —- with our help.

-—— Off-the-record discussion.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Have wyou attended a personal mehmani,
m-e-h-m-a-n-i?

A, M-e-h-m-a-n-i, mehmani.

Q. Have you attended a personal mehmani with the

Imam -- kefore the Imam?
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A, Yes.

Q. How many times would you say vou've attended
a personal mehmani?

2. Maybe approximately —-- I can't be absolutely
sure about it, but at least three times in my life.

Q. And mehmanis are nowadays usually two people
from a family?

2. Well, at the present time, depending upon the
circumstances, 1t is at the present time two people are
in a way authorized in a way to go forward for a mehmani
on kbehalf of their family. A mehmani is a personal
issue. This is on behalf of their family.

Q. And can vou bring me to any farman, amny
constitution, that says that only families go for a
mehmanis; two friends cannot go for a mehmani?

2. Yes, what I'm saying is that if there are two
friends or related to a part of a family, then they go.
But two people are allowed, but they are presenting a
mehmani on behalf of their family.

2. So are you —-—

2. Or friends or family.

Q. S0 are you suggesting, sSir, that an Tmam is
rrevented by some rule or some stuff by not guiding that
person for his business partners?

. MNo. The criteria is as established.
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0. I understand but what I'm —-

A. And it's the criteria under which these
mehmanis take place in every Jurisdiction depending on
the circumstances of that particular country.

Q. You'we been highlighting that it's only for
the families, and my question to you is this: If I went
there on kehalf of my 50 partners in a business, are you
suggesting to me from what vou are sayving is my guidance
from the Imam cannot relate to my 50 partners?

2. Providing yvou were then submitting to the
Tmam and telling the Imam that vou are submitting this
mehmani on kbehalf of so-and-so or that family or those
reople. You would have to inform the Imam that vyou are
rpresent there subnitting this mehmani on kehalf of
whom.

Q. That's your personal opinion, isn't it?

2. No. It is exactly what vou would tell the
Tmam. Because, vou know, Imam otherwise assumes, which
is what he is told, that these are families coming in
front of the Imam.

[N S0 ——

A. Or institutional leaders submit mehmani on
kbehalf of them, and Hazar Imam would say that this is a
mehmani on kbehalf of a particular Jamat.

oL Now.
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2. -- the leader of the community.

Q. Now, would vou agree with me that that's
between the Tmam and the murid, who presents the
mehmani ?

2. The murid will present the mehmani to the

Tmam.

MR. GRAY: M-u-r-i-d.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Now, can vyvou bring -- vou don't have to read
it right now; vou can undertake to read it. Can you show

me any farman or any article in yvour possession that says
that the mehmani, that vou have to disclose everything to
Hazar Imam? Is there any farman?

2., Imam iz being -- when he is doing a mehmani
of a Jamat, kbefore he does a mehmani of a particular
Jamat, he is told the profile of the jamat, where this
mehmani relates to, which particular country it relates
to or region it relates to. He is given a briefing of
the people who are coming forward to the Imam of the Time
for this mehmani, so he's given a briefing as to who
these people are, what this congregation consists of. So
that briefing is given to the Imamnm.

S50 Imam's expectations are the people are coming
forward are coming within that context. There are no

constitutional matters in this. These are jurisdictional
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matters in each country where the vizits take place and
these mehmanis happen.

@. S0 are you suggesting that the Imam is unabkle
to discern the context of that mehmani that's presented

bv the murid?

2. I explained to you a minute ago.
[N Yes or no?
MR. GRAY: Let him explain. He wants -- if

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Just listen to my guestion. Are you sayving
that the Imam is unable to the discern the context of the
mehmani that is presented by the murid unless he's told
specifically?

2. No. The murids present the mehmani.

Q. My question to you is this: —--

MR. GRAY: Are wyou asking us to --

MR. JIWA: No. I'm asking him.

MR. GRAY: I know. But let me understand the
gquestion kecause I may okject to this question.

You're asking us to put ourselwves into the mind
0f the Tmam and to tell vou exactly what the Imam would
or would not think or know about something? We'll refuse
to answer that cuestion because that's not something

that's within this witness's —-

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 320 of 536



10

11

12

13

14

15

1l&

17

18

1%

20

21

22

23

24

25

175

176

177

AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 42

MR. JIWa: I understand him, him keing the wvery
same thing that vyvou are trying to okject to. Because
he's gaying that the Imam, or his answer sSeems to be
indicating -- or indicating that the Imam cannot discern
the context of the mehmani --

MR. GRAY: The record will show what he's sayving.
But I believe wyou asked him, and what the witness is
testifying to, iz what the Imam was briefed akout.
That's a different matter than asking him what the Imam
is thinking in his head.

We're not going to answer that gquestion and I
don't think the witness is qualified to answer that
gquestion.

—-—— REFUSAL

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Would vou agree with me, sir, that the
mehmani that iz being presented to the Imam i35 a personal
interaction ketween the Imam and his murid?

2. ARbsolutely.

Q. And the very purpose of having this mehmani
ceremony 1s in order for the TImam to meet personally his
murids?

2. ARbsolutely.

Q. And would vou agree with me that when it

comes to Jamat khanas to give deedar, he generally makes
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a farman which is applicakle to either the Jamat or the
whole world; he makes a general farman?

2. It's a congregation and it's in the context
0f a wider congregation.

0. And —-

2. But they are done in the context of a
murid/murshid relationship. That is ketween the murid
and the Imam. They are not done —- it's in the context
0of that relationship.

@. All right. And would vou agree with me that
the purpose here iz for the Imam to interact with that
murid when he presents the mehmani?

2. If he wishes to do so.

0. And often he will do so himself?

2., It iz up to the Tmam.

Q. No, we know it's up to the Imam. But often
he does interact with the murid himself even without
being asked?

2. Yes, it does happen.

Q. It does happen, right. And there is no
regtriction on that murid from talking to his Imam?

2. The murid iz quite entitled to speak to his
Imam 1if he wishes to do.

0. And some do?

L. Some do, some don't.
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124 0. And some don't.
2., And a lot of times mehmani are presented and
people come, present the mehmani, and walk.
185 2. Just to receive the klessing?
A. Yes. Because in the sense that -- what I'm
trying to say is they come along, they present their

mehmanis, Imam is giving the klessings, and they go.

There's no words to utter. The Imam would give his
kblessings.
186 Q. Right. S50 now I'm going to ask yvou to turn

to Bhaloo's Affidavit.

MR. GRAY: B-h-a-l-o-o.

BY MR. JIWA:

187 Q. I want you to read his paragraph 8.

2. Just for the record, I was not present at
this particular one on August 15, 192%2. So I'm only
looking at the Affidavit here, I wazs not present at the
time when this event took place.

188 Q. And Mr. Bhaloo was not present as well at

that mehmani. He says so in his own Affidavit. So will

you —-—
MR. GRAY: You can ask him. He says he wasn't
present.
BY MR. JIWA:
185 2. So would vou please read his paragraph 8
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before I ask yvou the cquestion?

A, Yes.

Q. Would vou agree with me that that depiction
shown by Mr. Bhaloo iz not accurate?

2. I would say to yvou that -- to me this has
definitely a context of what happens in a mehmani,
because in some cases it 15 a few seconds, only duration
0f few seconds, sometimes it can ke longer, so it can be

—— mehmanis can happen for few seconds or it could ke

longer.

Q. Right.

2. But he is describing what normal mehmanis
are. They are only for a short time kecause there are a

nunkber of mehmanis particularly for a particular time and
location. MNormally they have a certain amount of time
for a certain number of mehmanis in every country.

Q. S0 I agree with vou, he's talking in
generalities?

A. Of course.

Q. Because many people who present mehmanis
simply go for the blessing?

2. It could take less --

0. Few seconds?

A, Yes.

Q. Howewver, if anykody wished to talk to the
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Imam, he can talk to the Imam?

2. It's the right of the murids, right.

Q. And to your knowledge, kecause wyou have been
extensively involwved in the Jjamat, and vou were in 1994,
which was a lot larger Jamat than the Montreal Jjamat, to
yvour knowledge, when that murid asked the ITmam a
question, the very purpose for the mehmani is for the
Tmam to respond and guide that murid?

2. Yes. The Imam, it's at his mercy and
rleasure.

Q. And that's the purpose he does these
mehmanis --

A, Yes.

Q. -——- 1is to guide?

Would vou also agree with me that this mehmani is
rersonal and not puklished? Like, you know, the whole
Jamat who i1s sitting there, they don't hear what's
happrening between the Imam and the murid.

L. TYes, it i done in the context of closeness
with the murid and the murshid. But there are people
standing nearky who are also observing, and the Jamat
obgerves what's happening. So there are always people
who know but they can't listen.

Q. They can't. Because they are just

observing?
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2. (Deponent nods head up and down).

Q. And it's meant for personal intimate relation
between the Imam and his murid?

Nowadays Imam iz too busy So mehmanis don't
happren often.

A, It's not a question of busyness. Imam, when
he decides to grant that mehmani, he will grant.

Q. When he came in 19%%2, he did not have enough
time, So only 20 per cent of the Jamats were accepted for
mehmani, and they went alphabetically; correct?

2. That's what I'm given to understand.

Q. And vou understand that's what happened in
Canada; ves?

A, Yes.

Q. Were you present at any of the mehmanis or
any of the deedars in 1992 in Canada?

A. No, I was not.

Q. Now, going back to vyour paragraph 1, where
yvou indicate the positions that vyou hold, now, when vyou
ware appointed as the president of the Ismaili Council,
vou sald earlier that vour appointment was sort of

anmounced in the jamat khana by way of the talika --

A, Yes.
Q. ——- when you were appointed as president?
A, Yes.
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Q. Now, would vou agree with me that vour
appointment as the Head of the Department of Jamati
Institutions and Head of the Department of Diplomatic
Affairs at Alglemont and a Member of Aga Khan Development
Network and a Member of the Board of Governors have not
been read in jamat khanas by way of talika as other
institution appointments?

A. Correct. Because these are all held at the
behest of the Tmam at the time of his pleasure.

Q. And the purpose is those are, as we said
earlier, technically non-Jjamati institutions kecause they
are gort of outreach organizations?

2. MNo, the Institute isn't an outreach
organization. The Institute is wvery much central to the
work of the jamat.

Q. But there are many non-Ismaili members
appointed to the Institute?

A, Yes, only as part of the board of governors
But the Tmam -- the chairman is the Imam of the Time.

2. I understand. The jamati institutions that
we Spoke with earlier that announcements are made in
talika, those are all hundred per cent Ismaili
appointeess?

2. Correct. The jJamati appointments are

constitutional kodies.
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0. And in the Institute there are non-Ismaili
who are appointed there, aren't there?

L. TYes, all the directors on the board of
JOVernors.

Q. And the employees, there are no non-Ismailis
there?

2. There are people. But what I'm saying is
this is an institution, and the centrality of its work is
a tariga, but also other, Shia Islam and Islamic in
general.

Q. But what I'm trving to say, and perhaps if
yvou could just listen, iz ITREER is hundred per cent
Ismaili men?

2. ITRER is a constitutional body.

Q. Right. 2and hundred per cent Ismaili men;

ves?

A, Correct.

Q. Institute is not hundred per cent Ismaili
men. There's a difference between the two, isn't there?

A, But I explained to wyou the Institute has a
board of governors and they have a staff with mavbe
Ismailis and non-Ismailis, kbut the Imam is the chair of
the Institute.

2. And those menmbers who are appointed to the

Institute don't take this ocath of office that we spoke of

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 328 of 536



10

11

12

13

14

15

1l&

17

18

1%

20

21

22

23

24

25

216

217

218

219

AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 50

earlier?

2. No. They are directors.

2. Even the members who are appointed to
Institute, those employees, they did not take an oath of
office?

2. No. This iz an institution for learning.

Q. Now, with respect to yvour duties and
responsikilities az the head of the Department of Jamati
Institutions, what would vou say are your
responsikilities and okligations?

2. I think I have very clearly outlined them in
the first statement of my kackground. It's all there.
Do yvou want me to repeat all of that?

Q. No. I'm asking -—-

2. My positions that I'm holding, vou wanted --

MR. TAJDIN: I think it's in paragraph 3.

THE DEPCWENT: 2nd vou wanted -- and I'we
described my background. 211 of that has keen described
here on item 1, 2 and 3. Do yvou wish me to re-read that?

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. No. My gquestion is: 2As the Head of the
Department of Jamati Institutions, what are yvour duties
and responsikilities?

2. To oversee on behalf of His Highness the

community's social governance institutions: National
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Councils; Tariga and Religious Education Boards; Grants
and Review Boards; Conciliation and Arkbitration Boards.
These are the oversight of these kbodies that I oversee
and the coordination of those kbodies. That's what I see.
I'm not —— I'm the head of the Jamati

Institutions, kbut there are all of these constitutional
bodies that I helped to coordinate, and that's the
important thing, coordinating.

220 Q. S0 when you say "coordinating,™ what do vyvou
coordinate?

2. The budgets of the institutions.

221 Q. Right.
2. The plans we coordinate.
222 Q. Right.
2. Their actiwvities in terms of what is to be

done within the guidance giwven the Imam of the Time,
these institutions are operating within those guidance

that he has given.

223 2. Do they report to you?
2. Who?
224 0. Those institutions?
2. They report -- all of them are appointed by
Mowlana Hazar Imam. So first and foremost, all of them

are accountakle to the Imam of the Time as institutional

leaders. Because their appointment is not by me; it iz
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v the TImam of the Time. I am coordinating their
activities.

2. So you cannot direct them what to do?

2. TUnless given by the Imam. 2And I also would
ke akble to look at the directions that the Imam has given
that may need to ke followed through as guidance for
these institutions.

So I coordinate that ketween the Imam and this
institution in terms of the functioning of that
institution.

Q. So, for example, ITREER Ontario, you say you
are also coordinating them?

2. No. Ontario -- first of all, the point of
reference i35 the national ITREBR, according to the
Constitution. So the national bodies are the ones that

we coordinate at the imamat level.

Q. Right.
2. There are regional kodies and there are local
bodies. Those are not coordinated in the sense that they

are national jurisdiction.

"coordination,™ if I

Q. S0 when you use the word
say that vour responsikility was Just passing messages
back and forth the documents that come back to the Imam

from the wvarious institutions, wyou just organize them and

send it over to the Imam if necessary?
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2. No. If the institutions have a number of
issues, their first point of reference in terms of their
activities in terms of their what I call "functional
work," that is the administrative work, the work that
they are doing, the point of reference is the Department
0f Jamati Institutions at Aiglemont through the ITREER
coordinator who coordinates, first of all, all the tariga
board activities.

0. Who is the ITREER coordinator?

2., TUntil recently it was Mr. Mohamed Keshaviee.

MR. GRAY: You'd better spell that.

THE DEPCWENT: M-o-h-a-m-e-d, Keshavjee,
K-e-s-h-a-v-j-e-e.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. S0 when you say "until recently," what do you
mean "until recentlvy"?

2. Well, he has just retired from the office,
but he is now for awhile running as a consultant till a
new coordinator iz brought in once Hazar Imam authorizes
and approves the replacement ITREER coordinator.

0. S0 he's the ITREER coordinator?

A, Yes.

0. And all the ITRER activities, he coordinates
them?

. Correct. He oversees the coordination work
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0of the ITREBs. Under the Department of Jamati
Institutions, he coordinates the ITRER activities. Also
he coordinates the work relating to the administrative
side of the conciliation and arbitration board.

2. S0 he reports to you?

2. He reports to me in line. But also he iz
employed by the Imam, so his direct responsikility in the
sense that he is employed by the Imam, Imam appointed
him. T didn't appoint him. But to, again, to coordinate
the department on a day-to-day basis, he works with me.

Q. Now, in terms of vyour responsikilities, all
the ITREER coordinators' responsikilities, do wyou or do
theyv have amny rights to supersede the Constitution?

2. The ITREE coordinator?

Q. Yes. Or you?

2. Constitutionally, we are all kound Ly the
Constitution.

Q. And vou would agree with me then that all
institutional kodies, ITREER Ontario as an example, they
are all bound to follow the Constitution?

2. Well, because they are part of the
constitutional kbodies.

Q. And their dutiez, what they are supposed to
ke doing or their jJurisdiction is all wvested by the

Constitution?
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2. Yes. Under the responsikilities of the
ITREEsS. They're defined in the Constitution what those
are.

Q. Now, when the Tmam visits Jamats,
occazionally he meets some committees, such as the
leaders have a bangquet?

MR. GRAY: Is this a question or a statement?

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Yes. Leaders have a bangquet and the Imam
visits or participates in the bandquet, and he guides
them. Would you term that as a farman or a speech?

2., I'm sorry, could you repeat that question? I
don't understand.

Q. When the Imam visits jamats, occasionally
outside of the jamat khana he meets some committees —-
could ke the council committee, could ke the leaders

dinner, as an example, and he speaks to them?

A, Yes.

2. Would that be categorized as a sSpeech or a
farman?

2. No. It iz made -- this iz a -- the speech

made by the Imam at an institutional dinmer, this is for
the people who are gathered there for the occasion of
that particular visit on that particular wvisit, and they

are there, but most of these are institutional leaders
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from the constitutional bodies, or people who have keen
either, vyou know, been invited in the capacities of their
offices.

Q. Now, is that a farman or is it jJust a
speech?

2. He makes a speech to those people. A farman
is a direction into a Jamat khana context. This is not a
Jamat khana.

Q. Now, you sald earlier that you first found
out about these books that were published by Mr. Tajdin
after vyvou started working at Aiglemont, and I think you
said vou started working at Aiglemont in December of
199672

A. Around that time.

@. I then take it that Mr. Tajdin had never
sought any permission from you to pukblish those kbooks?

2. There was never permission given to
anykbody.

Q. To your knowledge, did he seek any permission
from any other institutional leaders?

2. I'm not aware of that. I have not sSeen any
communication from Mr. Tajdin in any of the
constitutional bodies to the Imam, which is really the
rerson to whom that communication should have kbeen

sent.
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Q. And with respect to -- had he asked you, you
have no right to consent? If he asked you and said, "Can
I do this, print these farmans?" vou have no jurisdiction
to ——

2. I have no authority to grant any permission
to anyvbody to puklish farmans of the Tmam. They always
have to ke authorized by the Imam of the Time. The
principles —-

Q. According to you, who has the authority to
ruklish farmans?

2. It's wested in the Imam, authority to
puklish.

Q. S0 are you Saying only the Imam can puelish
farmans?

. TImam has -- he -- because its his works and
it's his moral rights, he is the only one who will direct
or give permission for that to ke pubklished, or he will
give his authority for them to be released under once he
has reviewed them and is satisfied that those are the
farmans to be released.

2nd I'm sayving to you the release of the farmans
and the publishing of the farmans, they're two different
issues.

Q. S0 1s anybody today authorized to puklish

farmans?
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2. Not till Hazar Imam gives direction for
puklishing them. I know he has authorized the release of
the farmans for the jJamat to the tariga koard, or the
farmans that are his -- approved by him, reviewed Ly him
first, rather, by himself, and then he's satisfied, and
then he releases for the jamat through the constitutional
bodies. And in this case it's the tarida board, the
Ismaili Tariga and Religious Education Board, what we
call ITRER, which we have mentioned earlier.

Q. Now, there are a number of places where there
is a well-established process for the publication or
distribution of farmans?

2. Not the publication. It's the distribution
0of the farmans of how farmans, when they are released by
the Imam, how are they then to be sent and how that
process works.

Q. Now, Mr. Keshavijee, does he have the
authority to edit farmans? To edit farmans?

2. Farmans are never edited by anybody except
Imam will review them.

Q. And vyvou told Mr. Tajdin that Imam "thinks in
French, speaks in English, and makes mistakes, so we edit
them, we correct them"?

2. That's his words, not mine.

Q. And vyvou never said that?
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2., I didn't say about mistakes. What I said
was, and I want to really put it on properly, is that
Imam himself had told me that when he makes farmans, he
makes extempore farmans. And extempore farmans, when he
makes them, he thinks in French, and the farmans are made
in English.

And it iz absolutely correct in my view that
farmans of any -- from my point of view any Imam from
that point of view, the Imam has his right to review
those farmans because the spoken word and then text have
to be compared and be satisfied that that is what he
wished to be released.

Q. Would vou agree with me that that's vour
oplinion?

A. No. It is what the Imam has told me
rersonally.

0. That he what?

2. That he has made -- it's a long tradition
absolutely going back through many, many vyears.

" g0 Sultan also had

Q. When vyou say "many years,
the same policy as well?

2., I'm not -— I'm talking about this Imam. I
wasn't present with the 48th Imam. I was not working for

him. But I can only tell vyvou that Imam reviews this

material himself for the last many, many vears since T
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have been working, and he releases it only when he is
satisfied with it.

Q. Now, do you have any, either a farman --
right? -- or an article in the Constitution that savys
that the Imam edits farmans or has to edit farmans or has

to approve farmans before they are released for

distribution?

2. There's a very clear constitutional mandate.
If wvou read article -- the only people that are
authorized to do that are constitutional koard. If vyou

look at the article, wery clearly article 14 of the
Constitution, 14.1(c} clearly says that it is only the
Tmam who -- it's wery clear on -- 14.1 article C is
absolutely clear.
Q. Can vyou read —-- you're showing --
. "...without the permission in writing of the
Wational Council obtained through the Regional
Council within those (zic) Jurisdiction he
resides" --
MR. GRAY: Within whose.
THE DEPCWENT: Sorry, "...within whose
Jurisdiction he resides, prints, pubklishes, or
circulates any material or makes any statement or
conwvenes a meeting or assembkly purporting to ke

on kbehalf of or in the name of or relating to
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Mawlana Hazar Imam, the Ismaili Tarigah, the

Jamat, any Council or any other Ismaili

institution;"

So that really says to you —-

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Sorry, my guestion earlier, I don't know if
you —-—

2. Sorry. Mayke vyvou said something different.

0. Yes, I think so.

2. All right. Let's get it right then.

P. I'm going to go back to that. I said to you:
Is there any farman or any article in the Constitution
that says that farmans cannot ke released for
distribution to the jamats kefore the Imam has edited and
approved them? That's my question.

2. It is not in the Constitution, but that's a
rrocess established by the present Imam.

Q. S0 what I'm saying to you --

2. Imam iz abkbove the Constitution, I explained
to you. He transcends the Constitution in a sense that
even 1f the Constitution is there, Imam has a right to do
what he wishes to do. He has the authority to change or
to decide or to alter or to do whatever he wishes to
do.

@. I'll come kack to that in a second. I just
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want to focus on the cuestion that I asked wyou. My
gquestion, and I'm going to repeat it again: Iz there any
article in the Constitution or is there any farman that
says before any farman that has been made by the Imam,
before it is distributed to the jamats, has to ke edited
and approved by the Imam? That's my dquestion.

2. Not in the way that vou describe.

Q. Now, you sald earlier -- as you were Just
answering this issue, I see your lawyer 15 polinting you
to something?

2. The same --

ME. GRAY: Article 14.1(c}.

THE DEFCHNENT: That's the one that I read.
Because yvou're talking about the issue of editing and the
issue akout farmans, and this to me is the article.
That's why I cuoted yvou that article.

BY MR. JIWA:

@. Sir, the article that vou are gquoting me, the
14.1 that vour lawyer also is pointing vou to see, show
me where does it say that it's the Imam who is going to
edit and approve kbefore they are released. On the
contrary, 1t seems to suggest that National Council can
do that decision. You are sayving all along that the Imam
approves and edits farmans?

2. HNational Council has no authority to edit
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farmans.

Q. But vou're pointing to this --

2. No, it's not. I'm talking about, wvery
clearly, the provisions in this Constitution that gives
unfettered right to the Imam.

Q. OCkavy. 14.1({c}, where doezs it say the Imam
has to approve or it gives him the unfettered right,
14.1(c?

2. No, but it's Imam vou're talking about that
there i3 —- anybody who prints, publishes or circulates
any material.

Q. But this iz not my question. I mean --—

2. The gquestions vyvou are asking is Imam edits,
is it in the Constitution, and I'm saying to you not the
way as you've described it in the Constitution. I'm
saying there are provisions but not the way about editing
or the way that vou describe, it's not that.

Q. Now, I'm suggesting to you that what vou are
Saying iz simply vour opinion and perhaps Mr. Keshavijee's
opinion and perhaps other leaders' opinion. But I say to
wvou that the Constitution nor any farman says that a
farman that's been made by the Imam may not ke
distributed to the jamat before it's edited and
authorized by the Imam?

MR. GRAY: You'wve already indicated these are
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gquestions of opinion. The Constitution is here. The
interpretation of the Constitution I'm sure yvou will
argue before a jJudge. We'll read the words of the
Constitution, and so far as it's relevant, we'll deal
with it as a matter of interpretation.

THE DEPCWENT: I take my instructions from His
Highness, and that's what His Highness has conveyed to
me.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Now, vou have said earlier that His Highness
expects the jJamats and the leaders of the institutions,
and indeed the institution has taken oath to defend the
Constitution, to follow the Constitution; correct?

2. ARbsolutely.

Q. Now, when I read your Affidavit, vou have
said in your Affidavit that soon after or shortly after
vou started working there, the Imam expressed his
concerns to you about this distribution of these farman
books.

WNow, vou said "

shortly after.”" Could vou ke a
little more specific? What do yvou mean "shortly"™? You
started working there December of 1%96; correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And vour term as president expired in 19967

AL Yes.
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Q. Now, when vou say "shortly after," like is it
weeks? Days? Months?

2. No. It was later on, after in my term of
office, around prokakly early '598. Because I cannot
recollect exactly when it was, but I do know that he had
expressed to me his concern about this material.

Q. Can vyou try and recall what words he used,
how did he tell vou, what did he tell vou?

2. I cannot recall exactly on the words, but I
can tell wyou the thrust of his issues to me.

Q. And according to you, the thrust is that
these farman kooks distributed ky Mr. Tajdin, he
disapproves?

2. He disapproves there's anvbody publishing

material without his authority.

P. So did he say Mr. Tajdin or he just said
anykbody?

2. No, he says —-- he was very clear that he does
not approve anyvbody who is in the -- which are not

authorized farmans and not gone through the process to ke
alkble to publish this material.

Q. Did he say that in response to your gquestion
or he said it on his own?

2. No, he was discussing this. Because every

time the farmans were being released, there were people
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who were recording farmans and releasing farmans before
even the Imam had given his authority for the release of
the farmans.

@. So that's what he was referring to? He was
only referring to these farmans kooks?

. MNo, but these farmans books were a
compilation of all type of farmans, that they were all
unauthorized.

Q. Now, in your conversation with the Imam, and
yvou say it could have keen '97 or early "98, not 977

A, Well, T can't -- az I said to you, I cannot
recollect exactly the date, but I do know that during the
early part of my work, he had -- because it was in the
context of, as I said, the releasing of the farmans.
Because there were members of the jamat who actually were
recording the farmans, and then they were releasing the
farmans kefore the Imam had the opportunity to review the
material himself to be able to ensure that those were the
farmans he wished to ke released.

@. S0 -—— I mean you don't recall his words, but
yvou are saying all of this, but vou don't recall what
words he used. Did he use the word "recording"; people
are recording his farmans?

2. But he was aware —--

Q. No. The question is: Did he use the words
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when he told you that people are recording his farmans?

2. He knew that there was recording kecause he
knows -- he knew akout the fact that people were
recording.

0. 8o he knew it at that time?

A, Yes.

0. And he said —-

2. And he disapproves of this.

Q. And he told vou he disapproves of that?

2. Yes. That is not towards people.
Unauthorized recording of the farmans.

Q. And how often or how many times did he tell
wvou that? How many times did you have the discussion?

2. As I said to you, this matter used to come at
the time of the wisits when this was the time when he was
visiting a country, these farmans, when he made the
farmans, and then when they were being submitted to Hazar
Tmam for approval, they were farmans for indiwviduals who
ware recording the farmans, transcriking it, and
releasing it.

Q. S0 when yvou went to the Imam after the Imam
had made the farman in 1928 -- do yvou know where he
visited in 19987

2. Well, T haven't got all the wisits, but I can

tell vou there were many visits after -- during my time
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of the office. I cannot -- but there were many visits.

Q. But at that time he didn't tell wou that,
that he's concerned, in 19947

2., 1994 I was the president of the council.

Q. And when vou are the president, His Highness
0of course interacted with you; wvou were the president of
the U.K. Council and he was there for about seven days?

2. Absolutely. Five days.

Q. And at that time, he did not tell vou his
concern akout people recording the farman?

A. MNot with me. When I was in the U.K. at that
time, he was there for the wvisit.

Q. But during that visit, did he tell wou that
he iz concerned about his farmans being recorded?

2. Not to my knowledge.

2. And he only told vyvou after you started
working for him?

2. Because that is my capacity in a different

way. 1 waz the national president at the time. Now I
was head of the -- at least the Department of Jamati
Institutions.

Q. Now, during the time wyou were the president,
which T see i3 from 19%1 to 1%%6, during those times,
those five, six years, did anvbody tell wvou that the Imam

is concerned with the farmans recording and

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 347 of 536



10

11

12

13

14

15

1l&

17

18

1%

20

21

22

23

24

25

293

294

AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 69

distribution?

2. I'd heard there's issues that even though --
the coordinator was sSayving the same thing, that's Mohamed
Feshavijee at the time, he was the coordinator. He was
the coordinator before and he was there.

2. And would vou agree with me it was
Mr. Keshaviee who had these concerns?

A. MNo. He had indicated as well that this is
happening and that was a concern, that the farmans were
being released without Mowlana Hazar Imam's approval
process.

Q. Okay, I get it.

Wow, how many times do you recall that vou had
this conversation with His Highness after vyou started
working there?

2. I cannot respond to that kecause I cannot
tell vou how many times. But I do know, as I say, on a
nunker of occasions during the visit -- not every single
visit but -- because in some wisits we were able to
release the farmans and Hazar Imam was able to review the
farmans and ke abkle to release the farmans in time wvery
eazily, and this issue didn't arise because the farmans
were then authorized farmans.

But it only happened where there was time that

required the Imam, because of his busy work, bkecause
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after a wisit, a lot of work contents to happen, so it iz
at that time when somekbody releases this without him
having had the time to review them.

Q. I'm going to suggest to vou, Mr. Sachedina,
that what vou are saying, there i3 no corrokorating
evidence whatsoever; it's just vyour word, that's it?

A, Well, T can tell wyou that these were the
instructions from the Imam of the Time.

2. I understand. My question iz -- and vyou
repeated that a number of times. My cquestion to you is
this: These are simply vour opinions or your words which
vou are relating to His Highness, but there is no
corroborating evidence whatsoever anywhere that says it
is the Imam who desires this. Would vou agree with me?

2. I disagree with vyou.

Q. Can vou polint me to any corrokborating
document, article of the Constitution or any farman that
shows that the Imam has this concern?

MR. GRAY: You mean any corrokorating document

such as the documents in this case; is that what

you're —-—

BY MR. JIWA:

0. Other than this case.

2. You have geen, first of all, the
Constitution, which says -- for the case wyou know what iz
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there. It's absolutely clear. The Constitution says
that this issue of Imam pukblication is one thing, kut the
issue akbout the fact that the ITmam has written to say he
does not wish to ke published, wvou have received the
letter.

0. I'm not —--

MR. GRAY: Are vyou talking about things like the
affirmation or something?

MR. JIWA: No. Other than this action and the
documents that have been giwven, these two or three
letters, which I'1ll come to that in a —--

MR. GRAY: You have a sworn statement from His
Highness. You could call that a corrcborating
document.

MR. JIWA: I'm going to come to that a little
later.

BY MR. JIWA:

@. Prior to this litigation keing commenced, are
there any documents, any article anywhere, that
corroborates what vou say?

2., Well, I don't need any corroboration because
Tmam has actually made this as instructions.

@. Listen. My question iz not whether you need
corroboration or not. Would you agree with me, sir, and

vou sald this earlier, that the jamats are cbligated to
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follow the Imam's farmans and the Constitution?

A. Just as farmans that he has authorized for
release to the jamat. Not any farmans. 2bksolutely what
he had given for the jamat, which he has authorized for
the jJamat, and once he is the one who approves those
farmans.

Q. Will vou agree with me that the Constitution
prior to 1%86 never said that the Imam's authority is
required before distribution by the association?

MR. GRAY: Walt a minute. You haven't shown him
the prior 1%86 Constitution.

MR. JIwWha: It's in my Affidavit.

MR. GRAY: You're asking him to interpret the
result of the 1%36 Constitution.

MR. JIWA: I'm not asking him to interpret. I'm
Just ——

MR. GRAY: Yes, you are —-

MR. JIWA: I'm saying is there a clause that says
Tmam has to approve any farmans before they are released?

ME. GRAY: Well, he's not a constitutional
expert. I'm not going to answer that question.

—-—— REFUSAL

THE DEPCWENT: Well, let me tell wyou. That is up

to -—— from my point of view, the matters have a very

clear procedure over many, oany vears that this has been
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going on. This is not something now. This has been by
this Imam for a long period of time.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. And when vyou say long -- "many, many vyears, "
what would vou say? Fiwve years? Ten yvears?

2. I've told you that since I'wve been working, I
know that that is the case, and I thought it's been going
on possikly even kbefore I started work. But I do know
that this is the proceszs he follows every time.

o, Now —-—

2. Because when vyvou speak, it's generally not
understood. And when vyvou put it down in writing, it is
then -- you know, vou realize what you say and what
yvou've written is what iz -- how it's reviewed by the
Imam. He has to make sure that it is correct because
he's the authority on this matter.

Q. Would vou agree with me that the Imam, if vyou
are so concerned, could have put an article in here
telling the jamats not to record, not to copy, not to
distribute any farmans by way of photocopies, by way of
email, by way of books?

2. I believe article 14.1 covers that point
absolutely adequately, that nothing should happen. This
to me, article, is all-encompassing. That iz why in my

opinion that this authority is in the article, and it'sz
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actually an owver-arching article about all matters
relating to the tariga.

P. I'm going to ask vyvou to refer to vyour
Affidavit's Exhikit B in vyour Affidavit. Now, this says,
"ITRER Canada Farman Dissemination Process.”" And you'wve
given this as part of your evidence. 2And where did vyou
get this from?

2. This iz a document that has been the process
that they follow in Canada, and I asked them Just to make
sure —-- that the Imam wanted to see what the process was.
S0 that's what they put down, is a process which has been
what is in place in Canada.

Q. And so who gave this to vyou?

2. It came from the National Council
president.
Q. From Canadian president?

2. Yes. Because it was through the ITRER Canada
to give to the president and it has come. Because it was
a process that we jJust wanted to make sure that what is
the process followed, and that's what they hawve given,
that this is the process they followed.

Q. All right.

A, And it was given to me, and I also submitted
this to Hazar Imamn.

Q. Now, towards the end of number %, it zsays:
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"The above process 15 followed with Firmans received that
have been translated into other languages.™ ... "Gujarti,
Urdu and Farsi."

Do yvou know if there's any process of ensuring
the competency of the translators?

2. These are ——- first of all, we utilize the
expertise of the ITREBs in those countries where this
expertise lies. Because it i1s important that the country
where these farmans are being translated in the
languages, that we consult the ITREBs or people, if we
have experts on this, they will translate, and it has to
be wverified.

Q. And vou would agree with me that this process
that vou identified does not require the translated
versions to be sent back to Hazar Imam for approval?

2. No, kecause the translation, as I say,
theyv're checked a number of times because English was the
language.

Q. I don't see anywhere where it says it's
checked a number of times?

2. Well, bkecause what happens is there's not
Just one translation made, and that's really because
there are -- in some cases, people are sitting together
to make sure that it's translated.

There's a process in each ITREER when they're
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given to translate, they will check that this the final
farman's outcome.
Q. Now, in your visit to Canada in 1998, vou

came for a fundraising meeting; correct?

A, Yes.
Q. And vyvou visited other places -- Toronto,
WVancouver, Calgary -- for those ceremonies?

MR. GRAY: You should answer ves or no.

THE DEFCWENT: Tes.

MR. GRAY: If vou nod, then the reporter iz —-

THE DEPCWNENT: I'm sorry about that. My
apologies.

MR. GRAY: That's okay. I was walting for Mr.
Jiwa to -- it's his cross-examination, but still.

BY MR. JIWA:

P. I'm going to ask vou to turn to talk C of your
Affidavit. Now, this is written by Mohamed Keshavjee,

the individual vou identified earlier --

A, Yes.
0. —-— as the ITREER coordinator?
A, Yes.

Q. And they are giving this as sort of a sample.
This is what vou would send —-
2. He would send it to all the chairmens.

@. Right. &And now would vou agree with me that
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through all this stuff, he keeps on talking akout other
vergions of farmans, unofficial versions of the farmans,
that those should not ke read to the jamat khanas?

2. To what?

Q. That they should not ke read to the jamat
khanas? 2And that according to Mr. EKeshawvjee, that each
ITREE in every province or every country should be wvery
careful that only the farmans that he has sent should ke
read to the --

2. Authorized and released farmans through the
process.

0. And he was aware that all of these farmans
so-called unofficial wversions were being distrilbuted?

2. As I saild to you, we were aware, and so was
the ITRER coordinator aware, and so was the Imam aware
that that was happening.

Q. And it was a concern for Mohamed Keshavilee asz
the ITREER coordinator to make sure that only the official
version he sends are read and distributed?

And as far as you are concerned, are you aware
if, other than Mr. Tajdin, there are other individuals
who pukblish farmans?

2. Publish farmans?

[N Yes.

2. I'm not aware of any publication of the
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farmans the way I have looked at Nagik Tajdin's
farmans.

Q. By way of books have you ever seen?

2. No, I have not.

Q. Have wyou spoken with any other presidents to
inguire whether if anybody else is puklishing farmans?

2. Nobody has brought it to my attention.

Q. And if they were being published, thev would
ke brought to your attention?

2. If they were published and I knew about them,
if I had seen them, then it would have been brought to my
attention, at least I would hope =zo.

Q. Now, with this litigation, it has kecome sort
0f public knowledge in the Jamats concerning these
puklications, so even after this, nokody has called wvou
to say in their jurisdiction somekody else is selling --

A. I am not aware of that.

Q. With respect to these publications, vyou know
the other individuals who are involved in this
distribution and puklication of these farman kbooks?

2. No, I don't know the people individually. I
only know of Nagik from that point of view, and I know
that there are other people, because Nagib himself said
that there are other people involved in this exercise.

P. In fact, in the plane ride you were going to
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and coming back from Syria in 2001, vou know there were
two other individuals with Mr. Tajdin?

2., I'll tell vou now I have no recollection of
who these individuals are or what they do. I have to
tell vou that. Because I did not look at them from that
view. Because my relationship with Nagik has always been
maintained on a real cooperative and in a manner of not
adversarial at all.

MR. GRAY: Until now.

BY MR. JIWA:

@. But in the trip, he had two other indiwviduals
that were with him?

2., I'm sorry, but I cannot recollect who those
individuals were.

Q. On that trip to Syria?

L. Yes, I cannot recollect.

Q. And vyvou cannot recollect who those
individuals are, but I am saying there were other
individuals with him on that plane?

A, Well, I don't know who are the people that
WNagilk goes around with all the time. There are many
reople around Nagik. I don't keep a tab on WNagik, who
goes around with him.

Q. And that trip to Syria was the trip when

Mowlana Hazar Imam had wisited Syria -—-
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A, Yes.

Q. —— in 20017

2. That's what vou are describking in vyour
documents.

Q. Now, I'm going to ask vyvou to turn to talk E?

MR. GRAY: Tak E of —-

MR. JIwa: Of his Affidavit.

BY MR. JIWA:

0. Now, this is the announcement that was read
or sent to the jamat khanas on January 16, 20107

2. That iz correct.

2. Do vyvou know who drafted this announcement?

A, Sorry?

2. Do vyvou know who drafted this announcement?

2. That announcement was drafted by the LIF with
Secretariat with the input of the chairman of the LIF.

0. Who is the chair of the LIF?

2. Arim Lakhani and myself at the Department of
Jamati Institutions.

Q. So you are the chair of LIF?

. No, I'm not. I said the chairman of the LIF
is Dr. Azim Lakhani, and I, as the DJI, a person who iz
sitting on the LIF at the kehest of the Imam, we —-- first
of all, this announcement was Harar Imam's decision that

an announcement be made and the draft be prepared.
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0. 8o who drafted this?
2. Az I said to you, the Secretariat of the LIF
is involved in this, Azim Lakhani was involved in it, I

was in it, and so was I think the national president for

Canada.

Q. S0 when yvou say "Secretariat,” I mean is
there one person in -- I mean —-—

2. The Secretariat, there are people working in

the Secretariat of the LIF. The LIF and DJI Secretariat
is based at the Institute of Ismaili Studies.

Q. S0 all of wyou, =ir, together drafted this --

2. Yes. Because the issues were -- vyou always
rut down points that vou want to cover in the
announcement, and then, vyou know, a working draft is
rrepared and it's reviewed.

Q. So it was collective between -- do you know
how many people would have keen involved, number of
reople?

2. No, only couple, two or three people. 2z T
said to you, there would be the Secretariat of the LIF.

0. Who is the Secretariat?

2. There is Egkal Rupani, and there's two other
reople there. One i3 Nadia -- I think Nadia Asaria and
there's a yvoung man who sits there as well who works at

the moment within the --
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0. What's his name?

Z. Ali Khan.

@. Ali EKhan.

-—— Off-the-record discussion.

THE DEPCWENT: They are people who are at the LIF
Secretariat.

BY MR. JIWA:

@. S0 all together, how many individuals are
involved in drafting this?

2. I told wyvou the key people who were involved
was Edbal Rupani, who was the LIF Secretariat, Azim
Lakhani, myself, and I think it was the president of the
council for Canada.

2. Mohamed Manji.

2. Mohamed Manji, M-a-n-]-1i.

-—— Off-the-record discussion.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Now, would vou agree with me that this
announcemnent does not tell the jamat that it is His
Highness who disapproves of the distribution of the
farmans?

L. TYes, this was -- as I said, it was authorized
v Molwana Hazar Imam.

@. Right, but I'm Just saying that the jamat was

not told that His Highness disapproves of
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the distribution or purchase of this --

A. No. It is the Leaders' International
Forum --

. Just listen to my question. Yes or no. It
doesn't say —-- please pay attention to my gquestion. My
gquestion is: This announcement -- right? -- does not

indicate to the jamat if His Highness is prohibkiting or
refusing or frowming upon this activity?

MR. GRAY: It says what it says. You can read
it. We can all read it. You can make vyvour arguments
albout what it says. Why are vou asking him to interpret
the documents?

MR. JIWA: I'm not asking him to interpret. I'm
Just confirming that this does not tell the jamat that
His Highness does not wish —-

THE DEPCWENT: LIF is the kody that reports to
the Imam, appointed by the Imam. So if he is making an
announcement, there cannot be an announcement which is
made v the LIF which has no input of the Imam here.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Would vou agree with me, sir, that there is
no okligation on a Jamati member to take the words of LIF
over the Constitution or over the farmans of the Imam;
yes or no?

2. The LIF --
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Q. Me, as an example, when I listen to this
announcement --

2. But LIF is part of the constitutional kody,
sir.

Q. Sir, my gquestion to you is this: LIF
Ssupersedes Hazar Imam's farman?

. It doesn't.

Q. Doesn't. It doesn't have that power?

2. Doesn't have authority to supersede the
farman.

Q. Even if LIF says to somebkody, "don't do
this," they don't have to follow; would vyvou agree with
me?

2. No, but as I said to you --

[N Yes or no?

2. As I say, LIF will -- people have to make the
Judgment of what the announcement says and make their own
decisions.

Q. Sir, listen to my gquestion. I understand
what you say and understand that yvou would like the Jamat
to follow everything they are told by LIF or by their
president, but that's not my question. My question is —-
and you admitted this earlier -- we are okliged to follow
farmans and the Constitution; correct?

2. LIF is a constitutional kody.
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Q. It is a constitutional kody but we are not
okliged to follow the constitutional kody —-

2. Because if wvou're following the
constitutional, LIF i3 a constitutional kody, sir.

0. You would like ——

2. No, it i3 no. It is part of the
Constitution. Read the Constitution. LIF is a
consultative body. It is part of the Constitution.

0. I understand.

2. If wyou read that carefully, it is wery clear
LIF is part of the Constitution.

Q. So you expect the jamats to follow the LIF
over the Constitution and farmans?

2. But they are part -- I'm explaining to you.
They are part —--

Q. S0 being a part of the constitutional kody,
yvou expect us to follow them?

2. It has authority in the -- it's consultatiwve
body to the Imam and has authority because the Imam, as T
said to you, directs LIF to make the announcement.
Otherwise, the LIF cannot make this type of
announcement.

Q. Listen to my question. My dquestion is simpgly
this: The jamats are okligated to follow the farmans of

the Imam; correct?
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A, But —-

[N Yes?

. —— (inaudikle} -- farmans with that
announcement.

2. Does this anywhere say this iz a farman of

the Imam?

A. HNo.

Q. Doesn't say. Right.

Wow, let me go to the second paragraph. You say
here:

"The LIF International Council take this

opportunity to recall that Molwana Hazar Imam has

entrusted the responsikility for printing and

circulating farman texts and other talika and

Jamati-related matters to relevant Jamati

ingtitutions." Which jamati institutions are wvou

referring to here?

A, ITREE.

Q. S0 why did vou not just say "ITRER"?

2. Because that is -- people know that the
farmans are always authorized by the tariga board.

Q. Would vou agree with me, sSir, that ITREBR's
name only came in the Reply to the Defence of Mr. Tajdin
and mine. 2All along it is relevant Jamati institutions.

When was ITRER appointed as the authorized kody?
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2. ITREER has always been the authorized kody.
270 0. Now —-

2. For the present time, thisz Imam has
authorized the ITREEs to ke the body, relevant kody for
puklications or, rather, distributions of all the
religious matter, according to the constitution.

371 Q. There is nothing in the Constitution that
says ITREER has been given this power?

2. It iz there. If wyou come back to that ITREE,
as I say to you, if vou look at the -- all the materials
relevant to the Islam and the Ismaili tariga, that if vou
look at --

372 0. Which clause?

A, 8.4(d}. 2And that is the role. If vou look
at tarigqa and Religious Education Board, if vou look at
that, it says, "...undertake the publication of kooks and
material on relevant aspects of Islam and the Ismaili
Tarigah;"

373 Q. And he talks of books and materials; right?

A, Yes. On Ismmili tarida, farmans are part of
the tariga material.

374 Q. A1l right. But it doesn't specify farmans,
does 1it?

A. It's included. It's inclusive.

375 Q. So why —-
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2. Ismaili tariga has material, and the taridga
board is responsible, and farmans are part of the Ismaili
tariga, and the doctrine of the Ismailis, sir.

376 P. Isn't that contradictory to everything you'we
been sayving to date?

2. What?

377 Q. You are completely contradictory. You are
contradicting vyourself, sir, aren't you?

A. What -- the farmans --

278 0. You —-

2. Release of the farmans, this is the body that
actually releases the farmans for the jamat. The process
we're talking akout, earlier on you said ITREBz, and I
said ITREER, ves.

279 0. Fine. So 1f wvou look at 8.4k} and if that
is wour jurisdiction to say ITREER has jurisdiction over
farmans, then why do vou need Hazar Iman's approval?

MR. GRAY: Look at the kegimning of 8.4.

BY MR. JIWA:

280 0. Where does it say —-

2. It is always done under the behest of the
Tmam.

281 Q. Excuse me, 3ir, where does it say that
approval for approval for publication of farmans --

2. If wyou read 8.4, it says: "Each Tarigah and
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Peligious Education Board shall under the direction and
guidance of Mawlana Hazar Imam." Not without his
directions or guidance.

2And I want to point out to you it will therefore
under Imam's direction undertake the pubklication of kooks
and materials of relevance to Islam and Ismaili taridga.
The distribution process is part of the responsikbility of
the tariga board once given authorization by the Imam of
the Time. Does that not make sense to you?

Q. No, it doesn't, because it is one thing to
say under the direction and guidance of Mowlana Hazar
Tmam, and it's another thing to say vou need his prior
approval.

If wvou look at the Rulez and Regulations, if vou
look at the Rules and Regulations, function 24, those are
the powers that have been granted to each local tariga
board.

2. But that's local tariga koard. You're
talking akout the national tariga boards. Because the
farmans, I kept on telling vyou, they come to the national
boards, not the local koards.

Q. Right.

. It's the national board that directs them.

@. All right. Now -- and this is what vou are

Ssaying iz a breach of the Ismaili Constitution?
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2. The article -- in my view, both article
14.1({c} and article 8.4 (d} are -- wvery much work
together.

2. Right. &And those are your authority --

2. And I've told wyou —-

[N Yes?

A. —-- there's the Constitution. You have -- the
letter from the Tmam of the Time telling him not to do
that. You have the second letter from the Imam to tell
yvou not to do that. You have an affirmation that says
not to do that. 2nd then vou also have very clearly the
Statement of Claim which was filed by the Mr. Plaintiff,

the Imam of the Time sayving I don't want vyou to do that.

0. 8ir —-

2. 5o there are four documents telling wyou not
to do that. Five documents now.

Q. Those documents you know are being disputed

bv us. But we'll come to that. We'll come to that.
Wow, 1if vou go down to the last sentence —-
2. Of which paragraph?
0. Of the same.
A, Yes?
P. "The jamat would pleased to ke informed that
Molwana Hazar Imam has already approved that the Jamati

Institution should formally puklish a volume containing
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" [ag read]

the approved text of hiszs farmans.

Do yvou know when did he formally approve this?

2. The principal. This is an approval of the
principle to puklish. That does not mean you can pukelish
tomorrow. It is the principle that he has agreed. The
principle to approve, that he has approved the principle
0f kbeing akle to publish the farmans at his time.

He has not made a decision that tomorrow you will
puklish this. He has given his -- here, az I say to you,
"approve the Jamat to formally this." So he has given
his agreement to puklish. Now the process has got to ke
gone through.

Q. Okay, 50 what I'm saying -- my question was:
When did he give this approval?

2. This was during the -- this discussion has
kbeen on the talkle with Hazar Imam for a number of vyears.

0. No, this —-

2. Listen to me, please. I have also.

MR. GRAY: Let him finish his --

THE DEPCWENT: I have to be akle to give vyou the
context of this. It is my right to give vou a context to
this.

2nd, therefore during the Jukilee there were a —-
during the Golden Jukilee of the Imam, there were a

nunker of projects, and one of them was -- there's one to
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do with the speeches of the Imam, and this one also iz
the farmans of the Imam. And these were issues that were
discussed by -- with Hazar Imam, and he has, as I said,
given in principle his agreement to do this.

The guestion is going to be the timing in when
this will happen and the process has to -- due process
will have to ke gone through kefore they are released to
the Jjamat.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. S0 my guestion is when -- when the final
approval was given?

A. ABbout the...?

Q. When you say "has already approved"?

2., I told vou during the meeting with the
leaders —-- at the time of the Golden Jukbilee, this
rroposal was —-

Q. No, it would ke nice if wou would say what
month, what vear?

2. During the Golden Jukilee when we -- leaders
of the jamat periodically meet Hazar Imam, and there were
meetings with Hazar Imam about what will ke the outputs
that we will do before the Jubilee, during the Jubkiles,
and the post-Jukilee.

2nd the farmans would ke the compilation also

of —— all the farmans of the Golden Jubkilee would be
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included in this. So this was something that came out of
the Golden Jubilee.

Q. So you cannot point to the month that he
gave —-—

2. This was done in the context of the principle
0f -- agreement by approval by Hazar Imam to do certain
things. 2And this was informed to the jamat that that
approval has been given by Imam to do this. But, as I
say to you, there's a process to follow, which Hazar Imam
will have to ke -- his guidance will have to be sought.

MR. GRAY: Excuse me just for a second.

-—— Off-the-record discussion.

—-—— Recess taken at 11:59% AM.

—-—— Upon resuming at 12:09 FM.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Now, Mr. Sachedina, vyour announcement --

A, Yes.

Q. You were talking akout this already approved
and you explained that. Now, to vour knowledge has His
Highness, prior to his Golden Jukilee approval, has he
ever approved prior to that for the publication of the
farmans?

2. The principle to pukblish?

Q. What do vou mean "the principle™?

2. Because the fact is that, vou know, there is
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no puklication at the present time. There 15 no
puklication of farmans authorized by any institution
actually at the present time which iz there. So this
will ke something that iz in the process. It was in the
process, principle was agreed with Hazar Imam.

Q. Right.

2. And now it's being looked at. Because I --
50 that vou should ke aware, I had raised this matter
with Hazar Imam of the Time of my meetings with Nagilk at
that time akout this whole issue, that we will need to
make sure that there's a pubklication availakle.

Q. Did he giwve vyvou an approval at that time?
Did vou ask him for approval at that time?

2. No, he had said that -- we are wvery, very
clear on this matter, that whatever it is vyou prepare,
submit, and then we will make a decision once I have
reviewed the material.

@. Right. 2and so he said that in 19%%2 to vyou?

2. He said the principle about this iz something
IT'm willing to consider and I'm willing to look at.

And that's why I was very sSatisfied that this is
where the direction we will end up at some point in time,
but only after he has given his authority #H#.

Q. Now, I take yvou to your tabk L. Now, earlier

I showed wou that Mr. Keshavj]ee's letter where he's
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talking akout unauthorized or unofficial puklications

should not ke puklished, should not but read out in jamat

khanas.

MR. GRAY: You're referring to...?

THE DEPCWENT: The unauthorized --

BY MR. JIWA:

0. TUnauthorized or —--

2. Public farmans should not ke read in jamat
khanas.

Q. Yes. MNow, if vou will note -- sSo this
concern, would you agree with me, has been going on for a
long time?

2. Yes, that's what we have said to yvou. And T
thought that this particular issue, even after my visits
here with Nagik in 19%9%8, in my opinion had completely
slowed down, from my opinion. That means that there were
no —— and I have to say that with working with Nagilk at
the time, there were no publications at least that I'm
aware of which were coming out in a way that were going
to compromise integrity of the farmans of the Imam.

Q. Now, this unofficial, are you suggesting —-
and I'm going kack to your tabk C where Mr. Mohamed
Feshavijee 13 speaking akbout it.

Is he following unofficial only to Tajdin's

unofficial wversion according to you?
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2., Az I said to you, we don't know where these

unofficial versions come from.

407 0. 8o there are others as well?
2. Maybke.
408 Q. So the concern was not only Mr. Tajdin —-
A, No. I'm just saying that people -- because
we don't know who has -- who are the people who are doing

the recording.
409 Q. Right.

2. Because there may ke Nagilk or his people or
others also working. So I don't know that. But we are
aware that Nagilb has interest and he records these
farmans.

410 0. And there are others as well who have
interest and who distribute by email or --

2., Well, as I said to wyou, this is something
which is impossikle in the electronic age to know exactly
who distributes to whom. I couldn't tell you. But there
may ke others also doing that.

But what it is, this is very clear that
unauthorized, whether it is Nagik's or anykody else's.

411 Q. You're sayving "may kbe." I want to ke clear
on this point. Do vou know if anvbody else other than
Wagilk who is also distributing even if not the kook, by

email or by photocopies —-
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2. Well, I thought when I saw vour Affidavit vou
now say to me that vou do this as well.

[N Yes.

A. I didn't know that.

Q. But my cuestion is: Other than me and
Mr. Tajdin, do vou know if anvbody else -- like, wyou are
a resident of U.K.?

A, Yes.

Q. Are there local people there who are
distributing either by email or through family and
friends?

2., Well, as I say, this is a possibkility.
Because electronic mail can come from sSo many places.
Once vou give it out, everybody else gets it.

P. I just want to know do you know -- I'm not
asking if it iz possikble or not, but do yvou know if
anykbody else has been?

2. The farmans?

Q. Yes. MNot necessarily in a book, but by
email -- vyou know, as an exanple —-

2. Yes, people do send. Because even our
farmans that are sent to the tariga kboards, there is a
processing and some of them iz by electronic mail to the
ITREEs locally.

2. And those, too, also get —-
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2. No, because the fact is ITREB's may not
distribute it, but if individuals from the Jamat or a
particular person, whoewver it may ke, we don't know, and
there may ke others -- I'm talking albout now the

distinction I'm making.

[N Yes.

. That is authorized wersus those that are not
authorized. I'm talking at the moment distribution of
unauthorized. This authorized farmans obviously are

distributed through the normal network.

2. But what vou also say, if I understand
correctly, 1is even the ITREB's farmans that are sent to
the jJamat khanas, they also get distributed?

2. There i3 a process of distribution. You'we
seen the policy.

2. I mean when a mukhi gets a copy from ITREE --

A, Farman?

2. ——- he could make copies and give to his
family and others?

2. That may be the case. I can't say to you it
happrens but it may happen.

Q. But do vou know if it happens?

2. I'm not aware of this. But it can happen, of
course. I'm not aware of it myself but.

Q. Now, vou sald earlier that of course His
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Highness, according to wyou, although I don't agree, but
according to wyvou that His Highness has had this concern
for a very long time, at least, from vour admission,
1997, and he have may earlier as well?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, would vou agree with me that during
Golden Jukilee he travelled almost around major centres
acrogzs the world and practically almost ewverywhere other
than Pakistan he gave deedar to the jamats and guided
them and that he made farmans on various toplics across.

He made farmans; correct? In fact, he also made
farmans that the leaders do not convey his message, as an
exanple; correct? During Golden Jubkilee?

A. I don't want to comment because it's out of
context.

Q. No, I'm not saying that. What I'm sayving iz
he made that farman --

2. He made farmans in all parts of the world
where he wisited during the Golden Jubilee vyear.

Q. But I'm going to give you an example, that in
Golden Jubilee in London, he said in the jamat khana in
the presence of thousands of -- or the whole Jjamat that
his leaders do not comvey his message to the jamats, he
is not sure of that. You agree with that; right? You

were there.
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2. I was there, but as I said to you, that it
was not completed, the sentence wasn't completed, his

chain of thoughts were not completed.

@. Al1l right. But he said that?

2. He said that, wvou know -- I think, again, I
come kack to you it's the context. I'm not going to ke
alkble to get one particular -- yvou're quoting out of

context the whole farman one line, and I am not going to
ke akble to respond to that.

Q. Now, will vou agree with me that if this was
such serious concern by the ITmam if T can use unofficial,
unauthorized farmans to go around; in fact, from the
evidence it seems that he has not given authority to
puklish anvthing; right?

2. Publishing of -- I want to distinguish. The
farmans to disseminate which are authorized the way each
farman iz through the tariga board iz something which is
a process laid out.

Publication is a compilation of a lot of farmans
in a printed form and keing either sold or distributed.
2nd I'm tryving to make that distinction to wyou.

0. I understand. If T understand one more step,
what I see from all of this stuff is whether official --
by "official"™ I mean the ones that ITRER sends.

2. Yes, because they have been.
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430 0. Or unofficial that ITREE doesn't send.
Either of the two versions, if I understand correctly,
His Highness doesn't want them to ke distrikbuted. They
have access in Jamat khanas. Come and listen to him in
Jamat khanas. This is what I sense from here.

. But the access to these farmans are

available —--
431 2. In the jamat khanas.
2. -- through the Jamat khanas and from murids

or whoever wishes to go and read them at the tariga
board.

432 0. I understand.

2. If they want to go to Jamat khana, they can
read them, and there is a process for that.

433 0. But the concern is, as I understand, it seems
to ke that whether they are official or unofficial, he
doesn't want them to be outside of Jamat khanas
distributed either kv email, by photocopies, by kooks?

2. That's something he doesn't wish.

434 Q. He doesn't vyou say?

2. Except from the described process.

435 Q. And vet since 1%%7 at least, perhaps earlier,
as you sald, but at least since 1%%7, he frequently told
vou that he's concerned akbout this, would yvou agree with

me that he had an excellent opportunity when he went
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around the world to make sure that the jamats doesn't
engage in this activity. He never did; correct?

A. That's the Imam's decision --

0. Yes. I understand.

2. -- what the processz is. It's up to him.

P. I'm not asking vou why he didn't do.

A, Yes.

Q. Of course wyvou're right, its his prerogative.
What I'm telling vou is despite that he went around the
world, he never mentioned any farman anywhere to say
don't engage in this activity.

You are aware, aren't you, that he has, for
instance, said, "I don't want vou dealing drugs, I don't
want you smoking drugs, I don't want vyvou to grow drugs, I
don't want vou to transpoert"™ -- he said that in Jamat
khana?

. But those are in the context of a farman.

0. I understand. But he said that. So he's
akble to say in the farman and stop this; would vou agree
with me?

2. If he wished to do that. That is the
prerogative of the Imam to do what he wants to do and say
what he wants to say, 1if he wished to say, whether in his
reople whether that's something he wants to say to the

Jamat in public. But this is an institutional issue.
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@. S0 now I take yvou to vyvour "L." I take wyou to
yvour "L." This is again the announcement by the Ismaili
Leaders International Forum and this announcement, if I
understand correctly, was made after this litigation
commenced?

MR. GRAY: The announcement was -- we'll give you

the date. I think it says in his Affidavit what day it

was .
MR. JIwWa: I kelieve it's 1d0th of April.
MR. GRAY: The 15th of April sounds right. Let's
Just check. Usually -- vou know, actually it doesn't

Seem to say.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. There's a date on the third page on the
bottom.

MR. GRAY: Right. 15th of 2pril. That's right.

THE DEFCHNENT: That's the one.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Now, again, who drafted this announcement?

2. Sorry, who drafted...?

0. Who drafted this announcement?

2. This particular amnnouncement? Let me tell
wvou that the initial draft, which was submitted to Hazar
Tmam again exactly at his kehest, he zaid, "Can vou

rleazse"™ ——
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Q. My question was who drafted it?

2. I've told you the process. It iz done by the
LTF Secretariat with the chairman of the LIF, myself, and
the president of the council where the jurisdiction is of
the countries involwved were consulted.

Q. Do vyvou know --

2. But this was then -- the draft was given to
Hazar Imam and he literally added almost two-and-a-half
rages himself.

Q. Right.

2. So our announcement was actually wery short,
but it was the Imam who wanted this whole issue to be as
it has come out in the announcement. He personally
authorized that this be sent to the Jjamat.

Q. I will tell wvou, sir, that most of what vou
are gsaying iz self-serving. So you can repeat that. T
don't accept it. But I wanted to point to yvou to the
second paragraph here.

This 15 a serious and unprecedented development.
This is the action of bringing this litigation against —--
this is what he's referring to, or what the announcement
is referring to?

A. Right.

Q. And it says, the second sentence: "In order

that there is absolute clarity that the legal steps have
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been undertaken is the sad last resort." Right?

Would vou agree with me that this is not a "sad
last resort"?

2. It was from Imam's perspective a "sad last

regzort" because he tried in many ways for this not to go
to this lewvel.

@. I just told vou that if the Imam has keen
concerned, 1f he has been concerned akbout these
activities, and according to vou since at least 19%7, he
has a nunber of occasions -- for instance, 1998, July, he
amended the Constitution and he could have made it
abundantly clear that nobody but the Imam can do this.

Number 2, and I just explained to you that he
could have made the farmans as he went around during
Golden Jukilee kbecause this has keen a concern for a long
time, as vyvou've been sayving.

S0 would wvou agree with me that the sad last
resort is not true?

2. Let me tell vou and maybe —-

[N Yes or no?

A, It is a --

——— The reporter appeals.

MR. GRAY: Let him answer the --

THE DEPCWENT: I have a right to explain.

"Sad last resort" because for the last ten vyears,
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since after -- from 1998, after my visit with Wagik, and,
in fact, the last publications of Nagilk, nothing, as far
as I'm aware, there was no publication. This issue only
aroge because of this publication that was produced.

MR. GRAY: The Golden --

THE DEFCHNENT: So there was Golden. This is the
kbook that has come out. This is the kook in question --

BY MR. JIWA:

0. You knew —-—

2., -- in this litigation. Until that time, I
submit to yvou respectfully that there has been no
puklication by anyvkbody in the form that was actually come
out the way it has been produced, azs a compilation of
this.

2nd I have to remind wyou that the -- it's the
Tmam who wrote the letter. 2and if you have any doubkt in
yvour mind, I want vou to make sure that vou do not have
that doukt in vour mind at all asz the murids of the Imam
because it was the Imam of the Time whose Constitution
vou have kbeen quoting me, whose farmans vou have been
talking akout, he is the one who actually wrote a letter.

2And, in fact, the response from a letter that T
had asked Nagik to say please submit something to the
Tmam and yvou'll seek his direction, and that was by the

Imam of the Time to Nagik in the context of an imam/murid
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relationship.

Q. That letter, we disagree that the Imam has
written, but that's an issue that a court can decide.
However, in that letter -- and I'1ll refer to a number of
roints, but since yvou've raised this right now, in that
letter, the first letter, and just for the purpose of
gquestioning, I will say His Highness has written that --
I don't accept it but I'm going to assume and ask
gquestions accordingly.

In the letter, His Highness says "Recall"™ -—-

MR. GRAY: Let's —-

THE DEPCWENT: Can I refer to the letter, please.

MR. JIWA: Sure.

MR. GRAY: We're looking at the letter of —-

MR. JIWA: "G

MR. GRAY: Letter of January 247

MR. JIWA: Yes.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Now, if vou go to the first page, the last
sentence -- last paragraph, rather, he says in there:

"I believe that this has been explained to vou by

the institutions on a number of occasions. I,

therefore, expect vou and the other murids who

are working with vou immediately to take all

necesgary measures to recall and to withdraw from
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yvour circulation your recent publication.™ [as

read]

Wow, would vou agree with me that in this letter
he's asking Mr. Tajdin to recall? What do yvou understand
by "recall™?

2. Whatever he has been able to distribute to
whoewver, he should get them back, 1if possikle.

454 2. Do vyvou agree with me that Mr. Tajdin has no

legal recourse to withdraw or ask anybody to return the

books?
MR. GRAY: Don't answer that.
—-—— REFUSAL
BY MR. JIWA:
455 Q. Would vou agree with me that this sentence

imposes on Mr. Tajdin to do something that it is not
rossikle to do; would yvou agree with me?

MR. GRAY: Are vyou asking him a legal question,
is it possikble to do it or not?

MR. JIWA: No. I'm saying that His Highness iz
asking here, his letter, telling Mr. Tajdin to recall.

BY MR. JIWA:

456 Q. Let me give you an example. By this letter

if Mr. Tajdin has given me hundred books, tells me, "send
it kback to me" and I refuse to do so, what can Mr. Tajdin

do?
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MR. GRAY: Don't answer that question. You're
asking him about a legal question and —-
—-—— REFUSAL

BY MR. JIWA:

2. Would vou agree that he has no legal recourse
Lo come to me?

2. I would not be abkle to respond on legal
matters.

@. So would vyou agree with me that what His
Highness has written here iz practically impossikble to
achieve?

MR. GRAY: Again, don't answer that question.

THE DEFCWENT: Same answer again.

—-—— REFUSAL

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Would vou also agree with me that his only
concern now with this publication, because all he's
asking to withdraw is vyour recent publication; he's no
longer concerned akout his previous publications; would
yvou agree with me?

2. This publication cowvers farmans from the
previous publication.

2. I understand. I understand. According to
this letter, he says "your recent publication™?

2. We're talking akout the publication in
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gquestion.

Q. Yes, the Golden Jubilee previous kooks that
he has done and distribute them; correct?

2. I don't necessarily accept that.

Q. Now, if vou go to his paragraph 1, where he
Says:

"Over some time now I have viewed with concern

the inappropriate and unauthorized private

initiative of some sSpiritual children who print,

ruklish and circulate.™ [as read]

In your discussions as vou sald vou have had with
His Highness, has he indicated to yvou who iz behind these
puklications?

2. His Highness --

[N Yes.

2. -- indicated who is kehind this pukblication?

Q. Yes. You said vou had a number of
discussions with him?

A, Yes.

Q. And in those discussions, did His Highness
ever tell vyvou who is kehind the publications?

2. He asked the question. He has asked the
gquestion, and I have told him Nagibk kecause I know of
Nagilk as the publisher.

Q. Listen to my question. My gquestion is: When
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he relavyed these concerns to vyou in 1997, as you said,
and you can't recall the exact words, but do you recall
him telling vou who is kehind these pukblications?

2.  The murids.

2. Or he asked vou that there are sSome murids
and ingquire who they are?

2. Yes, and find out where it iz. 2And I really
was clear.

Q. S0 His Highness did not tell wou that it's
Mr. Tajdin. He said "there are some murids who are doing
this and I want you" --

A. I did tell him that the one that I know who
is at the centre of this was Nagib.

0. You told him?

A, Yes.

2. S0 at that time vou told His Highness that
yvou know it's Nagib?

A, Yes.

Q. And did His Highness say that there are other
individuals as well?

2. No, I zaid to His Highness I know of Nagik's
puklications, and I did say to him that when I will go
next to Canada, this issue, I will take it up with
Nagilk.

Q. Now, if vou look at the second paragraph, he
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Says:
"2z Imam, I have estaklished a process for the
pubklication and circulation of my farmans wherely
responsikility has been entrusted to the Jamati
institutions that I appoint under the provisions
of the Ismaili Constitution which I have ordained
from my Jamats social governance glokally." [asz
read]

Correct?

A, Yes.

@. He has already entrusted this to the Jjamati
institutions?

2. Yes. The process is there. This is the
process we talked albout, of -- dissemination of the
farmans, approved farmans, to the jamat. It iz there.

We went through earlier on.

Q. For the pukblication?

A, Sorry?

Q. For the pukblication?

2. First of all, I'm talking about dissemination
0of the farmans to the jamati that are authorized. I
explained to you there has not been a publication so far
v the jamati institutions.

Q. But isn't His Highness contradicting your

evidence that vou are giving here?
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A. HNo.

Q. Now, again, if vou go to the second page, it
says "I'm aware”™ -- the last paragraph: "I'm aware that
yvou perceive your efforts including the webksite that you

" [ag read]

have estalkblished and operate.
Wow, I'm not so clear. Are you Saying or His

Highness savying that the website is also inappropriate?
L. Well, he is aware also of the websgite.

Q. No, that's not my gquestion.

2. Yes. Inappropriate.

Q. My question is: In your discussions with His
Highness --

A, Yes?

Q. —-- did he tell wou that website iz also a
rrokblem?

2. Well, he says that there are a number of
websites which cause him concern.

0. 8o he's concerned about the websites as well?

2. Yes, but this iz publication which is his
works. The websites do not publish farmans on the thing.

The issue I'm talking to yvou is wvery Simple.
This is talking about his works.

Q. My question is --

2. Websites are not his work.

2. I understand. I understand. I just want to
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ke clear with this. His Highness is concerned with the
welbsites as well, and there are a number of websites, not
only Mr. Tajdin?

A, Yes.

Q. And he's expressed that concern to you?

2. Yes, and we are looking into this matter. We
have started working through the process with the website
people to see how we can work with some of these.

2And, in fact, Nagibk himself was part of the
solution in some cases, and his advice was sought on sSome
0of the matters, to see how we can sSolve this problem.

@. Right. But right now my dquestion is that he
disapproves of the wvarious websites as well; correct?

2. Yes. From this letter to wvou.

0. Not from the letter. You said earlier he has

told vou about that as well?

A, Yes.
[N Yes?
2., I've sald to yvou the webszsites are also a

concern to him.
0. To him?
A, Yes.
2. And he has told that to vou; right?
2A. Yes. But here we're talking about how this

particular issue relates to the pukblication of the
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farmans that we have got, which vou have just -- the
matters which are ahead of us in the litigation. We're
not talking akbout the website in the litigation. We're
talking akout copyright issues of the pukblications and
not the websites.

0. Now, there are a number of individuals with
websites; correct?

MR. GRAY: Are wyou telling us?

MR. JIWA: I'm asking him.

THE DEPCWENT: There are people who have
websites, ves, a number of webksites.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Other than Mr. Tajdin?

2. ARbsolutely.

Q. And His Highness is concerned about all of
them?

2. Well, no. It's a question of what is -- the
review of these weksites he wants to ke carried out so
that we know what is in each of these websites. He's
concerned about the websites —-

Q. S0 he's asking a review?

2. Of course. ©Of all of these websites.

Q. Now, he also says in here in the last
raragraph: "I also wish vou to understand that wisdom

lies in abkiding by the procedures and processes that the
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Tmam estaklishes." And the processes and procedures that
he seems to ke talking about is these processes that vou
have produced here?

A, Again —-

0. How the farmans have to ke done and so on?

2. Constitutional bodiez, the way of the
farmans' processes are clear, that he reviews them, he
authorizes the release of these farmans, and they then
come through the institutional processes.

Q. Would vou agree with me that that process and
procedures has never been made announcements or
pubklications on that point to the jamat; so the Jjamat has
absolutely no idea of what procedures the Imam has
established?

2. These process for the dissemination of the
authorized farmans?

[N Yes.

2. The ITREEs are fully aware of this process.
The ITREBz have this responsibility. And the Jamat is
aware that the ITREBEs do this. Whatever comes from the
ITREE process has gone through this -- from the Imam of
the Time, and the jamat is fully aware of that. So they
know the distinction ketween the farmans that have been
authorized by the Imam and those that are not authorized

v the Imam.
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0. This last sentence here, or the second-last
sentence where he says: "This is a matter that I, like
my predecessors, as the Imams of the Time, have and

" [as read].

continue with the greatest seriousness.

Is he now, to your understanding, referring to
this pubklication and distribution of farmans as the
greatest seriousness that even previous Imams have?

2. This iz the matter of his concern about any
0of his privileged communications.

Q. S0 according to him, even Mowlana Sultan
Mohamed Shah was concerned akout this distribution of his
farmans?

2. Well, I cannot respond to that. I do not
know an answer to that. I do not know.

@. So this Tmam says, if this iz his letter —-

2. This iz his letter. So he's saying. But I
am not -— I cannot comment on what Mowlana Shah's views
were or what the Imam's views are, but it appears that he
is referring to —-

2. Do vyou know who drafted this letter?

2. I told wou, I wery clearly told you, this
letter, the first draft was prepared and Hazar Imam
himself authorized this letter, himself. Himself has
signed this letter. 23 I said to you, it's come to vyou

from the Imam of the Time, from his office.
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502 Q. You did not sign this letter, did vyou?
A, MNot at all.
5032 @. Do vyvou know if anyvkody other than Hazar Imam
signed this?
2. No way can anybody Sign a letter that's
purporting to ke from the Imam of the Time.
504 Q. The second letter, 18 February, when did you
first see the second letter?

MR. GRAY: I think we're talking the same letter

still.

ME. JIWA: No, the second letter. That's.
ME. GRAY: Oh, the announcement.
MR. JIWA: Talx J.
MR. GRAY: ©OCh, right. Okay. Sorry. Tab J.
THE DEFCWENT: Sorry?
BY MR. JIWA:

505 Q. When did wyou first see this letter?

2. After it was -- I was given a copy of this
letter after it was sent to vyou, to Nagik. But I had

seen a draft.

506 0. ©Of the letter?
A, Yes.
507 Q. And did he send it to you for vyour in--

2. No. He just wanted me to look at the draft

and he was going to sign this. And that's precisely —-

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 397 of 536



10

11

12

13

14

15

1l&

17

18

1%

20

21

22

23

24

25

AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 119

the date is 18th of February.
508 Q. And then vou reviewed the draft before he
sent it out?
2. I saw the draft.
505 Q. Before he signed and sent it over?
L. Yes, I saw the draft.

510 Q. Now, the last paragraph says that "I
understand that vou spoke a number of times to Shafik
Sachedina. Subsequently, vou accused Mrz. Michele Parkes
0f having forged my sSignature on the letter which I sent
to vyvou dated 24 January." [as read]

Is that true?

2. Absolutely. Because I believe that -- sorry.

MR. GRAY: That's all right. He hasn't asked vyou
a question.

BY MR. JIWA:

511 Q. Now, His Highness, it appears from what vyou
are gaying, when he makes his farman, his oral farman, he
comes to the Jamat khana --

A, Extempore.
512 2. Extenpore.
-—— Off-the-record discussion.
BY MR. JIWA:
513 Q. And vou are saying that after he approves and

finalizes, then it becomes definitely farman?
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A, Yes.

Q. Are jJamats expected to follow the farman that
he has already made, or do they wait until he has
authorized the final wversion?

2. To me, the version that he has authorized
become the farmans that are conveyed to the jamat with
his authority. So even in my view, and it is my opinion,
that even if vou had kbeen made aware of a farman to the
Jamat, the text that he releases after his review are the
authorized farmans.

Because they have gone the review process by the
Tmam himself, and he has therefore completed this where
there have kbeen -- no, he has reviewed them. If he
requires anything, whatever he requires iz done, and then
in most cases, as I say, he goes through this process and
then gets them released. So those are the only ones that
are the farmans.

Q. When did His Highness tell you that he has
decided to issue this Statement of Claim?

2. When did?

Q. When did he tell wou?

L. In fact, he discussed this matter the —-
after the letter was sent, the second letter was sent, he
did speak to me and the president, Mohamed Manj]i that --

2. Together?
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2. No. He spoke to me and I believe he spoke to
Mohamed separately, and then he sent us, vou know, from
his point of view a message to speak with -- vou know, in
the sense that there were discussions that we should also
discuss amongst ourselves on this matter.

0. 8o who discussed?

2. Mohamed and me were only involved, two
reople, kecause His Highness wanted to know whether what
had happened so far, what are the actions that hawve
happrened so far, the fact that these farmans there has
been no reaction, that these farmans have not been
withdrawn in the sense that these books have not keen
withdrawn from circulation, so he was concerned.

Q. By the time that vou —-

2. And he wanted -- sorry. And he wanted to
understand whether he continues in this Imam/murid
relationship, which is what he wanted to do. And second
letter, he felt after the second letter that he had done
what is expected of the Imam in his way, and he was
rather concerned that there was no action from the other
side, from the murids, and he wanted to protect the
integrity of his farmans.

0. That's a serious concern to him?

2. Very much so, and he's expressed that it was

a very Serious matter for many.
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Q. Now, by the time the first announcement was
sent on January 1lé6th, 2010, which vou said earlier wou
all drafted together, wvou knew then, and Mr. Tajdin told
wvou then, that he is sending a letter to His Highness?

A, Yes.

Q. When did that letter arrive at Aiglemont?

2., Well, T believe it might have been a
rossikility, and I can't be sure, because I don't have
anything to do with the mail that comes in. I got the
copy of this letter on the 20th, I think around the 20th,
is when I got the copy.

Wow, whether His Highness got it kefore that
date, whether he had reviewed it, whether he had seen it,
I think that cuestion will ke more of an administratiwve
gquestion exactly when it went through. But I received a
copy of this on the 20th. I think it was abkout the 20th
of January.

@. S0 do yvou know —— I mean I'm going to ask you
as precise as you can be in terms of date or day?

A, I'1ll trv.

2. Iz when did he tell vyvou that he has now
decided to issue a Statement of Claim?

2. I think and I can probakly -- this letter was
in February. I think indications were that he was

seriously now, all the avenues were —-- he had exhausted
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the avenues from his perspective, which were that if an
imam writes to a murid and a murid does not respond, or
at least then went and accused for forgery, that was a
serious matter for him. And he felt that if that was the
case, then this was a matter of serious concern to him
and that to protect the integrity of his works, his moral
rights, he wanted to ensure that this, therefore, would
have to go where legal recourse would have to come.

Because kbefore that we had said, both Mohamed and
me, that we would try and resolwve this as Imam -- between
the TITmam and the murid kecause that was the relationship
between the murid and the Imam, that he wanted in the
privileged setting to resolve this matter.

Q. Now, I was tryving to get —-

A, Yes.

0. —— the date?

2. I think prokably towards the end of March or
2pril that he was thinking about -- towards end of March,
I think.

0. That he said he wanted to issue the Claim?

. Well, that's the time he said, well, look, I
think, wvou know, he would have to deal with it from a
legal perspective.

Q. Az vyvou just said, he was very much concerned

albout the allegation of forgery; he told wvou that?
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2. That was because he had already --

Q. No, my cuestion is did he tell wou that he
was concerned akout the allegation —-

2. Yes, that he was -- that, vou know, he was
vary concerned that such accusations are made of his
statff.

I presume also he speaks to his own staff
whatever he wants to know. I don't get involwed with
that. He's got other people he talks to.

Q. When you say —-- when vou use the word
"integrity of the farmans," what do vou understand by
that?

2. That here's what he wished to convey to the
Jamat, and it was that that was conveved, and his
messages are conveyed, and the integrity of that process
is maintained, that it is not in any way violated.
Because it's a very serious matter because the Jamat
glokbally look at the Imam of the Time.

Q. And that's what vou understand by the word
"integrity™?

2. Yes. Integrity of his works in the farmans
that has made. Because it is his work and he makes sure
that that integrity of his works is maintained.

Because, as I said, that was what was his

concern, that there's a risk of this publication causing
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confusion in the Jamat as well.

Becauzse I have explained to vou that there are
farmans which he has authorized that have come and are
compiled, and these farmans were not authorized.

0. Isn't it true, sir, that the concern is not
the ITmam's, but the concern is by vou, Mr. Keshavjee,

Mr. Mohamed Manji, and not by the Tmam?
2. I strongly refute that.
0. Isn't it true, sir, that for instance in 2008

in London when he sort of criticized the leadership?

2. It's wyour words, not mine.
0. It's in the farman.
2. It is wyour words, not the Imam's words.

Q. And that Mr. Tajdin's production of his --
the words as spoken by the Imam is actually a threat or a
concern to yvou and Keshavjee and others other than the
Imam?

2. I don't accept that at all.

P. Isn't it true that it's vyvou and Mr. Keshavjee
who modified the farmans rather than the Imam?

2. I totally disagree with that statement.

Q. And there i3 no corroborating evidence
anywhere, isn't it true, that the Imam needs to read the
farmans?

2. Well, let me tell yvou that I have seen Imam
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phyvsically himself actually working on farmans and really
going and reviewing them and working on them and
reviewing them till he has authorized. I have seen it
happrening. He has himself -- he himself does that.

Many, many times on my Journeys when he has a
transcript on the air -- when we are travelling from one
rlace to the other, I have seen him take his pen and
review these farmans absolutely the way I say it to vou.

Because it iz important because when you speak,
it's generally understood, but when vou put it in
writing, it is not always clear. aAnd I keep coming kack
to you.

Therefore, he wants to make sure that his works
that is released to the jamat are az true as he wished
them to ke for the Jamat. Because of the context,
because of the fact that syntax has to ke checked,
because of the integrity of the farmans, that I discussed
with you, and also that these farmans are time- and
context-specific.

So that if because of the different cultural
areas of the jJamat. The jamat lives in the north, south,
east, west, these farmans go glokal, and also sensitivity
that these farmans could have an impact in another
region, just so that he reviews it from that integrity.

Because the whole jamat, nearly 15 million people, rely
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on the Tmam's farmans from that perspective. So when
they go out and thevy're released through the Jjamati
structure, that thev're as true as he wished them to be,
and that is the integrity of the process he wished to
maintain.

Q. Sir, these are zimply self-serving statements
and evidence, so ——

2. I disagree. I disagree with vyou.

2. Let me ask vou this gquestion: Before
Mr. Tajdin started distributing these farmans, there are

many, many farmans that were never read in jamat khanas

after the Imam had given deedars; would yvou agree with
me?

2. That iz up to the Imam of the Time to decide
when to release, in which form to release, what to
release, and not to release. It is not up to vou or me
or anybody in any institution to decide. That authority
restz in the manifest Imam according to Ismaili
Constitution. 2and vou know that, and evervyvkbody else
knows that, and Nagik Tajdin sitting here also knows
that. It is the integrity of these farmans.

Q. S0 the Imam, what yvou are saying, is then
decides -- az vyvou say, he doesn't want these farmans to
ke given to the jamat; is that true?

2. I did not say that. Authorized puklished
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farmans which are public -- authorized farmans which are
released through the process that we talked about this
morning.

Q. My question --

2. Iz the process that has to be maintained
because there 15 no risk of his words to be
misunderstood. There is no risk of the integrity of
those farmans by somebody adding words or removing words
or possikly putting words.

Because when the farmans are made by the Imam of
the Time, they are transcribed so even in transcription
there could ke errors of the person transcribking those
farmans. 2And the errors can creep up. You cannot tell
me that the transcription is hundred per cent. As a
lawyer yvou know that, as a murid vou know that, that that
is not always the case. 2And even Nagibk will tell wvou how
many difficulties he has had in the transcription of the
farmans. So please don't give me a lecture about this.

Q. Now, Mr. Sachedina, I'm getting yvou uptight,
but listen. My question to you was —- and I just want
vou to pay attention to the question. My question to you
was that kbefore Mr. Tajdin started distributing these
farmans, there were many farmans that were not released
kv ITREE to the jamat khanas -- to local ITREBs to ke

read; correct?
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A. Because Mowlana Hazar Imam had not authorized
the release of those farmans through the process.

2. So the answer iz ves to that?

A. Yes. It was not released because he did not
authorize the release.

Q. So you said earlier, if I understand
correctly, that the farmans become definite after they
are authorized by the Imam?

2. Absolutely. That's my understanding.

Q. And that by His Highness not authorizing, he
doesn't want those farmans to be followed; correct?

2. Because they are not farmans. Actually,
those farmans have not keen authorized or released. That
means they don't become effective, and, therefore, they
are no longer farmans. They are not made as farmans.

Q. And vou knew that Mr. Tajdin, particularly in
that Syria trip in 2001, that he continued the
activities. Did you tell His Highness?

2., I can tell vou now that I did not know that
Nagilk continued. Because my understanding was that Nagik
did not publish any farmans after my meeting with him.

From 1998, there were many wisits, there were
many farmans, there was no puklication from WNagilk Tajdin,
and I am not aware that Nagilk Tajdin either posted those

farmans on the welk or whether he was distributing those
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farmans. He never —-- he never sent me a copy of the
farmans to say, "Here iz a copy of the farmans that I
have sent to evervbody."

Q. You have contradicted your own evidence, sir.
I'm going to refer vyvou again to tak C. Now, I ask vyou to
go kback to vyvour paragraph 12 of vyour Affidavit kefore vyou
go kack to talk C.

You have said in paragraph 13, referring to tabk
C: "I believe that this letter is a representatiwve
exanple of how authorized Farmans are disseminated by the
ITREEs." Correct?

2. Authorized farmans.

Q. If vou go to this, this is 26 May of 20087

2. Sanple.

Q. Now, I'm going to ask vou to provide me with
these letters that have been sent from the time of 1588
to 2008.

Now, I'm not interested in all of those letters,
but perhaps vou can give me two or three per year that
have keen sent.

MR. GRAY: Well, what we will provide wyou, we'll
look into it and advise vyvou. I'm not undertaking to
provide anything at this point.

—-—— UNDER ADWVISEMENT

ME. JIWA: So I take it as a refusal?

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 409 of 536



10

11

12

13

14

15

1l&

17

18

1%

20

21

22

23

24

25

550

AUGUST 12, 2010 SHAFTK SACHEDINA 121

MR. GRAY: You can take it az a refusal. It's an
under advisement.

MR. JIWA: I'm going to put it down formally that
there i3 this letter here by Mohamed Keshavijee, ITREER
coordinator, which is at tal C, which vou have said is a
representative sample, and I require vyou to provide me
from the wvears 192%% to the year 2007.

MR. GRAY: We have with us here a memorandum from
the ITRER Canadian kboard to the various -- chair of the
ITREER B.C., the chair of the wvarious Canadian ITREBs.

THE DEPCWENT: National.

MR. GRAY: MNational ITREER dated September 4,

2007, another one dated September 6, 2007.

BY MR. JIWA:

0. I want the letters, and I've said this, I

want —-—

MR. GRAY: Another letter dated --

MR. JIWA: Excuse me, counsel.

MR. GRAY: Would wvou like these letters?

ME. JIWA: No, I don't.

MR. GRAY: You don't want these? These are —-

MR. JIWA: I am here to ask questions.

MR. GRAY: I thought vou just asked for
something.

MR. JIWA: No, I have not asked for anyvthing that
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yvou want to submit, or Mr. Sachedina wants to submit.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. So listen to my question. My question is:
The representative sample that you have given at tabk C is
dated 26 May of 20087

A. Correct.

Q. From Mohamed Keshavj]ee, the ITREER
coordinator?

A, Yes.

@. S0 I would like the copy from the vyvears 199%
to 2007. And this one ig addressed to ITREB of Canada,
but I would like a sample az well for ITRER to Kenya,
ITREE to U.S.2., and ITREE to U.K.?

MR. GRAY: And vou want a sample of what,
exactly?

MR, JIWA: I want letters that have been written
v Mohamed Keshavjee when he sends these farmans to them,
to the various ITREBs in Kenya, U.S.2. and U.K. during
the vears 1999 to 2007.

MR. GRAY: We won't produce all of those, and
I'1ll have to take into consideration what is availakle,
and I'1ll have to advise vou, take it under advisement.
—-—— UNDER ADWVISEMENT

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Would vou agree with me, sir, that these
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letters are sent when he sends the farmans, the
authorized farmans?

L. TYes, these letters are gent with what is
authorized by the Imamnm.

2. Right. 5o I'm going to ask you to send me
all of the letters between 1990 and 2007 to these three
countries?

MR. GRAY: Fenvya, U.3.A., U.EK.7?

By MR. JIWA:

Q. U.S.A., Kenya and U.K.

MR. GRAY: A1l the letters written by Mohamed
Feshaviee?

MR. JIWA: Yes.

ME. GRAY: Well, I'll take it under advisement.
I very much doubkt we'll produce all of them, kbut we may
rroduce samples.

—-—— UNDER ADWVISEMENT

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Now, I want to refer you to paragraph 14 of
yvour Affidawvit. Now, vou are saying here that kefore he
vigsited Canada, he had also expressed concern
specifically over the authorized pubklication by the
Defendant Nagik Tajdin.

S50 he by that time knew that it is Nagik Tajdin

who iz publishing these farmans?
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2. He's known about this -- I think I have gone
through this kbefore. I've already made that statement
earlier on, that he was aware of those publications.

558 2. And before vyou started working for him?

A, Sorry?

5505 Q. Before you started working for him?

2. Az I say, I started only later on. But he

was aware of that kefore.
560 Q. Prior to you —-

2. Yes. That's what my Affidavit savs.

MR. GRAY: Well, it says...

THE DEPONENT: ... working but he had
expressed —-- this is to me, but kefore that also there
were concerns.

BY MR. JIWA:

56l Q. I refer to your paragraph 22. You say:

"t this time, the community leaders agreed with

His Highness's guidance that the Ismaili

communi ty worldwide should ke informed that Mr.

Tajdin's Farman Book was an unauthorized

puklication that should not ke supported.™

”

WNow, when vou say "community leaders," who do you
mean by "community leaders"™ here?

2. I explained to you that this announcement was

with the -- there was the chairman of the —-
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2. Just those? Nokody else?

2. -- community leaders because it's the apex of

the kody, the head of the body, the chairman, and the

head of the Jamati Institution, the president of the

councils of countries involved where this issue was from

a Jamati perspective, they knew he was from Canada and
Fenva, Nagilk was.

Q. And vou say the communities agreed with His
Highness's guidance. Did His Highness ask vou to seek
agreement?

2. No. It's His Highness —-

Q. No, my cquestion is: Did His Highness ask you

to seek the agreement?

2. You should speak to them.

Q. You should speak to them?

A, Yes.

Q. No, but that's not my question. Did he tell
wvou to seek their agreement?

L. TYes, because he would want to make sure that
they were -—-

2. In agreement?

2. -- in agreement with this matter.

Q. Now, as I recall, what Mr. Tajdin had said,
that he wanted to seek clarification from His Highness.

Do yvou recall discussing about that with His Highness?
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2. No, I just -- as I said to wyvou, I had no --
the message -- the letter was sent by —-
569 Q. My question is --

MR. GRAY: What time are vou talking akout?

THE DEPCWENT: First of all, are vou talking
about Nagilk Tajdin's letter to the Imam?

BY MR. JIWA:

570 @. Right. Nagik Tajdin had said to you that —-
in his letter that he needed clarification?

A, Yes.

571 Q. Right? And my question 15 a narrow question;
all right? Did vou ever raise the topic with His
Highness or did he raise it with you? Did wyou koth
discuss what kind of --

2., I wasn't involwed. That was between —- I
think that was between --

572 Q. My question is not involved. Did he discuss
with you or not on that --

A, No. HNo.

573 Q. Did vou discuss anything? Did vou ask him on
that point?

A, No.

574 Q. Now, the second announcement was only made in
some countries; correct?

2. MNone of the countries which were related in
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this particular case; right? Because the kbooks were in
Canada, Kenya when Nagilb signed it, U.S5. because the
books were always in the T.5. and I think fourth, one
other country.

MR. GRAY: TU.EK.

THE DEFCWENT: TU.EK.

BY MR. JIWA:

575 0. In the first announcement it was sent to all

Jamat khanas?

2. The First announcement went on a glokal
basis.
576 Q. When vou say "global,™ it also went to
India?
2. Everywhere.
577 2. Okay. We're going to take a break for lunch.
I'm almost done. Mayke five, ten more minutes.
-—— Off-the-record discussion.
—-—- Lunch recess taken at 1:08 FM.
—-—— Upon resuming at 2:12 PM.
BY MR. JIWA:
578 Q. Mr. Sachedina, as head of the Department of

Jamati Institutions, the position that wvou hold, it's not
a position that's recognized by our Ismaili Constitutions
it's jJust appointed by His Highness?

2., It's a pozition that has been at the behest
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of the Imam.

0. Yes, but it's not under the Constitution;
it's by his Secretariat?

2. Yes. The Constitutional -- or the position
under the Constitution is only the LIF, and I only sit on
the LIF on behalf of Hiz Highness as a member of the
LIF.

MR. JIwa: A1l right, those are all my dquestions,
subkject to the undertakings and all the refusals that we
have.

-—— Off-the-record discussion.

MR. TAJDIN: Okay. Shafik, I have a prokblem
because we have been close and I have keen calling you
"Shafik," and I think T will ke calling vyou
"Mr. Sachedina"™ so at least there is a consistency. But
Just for court, not between us. I hope vou don't mind.
It's not meant to ke disrespect or distance between us.

CROSS-EXAMINATICON BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Shafik, vou know me since gquite a few years
now, and we bump into each other at many, many places. I
think in Syria, in Cairo, recently in Zanzibar at the
opening of the Forodhani Park. Even Nairoki you came for
the nation's 50 years?

ME. JIWA: Forodhani Park, F-o-r-o-d-h-a-n-i.

BY MR. TAJDIN:
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Q. That was the opening that His Highness also
came.

And vou see me gometimes taking pictures, videos.
2And would vou say that I always remain at a respectakle
distance of the Imam?

2. ARbsolutely.

Q. I have newver tried to overstep. 2aAnd would
vou accept that prokabkly this is because we have a code
of conduct, that unless the Imam allows, we would not
approach within his privacy area or his short distance or
-— wou agree to that?

2. Yes, wyou travel all over the world. I know
that, and obwviously vou travel wherever His Highness
goas.

2. Exactly.

2. And yvou are around and I know that vou show
yvourself there.

Q. And I never tried to overstep and go and talk
and kbother him with anything?

2And that code of conduct also says that unless
the Imam allows, we should not talk to him or even give a
gift. Even to give a gift, we have to get permission.

If Imam note or make a sign that we are allowed, then we
approach and we always —-- even during deedars it's always

in submission; right?
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-—— Off-the-record discussion.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. And the Tmam travels extensively; right?

A, Yes.

0. I would think he travels all the time. I
think he mentioned somewhere that he lives in a suitcase
or something, or a briefcase. And I remember a wvery old
interview that he sent that he spent so many hours
working in a plane, that's why mavbe he made this
comment.

He's also a sportsman; right? He does ski?

A, Yes.

0. He drives his own car?

A. He loves.

0. He loves. I have seen his movie with Prince
Zahr on a horse. So the horse —-

2. That iz his hobby. I don't get inmwvolwved with
any of this.

P. I just want to make sure that we agree that
the ITmam is in better shape than vou and me. If I can
refer to that Imam, I was Just looking few days ago at
the Pamir Mountains and the Imam is climking the
mountain. It looks very fresh. 2nd I think vou are 300
meters behind the Imam trving also to go up the same

mountain.
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Is that a university that he's building in the
Pamirs?

2. Yes, there iz a University of Central Asia,
which is the university in that region, in Kyrgstan,
Tajikistan and Kazakhstan. It's —-

Q. It's a three-country -—-

2. Three countries.

Q. And it's a mountain university?

2. TUnder the treaty of --

Q. OCkavy.

2. TUnder the treaty between the Imam and the
three presidents of the three countries.

0. There is no choice but to climk the mountain.

Because that's where the campus are; right?

AL In remote areas.
[N In remote areas.
A In isolated areas.

Q. Very good. MNow, he is also a graduate from
Harvard, so he's not like the awverage person --—

MR. GRAY: Please stop here a second. I see the
reporter is looking for -- off the record.

-—— Off-the-record discussion.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

@. S0 I guess he probakly iz using some gadget.

I saw yvou were using a Blackberry. Iz the Imam also
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using a Blackberry?

A. I'm not aware of that.

0. You are not aware i1f the Imam --

2. Blackkerry, I don't know akbout the
Blackberry.

@. I will not ask his phone number, promise.
But he uses some kind of telephone where vyou can send
messages. I understand he send some messages. So he's
gquite a modern person in that way?

A. He's an Imam of the Time.

0. Imam of the Time. That's what it means.

I saw that attachment you have put to vour
Affidavit. I don't think yvou should really refer to it,
but we know it's 15 million Ismailis around the world,
and sometimes it's between 12 and 18, but it comes to
around.

And the Imam Sultan Mahomed Shah said that there
are large numbers of people in China. 2And now we know
that there were 50 many in central Asia which we —— "we,"
when I say "we,”" its we East African -- originally, East
African Ismaili were not aware that there were so many
Ismailis in central Asia. 2nd after the collapse of the
Soviet Union, we discovered the Ismailis.

And now we are travelling. We were in Syria and

we Saw there are Ismailis gquite a lot there also. You
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agree with that?

A, Yes.

Q. Yes. Okay. There are areas where there are
no Jamat khanas?

L. TYes, there are areas where there are no
estallished jamat khanas because of the geopolitical
Situations in those parts of the world.

0. Yes, that was the case of central Asia but
now it's starting to change; right?

2. I beg to differ. There are many other
countries where there are still today difficulties in
estakblishing jamat khanas.

2. Okay. I'll agree, 5o I'll not ask more
gquestions.

WNow, there are Ismailis in mavyke 20, 35
countries; vyes?

2. Yes, approximately.

0. HNow, there are some countries where there are
large numkers, some countries there are a very small
numkber. When we were in Ivory Coast, there were akout 35
Ismailis. But the jJamat khanas was nice; right? I think
you came ——

2. Because these were estabklished jamats at that
time of the wyear where there were large communities where

Jamat was in a sizeakble form when they were establishing
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in those parts of the world, and today it's not as large
in those regions.

P. So would vou say in areas where there are
Jamat khanas there are prokakbly a couple of millions of
Ismailis living there? I think -- basically, what I
know, and vou will confirm if T am right or wrong, bkbut
there are prokabkly many Ismailis in North America,
Europe, East Africa -- mostly Africa, Congo, some
Mozambicue, sSome in Angola?

2. I wouldn't know, but vou're right, there's
are Ismailis all over. There's no census. I can't tell
vou how many there are and there is no way I could say to
vou what numbers, where they are, and countries. We have
an approximate understanding of these figures —-

Q. Now, as the head of Jamati Affairs, vou have
a list of how many Jamat khanas there are which are in
contact with the Imamat?

A, Yes.

Q. Approximately how many?

2. Of the number of murids or in the glokal
number of countries?

0. No. Jamat khanas.

2. Oh, jJamat khanas. Well, we have in excess of
nearly owver 3,000-7,000 jamat khanas.

0. 7,000. And some are in remote areas where
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there are small villages and few people?

2. ARbsolutely.

Q. S0 on the average, that would cover akout 2,
3 million Ismailis?

2. Well, ves, possikly. Even more.

Q. There are jJamat khanas where there are a
thousand people that can sit, and there are some where
there are a hundred people that can sit; am I right?

2. There are different size of jamat khanas.

2. Okay. So if we have to ke wery generous that
albout 2, 2 million people have access Lo Jamat khanas,
would yvou agree that not all the people who hawve access
to Jamat khanas go to jamat khanas?

2. Access to jJamat khanas iz out of choice of
reople being akle to go kecause of their liwves, whether
they are akle to go to the jamat khanas, the proximity of
the jJamat khanas, the distances people have to travel to
Jamat khanas.

S0 there are many factors that determine for any
memnber of the community to go to jJamat khanas. There
could be a jJamat khana but they can't get to it kbecause
0of the distance, whatever it may ke. There are many
reasons for that.

Q. Okay. Out of 15 million Ismailisz, if wvou

have 2 or 2 million at the most who have access —-- let's
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say they all go to Jamat khanas, would vou agree that 80
rer cent of the people do not have access to Jamat khanas
in our community; they live in regions where there are
not yet either a jamat khana or --

2. I'm not akle to make that judgment to say to
yvou for sure that is the case. But there iz a large
proportion, and yvou know that the Tmam of the Time has
said that there are many places in the world that there
are no Jamat khanas, which he will at the time -- at the
time of the Golden Jubkilee it was one of the goals, was
to estaklish jamat khanas in parts of the world where
there has been no access to the jamat khanas. 2And that
is his goal.

2nd therefore he -- there are many, many places
in that region of the world where there's a large
ropulation and they do not have access to jJamat khanas.

Q. Okay. Now, would vou agree that people who
do not have access to Jamat khanas do not hawve access to
farmans?

2. Yes, because -- they would not hawve access
Ssimply that there are no structures, even institutional

structures, in some of these places.

[N True.
2. There has been no constitutional kodies in
many of these countries. In fact, till today I can tell
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vou most of these countries do not have constitutional
bodies.

0. Yeszs. In fact, the Imam mentioned in a farman
that there are no constitutional bodies in many, many
rlaces where Ismaili --

2. In those parts of the world where there are
large jamats, there are in some of these countries what I
call the jamats that we are mentioning, majority of the
Jamats do not have Jamati institutional structures.

You know, I can give wyou Russia, central Asia,
Afghanistan only just started, western China -- all of
these places have a large population, but these are areas
0of the world where Jamat khanas have not keen estaklished
kbecause there are no constitutional kodies or jJust akout
beginning to ke established.

So it's under the constitutional bodies that
Jamat khanas -- and there are no traditions in some of
these places to have Jamat khanas.

2. Okay, that's fine. I'm referring to tak D
of -- 2(d} -- now yvou have to bear with me. It's the
first time that T am doing an examination. 2And Shafik,
honestly, I think in French, I speak in English.

A, Yes.

0. 8o sometimes ——

2. Thank vou very much. I am grateful. That is
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first time on record somebody can Say that. I thought T
was the only one saying that.

MR. GRAY: That's okay. I think probkakly it's
the first time Mr. Sachedina has been examined.

ME. TAJDIN: Yes, but I have learned how to do
it. But now you can see that the teaching was not enough
hours.

MR. GRAY: Tell me, jJust what Affidavit are wvou

referring to? We'll find the tak if could just tell

us.

MR. TAJDIN: This iz of Shafik Sachedina.

MR. GRAY: OCkay. All right. There iz only one
of those.

MR. TAJDIMN: Number 2.

MR. GRAY: That's fine. 2nd tak what of that
Affidavit?

MR. TAJDIN: It's D. "D" as in David.

MR. GRAY: OCkay. Okay.

MR. TAJDIN: That page with the photo.

MR. GRAY: You want the page with the photo?

MR. TAJDIN: Yesz, please.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

2. Okay. Can I ask yvou to read this farman
which is kbelow the photo. Can vou read it?

A It's tab ——
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MR. GRAY: It's at page 134 of our Motion Record.

THE DEPCWENT: 124 of the document. 2And it says:

"For hundreds of vyears, my spiritual children

have bkeen guided by the rope of Imamat. You hawve

looked to the Imam of the Age for advice and help

in all matters. And through your Imam's immense

love and affection for his spiritual children,

his Noor has indicated to vou where and in which

direction yvou must turn so as to ocbtain spiritual

and worldly satisfaction. Karachi, Pakistan,

13th of Decemker, 1964." [as read] -—-

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. His "64 farman has been published in Precious
Gem and so many other kooks by the Ismaili association in
the past. Right?

A. Yes. It's in the old Constitution.

0. Yes. And I think --

MR. GRAY: Were vou asking him has it kbeen
ruklished or are vyvou asking him --

MR. TAJDIN: No. I'm asking that it is a kook
which was there since a long time, prokably —-

THE DEECWNENT: No, but that was at the time of
the communities starting in East Africa, it was under the
0ld Constitution, and the jamat was just estakblishing

itself. So this goes back a long time.
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BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. It's still read in Jamat khanas usually 1lth
of July, the day of the Imamat --

A. Yes. That's the farman of the Imam.

P. It's a farman which iz a recognized farman;
right?

Can yvou confirm to me if "Noor"™ means "the
Light"? 2And there is a surah in the Koran, a chapter in
the Koran, about the Noor?

A, Yes.

@. Iz it the same Light?

2. The Light, wves.

Q. The Light. It's the Light of God —--

A, Yes.

Q. ——- which guides materially and spiritually?

2. The Noor of Allah, the Noor of God.

Q. Which guides materially and —-

A, Yes.

Q. And this iz guided through the Imam's love
that Noor is cuiding us. And since we are all from the
same religion, we all kelieve in this; right?

2. (Deponent nods head up and down).

Q. Okay. Let me come back to your Affidavit.

MR. GRAY: Now vyvou're referring to Mr.

Sachedina's Affidavit?
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ME. TAJDIN: Yes, sworn on June 25th.

MR. GRAY: Ckay. Can yvou give me an indication
what paragraph vou're reading from?

MR. TAJDIN: Yez, I'm sorry, I'm looking for it.
You know what, I did my notes --

MR. GRAY: I thought if vou were reading it, wvyou
could tell us what paragraph.

MR. TAJDIN: No. I did my note and I realized
that Mr. Jiwa has covered guite a lot from it. So I'm
not going to ask again the same question.

MR. GRAY: Take vyour time. That's fine. T
thought we could help by reading the paragraph at the
Same time.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. On paragraph 20, vyvou say: "Mr. Tajdin
responded that he would accept this to be His Highness's
wish only if he received instructions directly from His
Highness." Is this correct?

2. That's what vou told me.

@. I agree I told wou that. I just want to make
sure that it's not changed?

2. Yes. Directly —-- from my language, directly
is the TImam. Imam of the Time, if he tells wyou, then vyou
will take instructions from him.

Q. Okay, that's fine.
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2. And that's the way vou have described to

P. That's fine. So this position is exactly the
same as what I wrote to the Imam, that I needed an
audience or guidance; right? On January 4th when I —--

2. You have your submission of -- your Affidavit
has vour letter in which vou have written to Hazar Imam.

Q. OCkavy.

2. And seeking in that a request for an
audience.

Q. Okay. Mr. Sachedina, vou know my family
since a long time also. It's not a family which is
disputing all the time with the leadership; right? And
yvou know our relation, we are always respectful and I
have never raised my voice; right? Is it right?

2. We've always had a civil discussion.

2. Right. 2and we have always been taking tea
together when we bump into each other in many countries;
right? Right? Yes, I --

L. Yes, well, we have not all the time, but when
I am there and vou have offered me sometime, I've always
had a cup of tea with vyou.

Q. Okay. 2And vice-versa?

2. ARbsolutely.

Q. Good. See, I'm already at page 7 and Mr.
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Jiwa has covered quite a lot, so...

Wow, here I read in number 28. This iz something
which I have always had this question in my mind, that
vou sSeem to think that Mr. Jiwa operates a website. 2And
I waz surprised to read that. Were yvou thinking that
he's co-operating my welksite or was it another website?

. I think -- I didn't know about this. You
told me that.

2. I told wyou that Mr. Jiwa 15 operating a
website?

A, Yes. Yes. No, you salid to me in your email
when you were trying to remove the kook from the
website --

[N Yes?

2. -- wou have sent me an email in which you
said, "I've spoken to Alnaz. He will remove it from the
website, the thread from the website." "I have spoken to
Alnaz Jiwa."

Q. OCkavy.

2. 5o Alnaz Jiwa website, I thought ocbviously he
is also involved in this website. I am not -- I told vyou
who said that to me.

0. Mr. Sachedina, I never wrote that Mr. Jiwa.
Can yvou bring this --

A, Yes. 2Am I allowed to —-
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0. Because what I wrote is —-

MR. GRAY: Do you have --

THE DEPCWENT: I have to give yvou. I haven't got
it here kecause I --

MR. GRAY: We don't -- it's an email?

THE DEPCWENT: There's an email that vou sent to

BY MR. TAJDIN:

0. I remember.

2. After of -- wyou, actually, removed the kook
from the website.

Q. That was my website.

2. Yes, from your --

0. MNot, from Mr. Jiwa.

No. Your website. 2&And I'm talking about your

website.

2. Okay. I'm talking about the fact that vyou're
mentioning Mr. Jiwa's weksite. Which website --

2., It's wyour website. I'm talking about your
website.

Q. No, but what vou are writing here, "operated

by Mr. Tajdin and Alnaz"?

A, Yes, because —- I am trying to explain to
vou, Nagilk Tajdin, that the letter -- the emasil vou sent
me -- first vyvou said to me the kbook has been removed from
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the website.
649 0. TYes.

2. Your website. 2And then yvou said to me --
then I complained to you that the kbook is still being
advertised and there is still a thread there on the
website because it's still keing advertised.

S0 you said to me, "Shafik, don't worry," and "I
have spoken to Alnazr Jiwa, who will ensure that this will
be taken care of."

630 Q. Okay, can we have in the undertaking that T
need a copy of the email?

MR. GRAY: We'll get vou a copy of that email.
—-—— UNDERTAEING

BY MR. TAJDIN:

651 2. Okay. Let me refresh a little kit.

A, So mavkbe —-

652 Q. We had a conversation during that period?

MR. GRAY: Sorry. Let me remind vyou that vyou are
not giving evidence. Your role iz asking gquestions.

MR. TAJDIN: Okayy. It —-

MR. GRAY: Please ask questions. You had vyour
chance to give evidence.

MR. TAJDIN: Mr. Brian, I'll ask the question.

MR. GRAY: A1l right.

MR. TAJDIN: Just because your client will say
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vas, he remembers.

MR. GRAY: Ckay, that's fine.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Did wvou not tell me to tell Alnaz not to
write these things he was writing about, the farman kook

and the Constitution and all those things?

A, I -- sorry. MNagik, I am not aware of that
conversation —-

0. You don't remember?

2. -- because I don't know Alnaz Jiwa at all.

It's the first time today formally that I've actually met
Alnaz Jiwa.

Q. Okay. Can we agree then, can we agree, would
yvou agree —- iz this the way to ask the gquestion? Would
vou agree that if in this undertaking vou bring the email
and it doesn't say that I will ask Mr. Jiwa to remove
from his website, there has never been a question of Mr.
Jiwa having a website and this conversation which vyou are
Saying?

2. I didn't know whether he -- I thought he was
connected with the weksite kecause if he could do what
yvou gave him instructions from the website, I presumed
he's involved with the website. That's the only
connection I have.

P. Iz this why his name was put on the
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lawsuit?

2. He has -- he was part of this, he was
involved with this, and I --

Q. Part of the publication?

2. I think that all the people who were involwved
in the sense that they were known, were people who are
engaged with this website. And because Alnaz I think
also had posted on the website a thing that he said that
I have —-- vyou know, after the announcement was made, he
had a very long email saying that -—-

Q. Okay. 8o vou are referring to his email
list?

A, Yes.

Q. What's posted on his email list, not on his
website?

. Well, to me, it's electronic and -- all of
this, from my point of view, 1is a methodology of —-

Q. Mr. Sachedina, then on the lawsuit it says
the same thing. But the Imam, who iz a graduate from
Harvard, he knows the difference between an email list
and a website. But it says that Mr. Jiwa is operating a
website; isn't it true?

2., I don't think I've said to you this website,
because it's your website in which he has keen

associated. So he obviously has connection with the
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website. So to me he is involved with the website.

@. So if this email that vou will produce as an
undertaking doesn't say this, vou will accept that it's
not there; right?

2. Az I said to yvou, I don't have the words
here.

MR. GRAY: If the email doesn't say it, then it
doesn't say it. We'll accept that.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Yes. Because for the moment I am hearing
that I have written that Mr. Jiwa had a website?

2. No. No. I didn't say that Mr. Jiwa ——- as I
said, vou said in your email that when I complained to
wvou that the kbook iz still keing advertised and there is
5till a thread there, vou said to me -- you sent me an
email to say that "I have asked Alnar Jiwa, who will
actually deal with this matter and make sure that there
is no reference to this." So immediately I realized that
and you and Alnaz are involwved with this website.

Q. Okay. So let's have the email which will
rrove conclusively that it iz not right, and we can
all —-

MR. GRAY: Or that it is right, as the case may

MR. TAJDIN: Yez. 2And if it iz right, I will
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make my apologies to Mr. Sachedina. And I hope also —-

MR. GRAY: We'll look forward to that.

MPR. TAJDIN: 2And vice-versa, I hope; right?

ME. GRAY: Well, it's —--

MR. TAJDIN: I guess this means no.

THE DEPCWENT: Well, it's my best recollection.

T wish T hadn't got -- but I haven't got the papers here,
So.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Number 30 of your Affidavit --

2. Mm-hmm.

Q. Now, it says —-- 30, 2-0.

MR. GRAY: Paragraph 30.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Yes. MNow, we are talking of January 26th.
When I wrote to Michelle Parkes -- do we say "Parkes™ or
"Park-es"?

A. No. "Parkes."

0. Parkes. Michelle Parkes. That I had started
implementing but I needed some clarification, and I was
rprepared to travel to Europe to meet with His Highness
for that.

Wow, did wvou talk with His Highness -- at that
time there was no lawsuit. Does His Highness know that I

sought clarification and a meeting with His Highness for
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this meeting -- for this matter?

2. As I said, that was between you and Mrs.
Parkes. Mrs. Parkes dealt with it herself. I only got
the correspondence afterwards that you had sent to Mrs.

Parkes because His Highness had asked that I ke sent that

correspondence.
Q. You are referring in numkber 24, 3-4, on an
email sent on 17th of February. Is this email? Can we

-— how are we numbering? Are we putting Exhibit 17

MR. JIwWa: I have A and B, 30 vou might as well
go with C, probakly.

MPR. TAJDIN: So we go with Exhikbit C7?

MR. GRAY: Sure.

MR. TAJDIN: Mr. Gray, that's —-

MR. GRAY: That's fine.

MR. TAJDIN: That's fine? We don't have to
restart —--

THE DEPCWENT: That's already part of the
Affidavit as well; am I right.

EXHIBIT C: Tak 24, Copy of Email dated February
17th.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

[N Yes.
2. Okay.
Q. Good. Now, this email says -- 1f vou will
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turn in your Affidavit that -- "this accusation that I
had forged His Highness's letter"; do I read correctly?

MR. GRAY: Sorry, are you referring to part of
the --

MR. TAJDIN: 34, Numkber 34 --

MR. GRAY: "Subsequently, Mr. Tajdin wrote" -—-
SOrry.

"Mr. Tajdin wrote to me by email on February

17th, 2010 repeating his"™ -- that's

Mr. Tajdin's -- "accusation that I had forged His

Highness's letter.”

Is that what vyou're reading from?

MR. TAJDIN: I was reading in 34. It says,
"repeating his accusation that I had forged...™

THE DEPCNENT: His paragraph 34.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. 24 of the Affidavit. Is this what vyou are
reading?

2. Yes. This is referring to this emsil.

Q. OCkavy.

2. Because he talked to me on the phone; right?

Q. OCkavy.

A. And this is in the letter afterwards. You
followed it up with a letter.

Q. OCkavy.
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2. First wvou talked to me on the phone and then
yvou Sent me this letter.

Q. Okay. Would vou agree that while this email
talks of forgery, it doesn't say that vyvou did the
forgery?

Did it say that vou are the one who did it?

A, Yes.

Q. It says, "I had forged."

2. No, but that was an accusation vou have also

made to me first in a phone call.

Q. OCkavy.
2. And now also —- well, in this emmsil -- wves,
"You have colluded.™ "You have colluded with Michelle

Parkes to send me a letter with a forged signature still
need clarification.™ [as read]

Q. S0 does it mean that vou forged the letter,
that vou forged the signature?

A, That's —-

Q. Or someone elsge can forge and give it to you
and you send it to me?

A, Well, wvou can imply whatever you want to
imply in this letter.

Q. But it doesn't say it.

2. Very clearly I think there's an accusation.

Q. This is the way vou understand?
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2. Accusation of forgery.

Q. S0 lmmediately wvou told the Imam that I have
accuged you?

2. No. I just sent this email to the Imam. I
didn't even speak to Imam. This copy of this email was
absolutely sent to the Imam. I didn't speak to the Imam
about this email.

2. Okay. 8o the Imam knew from what vou sent
here, which vou are interpreting as you have forged the
letter, that I had accused you of forging the letter?

2., I didn't say this is what it is. The letter
is az i3, and that's exactly what I sent to the Imam.

Q. Okay. You sent it immediately?

A, Well, not -- vyeah.
Q. OCkavy.
2. Immediately after the email came to me, I

then forwarded. After vour phone call, this email came
the next day and afterwards I sent.

2. I understood that. So what yvou are saying
now iz that the Imam has two complaints. ©One from vyou,
one from Ms. Parkesz, that I have accused koth of vou.
This is what it says, "vou have colluded with Ms.
Michelle Parkes™; right?

2. But vou had also written separately to Mrs.

Parkes.
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Q. That's fine. So it says, "both of vou sent
me a forged letter." This iz what it says?

A, Yes.

2. Okay. Subsequently, the Imam sent this
second letter which we are saying iz forged and yvou are
saying the Imam has signed it. That letter, iz it 18th
of February?

MR. GRAY: 18th of February, ves.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. In that letter, it says that I have accused
Michelle Parkes, but it doesn't say also Shafik
Sachedina?

. Because I kelieve that the letter -- the Imam
had already, from what had happened from Mrs. Parkes, T
presume, he must have already worked on that letter or
whatever. This came to me on the day, the 17th from my
roint of view.

[N Yes.

2. This iz 17th that T got it.

[N Yes.
2. It was late in the afterncon. I just
forwarded it to his office. It doesn't mean His Highness

gets 1t at the same minute that I sent it.
Q. OCkavy.

L. His office will decide that his emails then
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have got to his Secretariat, his office. 2And I don't
even know whether he was there or he was not there.

Q. OCkavy.

2. Because the email will only get to the
ITmam --

Q. What essentially vou are saying iz that the
Imam did not know about this letter when he wrote this --

MR. GRAY: He didn't know akout the emsail, wvou
mean? Or which letter?

MR. TAJDIN: Tes.

MR. GRAY: Didn't know of the email of Exhibkit C7

MR. TAJDIN: 17, wvyes.

THE DEPCWENT: I don't know what time he got the
letter, but what I'm sayving to you is submitting a letter
doesn't mean that he actually seez it that very minute.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

P. Okay. So it's not —- "subsequently™ doesn't
mean "immediately"™? It can ke like tomorrow he read the
letter —--

A. Yes. Imam can look at a letter at his time.
He —-

Q. Okay. He may be travelling and subsequently

2. As I said to you, as far as I'm concerned, at

that time this i the case.
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@. Do vyvou remember if he was travelling at that

time?
A. I believe so.
2. Okay. So that letter he wrote on 18th was

not written from Paris then. From where ——

2. Which letter are we talking akout; the first

or the second letter?

0. The second.

Z. I believe he was not at base at that time.

Q. He was not. Do you know which secretary
tyvped that letter?

2. I understand there's a correspondence from
Amn-Valerie.

2. Did she type that letter?

2. Well, she was a secretary I kbeliewve
accompanying His Highness, to the best of my knowledge.
I kelieve that she was a secretary travelling with His
Highness at the time.

Q. Okay. Iz it —-- okay. We'll leave it at
this.

When you say that vou saw that letter on the
Internet subsequently, this email of mine, would you
agree that it was after the 8th of May?

2. Which letter? Sorry, I just —-

0. This email -—-
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ME. GRAY: Exhikit C, the email of —-

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. When you saw it on the Internet, it was after
the 8th of May, 2010; would vou agree to that?

2. After the 10th of —-

Q. 8th of Mavy.

2. It came on vyvour website sometime.

0. After the lawsuit. After we file the
defence. It was not there kefore; right?

2. Yes, I think it appeared --

Q. On 8th of May?

2. -- afterwards, vyes.

P. 8th of May, vou know we have a directory near
the file. This is how I found. Because I myself also
did not remember when it was written, the date. We have

a directory and yvou hawve the date. That's how I found
it.

2. It iz already on your post what date it was
rosted.

Q. That's fine. &2z far as we agree that it was
not posted the next day, and it was after the lawsuit,
after the defence.

S50 Ann-Valerie may ke the one who typed that
letter?

2. I believe so. 23 I say, I'm not certain, bkbut
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I believe that she was one of the secretaries who were
travelling with His Highness at the time.

MR. GRAY: Are vyou talking akbout -- you switched
again. You're now talking akout Exhikbit --

THE DEFCWENT: The letter.

MR. GRAY: —- the letter of February 18th?

THE DEPCWENT: The letter of Fekruary 18th.

MR. TAJDIN: Tes.

MR. GRAY: Exhikit J.

MPR. TAJDIN: Yez. Thank vyou.

Sorry akout that. You know I told you that there
will ke moments like that, kecause this iz my first
examnination I'm doing.

MR. GRAY: That's fine. I just want to make it
clear what --

MR. TAJDIN: 2nd I'm not a lawyer. I don't have
your training.

MR. GRAY: Actually, it's vyour Affidavit
raragraph 37. Okay.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. There are a couple of things. Now, it says
that His Highness communicated with Mr. Mohamed Manji.
Would vou know if it was verbal or with a memo or an
email?

2., I was told —— I'm given to understand by
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Mohamed that he spoke to Mohamed.
2. Okay. So the Tmam calls —-

A Pregident.

Q. —-—- Council presidents —--
A, Yes.
Q. -——- and important people; right?

. He does call.

Q. When it is something important, not every
day, every moment?

A. HNo.

0. And —-

2., It's yp to the Imam to decide when and for
what purpose.

2. I agree. Now, 38, 1t says that vou informed
the LIF. Is it not true that chairman of the LIF is
appointed directly kv the Imam?

2. Absolutely he's appointed by the Imam.

Q. And the Tmam can talk to him directly?

A, Yes. He has absolutely —-

Q. Does he do that sometimes, talking directly

2. Yes. He speaks to the LIF chairman.
0. And the chairman is Mr. Lakhani?
A, Dr. Azim Lakhani.

0. Dr. Azim Lakhani. Where does he live?
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2. He liwes in the U.EK.

721 0. In the U.K. In London?

2. In London.

722 2. Okay, that's fine. But the Tmam did not call
Mr. Lakhani; wvou informed Mr. Lakhani? When vou say you
informed the LIF, in numker 38, do you mean in the
meeting; right?

2. I informed the chairman.

723 Q. And he called a meeting?

L. First the chairman, and then I asked the
chairman, because Hazar Imam spoke to me on the phone,
called me and said that, "I want this conveved to the
menbers of the LIF."

724 0. And he did not —-

2. The first I spoke to chairman --

725 0. Mr. Sachedina, he did not call the chairman
of the LIF?

2. Because he wanted to discuss other matters
with me, and while he was sSpeaking with me, he —- it was
he who called me.

726 Q. It was not important enough for him to
confirm directly to Mr. Lakhani that --

2. That was the Imam's prerogative, to decide
who he speaks, for what purpose.

727 Q. Okay. How waz these four countries affected
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chosen? In 39 vyou say: "Az this represented a grave and
unprecedented step, His Highness authorized the LIF to
issue a second announcement.™

Was this done in writing?

A. No. He called me.

Q. He called wou?

A, Yes.

Q. So you prepared the announcement?

A, Sorry?

Q. You prepared the announcement?

A. No. He called me. He himself had done a lot
of work on the announcement, and he was giving me
instructions to say that these are the four countries he
wants.

Because originally -- normally, announcements of
the LIF go glokbal, but in this particular case, 1t was
His Highness's wishes that to keep this amnnouncement in
only those four countries.

Q. S0 vyou said His Highness had worked quite a
lot on this second announcement. Has he shown vou a memo
or some notes or something which kbecame the base of that
second announcement?

2., I'm not privy to Hazar Imam's own work that
he does with his staff.

Q. Okay. 8o announcement, Hazar Imam told vyou
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his notes over the phone?

2. No. He himself read out the components to
it. It says this is what he wants to say.

Because all of these quotations were he —-- he
wanted those quotations put into the announcement.

Q. So you took some notes during that phone
conversation?

2. No, because I was in a car and he was telling
me on the phone and I was driving from wherever it was to
the airport. So I was being told by —— he was reading it
out to me.

Q. So you did not take any note of --

2. No. And he then says that Sherbanco or
somekbody will send me the -- whatever the final draft
will be.

Q. That's fine. So did Sherkbanoo send you the
draft?

2. I would presume there must be a draft
somewhere, but I haven't got -—— I can't tell wou that I
have definitely got —-

0. Mr. Sachedina, can we have it as an
undertaking to provide —-

2., It's privileged. &5 I said to vyou, what Imam
sends me is privileged communication.

Q. It's draft of something which was read —-
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(inaudikle}

A, But I don't know —-

2. Do you agree to 1it? It's a draft —-

MR. GRAY: We don't agree to produce it. We'll
take it under advisement though. You want the draft of
the announcement of April --

—-—— UNDER ADWVISEMENT

BY MR. TAJDIN:

0. Yes, I would like to see ——

MR. GRAY: April the 15th, T think it is.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

0. The draft which Mr. Sherkbanoco sent to Mr.
Sachedina?

2. No. The draft of the final text that Hazar
Tmam authorized --

0. So it came from Sherkbanco —-

2. Sherbanco's office, who said this is the text

which Hazar Imam has authorized.

2. Do vyou remember approximately at what date?

2. It was the day —-- the day the announcement
happened.

Q. S0 the same day it was read?

2. I think it was either the same day or the
evening. Because I think I was on my way —-- 1it's my

recollection, and I want to make it recorded it was my
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best recollection, and I was in -- and I was going -- and
I waz travelling to London, and it was on the road that I
got this message, and that is when this thing was.

2nd he then says "I am now authorizing you to
release this announcement through the LIF. Talk to Azim,
talk to everybody, this is the position.”

Q. OCkay. 8o that announcement was released by
the LIF, not by the Council or their institution?

2. No. It came -- as I said to you, it was
released through --

2. By the LIF?

. LIF.
[N S0 it was an LIF announcement?
L. TYes. Because Hazar Imam wanted it to ke an

LTF announcement for these four --

Q. Okay. So Council and Tariga koard, those
were not associated with it; right?

. MNo, the -- well, the National Council --

Q. OCkay, fine.

2. Only the countries that --

0. That's fine. That's fine. That's fine.

—-—— Off-the-record discussion.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

2. Do vyvou know if Mohamed Keshavijee was involved

in the writing of this announcement?
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2. Nothing to do. MNothing at all.
7ol Q. S0 now in number 40, vou are saying:
"...His Highness has maintained direct, constant
contact with me, and has shared with me all
relevant correspondence and other forms of
communication..."”
Which correspondence are you talking of here?
2., I'm talking about all the steps in this whole
Affidavit. I'm talking about here "in all of the steps
that have been taken as described above," meaning
anything that I've described above, meaning all of this
work from the moment I start, from the beginning of my
Affidavit --
752 Q. Mr. Sachedina, let me remind vou of the
gquestion. You are writing here that His Highness
"...has shared with me all relevant
correspondence and other forms of communication
30 that I could assist him in carrying out his
direct instructions for resolving this matter.”
My first question is which relewvant
correspondence did His Highness share with vyou?
MR. GRAY: Well, he had copies of the —-
MPR. TAJDIN: Can vyvou please let him reply, Brian?

ME. GRAY: I'1ll let him answer.

MR. TAJDIN: Thank wyou.
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THE DEPCWENT: The correspondence, the copies.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Which copies?

2. The facts that vou know you -- vou have got
here the announcement has been made, the letters,
everything that has happened up to that time.

@. S0 his announcement was shared by His
Highness with you?

2. I said to you the LIF, all were approved by
Hazar Imam. So all of that, what has gone to Hazar Imam
for his review, what came back to review after the —-- his
input, whatewver it i3, all of that has been shared with
Hazar Imam. 2nd then whatever he has given notes, for
exanple ——

Q. He shared it again with wvou?

A. Of course.

Q. So vyvou gave him the amnnouncement and he
gave you —-—

2. And obviously every time vou send something

to His Highness, there are other matters also that vyvou're

discussing.

Q. Mr. Sachedina, wvou are writing here, "...s0
that I could assist him in carrying out his direct
instructions for resolving this matter."™ So you would

agree you were not successful in resolving this matter,
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as we would not be sitting here?

2. No, I was not. I tried very hard because I
-— I did all within my capacity to try and see that this
matter would not reach this level. 2And, in fact, I -- as
yvou are yourself aware, I sSpoke to yvou on this matter.

Q. Now, we are sitting here after the 11th of
2pril, if I follow your Affidavit. So this is after —-
after the lawsuit was --

2. After the lawsuit.

2. So after the lawsuit, did vou ever contact me
to try to resolve this matter?

2. I was not, vou know, authorized.

0. Well —-

2. Once the legal matter started, I was not in a
rosition to speak to anyvbody on this matter.

Q. Mr. Sachedina, wvou are not authorized to
speak with me, but His Highness wanted wyvou to carry out

his direct instruction for resolving this matter --

A, After —— as I said —-
0. ——- after the lawsuit was in the court?
A, No. No. It's uyp -- a5 I said to yvou —— I'm

saying to vyou, what happened in the past, it was all
there, and that is exactly what it is it says, resolving
this matter kbefore it came to the lawsuit.

Q. S0 now we are —-- S0 Hiz Highness trusted you
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that vou will be akble to resolve the matter, but he was

wrong; 1z that what vou are saying?

2., No. It's -- the matters --

0. You were not successful.

2. The matters had gone beyond -- that it had
gone in a direction that what he wished to carry out. I

was not involved with the lawsuit myself.

0. MNow, what --

2. I've explained that earlier on.

0. Mr. Sachedina, the first announcement which
we have already talked akbout was already talking of legal
Steps?

2., I -- at least not from my -—-

0. That was —-—

2. The first announcement, as far as I'm
concerned, doesn't talk about any legal steps at all, at
least in the —-

Q. OCkay, we'll --

MR. GRAY: You're talking akout the first
announcement in January?

MR. TAJDIN: 16.

MR. GRAY: Of January.

THE DEPCWENT: Where is... Yes. All steps are ——
this practice considered in breach of the Ismaili

Constitution and the copyright laws of... [a3 read]
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(inaudikle}

MR. GRAY: Read it much slower.

THE DEPCWENT: 211 right. I refer to page 154,
announcemnent dated January léth, 2010. 2And the paragraph
in question, and at least I presume you're referring to,
WNagik, iz —-

BY MR. TAJDIN:

769 0. Yes?

A, "It is a matter of deep concern that some

menbers of the jamat have taken it upon

themnselves to pubklish and sell this private,

protected and privileged text of Molwana Hazar

Imam. ™ (sic}
T70 0. Yes, I can read it.
A, This —-

——— The reporter appeals.
BY MR. TAJDIN:
771 2. Okay, I'm jJust referring to the last sentence

where it talks of copyvright laws.

MR. GRAY: It says —-

THE DEPCWENT: Yes, but this practice constitutes
a breach of the Ismaili Constitution as well as copyright
laws, and appropriate steps have been taken to ensure
that the unauthorized circulation of copies of these

unauthorized publication ceases.
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BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Okay, what was these steps which were taken
besides the announcement?

2. From this -- letters were sent to vou.

Q. Are wyou referring to the letter --

A Letter from the Imam —-

Q. OCkavy.
2. -- were sent to you after this
announcement.

Q. Mr. Sachedina, now if vou could come kack in
time, January lst vou called me. You were in Zanzibar at
that time?

A. Correct.

0. You talked to me akbout the kbook which I had
ruklished. At that time vou hawve not seen the book?

. I hadn't seen the kook.

Q. You told me when vou arrive in London,
someone has put it on the desk so yvou will see it when
wvou arrive in London on Monday. Monday was 4th of
January, Just so that you remember.

Wow, did I not tell vou, "if wvou pass by Nairoki,
why don't vou come and we can talk"?

2. You zaid to me. I told yvou I can't.

Q. And vyvou said you were in transit?

2. I was not going to ke because I was -- in
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fact, I couldn't even ke in transit kbecause the flights
didn't comnect, and I nearly missed my flight. So I
couldn't --

Q. So you never came out of the airport.

2., No. I was in town only for an hour or an
hour-and-a-half, and the president of the Council just

gquickly saw me there and he left —-

Q. Okay. So wyou went to eat at the Stavroze
Restaurant?
2. Whatewver. He -- he took -- I told vou I was

supposed to be originally spending more time in Nairoki.

Instead, Zul came to the airport for a quick kite kecause
he szavs, "vou won't make the flight and vou will miss it

if vou go any further, so this iz all vyvou can get."

Q. Mr. Sachedina, from the airport to city
centre in WNairolki, can vyvou tell me how long it takes?
Isn't it true it takes at least 45 to 50 minutes to go
and 45 to 50 minutes to come back?

A, Well —-

Q. When it is not traffic hours. Sorry.

Because when it is traffic hour --

2. But this was not actually -- this was very
gquick, as I said to yvou. I arrived and I was given very
good —-- obkviously, they realized that I was running late

for the flight and, in fact, they couldn't take me where
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they wanted to take me, and I said I don't hawve the time

because I'11 miss my flight.

S0, a3 I said to wyou,

I was in transit. That's

why I couldn't meet vou on this matter.

0. That's fine. But
to the Stavroze restaurant in

2., I went to the --

[N Yes or no?

A, I went to —-—- as I
Stavroze, but first I went to
me somewhere kefore they took

2. And then vou went

straight --

vou went from the airport

city centre in Nairoki?

said to you,

I didn't go to

-— the Serena people took

me to —-

—-— from there vyou went

2. Then he realized that where I needed to go

and because the president said that's where he is, he

can't go too far, that's the only place he could take me

nearky and I could have a quick kite.

Q. Okay. ©Okay. ©So you were in the city?

A I was in —-—

Q. That's fine. It's just that I thought I

heard vou saying that --

A, I was in transit.
Q. -— 1in the beginning that vyou were --
A, I was in transit.

ME. GRAY: Flease. Wait.
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——— The reporter appeals.
BY MR. TAJDIN:

789 Q. S0 number 40, can I assume right --

MR. GRAY: You're speaking now akout his
Affidavit, paragraph 407

MR. TAJDIN: Yesz, his Affidavit. Sorry. I'm
Jumping from -- oh, in French we say -- (speaks in
French. }

I'm not going to force wyou to write it.

BY MR. TAJDIN.

790 Q. Number 40, 5o now the Imam asked you to
assist him, but vou were not really alkle to resolwve the
matter. You were not really abkle to assist. Number
407

A, Well, as I zay, I did whatever I was expected
to do, and I did what I expected to a particular lewvel,
and beyond which the Imam had control over this. I had
no control over this.

791 Q. So you did vour best but —-

L. Yes, it was the Imam who wished to take it
the direction he wanted to take.

792 Q. S0 the Tmam was not wrong in trusting vou
over this matter, kbut he could have asked someone else to
do 1it?

2. But that's the Imam's prerogative.
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0. That's fine.

A. I have no --

Q. That's fine. I'm not disputing that. I'm
not disputing that.

Wow, from the lst January when we talked, the 4th
when you arrived in London, we had few email exchange and
yvou wrote me few time, called me, we had some
conversation; am I right?

A, Yes. We were —-—

2. Okay. Then vou asked me and I told vyvou I
have written a letter to the Imam?

2. Correct. Because I'd advised you. Earlier
on I said to you.

Q. Now, this letter, wvou don't know if I wrote
it kecause vyou advised or if T wanted to or if I had
to or if —-

A, It was my —-

2. Okay. But vou will agree that this letter
have not arriwved in Aiglemont when the 1l6th January
announcement happened?

2, I can't tell wou.

Q. Well, vou wrote that it arrived on the
20th?

2., No. I got it on the 20th. When it arrived,

I can't tell wyou. Because the mail doesn't come to me.
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I got it on the 20th. Arrived on the 20th from my
perspective, Aiglemont. What I mean iz my office.

Q. Okay. 8o Alglemont it arrived -- tell me how
do these letters go from council in the various countries
to Aiglemont? Are they sent by courier?

2. I would presume Some —-- yes, Some go by
courier, some go by mail.

2. Like, wvou receive reports from Council,
reople from the community will send letter or --

2. They either send it by mail, by courier.

2. So, therefore, if it iz sent by mail --

2. Or by individuals.

Q. Okay. Is it —-- let's say Someonhe gives a
letter to a council, any council. Is it sent to
Aiglemont to Jamati Affairs?

A. HNo.

Q. Where does 1t go exactly?

2. The letter, if it is addressed to Hazar Imamn,
it goes to his Secretariat. 2ll letters addressed to the
Tmam go to his Secretariat.

0. Are there several Secretariat there? Like,
for example --

2. Yes, there are different people. What
happrens iz -- mail-management system, there's a mail-

management system at Imamat level that actually manages
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all the mail that Tmam gets.

Q. OCkavy.

2. They have to be recorded and all of this. So
I, as I gsaid —-

0. 8o there is a kbook there which records
anything that comes?

L. Whatever time it comes, and then it's
recorded, and then it's given and it's put. And it is
the Imam then who decides, bkecause if they are

confidential envelopes that staff are not allowed to open

[N Yes. S0 ——

2. -- that is personal to him, he will keep, and
it is when he is able to at his own time that he will
decide when to open, what to sSee, what not to see.

2nd there are some mail that he opens and then
therefore acted by —- and immediately -—-

P. I understand. Is it a system like in office
where there are pigeon holes and you put this email, or
is it going directly to the —-

2. HNagilk, it iz not under my direction. That
office iz His Highness's private Secretariat. You
understand? That means nobody —-

Q. Which would be the person that would receive,

let's say, a parcel for the Imam sent by a murid through
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the Council; which would be the person receiving that?

2. This iz an office. It all goes to His
Highness's personal office, and the Secretariat deals
with that, different secretaries for
different allocatiomn.

Q. How many secretaries are there?

2. I would think there's about at least half a
dozen people involved.

0. Half a dozen?

A, Six to eight.

Q. How many people are working in Aiglemont,
total?

2. Anywhere from 150 to 200 people.

Q. 200 people?

2. Approximately. But I'm not -- as I say, I
don't know what the total staff iz because I don't spend
my time at Aiglemont, all the time. Az I said, I live in
London, I only go when I'm expected to go for meetings,
and I —--

Q. But in the last 13 years you have gone gquite
a lot —-

2. Of course I go. I go for a day, I go for a
week, I go for three days, or I go for one day. But
that's not my department.

Q. S0 1is there a way to trace when my letter
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arrived at the Secretariat?

2. I would presume the date it actually came to
the Imam's office.

0. It's written in a book?

2. There must be -- somewhere there must be a
record of it, which day it arriwved.

Q. Can we have a photocopy of that page showing
the time and date?

A, Well, I, as I said —-

MR. GRAY: We'll make inguiries and adwvise wyou,
but I'm certainly not going to -—- and if we do produce a
rhotocopy, it would have to ke redacted. We're certainly
not going to give you --

MR. TAJDIN: I just need that one line. You can
Llank out the whole page. I don't need to know what else
is there.

MR. GRAY: OCkay, we'll take that under
advigement, but that may ke possikle. I don't know how
difficult it would be.

—-—— UNDER ADWVISEMENT

THE DEECWNENT: But, as I said, kecause he could
make a note of the recuest that.

——— The reporter appeals.

MR. GRAY: He's advising me to take a note. He's

afraid I'm going to forget.
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BY MR. TAJDIN:
818 0. Is it normal for a council —-

MR. GRAY: You're producing to us something, Mr.

MR. TAJDIN: Yez. Let's put it as exhikit. I'm
not sure which number. Is it "D"?

BY MR. TAJDIN:

215 Q. Usually the Council will give a letter saving

that —-

MR. GRAY: Wailt just a second. I don't beliewe
Mr. -- wvou haven't established that Mr. Sachedina has
ever Seen this letter.

THE DEPCWENT: I'wve never seen that before.

MR. TAJDIN: No, I'm introducing it to ask him a
gquestion.

MR. GRAY: He hasn't been akle to verify it in
any way, S0 —-—

MPR. TAJDIN: So can we take it —-

ME. GRAY: You can mark it for identification, if
vou'd like.

MR. TAJDIN: You can verify it. It's okay.

MR. GRAY: We'll mark it for identification.

MPR. TAJDIN: Okay, please mark it for
identification.

MR. GRAY: And shall we use the same numbering
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system?

MS. NOwWAE: D-17%

ME. GRAY: D-1, we'll make it as D-1 kecause it's
not identified.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

@. S0 D-1 would ke a letter purported to ke from
His Highness Prince Aga FKhan, Council for Kenya, dated
5th of July.

MR. GRAY: It appears to be, ves, on its face.

EXHIBIT D-1: Copy of letter dated July 5, 2010,
from Nausherwan Parekh, His Highness Prince Aga Khan,
Council for Kenya, to Mr. Nagik Tajdin, Nairoki.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Informing that parcel was sent to Mowlana
Hazar Imam on 2th January by courier DHL, and there is a
confirmation of the DHL.

MR. GRAY: My understanding is with DHL -- with
that number, vyou would ke alkle to determine when it was
delivered to his address.

MR. TAJDIN: Yez. Yes. The DHL deliwvery sheet,
yvou can see the last entry. It iz the same number, the
same number as in the Council letter. Last -- second
rage, last line. And from what I read, they delivered
the three parcels to Aiglemont. One was 2-and-a-half

kilo from Nairoki to Sherbanoo Moledina.
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BY MR. TAJDIN:

0. Mr. Sachedina, is Sherkbanoco Moledina the
Secretary that receives usually Council's letter or —-

2. She is a member of the community, =so she
would normally get —-- normally, Council presidents would
rrobakbly send an email to her saying that we are sending
yvou something. So is it poszikle that the president of
the Council sent, could have spoken to Sherbanco? I
don't know. I'm not —-

Q. I'm not asking —— I'm just asking that
Sherkbanoo Moledina works there; right?

2. ARbsolutely.

0. And she's in the Secretariat.

2. ARbsolutely.

0. That's fine.

. I confirm that.

Q. And DHL is saying that this number of
waykill, which is 2-and-a-half kilo, was delivered on 8th
of January. We just want to cross-check that this is the
information which is in Aiglemont, that this iz the date
it arrived?

MR. GRAY: We'll take it under advisement.

—-—— UNDER ADWVISEMENT

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Do vyvou know if there iz any "Leconte" who
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works there, Ms. Leconte, or Mr. Leconte?

2. I would not know all the staff.

Q. That's fine. Don't worry akbout it.

ME. GRAY: No, but we note that the two akbove
them also appear to be Aiglemont.

MR. TAJDIN: Yesz, but one is from Calgary, the
other iz from Geneva. So DHL is bringing them.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Iz DHL coming every day to Aliglemont?

2. Again, I don't get involved in the logistics
of this issue. Because mail management iz a totally
different place. I don't -- it's not a —-

Q. Okay. Hawve you seen Mr. Bhaloo's Affidavit
before he signed it?

A, Sorry?

Q. Have wyou seen Mr. Bhaloo's Affidavit before
he signs it?

2. Mr. Bhaloo's Affidavit kbefore he signed this?
I saw a wversion of it.

Q. Okay. & draft?

L. TYes, there was a draft that was —-- he had
rrepared, but, as I say, he then himself dealt with it
because, az I zay --

0. That's fine.

A, It's not my responsikbility. But he did say
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that he was just making sure that I find my -- as far as
I'm concerned, my own visit dates and what vou have
already said iz here, now all is in there.

2. Okay. 8Since I have gone through vyour
Affidavit, I will just go to my notes. I have some other
gquestions which are not in the same order and so they may
not look like connected to each other. But just to tell
vou we are at the end of the examination. I'm almost
finished.

S50 that day we met in 2kidjan.

Q. Yes. That was during the Golden Jubkilees;
right? Right?

A, Yes.

Q. I guess this iz a vyes.

We talked about the Imam, and yvou said that his
shoulder was completely restored. You remember that
conversation?

2. You asked me how Hazar Imam was, and I said
to yvou he's fine. 2and wvou said is he all right, and I
said ves, he's fine.

0. Did we talk of his shoulder?

A, You talked to me, as I say, abkout his
accident.

[N Yes.

2. You asked me the cuestion and I responded.
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Q. And vou said he was fixed now?

2. Right shoulder is a shoulder injury, that's
Wy .

0. That's fine. There's no tension. It's a

friendly comversation. Don't worry.

In jJawmat khana when a farman is read -- I just
want you to tell as it comes. You know, it's not
something in your favour or my favour. Do we say,

"farman of Noor Mowlana Shah Karim, ™

or do we say "Noor
Mowlana Shah Karim" when it iz read, or do we say "farman
of the Aga FKhan"?

2. In jamat khana context, usually the name iz
Mowlana Hazar Imamn.

Q. Okay. Do we zay -- yvou have never heard in
yvour life someone say —-—

2. Yes, there are -- szorry.

MR. GRAY: You should wait for him to finish the
gquestion kefore yvou answer that other question.

THE DEPCWENT: My difficulty is I can't keep up
with the question.

MR. TAJDIN: WNo, I heard the reply. I heard the
reply.

MR. GRAY: But he hadn't finished and he was

5till talking. If he's still talking, vou hawve to

walt —-—
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MR. TAJDIN: Mr. Gray, please, she has to note
down what's happening, so give her the time to note down.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

842 0. You talked akbout the Jamati Affairs
department. How many people now working there?
L. Between 12, 15. You asked me earlier.
843 Q. Sorry, I didn't remember.

2. You asked me earlier on that dquestion.

244 Q. You sald Mohamed Keshavjee has retired. Has
he kbeen replaced?

2. No. He's still at Aiglemont but as
consultancy, kbut till he gets a new replacement because
of his retirement. You know, he's retired.

245 Q. Are wyou aware of any farman that Keshavjee
would have edited?

2. Of any farmans that Keshavijee —-

846 0. Would have edited?

2. I have to tell vou -- and I keep conmning kback
to the same thing.

847 0. "Yes"™ or "no"™ would suffice.

2. Yes, there is never -- the farmans have only
been wrote by the Imam of the Time. I have to tell wvou
this is what the process is.

S0 if Keshavijee has done, I don't know if he has

done.
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Q. Would vou say it's the prerogative of the
Tmam to decide who to tell to print the farman?

2. The ultimate authority when it comes to
printing the farmans, pukblishing the farmans, Hazar Imam
will direct. Any institution within his power,
constitutional bodies, IIS —- anvbody, he will decide who
ke akble to do the printing.

2. Does he have the right to give it to any
other person?

2. Absolutely his complete prerogative.

Q. Now -- okay, I will skip that because I don't
have his Affidavit.

Wow, vou mention the sentence that the Imam was
going to stay in London during Golden Jukilee about the

leaders was cut off?

A. No. I sald he didn't -- he didn't finish his
sentence and there was an interruption. That's all I can
remember.

Q. OCkavy.

2. Because he himself told me afterwards, so

that's how I remember.

Q. Can we take that as under -- how do vyou call
it? TUndertaking to have his -—- I don't want the tape of
the farman. I just want that one minute. From the

moment he says that the Jamat may ke wondering why I'm
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making this farman up to the time people started
clapping. That's one minute. Can I have that one
minute?

MR. GRAY: Well, if vou want to explain
something.

THE DEPCWENT: Let me tell wyou, the farmans are
privileged communications between the murid and the Imam.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

0. 8o I understand that as to be no?

2. I would say to vyou that this, whatever it is,
is in the puklic domain, and to put any text, my humkle
view 15 that --

Q. Mr. Sachedina, partly I would agree with vou,
because as evervbody knows, vou have not put the kook in
the court and I have not done that also, nor has Alnaz
done that. So we have all agreed it 15 remain between
Ismailis. We don't dispute that.

You have stated that the sentence was cut off.
This is why we need that tape, that one minute. Unless
wvou agree that the sentence was not cut off and there is
a two-second blank, there is no sound, and then people
start applauding to the statement, I would like to hawve
that tape from vou. ©One minute. I don't need the whole
farman. That one sentence --

. On record.
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2. On record plus --

MR. GRAY: OCn the record here?

THE DEPCWENT: Can I share that with vou outside
this record?

BY MR. TAJDIN:

@. You know, I'm not a lawyer. Honestly, I hawve
a copy of the tape. 8So because you have put on record
that the sentence was not completed, and having the copy
0f the tape, I know the sentence was complete. We need
to prove it.

I don't want it to become a fight between us.

A. HNo.

Q. But vyvou are saying what I'm saying the
oppozsite. If vou produce that one minute, it will prove
conclusively that the sentence was completed, there was a
two-gecond gap, and everybody started applauding.
Everykbody was happy about the statement from the Imam,
that the leaders are not necessarily conveying his
message?

MR. GRAY: You'd have to put it in evidence now.

MR. TAJDIN: Because you have stated the
contrary, that the sentence was not finished. If there
is no dispute on that -- and I'm not asking the whole
tape.

MR. GRAY: You're giving evidence yourself now.
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I mean this is --

MR. TAJDIN: Well, kecause we are talking of --

MR. GRAY: If vou wanted to put it in evidence,
vou could have done so.

MR. TAJDIN: Okay. Mr. Brian, let's take it as
an undertaking —-

ME. GRAY: No, we will not.

MPR. TAJDIN: We need that one minute to prove if,
wvaes or no, you are right.

THE DEPCWNENT: I'm sorry, but I'm really not
getting this at all as to what iz the rationale kehind
this gquestion. Because I told wyou that we have -- what
Imam has authorized for the release of that farman, Imam
has authorized. Which is out to the Jamat.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

0. Mr. Sachedina —--

2. By the Imam.

@. —-—- the cquestion was -- wyou would allow me to
Say 1t again because you replied to me in that way, that
the sentence was not completed akbout what the Imam said
on the leaders --

2. No. I said his chain of thought was not
completed. You heard me. He was not able to —-

0. 8o now, Mr. Sachedina, we need that

one-minute recording, not more.
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MR. GRAY: No.
—-—— REFUSAL

BY MR. TAJDIN.

@. Just that recording. You can give me the
last word of the recording up to the moment people start
clapping?

MR. GRAY: No.

—-—— REFUSAL

MR. TAJDIN: Well, we need to prove conclusively
that the sentence was conpleted and there was a silence
after that.

MR. GRAY: You have a copy of it. I guess if vyou
felt vou should --

MR. TAJDIN: But, wvou know, I'm asking the
gquestion. I'm not replyving here. I can't produce it;
right? I cannot go home and bring the tape.

MR. GRAY: If yvou felt wou needed to put it into
evidence, vyou should have done so. As you yourself said,
we are not anxious to put farmans in --

MPR. TAJDIN: Yesz, but with all respect due, I was
not aware that there will be in this examination a
statement which is not representing what the tape iz
showing.

MR. GRAY: Well --

MR. TAJDIN: If I was aware, obviously I would
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have brought it into --

MR. GRAY: My current position is no, kbut I will
consider it. I'll reconsider it.
—-—— UNDER ADWVISEMENT

MR. TAJDIN: Thank you. Thank wvou for
considering.

Okay. Now, I have a few files, and it will be
very fast. Very fast. Don't worry, we all want to avoid
this traffic at the end of the day. So let's say ten
ninutes.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Now, usually, Mr. Sachedina, there are
councils in most of the country's where there iz some
kind of contact with the Imamat. So countries like
India, Pakistan, Kenva, Uganda, Tanzania, Mozambicue, all
these countries have some contact.

And vou travel frequently in countries where
there are Council, and when vyvou don't, they inform wvou of
what's going on. The ITREER coordinator would inform wyou
that such and such farman would have been be published;
right?

You would be a well-informed person in matters of
community; vou are the head of the jamat institution?

2. Yes, if I am given the information from the

field and the people have -- the processes are there,
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then people will kbring it to our attention.

Q. So would it be reasonabkle to say that if
there were farman books pukblished, someone will come and
tell yvou? If not immediately, after two months, three
months, six months, one vear, two yvears?

2. It depends upon how wide the publication is.
If somebody has produced it and kept it for himself, a
kbook, nokody would know. But the gquestion is whether
there i3 publication to a level where people find out
widely that there iz a book. Then only vou would find
out if it is kept in a smaller group. Nokody would
know.

Q. Sir, if it circulates by email in small
grouypes of people, it's not bothering vou; vou wouldn't
know?

2., I wouldn't —— as I zay, I would not know
albout this unless somebody brought it fto my attention.

2. S0 the lewel of information you have akout
what's happening in the Jamat is limited?

A, We aren't a police force. We don't police
the whole system like a police force.

2. Okay. Hawve you seen this book, Golden
Jubilee Gem?

A. HNo.

0. You have not seen it?
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A. HNo.

Q. It's not published by Institution?

2. I have not seen this at all.

2. Okay. The fact that there iz a crest in the
middle doesn't mean that the Institution has puklished,
does 1it?

2. Somekbody obviously has used it or —-

Q. OCkavy.

2. That's somekody who has taken --

0. Is it true that --
2. -- licence to do that.
Q. —-—- using the crest of the Imam is forkidden

v the Constitution?

. Well, if it was done in the context of the
Jukilee itself that was authorized usage of this crest at
the time of the Jubilee.

0. But this crest has not been authorized
because this is not from Institution; right?

2. No, I'm just saying that this is the logo of
the Golden Jukilee. The crest was part of —-

[N S0 we Ccan use —-—

——— The reporter appeals.

THE DEPCWENT: This logo was ——- this kook, this
rarticular logo, was for the Golden Jukilee, and it was

authorized to ke used during the Golden Jukilee
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celebration.
BY MR. TAJDIN:
2. So, therefore, any kook of farman with Golden

Jukilee farmans, it's normal that this logo would end up

on itz

. TIt's at the time of the Golden Jubilee, as I
said.

ME. GRAY: No, I don't think that's what he
said.

THE DEPCWENT: I'm not saying that.

MR. GRAY: He said if it was authorized.

THE DEPCWENT: Authorized. We have given -- this
was authorized by the Tmam to be used —-

MR. GRAY: If it was.

THE DEECNENT: -— az the crest, the logo, for our
Golden Jukilee wyear for everything in the Jamat, the
celebration. This was, as I say, what would ke used
during the -- wvou are aware of what way it was used on
every Single visit.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

@. I have seen that logo, and what I wanted to
roint to you was that this iz a book of excerpts of
farmans of Golden Jubilee and it's circulating quite
widely. And you have never seen it?

A I have never seen it.
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Q. Can we put it Exhikit --
ME. GRAY: Well, he's never seen it. He hadn't
identified it and he doesn't know that anything ever

happrened about it. But we'll mark it for identification

as D-1.

MS. NOWAE: D-2.

MR. GRAY: D-2.

EXHIBIT D-2: Copy of Excerpt of Golden Jukilee
Gems.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

0. What akbout this kbook? This is farman of
Sultan Muhammad Shah T kelieve printed in the last few
months, mavkbe a vear, mavbe 12 months. There iz a name
of the compiler?

2. But these are the Tmam -- the printer, the

farmans of Imam Sultan Muhammad Shah.

Q. So is it okay to print --

2. I am talking about this copyright action has
been taken by the present Imam, the 4%th, not the 48th
Tmam.

Q. OCkavy. S0, Mr. Sachedina, since you are
working closely with the Imam, is it okay to puklish the
farmans of Sultan Muhammad Shah then?

2. No, I'm not saying that it's okay. I'm just

saying to vou what vou are showing me is not the farmans
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of the present Imam --

Q. Are wyou aware of the existence of this
kbook?

2. I'm not aware of this.

[N You are not aware?

2. Because, azs I sald to you, some of these
things may be in limited circulation in a small place.
Wokody would know that unless and until somebody brought
it to your attention. But this is not -- we're not
comparing this with --

Q. Actually, it's not —- actually, it's in wide
circulation kbecause I got one copy by email and one in
print. So it has to be —-

MR. GRAY: Again, vou're not giving evidence.

Are vou asking a question or are you giving evidence?

MR. TAJDIN: Okay. That's fine. It's good for
vou to remind me. I'm not a lawyer, as I told you in the
beginning. You hawve to remind me.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

2. So you hawve not seen this kbook? It has never
come to your -—-

MR. GRAY: I think he's said that about three
times, he hasn't seen the kbook.

MR. TAJDIN: Yesz, if wvou would allow me to

complete my question. If you interrupt my thinking, vou
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know, it will ke difficult for me to finish as fast as I
want.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Can I ask vou to look at the second page of
this. Have wyou heard of a farman that people refer to as
the Usul-e-deen farman --

A, Yes.

2. In the, not the last paragraph but just
before that paragraph, I want to point to this: "My
Farmans themselves are the Ginans!" The Usul-e-deen
farman is quite widely circulated in our JjJamat; do vyou
agree with that?

2. This iz -- again, I keep coming back, these
are farmans from Sultan Muhammad Shah, and I always —-- asz
I zaid to you, it is my position very clear, and it's my
kbelieve, that every time we look at, first of all, the
farmans of the present Imam, they take precedence over
any previous farman. And the Imam of the Time is the
one —- the farmans that are, from our point of view, in
our tariga. We look at the present Imanm's farmans.

Q. That's wvery good. Mr. Sachedina, would vyou
agree that any farman which has not been superseded iz
s5till wvalid?

2. By the Imam -- living Imamn.

Q. So let's say on July '57 the living Imam
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became Shah Karim, the present Imam. So the farman made
two weeks ago by the previous Imam are no longer valid;
is that what vou are saying?

2. What I'm saying to you iz our -- the farmans
0f —— Imam is Imam, is the present living Imamn, and we,
a3 the Jamat Ismaili community, follow always the Imam of
the Time. So those farmans are the ones that guide our
life because he is the present Imam and he makes the
farman. It is his farmans that we follow because we have
given the bayat to the Imam of the Time.

Q. Thank vou for this theological discourse.
Wow, let me tell wvou —- isn't it true that the Imam, when
he became Tmam, the present Imam said "follow the farman
0of my grandfather" who was the previous Imam"™; right?
Isn't it true that he said that in his very first
farmans?

2. Well, as I zay, I cannot respond to that.

Q. You don't know about it. Okay.

Did I hear vou say that ginans were just poens?
This morning did vyvou say that?

2. I said devotional poetry.

Q. OCkavy.
2. I didn't say they were poems. There were
devotional poetry that is there to evoke -- azs I say, vyou

know what the ginans are, similarly like dquasidas,
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similarly like madho -- quasidas, q-u-a-s-i-d-a-s,
quasidas, and other forms of devotional poetry.

2. Okay. But vou agreed that the Usul-e-deen
farman, which is wvery well known in the community, says
that farmans and ginans are the same?

2. Az I saild to you, this was by the past Imam,
the 48th Imam.

0. Is it walid or not?

2. As I saild to you, my interpretation, and it
is my personal interpretation, that I follow the cuidance
given by the present Imam always.

Q. Okay. Didn't I make it into exhikit? I'm
sorry akout that. Let's put a number. Okay. D--

MR. GRAY: Again, it's a document that the
witness has never seen, doesn't know when it was
circulated —--

BY MR. TAJDIN:

2. Okay. Would you undertake to verify, and if
it iz, then we can make it into an exhikit?

ME. GRAY: No, we won't.

—-—— REFUSAL

MR. TAJDIN: So D what?

MR. GRAY: D-3.

EXHIBIT D-3: Copy of excerpt from the 10 Ruhani

Farman, Farman Mubarak made by Hazrat Imam Sultan
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Humammad Shah.

MPR. TAJDIN: Thank you. OCkay, let's make this as
Exhikit D-4.

MR. GRAY: So you're assuming he has never seen
it before?

MR. TAJDIN: Well, wou can take some time to look
at it. These are emails between us.

MR. GRAY: OCkay. Well, I think this one then he
rrobakly has seen, if it's emails.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

296 Q. Have you seen those emails?
A, Yes.
297 Q. OCkavy.

ME. GRAY: S0 that will ke Exhikit E, "E" as in

Edward.
EXHIBIT E: Copiles of Emails.
BY MR. TAJDIN:
298 Q. Let's first start with the last page.
2. This last page?
899 0. TYes.
A, Yes.
900 Q. Okay. Now, the way it works, vyou know when
vou reply to an email, the first email goes below. So

the first email is 7 January here, and yvou are saying.

"Dear Naguibk, could vou please advise me of the
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date when vou sent the submission to Hazar Imam

a3 hizs office have no knowledge of this."

Pight? You remenber that email?

2. On the 7th of January?

[N Yes.

A. Yes. I checked out and there was no —-

Q. And vyvou were right kecause, as you see, DHL
is savying that they came on 8th only.

2., Well, I'm sorry, I didn't -- on that day I —-

Q. You are right, it was not there.

MR. GRAY: Just accept that he's saying yvou're
right.

MPR. TAJDIN: You always Say yes when sSomeone sSays
yvou are right.

THE DEPCWNENT: No, kut I just wanted to make
sure. It's the 7th; right? This is the 7th of
January.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Then on 10th, on 10th, wvou were looking for
it and vou had not find it; right? So vyvou sent me
another email saying, "I have no response from you.
Pleazse regpond or call me asap." [az read] True?

A, Yes.

Q. So on 10th the envelope was there —-

A I didn't check.
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Q. -—— wyou were looking for it but vou did not
find it?

2. HNot for the enwvelope. Flease understand, I'm
not looking. The mail manager says that we have not —-

Q. There iz nothing?

2. Well, I mean this is because -- His Highness
said to me vyvou hawve said that the letter is coming. I

have not seen the letter.

2. Did wvou check with the Kenya Council if I had
given them a letter to send to Aiglemont?

2. That they confirm.

Q. So you told His Highness that my letter is
coming?

A, It's on its way but I haven't seen it.

0. You haven't seen it?

2., It's in the system.

Q. S0 that day I replied to vyvou the same day,
"The sealed envelope has gone through proper channel a
week ago Monday™?

2. ARbsolutely.

@. So at that time vou knew, on 10th, that the
letter was coming, His Highness knew that the letter was
coming, vou knew that I had given it to the Kenya
Council, the Kenya Council had confirmed to yvou that it's

coming; right?
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A, Correct.

Q. And before it came, there was already an
announcement in Jamat khanas, first one?

2. But that was no connection with the letter.

Q. OCkavy.

2. To me, the letter coming and Hazar Imam's
announcemnent have no relation --

2. Okay. So Hazar Imam didn't want to know what
was in my letter before making the announcement?

2. The announcement issue just came simply
because we wanted to make sure that this issue -- because
he knew albout the publication.

2. Okay. Mr. Sachedina, now these are all
emails that vou recognize have kbeen correspondence
between vou and me?

2. HNo. There are more.

0. There are more, but these are from between

yvou and me?

A, Yes.
Q. You know this iz a question I've been itching
to ask: Can you tell me why vou write my name Naguils,

WN-a-g-u-i-k? Because each time I sign Nagik N-a-g-i-kb
hoping that vou will correct the next time.
A, Well, it's in my machine, and it's always

been N-a-g-u-i-k. There are two Nacguiks I have, and koth
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0f them are spelled the same way.
920 Q. OCkavy.
2. So that's the position.
921 Q. S0 when vou write "Dear Naguilk," are wvyou
tyvping it or is it from vour machine?
2. No, kbecause I'm used to saying "Nagib" the
way 1t is.
522 Q. Okay. So it's kecause of the other WNaguik?
2. HNagilk generally is spelled like that. It'sz
very unusual to spell N-a-g-i-kb --
It's like vou have also done the same thing with
me, On WMy name.
923 @. I'm sorry if I have massacrated [3ic] wour
name. Did I write "g-u-e" instead of "k"?
2. No, yvou've done the koth. One email is
Shafik and the other one wyou said Shafidque,
S-h-a-f-i-g-u-e.
524 @. S0 interesting. So interesting.
This kook, have yvou seen it? It's circulating
albout ten years or eight vyears.
MR. GRAY: That's your evidence, I suppose.
BY MR. TAJDIN:
525 Q. Okay, let me ask vou a question akout --
because the name is there. The translator is Mohamed and

Zeltun Sachedina. Are they related to wyou?
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A. HNo.

Q. No. So I would not ask vou akout the
content, but you have not seen those books?

A. I have not seen those books.

@. I will not put some evidence of more kooks
because I think vou get the idea.

You know Egbal Rupani?

A, Yes.

Q. And vou are -- are you governor of the IIS?
2., I am a governor of the Institute.

Q. You know the idea of creating the ITS was in

'75 Paris Conference?

A. Right.

Q. Correct. Have vyou read the Paris Conference
minutes which --

2. Well, I recall some of it. I don't —-- I mean
if wvou ask me, if we're doing a cross-examination on the

Pariz Conference, I can tell vyou now that I will not ke

akble to —--

Q. If vou recall, wou'll tell me yes or no
because --

A, Yes, if.

——— The reporter appeals.

THE DEPCWENT: You're asking me a gquestion and
then you --
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MR. GRAY: You don't let him answer the question.
T know yvou think I'm interrupting, but vyvou constantly
interrupt him before he's finished his question and then
vou start asking another cuestion —-

MR. TAJDIN: Brian, I think you are interrupting.
If wou could let us talk, then it would be one less
volice. It would be easier for the transcription.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Do vyou recall that the first thing discussed
in that conference was akout the fundamental beliefs
and. ..

2. The conference had a major outcome, az vyvou
know and I know.

[N Yes.

. So the whole issue of what would be the
direction which the community should position itself,
Hazar Imam, as far as matters of faith, an institution of
education, what would ke the long-term --

2. Okay, that was '75°%

A, Yes.

0. And that is —- one of the items there was the
creation of the IIS, of which vou are a governor?

A, Yes.

0. And there was discussion akbout the definition

of the TImam. Do you remember how it was defined?
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2., Well, as I said to wyou, I don't at the
moment, but I'm aware -—-

0. You don't remember. That's fine.

MR. GRAY: See, agalin —-

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. That's fine. If vou don't know, there's no
roint of elaborating on why vou don't know.

MR. GRAY: But he wants to elaborate, and vyou
should -- vou need to allow him to do so.

MR. TAJDIN: Mr. Gray, the question is if vyou
know, ves or no. If you tell me vyes, it's okay. If vyou
tell me no, it's okay. There is no —-

MR. GRAY: He's entitled to explain his answer,
I'm afraid. I'm sorry if vou don't agree with me.

MR. TAJDIN: Mr. Gray, sSorry, but vou know we all
would like to finish., We are all tired. So I hope vou
don't interrupt any more.

MR. GRAY: Let him finish his answer and I won't.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

P. So would wvou like to add anything akout the
Paris Conference?

2., Well, as I said to wyou, it was —-- from my
roint of wiew, vou are now getting into the details of
everything, but, wvou know, the principles were agreed at

that conference regarding the establishment and the
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rurpose of the estaklishment of the Institute of Ismaili
Studies by the Tmam of the Time.

2nd that was really key issue. Whether we
discussed matters of the —-- what the definition of the
Tmamat iz or not, to me it's not, frankly, from my point
of view, for academics to decide what it is. It is not,
from my point of wiew, here to discuss this in this
particular case.

2. Okay. Iz that completing vyvour reply?

Do yvou have a residence here in Toronto? - --

2. Yes, my family is here.

Q. Tell me, just for curiosity, wvyou were told
that my wife, Frany, dave a copy of the Golden Edition to
Prince Hussein?

2. I heard about that.

Q. You heard about that. Did you receive an

"sms" from Farid Uddin Hemani when it happened?

A I found out from -- I think it was from --
not from -- from the information department, who -- it
was not referred to me. I think it was from the

information department that I came to know.

Q. This is last question. Last question. The
first letter dated 24th January was sent to me on 11th of
February from Aiglemont. Did vou give —-- was 1t wyou who

gave my address to Ms. Parkes, sent it to the DHL —-
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2. Sorry, to the DHL address?

[N Yes.

2. No, I had nothing to do.

Q. OCkavy.

2. It was Ms. Parkes. Ms. Parkes dealt with vou
directly on this matter.

[N But Mrs. —-

2. I was only informed subsecquently.

Q. Okay. So if Mrzs. Parkes has never received
the address from me, would it mean she has received it
from wyou?

2. She would have asked if I have the address.
Because I have the addresses of lots of people, and if
she asked me would I have, kecause they all know that I
have keen in contact with yvou and we are in contact with
each other, we hawve been in contact. So it's only
natural that she would look to somebody so who is in
contact with vyou.

@. I guess it's too late to make copies, but —-
50 I will not continue with other questions. It's just
that I should have brought some copies. Anyway, S0 —-—

MR. JIwa: If vyou want, vou can show it and then
we can do it afterwards.

MR. TAJDIN: Can we do that? Okay. I have only

one.
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MR. GRAY: One additional question?

MR. TAJDIN: It's about the same question, if vyou
allow me. If it's bother vou, I will just stop here.

MR. GRAY: I won't hold wvou to it.

MR. TAJDIN: ©Okay. So this will ke Exhibit --

MR. GRAY: Well, not necessarily. Can you show
us what it iz vou're --

MPR. TAJDIN: Can vyvou read 1t?

MR. GRAY: OCkay. We'wve geen it. It's an email
from Michelle Parkes, P-a-r-k-e-z, to Nagib Tajdin dated
February 11th, 2010, but I'm not sure i1if this witness has
ever seen this before.

THE DEFCHNENT: I hawve not seen this one.

MR. TAJDIN: So we don't want to enter it into —-

MR. GRAY: If he hasn't seen it, he can't really
identify it, can he.

MR. TAJDIN: We'll keep it for discoveries
then.

MR. GRAY: OCkay.

MPR. TAJDIN: Thank you. I wish we would not have
to do this, but at least I enjoyed seeing yvou again.

MR. GRAY: Does that mean vou're finished?

MR. TAJDIN: Yesz, ves. I'm finished.

MR. GRAY: MNo re-examination.

—-—— WHEREUFCHN THE EXAMINATICON ADJOURNED AT 2:49% FM.
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I HEREBY CERTIFY THE FOREGOING
to be a true and accurate
transcription of my shorthand notes
taken to the best of my skill and akility.

FATHRINE MCMENEMY, CSR
Computer-2Aided Transcription
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—-—— UFON COMMENCING AT 9:59 AM.

AZT
CRO
0.
A,
0.
record?
A,
0.
Affidavit?
A,
0.
A,
0.
discuss the
rut in with
A,
0.
discuss wha
anykbody els

A,

0.

NETWO

Z M. BHALOO: Sworn.
SE-EXAMINATICON BY MR. JIWA:
Good morning, Mr. Bhaloo.

Morning.

Would vou please spell your name for the

Ariz, BA-z-i-z, Bhaloo, B-h-a-l-o-o.

Wow, Mr. Bhaloo, vou hawve before you your

Yes, I do.

And vou swore this on 23rd of June, 20107
Yes, I believe so.

Wow, when this Affidavit was drafted, did vyou
contents of this aAffidavit, what should be
anykbody?

Actually ——

When this Affidavit was drafted, did vyou

t contents to put in, what to mention, with
e?

No, I did not.

2And vou gave this information yourself?
Yezs, I did.

Currently, vou are residing in Kenya®

Currently, I'm in Kenya.
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Q. Now, you sald that vou were the president of
the Ismaili Council for Canada between 1993 to 19997

2. That's correct.

Q. And prior to that, vou were the
vice-president?

AL Yes, I was.

0. Between 1987 and 19937

2. (Wods head up and down}.

Q. Now, the appointments that you had were made
bv His Highness?

A, Yes.

Q. And they are normally read in jamat khanas by
way of talika?

A, Yes.

Q. Once you get appointed in a constitutional
body such as what vou were, vou take an oath of office?

A, Yes, I do.

2. Do vyou recall what is the ocath of vyour
office, sir?

A. I believe it's in the Constitution. That's
the --

Q. I'm going to refer it, to the page, szo.

MR. GRAY: This is in the Rules and Regulations?

MR. JIWA: Yes.

MR. GRAY: I see you hawve my copy of this. It's
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marked.

MR. JIwWA: Is it vyvour copy?

MR. GRAY: Yes. I wondered where it was this
morning. This was Exhikit B to the cross-examination --

MR. JIWA: Yes.

BY MR. JIWA:

2. So that was marked vesterday as Exhikit B, so
I'm not going to mark it as an exhikit today. But is
that the ocath of office that iz taken by appointees?

L. Yes, it is.

Q. And would vou agree with me that number 1
there it zays:

"I shall protect and defend the Ismaili

Constitution and the Rules and Regulations made

thereunder"?

2. What akout it?

0. HNumker 17

A, Yes.

Q. I says: "I shall protect and defend the
Ismaili Constitution and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder"?

2. That's what it savs.

2. Right. &And vou took that ocath as well?

L. Yes, I did.

Q. And all members who were appointed, other
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than presidents, all members who are appointed take the
same oath?

2. What did you say; "other than president™?

P. I'm trying to say other mewmbers; like, member
for vyouth --

2. All members take this oath, ves.

Q. They all take the oath?

A, Yes.

Q. S0 esgentially all institution members,
including president, chairman, members, they all take
this —--

A. I believe so.

Q. ——- oath upon taking office?

And it's a requirement of the Constitution that
they must take?

. Yes, I kbelieve so.

Q. And would vou agree with me then that each
menber's responsibility is to protect and defend the
Ismaili Constitution?

A. Correct.

2. And would vou agree with me what His Highness
has made a number of farmans on this issue that the
Jamats as well must abkide by the Constitution?

2. I understand so.

Q. And the Constitution is sort of kinding on
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all Ismailis worldwide as well as all leaders and
institutional members?

2. Yes, it's binding on all Ismailis.

2. And would vou agree with me that after the
date of the Constitution, His Highness can make a farman,
and 1if there iz an inconsistency with this farman and the
Constitution, the farman prevails?

A. I'm not sure about that.

Q. Now, with respect to attending today, 4did you
discuss the evidence vyou agreed to give with anvlkody
alse?

2. After I give the evidence or before I give
the evidence?

Q. For preparing for today?

L. Yes, I did.

Q. Who did vou discuss it with?

2. The evidence as such.

[N Yes.

2. I discussed it with Brian Gray and Mr. Shafik
Sachedina.

2. Right. When did vou discuss it with Mr.
Sachedina?

A. Pardon me?

Q. When did wvou discuss it with Mr. Sachedina?

2. Over the last few days.
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Q. Over the last few days. Did vyou discuss
anything yvesterday?

2. I met with him vyesterday, ves.

Q. And vyvou discussed the evidence with him
yvasterday?

2. No, I did not discuss his evidence with him
yvesterday.

Q. All right. Now, at paragraph 3 of vyour
Affidavit, vou said that in Octokber of 1%%8 vou organized
and attended a meeting with the Defendant, Nagilk Tajdin?

A. Correct.

Q. Now, this is during the time that Focus
Canada had fundraising events?

A. I'm not sure akbout that. I know it was late
in 1%98, and to the best of my recollection it may hawve
kbeen during the Focus ewvent, or it may have been during
otherwise.

Q. Have wyou read Mohamed Tajdin's Affidawvit?

2. Yes, I have.

2. And there are zome photos there. Did you see
those notes that are there?

2. Those are not from the meeting.

Q. Those are not from the meeting?

2. Not from the meeting.

Q. No, but there's photos from the Focus?
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2. They're from an event that took place, which
was more a sSoclal event than anyvthing else.

45 2. But that the fundraising event, was it?

A. But I'm not sure whether the two times were
the same time or not. I'm not saying they were not; I'm
not saying they were. I'm saying I'm not sure whether
they were or not.

46 Q. So yvou hawve no recollection of that?

2. No recollection of that part, ves.

47 Q. Fine. MNow, 1f I refer wyou to paragraph 8 of
yvour Affidavit, now this was concerning the mehmani that
was held on August 15, 1%9%92, in Montreal. You say you
waere vice-president at that time?

AL Yesz, correct.

48 Q. And vou were part of the organizing
committee?

2. I was part of the organizing committee.

45 Q. Now, can vyou please look at your last
sentence in there?

A, Yes.

50 Q. Now, you're saying: "To afford each Ismaili
the opportunity to meet His Highness, individual
audiences with the Imam were for a duration of only a few
seconds."

Are wyou suggesting that every person who went for
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the mehmani were there only for a few seconds?

2. No, I'm not saying that.

P. So would vou agree with me that the mehmani
is a special occasion for Ismailis all over the world?

2. Mehmani iz very sSpecial occasion in every
murid's life.

Q. And the specific purpose of this mehmani is
for the Imam and his murid to have an interaction and to
receive klessings of the Imam personally?

2. This iz for the Imam to have an opportunity
to meet with individual members of the family, generally
two, and it is for them to receive Imam's kblessings.

Q. When vyou say "family," two friends can attend
as well, can't they?

A. I'm not sure about that.

Q. Do vyvou know if there's any rule, any
regulation, any announcement in Jamat khana that friends
cannot —-

2. Whereas I'm not aware of any rules or
regulation, the normal -- the norm has been that it's the
family menkers that go for the mehmani, kecause it is for
the family members.

Q. Right.

2. And generally the families take pride in

taking their family members with them.

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 510 of 536



10

11

12

13

14

15

1l&

17

18

1%

20

21

22

23

24

25

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

AUGUST 12, 2010 AZTZ BHALOO 11

Q. But that's a general statement, kbut what I'm
Ssaying to vyvou is two friends can go; correct?

A. I'm not sure about that.

Q. You're not sure about that. Okay. Would you
rlease undertake to confirm?

MR. GRAY: I'm wailting for your question.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Will vou please undertake to confirm with
your organizing committee that was helping in organizing
during that ewvent to see whether there were any rules
prohikbiting any friends from attending for the mehmani?

ME. GRAY: No, we won't.

—-—— REFUSAL

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. Now, with respect to the mehmani, most people
are gatisfied with Just receiving the Imam's klessings;
Ccorrect?

A. Correct.

Q. And occasionally the Tmam himself might ask
of his murids if he wishes to?

2. It iz his prerogative.

Q. Yes, 1if he wishes to. But nokody can stop
him if he wanted to speak with somebody?

A, It's Imam's prerogative.

2. And the purpose of the mehmani is also for
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the murid, if he so chooses, to seek guidance from his
Imam?

2. It is. But the manner in which the guidance
is sought is generally there's a memorandum written to
the Imam, which is then given to the Imam. The Imam puts
it aside, or one of the mukhi puts it aside, and it is
regponded to later on by the Imam.

@. That is if the -- if that murid wants to giwve
something in writing, perhaps a medical report as an
example; isn't that true?

2. It could ke anything.

Q. Are wyou suggesting or are you saying that
murids cannot speak or seek guidance orally from the
Imam?

A, Well, T said it's the Imam's prerogative to
give that guidance.

Q. No, that's not my gquestion.

2. It's the accepted norm that murids do not --

Q. I'm sorry, that is not my question.

MR. GRAY: Let him finish his question.

MR. JIWA: No, but that's not my dquestion.

MR. GRAY: He's giving vyvou his answer.

MR. JIWA: He has misunderstood my cuestion and
I'm going to ask the cquestion.

BY MR. JIWA:
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Q. And I would like wou to respond to the
gquestion rather than what vou want to say.

My question was: Is the murid who presents the
mehmani prohikited from asking the cquestion orally to the
Tmam without giving any memorandum in writing?

2. It's not a generally-done thing.

Q. How many mehmanis have wyou attended, sir?

2. For whom?

Q. Any mehmanis. At this mehmani vyou were not
present?

2. I'm not sure whether I was present or not. I
did organize it.

Q. You are not sure whether vou were present or
not in Montreal?

2. That's right. Because at that time we had
organized a 13-day visit across Canada. There were many
events I had to organize and, therefore -- this is one of
the ones there, and I had other responsikilities as well.
S0 I'm not sure whether I was present in that room or
not.

Q. And vou agree with me that normally there are
akbout two members, two Ismailis, who present the
mehmani ?

2. That's correct. Two members of the family.

Q. Well, vou said that again, and I'm going to
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repeat this again: There's nothing stopping two friends
from going; iz that right?

2. And T answered you before that I'm not sure.

2. But there's nothing -- vyvou're not saying —-
yvou are gaying that yvou're not sure, kbut you're not
saying that two friends cannot attend; is that true?

2., I'm not saying they can.

2. How many mehmanis have wyou done, sir?

. My own? Personally?

[N Yes.

2. Az a murid to the Imam, one particular one,
and az the president of the Council, two.

Q. And how many mehmanis that have been -- not
rersonal mehmanis but mehmani ceremonies organized that
vou have been present at?

A, Quite a few.

Q. How many akout?

2. There are five Jamats across Canada, 0 there
waere a nunkber of days over 12 days, there were probakly
eight or nine days of mehmanis. So over those nine days,
I may have attended three or four.

2. Right. You may have attended.

2. Right. Because I'm not sure of the exact
number.

2. In total, not only during the visit in
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Canada -- were you present in London, 200%, for the
Golden Jukilee?

A, 2009 Golden Jukilee?

[N Yes.

A. No, I was not.

0. 2008, rather, in London?

A. No, I was not.

Q. During the Golden Jubilee mehmanis were not
held?

2. Pardon me?

Q. During the Golden Jubilee visits by His
Highness, mehmanis were not organized?

2., I kelieve 3o, right.

Q. And not every visit mehmanis are organized?

2. That iz correct.

0. And the last time in Canada the mehmani was
organized during this 1%%2 visit?

2. S0 I believe.

P. And before 1992, do vyvou recall when were the
mehmani organized in Canada?

2. I understand it was 1978.

Q. And were wyou present in 19787

AL Yes, I was.

Q. And how many mehmanis would vou say that you

have attended wourself, not necessarily as present in
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your own mehmani, or not necesgssarily as an organizer, how
many mehmani ceremonies have vyou sort of attended at?

2. I answered that gquestion earlier on.

Q. You answered that with respect to the 1552
visit.

A, Yes.

Q. And I'm saving generally.

A, Well, in 19%78, I was present during the
mehmanis, ves.

Q. And during 1978, His Highness spent a lot of
time with the Jamats as well?

L. Yes, he did.

Q. And vyou were in Toronto?

AL Yes, I was.

Q. And vou recall that there were many days he
spent in Toronto?

A, Many?

2. Days.

2. Many days spent in Toronto. & few days spent
in Toronto.

Q. And, ultimately, on one occasion at about 1
o'clock in the morning he had to sort of stop the
mehmanis kecause he couldn't complete them all?

2. That is correct.

Q. And do you recall during that '78 wvisit, His
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Highness a number of times said he wants to listen to
specially the mehmanis that are represented so the Jamat
to remain calm?

2. Yes, I remenmber.

0. He said that on a number of occasions?

A, Yes.

2. And then he specified that he wishes to
listen to what his murids tell him, and he wants cquiet in
the jJamat so he can listen; he said that a number of
times?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, with respect to the Constitution that I
mentioned to you earlier, would you agree with me that
the last Constitution that was amended was in 19987

MR. GRAY: That's correct.

BY MR. JIWA:

Q. And do vyou recall when was it amended kefore
that?

2. I believe it was promulgated in 1986.

Q. Right. &aAnd after 1936 and kbetween 1286 and
1998, do wou recall if the Constitution was amended
during that period?

A. MNot that I'm aware of.

2. And have wvou ever read the Constitution prior

to 19867
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2. No, I have not.

Q. Have you read this Constitution?

2. Yes, I have.

Q. And do vou recall that His Highness had set
up a consulting body when he wanted to set up a new
Constitution?

2. Consenting kody?

Q. A consultation kody.

2. TYes, I recall that.

Q. Were you a part of that?

A. No, I was not.

Q. And do vyou recall His Highness sayving that he
had spent almost three-and-a-half years reviewing all the
various Constitutions kefore he came up with this
Constitution?

. MNo, I'm not aware of that.

Q. And vou agree that the Constitution is a very
important document in our Jamat?

2. It's a very important document.

Q. Would vou agree with me that if His Highness
wishes and desires, indeed he sort of orders the jamats
and the leaders to abkide by the Constitution, that any
changes to the Constitution would be relaved to the
Jamat?

L. Yes, it would be.
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0. It could ke or it would ke?

A. It could be.

P. It could ke; right? That's how the jamat
would know what to expect and what to do.

WNow, kefore yvou signed this Affidavit and kefore
vou drafted it, did vou review Mr. Sachedina's Affidavit?

. MNo, I did not.

Q. And did yvou discuss with anvkody, Mohamed
Manji or anybody else, with respect to the contents of
Mr. Sachedina's Affidavit?

2. I did not even read Mr. Sachedina's
Affidavit, so how could I have discussed it?

Q. Now, in yvour Affidavit wvou have disclosed all
of the —-- &all of the issues that vyou are -- that you are
aware of with respect to these matters?

2. Yes, I have.

MR. JIWA: Those are all my questions.

MR. GRAY: Thank vyou. Off the record.

-—-C0ff-the-record discussion.

CROSS-EXAMINATICON BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Mr. Bhaloo, vou know me at least since 20
vears, I think?

2. (Deponent nods head up and down).

Q. We have always had very amicakle relations?

. We gstill have.
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Q. And we still. And when vou were president,
vice-president, I was living in your Jjurisdiction in

Canada. 2nd would vou agree that we have never had a

fight?

2. I generally don't like to fight.

Q. 2And I also don't like to fight. So there iz
no —- and there has never been any fight between us.
I've never raised the tone with vou. I have always been

respectalkle; you agree to that?

2. (Deponent nods head up and down).

Q. And vou would say the same thing of my
family?

MR. GRAY: Just to help, Mr. Tajdin, it's his

crogsg-examination, but in order for it to ke meaningful,

” ”

vou have to say "vyves" or "no.

THE DEPCWNENT: 211 right. I know vyvour family.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. You know my family and we are all civilized
rpeople; right?

A. Right.

@. I think we also have some family relation
from the mother's side or something; right?

2. Generations ago maybe, ves.

Q. Generationzs to generations. Okay.

Would vou agree that may family iz well respected
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in the jamat -- let me rephrase that -- was well
respected in the Jjamat kefore this announcement and this
lawsuit and -- was i1t very respected? Yes? No?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. We talk of the Constitution, and vyou
said that it was an important document. It's important
like the farmans are important; right?

A, Yes.

Q. Yes? Yesz. And yvou took an oath on the
Constitution even today?

A, Yes.

Q. There wazs a question which came, and I was
thinking that is this something which is in the
Constitution akout, can a farman supersede the
Constitution? Or an article of the Constitution, can it
ke superseded by a subsequently farman?

2. Well, I answered that earlier on by saying
I'm not sure.

[N Yes.

. I think it would be a decision that would be
His Highness's, it would ke his instruction that would
dict what supersedes what.

Q. You know when you said you were not sure,
actually I was not sure. So I went right away to the

Consgtitution to wverify. 2nd if we can refer to the same
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document, article 1.67

MR. GRAY: Of the Constitution or of the
Pegulations?

MR. JIWA: The Constitution.

MR. TAJDIN: The Constitution on page 10.

MR. GRAY: Sorry, Mr. Tajdin, but I don't see a

1.6

MR. JIwWA: It's on page 10.

MR. GRAY: Page 10 I see a bunch of
definitions.

MR. TAJDIN: ©Ch, sorry, it's Rules and
Pegulations page 10.
MR. GRAY: A1l right. 1.6, right.
BY MR. TAJDIN:
127 Q. Can vou read that to me, loud voice please?
. 1.6: "The Constitution, and in the event of
conflict the Constitution..."
128 2. From the title. And read it zlowly zo she
can type.
2. Okay. "These Rules and Regulations shall be
read with
"{a} the Constitution, and in the event of
conflict the Constitution shall prevail; and

"(k} any Farman made after the date herecof, and

in event of conflict the said Farman shall

NETWORK REFORTING & MEDIATICN (416} 35%9-0305

August 2010 Cross-examinations Page 522 of 536



10

11

12

13

14

15

1l&

17

18

1%

20

21

22

23

24

25

AUGUST 12, 2010 AZTZ BHALOO 23

rrevail, and a later Farman shall prevail over an
earlier."

129 0. 8o would this mean that if a farman is made
after the Constitution, the farman would ke followed?

2. This iz what the regulation says.

130 Q. Okay. Would it mean that the farman iz more
important than the Constitution, and the Imam can
abrogate the Constitution or make any change whenever he
wants even after it iz printed?

MR. GRAY: TI'll let the witness answer this to
his understanding, but he's not a constitutional
expert.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

131 Q. Yes? MNo? You have sworn by the —-

MR. GRAY: If vou feel comfortable answering to
Your own expertise, then fine.

THE DEECNENT: No, I don't understand the
gquestion.

MR. GRAY: OCkay. Well, that's a good start.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

132 Q. Can I rephrase?
A, Yes.
132 2. Okay. You have read the Constitution. We
have just read article 1.6. In your understanding, does

it say that a farman which is made after the Constitution
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will supersede any article of the Constitution if there
is a conflict?

A. I am not sure about that. I'm not an
constitutional expert.

Q. Okay. & short question akout 19%%2 or akout
that period. Did vou send any farman books to Sachedina
after that meeting, three kooks or all of the —-

2. I believe I did not. You gave them some
farman kooks -- gave him some farman books, vyes.

Q. S0 vyvou have not done it?

A. HNo.

2. Okay. How many of the farman books I have
rrinted yvou have at vyvour home either in Nairoki or in

Toronto?

2. I have one kbook which iz not printed. You
gave 1t to me at the meeting. It is a white kbook. It's
a draft farman. That's the one I have.

0. It was a white book?

2. Yes. It had a white cover on it, and it said
"draft."

2. Okay. Can vou take an undertaking —-
undertaking of producing it?

MR. GRAY: I'1l take that under advisement. I'm
not going to undertake to do it, kbut I will consider it.

—-—— UNDER ATWVISEMENT
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MR. TAJDIN: Okay. Can vyvou produce —-—

MR. GRAY: As vyou know, this is a cross-
examination.

MR. TAJDIN: -- a colour photograph of that draft
book?

MR. GRAY: OCkay, that's an alternative. We'll
consider that, too. &4s this is a crogss-—-examination,
there's no duty to produce anything, but we will consider
it.

So yvou would like, as an alternative to producing
the whole book, vou would like a photograph of —-

BY MR. TAJDIN:

P. I don't need the book because obwviously I
know what it is, kbut I just had a question because it was
said it's a white cover, and I don't remember giving you
any white-cover book. So just a colour photo will do.

MR. GRAY: So you would like a colour photograph
of the cover of this document, this draft kbook?

MR. TAJDIN: Yes. I would like to see if it is
white or it is burgundy. Just a colour photo.

MR. GRAY: OCkay. Well, we'll take that under
advigsement, but likely —-- we don't want to make the
farman kook and the draft farman book a record any more
than vou do.

MR. TAJDIN: I agree. I agree with you. I said
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yvasterday that we all agree we don't want to put the
farmans into exhikbits, kbut a colour photo would do, just
a digital colour photo.

MR. GRAY: We'll take that under consideratiomn.
—-—— UNDER ADWVISEMENT

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Now, we established that farmans are quite
important because even it's mentioned in the Constitution
and the Rules and Regulations. Would vou say talikas and
farmans are of the same importance?

2. They are koth by the Imam, they are koth
different purposes, and I would not state whether one iz
more important than the other.

0. But the talika would ke a kind of a farman,
wouldn't it be? A talika is kind of a farman?

MR. GRAY: Again, I'm going to let the witness
answer within his own knowledge or belief or
understanding, recognizing that he's not here as a
religious or constitutional or a legal expert. But if
the witness feels comfortakle answering as to his own
understanding —-

BY MR. TAJDIN:

2. Okay. Mr. Bhaloo, not az a leader, not as a
constitutional expert, just as an Ismaili, would you say

that a talika and a farman is akout the same thing; a
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talika is a

A,

0.

farman?

farmans.

0.

A,

2010 AZTZ BHALOO 27

written farman?
Theyv're kboth given by the Imam, ves.

You would accept that the talika is a written

Sometimes the talikas are klessings, not

Oh, klessings are not farmans?

I told yvou that talikas are sometimes

klessings given by the Imam to the individuals, but not

instructions in farmans.

0.

Just —- you
A,
0.

Africa?

Fenya?
A,

0.

What about -- let's talk of -- tell me
don't hawve to reply, Just what age are you?
0ld enough.

0ld enough. So in the '603 were vou in East

In the 196057

YTes.

Yes, I was.

Do you remember that period?
Parts of it, ves.

Was it Nairoki or Kisumu or someplace around

Both.

Do you remember at that time when a talika

was to ke read, it was announced, and Ismailis kotters
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[ph.] in the street with drums and a person going around
saying there is talika tonight?

. Yes, I kbelieve so.

Q. And the flag was put —-

2. I do not think it was the '60s3, though. It
was the 'H0s.

Q. It was the '50s3. Sorry. I did not think vyou
would remember up to that time. I think you look so
VOUng .

But, okay, so 50'z. And the flag would go up on
the jJamat khana, and people seeing the flag up would know
that there's a talika?

A. Correct.

Q. Now, we koth live in Nairoki, so even today
when there is a talika, the flag goes up to the Jamat
khana. Have you noticed that?

2. No, I have not.

0. You have not noticed?

2. No, I have not.

Q. I would just suggest that it's a good thing
to notice.

2. Thank vou.

Q. S0 a talika, when it is read, I Jjust want to
go through some of the ceremonies that accompany the

talika to show how important it is.
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Is it true that when a talika is to be read,
there i3 a special ceremony for holy water?

A, Yes.

P. Iz it true that when a person is called to
read the talika, usually it's a person of standing,
Someone vVery respected?

2. Mr. Gray, these are -- these are really
gquestions dealing with religious matters and --

MR. GRAY: You have to speak up for the --

THE DEPCWENT: These are really gquestions of
religious matters, and I don't know whether it's
pertinent to the case.

MR. GRAY: It iz not pertinent to the case. It's
totally irrelevant, in my submission, but I was letting
Mr. Tajdin have as much leeway as I thought reasonakle.
It iz really way beyond anything relevant to this case,
and so in the interest of --

MR. TAJDIN: Okay, we are trying to define --

MR. GRAY: You're paying for vour transcript and
50 you're paying for my copy of the transcript, so --

MR. TAJDIN: Mr. Gray -—--

MR. GRAY: Let me finish. You're paying for
transcript and I'm paving -- and vou're paying for my
copy of the transcript. So if vou want to go on like

this, spending money and time on irrelevant matters, I'm
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going to let you do that as long as the witness feels
comfortakle.

But when vou're exploring these questions of holy
water in Nairoki and the talika flag, I think we are
getting awfully far afield from the issues in this case.
So if vyvou could try. 2And I really would like to giwve wyou
as much leeway -—-

MR. TAJDIN: Mr. Brian --

MR. GRAY: Let me finish.

MR. TAJDIN: This is going just -- like, how long
are you goling to talk? Because we want to put it brief.
You have said what vou have to say. So can I continue
asking my gquestions?

MR. GRAY: You interrupted me, but fine, go
ahead.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

2. Okay. Mr. Bhaloo, the kbook on which wvou hawve
written an affidavit contains talika and farmans;
right?

2. Clarify that?

Q. There is this Affidavit -- vou are sayving in
yvour Affidavit that vou are making this Affidawvit in
support of the Plaintiff's motion for summary Judgment
and for no other purpose? The last line. Do you know

the subject matter of this lawsuit?
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A, Yes, I do.

2. Okay. Would yvou agree that it's on a kook
which contains talika and farmans?

A, Yes. It contains farmans, vyes.

0. Does it contain talikas also?

2. T have not read the Golden Edition kook, so I
would no know. This is the first time I'm looking at it.

MR. GRAY: The witness iz referring to a kook
sitting on the takle here in the examination room.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. You have written an affidawvit in support of
the motion. Have wyou read the motion? Did you read the
motion?

L. Yes, I did.

Q. S0 you know it's about farmans and talika
book?

2. It is for summary Jjudoment.

Q. It doesn't matter what summary Judoment on
what subject?

L. TYes, it does.

Q. Okay. Iz it on a kbook which was printed with
farmans and talikas?

A. I remember the farman. I don't know about
the talikas.

MR. GRAY: If it helps, we'll admit that the kbook
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containg farmans and talikas. If that helps wvou, we'll
admit that.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Yes. &and I will not go through the 15 or 12

ceremonies which accompany the reading of a talika. I

will just ask vou one general question: When a talika is

read, there are a lot of religious ceremonies surrounding

the reading of the talika; ves or no?

2. Mr. Tajdin, these are matters for those who
have kbeen initiated into the faith, and they are not
matters for puklic discussion, and I will not get into
that.

Q. Okay. Mr. Bhaloo, I'm not sure what to ask
kbecause it looks like vou are wvery much on the defensive

and whatever I would ask would not bring me any kind of

reply.

You organized the 1%%2 wvisit of His Highness to
Canada?

L. Yes, I did.

Q. And vou organized all the deedars?

L. Yes, I did.

Q. OCkavy.

2. And when T say "I" organized, it wasn't me
alone. There were other people working with me.

Q. There are usually committees for transport
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and committees for logistics —-- even for preparing food;
right?

2. That's correct.

2. Okay. Iz it true that not all of the
families got a mehmani at that time?

2. That is correct.

@. Iz it true that it was only the people whose
name was starting with the first letters of the alphabet,
A, B, C, D, mayke?

2. That is correct.

Q. So there iz no way someone named Tajdin could
go into this mehmani?

2. Well, they could not.

Q. They could not. You knew that?

A, Yes.

Q. Now, in your sworn Affidavit number &, when
yvou sald in the last line, "...Mr. Tajdin had a brief
audience with His Highness on August 15, 1%92," vou know
that in 19%2 someone with the name "T" camnnot have had a
brief audience?

2. That was my recollection at the time. Then
after having read Karim Alibhay's affidavit, I realized
it was Karim Alikbhav who has taken the --

2. Okay, 50 iz this something that vou are

changing in vyour Affidavit?
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2. I believe this was the representation you had
made. That was the best of my recollection.

Q. Okay. I guess if I asked vou if Imam makes
farman as Imam, vou would say it's a religious matter, or
would yvou accept that?

2. What was the question again?

P. If I say that the Imam makes farmans as Imamn,
a3 bearer of the Noor, would vou say it's a religious
matter that vou don't want to discuss or would you agree
to that?

2. If Tmam makes the farmans, ves, I agree with
that.

0. Is he the bearer of the Noor?

2. Yes, he's the kbearer of the Noor, ves.

2. Does "Noor™ mean "light"?

2. "Noor" means "light.™

Q. It's connected to "Devine Light"?

A, Well, it's a matter of individual
interpretation. It's a matter of what vou believe, and
it's a personal search, essentially.

0. Do we have that old Constitution which —- we
have put an exhibit vesterday that -- exactly. Can we
refer to page 77

MR. GRAY: Again, I guess -- vou haven't asked

the witness whether he's ever seen this Constitution
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before.

MR. TAJDIN: I'11 ask that.

BY MR. TAJDIN:

Q. Are wyou aware that there were other
constitutions kefore "867

2. I believe there was constitutions before
1986, and in 1986 when His Highness promulgated the
current Constitution, then this is the Constitution in
force.

2. Okay. Very good. Were you aware that in the
previous Constitution there were chapters on pubklication
0f farmans and publication of religious literature?

2. I had not read the previous Constitution so I
couldn't comment on it.

2. Okay. Would yvou agree that in this
Congtitution there is mentioned, since you have read the

Constitution kecause vou had an oath of allegiance on it,

that —-

MR. GRAY: I'm just trying to understand.
Which --

MR. TAJDIN: Can I finish my question kefore wyou
okject?

MR. GRAY: OCkay.
MR. TAJDIN: ©Or I think we are going nowhere.

Let me just stop this examination because —-
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MR. GRAY: I really just wanted to clarify vour
gquestion.

ME. TAJDIN: Pleasge, Mr. Gray, before even T
finish my question vou are already raising vour hand. T
don't know if wvou are trying to intimidate me, kbut T
don't want to continue this interrogation. I told wvou I
will be brief.

ME. GRAY: Well, let me -—-

MR. TAJDIN: So it was Just few minutes?

MR. GRAY: Well, let me explain for the record
what I was tryving to stop. I wanted, before the witness
answered, to understand when vyou said "this"
Constitution, which Constitution vou were referring to.
Because wyou have put before us a 1%48 Constitution, you
referred to a pre-19%36 Constitution, and you were also
gquestioning on the 1%86 current Constitution.

MR. TAJDIN: Mr. Gray, let's stop here, please.

MR. GRAY: That's fine.

MR. TAJDIN: Thank wyou.

MR. GRAY: I have no re-examination.

—-—— WHEREUEBCON THE EXAMINATICW ADJCOURNED AT 10:36 AM.
I HEREBY CERTIFY THE FOREGOING
to be a true and accurate

transcription of my shorthand notes
taken to the best of my skill and akility.

FATHRINE MCMENEMY, CSR
Computer-Aided Transcription
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